
1  February 13, 2023 
 

 BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION AGENDA 
 FEBRUARY 13, 2023 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 151 MARTIN 
7:30 P.M. 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Therese Longe, Mayor 
 

II. ROLL CALL 
Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk  
 

III. PROCLAMATIONS, CONGRATULATORY RESOLUTIONS, AWARDS, APPOINTMENTS, 
RESIGNATIONS AND CONFIRMATIONS, ADMINISTRATION OF OATHS, INTRODUCTION OF 
GUESTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS. 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 The City recommends members of the public wear a mask if they have been exposed to COVID-

19 or have a respiratory illness. City staff, City Commission and all board and committee 
members must wear a mask if they have been exposed to COVID-19 or actively have a 
respiratory illness. The City continues to provide KN-95 respirators and triple-layered masks 
for attendees. 

 The City of Birmingham, along with the nation, recognizes Black History Month in February. We 
celebrate the legacy of Black Americans whose power to lead, to overcome and to expand the 
meaning and practice of American democracy has helped our nation become a more fair and 
just society. The city continues to make significant progress in understanding the important 
history of Black families in early Birmingham, and remains committed to seeking opportunities 
to share the whole story of our community in the future. 

 The Birmingham Police Department participated in a polar plunge fundraiser for the Special 
Olympics of Michigan that took place on February 4, 2023.  Numerous members of the Police 
Department, two employees from the Clerk’s Office and Mayor Pro-Tem Elaine McLain jumped 
into the icy waters of Walled Lake and raised over $13,000 for the cause.  Our Birmingham 
team was the third-highest grossing agency involved.  

 
APPOINTMENTS 

A. Appointment to the Birmingham Area Cable Board 
1. Donovan Shand 

To appoint _______________________to the Cablecasting Board as a regular member to serve 
a three-year term expiring March 30, 2026. 
 
To appoint _______________________ to the Cablecasting Board as a regular member to serve 
the remainder of a three-year term expiring March 30, 2024. 
 
To appoint _______________________ to the Cablecasting Board as an alternate member to 
serve the remainder of a three-year term expiring March 30, 2025. 
 

B. Appointment to the Board of Zoning Appeals  



2  February 13, 2023 
 

1. Carl Kona 
To appoint _____________ as an alternate member to the Board of Zoning Appeals to serve a 
three-year term to expire February 18, 2026. 

 
IV. OPEN TO THE PUBLIC FOR MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

 
 

V. CONSENT AGENDA 
All items listed on the consent agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion 
and approved by a roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of the items unless a 
Commissioner or citizen so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the general order 
of business and considered under the last item of new business. 

A. Resolution to approve the revised City Commission meeting minutes of January 9, 2023. 

B. Resolution to approve the City Commission Long Range Planning meeting minutes of January 
21, 2023. 

C. Resolution to approve the City Commission meeting minutes of January 23, 2023. 

D. Resolution to approve the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, dated 
January 25, 2023, in the amount of $2,219,383.97. 

E. Resolution to approve the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, dated 
February 1, 2023 in the amount of $459,227.17. 

F. Resolution to approve the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, dated 
February 8, 2023 in the amount of $2,940,323.27. 

G. Resolution to approve the construction project budget and award the two (2) 500,000 Gallon 
Radial Arm Tanks Exterior Overcoat and Miscellaneous Repairs #2-22 (W) to Fedewa Inc. in 
the amount of $482,699.00. In addition, to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the 
agreement on behalf of the city. Funding for this project has been budgeted in the following 
accounts: 

Fund 
Account 

Fund ID Number Project 
Award 

10% 
Contingencies 

Total 

Water Fund 591.0-543.000-981.0100- Derby $209,699.00 $20,969.90 $230,668.90 
Water Fund 591.0-543.000-981.0100 - Hunter $273,000.00 $27,300.00 $300,300.00 

Total Costs $482,699.00 $48,269.90 $530,968.90 
 

H. Resolution to set a public hearing date of March 13, 2023 to consider the Special Land Use 
Permit, Final Site Plan and Design Review application for 34350 Woodward Ave & 909-911 
Haynes Street – Fred Lavery Porsche. 
 

I. Resolution to approve the purchase of a trailer attenuator from Truck & Trailer Specialties, 
Inc., located at 900 Grand Oaks Drive, Howell, MI 48843, through the MiDeal Cooperative 
Purchase Agreement #071B7700086, in the amount not to exceed $32,275, in addition to 
authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the agreement on behalf on the City. Funding for 
this purchase has been budgeted in the FY 2022-2023 Auto Equipment Fund account #661.0-
441.006.971.0100. 



3  February 13, 2023 
 

 
J. Resolution to approve a special event permit as requested by the Birmingham Shopping 

District to hold Birmingham Movie Nights on June 9, July 14, August 11, and September 8, 
2023, contingent upon compliance with all permit and insurance requirements and payment 
of all fees and, further pursuant to any minor modifications that may be deemed necessary 
by administrative staff at the time of the event, or event cancellation that may be deemed 
necessary by administrative staff, leading up to or at the time of the event. 
 

K. Resolution to accept the resignation of Steven Kalczynski from the Advisory Parking 
Committee, to thank him for his service and to direct the City Clerk to begin the process of 
filling the vacancy. 
 

L. Resolution to accept the resignation of Patrick Rock from the Martha Baldwin Park Board, to 
thank him for his service and to direct the City Clerk to begin the process of filling the vacancy. 

 
VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Resolution to approve the City of Birmingham Code of Conduct and further direct staff to 
publish a resolution or ordinance and the Code of Conduct as adopted on the City of 
Birmingham website along with the Rules of Procedure of the Birmingham City Commission. 

 
VII. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Public Hearing for 300 S. Old Woodward – RH – Special Land Use Permit Amendment, Final 
Site Plan & Design Review. 
1. Motion to postpone the public hearing and consideration of the Special Land Use 

Permit Amendment, Final Site Plan and Design Review application for 300 S. Old 
Woodward – RH – to February 27, 2023. 

 
B. Public Hearing to amend Article 4, Section 4.44, Article 3, Section 3.04, Article 3, Section 3.16, 

and Article 9, Section 9.02 to provide clear and enforceable outdoor dining standards. 
1. Motion adopting an ordinance to amend Article 4, Section 4.44, Article 3, Section 3.04, 

Article 3, Section 3.16, and Article 9, Section 9.02 to provide clear and enforceable 
outdoor dining standards. 

 
C. Commission Items for Future Discussion. A motion is required to bring up the item for future 

discussion at the next reasonable agenda, no discussion on the topic will happen tonight.  
 
D. Commission discussion on items from a prior meeting 

1. Establishment of an Ad Hoc Senior Services Committee 
 
E. Resolution to meet in closed session to discuss the potential purchase of land pursuant to 

MCL§ 15.268 Sec. 8 (d) of the Open Meetings Act. 
 

 A roll call vote is required and the vote must be approved by a 2/3 majority of 
the commission. The commission will adjourn to closed session after all other 
business has been addressed in open session and reconvene to open session, 
after the closed session, for purposes of taking formal action resulting from the 
closed session and for purposes of adjourning the meeting. 

 



4  February 13, 2023 
 

VIII. REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
 

IX. COMMUNICATIONS 
  

X. REPORTS 
A. Commissioner Reports 

1. Notice of intention to appoint to the Architectural Review Committee 
2. Notice of intention to appoint to the Planning Board  
3. Notice of intention to appoint to the Advisory Parking Committee 
4. Notice of intention to appoint to the Martha Baldwin Park Board 
5. Notice of intention to appoint to the Ad Hoc Environmental Sustainability Board 

B. Commissioner Comments 
C. Advisory Boards, Committees, Commissions’ Reports and Agendas 
D. Legislation 
E. City Staff 

1. Ongoing Communication with MDOT 
2. BSD 2022 Year in Review 
3. Opiate Report 

INFORMATION ONLY  
 

 XI. ADJOURN 
Should you wish to participate in this meeting, you are invited to attend the meeting in person or 
virtually through ZOOM:   https://zoom.us/j/655079760       Meeting ID: 655 079 760  
You may also present your written statement to the City Commission, City of Birmingham, 151 Martin 
Street, P.O. Box 3001, Birmingham, Michigan 48012-3001 prior to the hearing.   
 
NOTICE:  Individuals requiring accommodations, such as mobility, visual, hearing, interpreter or other assistance, for 
effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk's Office at (248) 530-1880 (voice), or (248) 644-
5115 (TDD) at least one day in advance to request mobility, visual, hearing or other assistance.  
Las personas que requieren alojamiento, tales como servicios de interpretación, la participación efectiva en esta reunión 
deben ponerse en contacto con la Oficina del Secretario Municipal al (248) 530-1880 por lo menos el día antes de la 
reunión pública. (Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964). 



NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO THE 
CABLECASTING BOARD

At the regular meeting of Monday, February 13, 2023 the Birmingham City Commission intends to appoint three 
members to the Cablecasting Board to serve three-year terms expiring March 30, 2026, one regular member to 
serve the remainder of a three-year term expiring March 30, 2024, and one alternate member to serve the 
remainder of a three-year term expiring March 30, 2025. Applicants must be residents of the City of Birmingham. 

Interested citizens may submit an application available at the City Clerk’s office or online at 
www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities. Applications must be submitted to the City Clerk's office on or before noon 
on Wednesday, February 8, 2023.  These applications will appear in the public agenda for the regular meeting at 
which time the City Commission will discuss recommendations, and may make nominations and vote on the 
appointments. 

Duties of the Cablecasting Board 
1) Advise the municipalities on matters relating to cable communications;
2) Monitor the franchisee's compliance with the franchise agreement and the cable communications ordinance;
3) Conduct performance reviews as outlined in Chapter 30, Article VII of the city code;
4) Act as liaison between the franchisee and the public; hear complaints from the public and seek their resolution

from the franchisee;
5) Advise the various municipalities on rate adjustments and services according to the procedure outlined in

Chapter 30; Article VI
6) Advise the municipalities on renewal, extension or termination of a franchise;
7) Appropriate those moneys deposited in an account in the name of the cablecasting board by the member

communities;
8) Oversee the operation of the education, governmental and public access channels;
9) Apprise the municipalities of new developments in cable communications technology;
10) Hear and decide all matters or requests by the operator (Comcast Cablevision);
11) Hear and make recommendations to the municipalities of any request of the operator for modification of the

franchise requirement as to channel capacity and addressable converters or maintenance of the security fund;
12) Hear and decide all matters in the franchise agreement which would require the operator to expend moneys

up to fifty thousand dollars;
13) Enter into contracts as authorized by resolutions of the member municipalities;
14) Administer contracts entered into by the board and terminate such contracts.

Applicant(s) Presented For City Commission Consideration: 

NOTE: All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 2, 
Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.  

Applicant Name Criteria  
Must be a resident of 
Birmingham 

Qualifications 

Donovan Shand Birmingham Resident Current Regular Member 

3A



SUGGESTED ACTION: 
To appoint _______________________to the Cablecasting Board as a regular member to 
serve a three-year term expiring March 30, 2026. 

To appoint _______________________ to the Cablecasting Board as a regular member to serve 
the remainder of a three-year term expiring March 30, 2024. 

To appoint _______________________ to the Cablecasting Board as an alternate member to 
serve the remainder of a three-year term expiring March 30, 2025. 

3A



CABLECASTING BOARD
Chapter 30 - Section 30-226 - Birmingham City Code 
Meeting Schedule: 3rd Wednesday of the month - 7:45 A. M 

The Board shall consist of 12 members, which includes 7 members who are residents of the City 
of Birmingham.  Each member community shall also appoint one alternative representative. (30-
226) 

Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Abraham George

898 Arlington

(248) 642-1257

georgeabrahamjr@outlook.com
Birmingham resident

3/30/20245/14/2018

Cleary Jim

2001 Fairway

(248) 840- 8416

clearyjp@gmail.com
Birmingham resident

3/30/202512/21/2020

Eick R. David

559 Greenwood

(248) 231-8067

eickhouse@comcast.net
Birmingham resident

3/30/202412/14/2015

Fenberg Michael

908 Chesterfield

(248) 310-7373

michael.fenberg@bakertilly.com
Birmingham resident

3/30/20233/13/2017

Shand Donovan

1645 Buckingham Ave.

(248) 330-0747

dgshand@gmail.com
Birmingham resident

3/30/202312/4/2017

Saturday, November 5, 2022 Page 1 of 2

For Cable Inquires: 
 Cathy White  248-336-9445 

P.O. Box 165, Birmingham, MI  48012 

3A

cwoods
Rectangle

cwoods
Rectangle



Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

VACANT
ALTERNATE

3/20/2025

VACANT 3/30/2024

Whittington Robert

512 E. Southlawn

(248) 593-8641

rwhittington@directgolfsales.com
Birmingham resident

3/30/20231/24/2022

Saturday, November 5, 2022 Page 2 of 2

For Cable Inquires: 
 Cathy White  248-336-9445 

P.O. Box 165, Birmingham, MI  48012 

3A

cwoods
Rectangle



Christina Woods <cwoods@bhamgov.org>

Upcoming board appointments

execdir@birminghamareacableboard.org <execdir@birminghamareacableboard.org> Tue, Feb 7, 2023 at 4:40
PM

Reply-To: execdir@birminghamareacableboard.org
To: Christina Woods <cwoods@bhamgov.org>
Cc: Gil Gugni <ggugni50@gmail.com>, "rwhittington@directgolfsales.com" <rwhittington@directgolfsales.com>, "R. David
Eick" <eickhouse@comcast.net>, Michael Fenberg <michael.fenberg@bakertilly.com>, "clearyjp@gmail.com"
<clearyjp@gmail.com>, Donovan Shand <dgshand@gmail.com>, George Abraham <gabraham@comcast.net>

Christina: I have been meaning to get back with you regarding the attendance of board members at our meetings
for the past three years. Here is the information:
Whittington (appt'd 1-24-22): Two absences in 2022
Eick: One absence in 2020, one absence in 2021 and no absences in 2022
Fenberg: One absence in 2020, three absences in 2021 and four absences in 2022
Cleary: No absences in 2020, one absence in 2021 and three absences in 2022
Shand: Three absences in 2020, six absences in 2021 and three absences in 2022
Abraham: No absences in 2020, two absences in 2021 and no absences in 2022

Cathy White
Executive Director of BACB    
P.O.Box 165
Birmingham, MI 48012
248-336-9445

From: "Christina Woods" <cwoods@bhamgov.org>
Sent: 1/13/23 2:16 PM
To: execdir@birminghamareacableboard.org
Subject: Upcoming board appointments
[Quoted text hidden]

3A

mailto:cwoods@bhamgov.org
mailto:execdir@birminghamareacableboard.org


3A



Christina Woods <cwoods@bhamgov.org>

Birmingham Cablecasting Board Term Expiration
D Shand <dgshand@gmail.com> Wed, Feb 8, 2023 at 11:47 AM
To: Christina Woods <cwoods@bhamgov.org>
Cc: execdir@birminghamareacableboard.org

HI again Christina, my application for the Birmingham Area Cable Board membership renewal is attached. I would like to
remain a board member for another term. Unfortunately, I am unable to attend the February 13 City Commission meeting.

Please let me know if you have any questions or need any additional information.

Thank you,

Donovan Shand

[Quoted text hidden]

BACB Application_Shand.pdf
1300K

3A

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=c586f10302&view=att&th=18631ecbdffbe219&attid=0.1&disp=attd&realattid=f_ldvwlo5g0&safe=1&zw


   Created: 2022-01-04 08:31:28 [EST]

(Supp. No. 45, Update 3) 

Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 30-226. Creation and membership of board. 

(a) The Birmingham City Commission and the Village Councils of Beverly Hills, Bingham Farms, and Franklin have
established a cablecasting board. The board shall continue to consist of 12 members, seven who are
residents of the City of Birmingham who shall be appointed by the City of Birmingham, four who shall be
residents of Beverly Hills who shall be appointed by that Village, one who shall be a resident of Bingham
Farms who shall be appointed by that Village, and one who shall he a resident or appointed official of the
Village of Franklin who shall he appointed by the Village. Each member shall also appoint one alternate
representative. Members of the board shall serve without compensation and for such terms as their
respective authorities shall determine. The City of Birmingham and the villages shall also have sole power to
remove and/or replace their respective appointees.

(b) Each of the board's member communities is encouraged to appoint an elected or appointed official of that
community to act as a liaison to the board, to attend board meetings, and to participate in board discussions.

(c) The Birmingham School District and the Baldwin Library are each also encouraged to appoint a
representative to act as a liaison to the board and to participate in board discussions regarding matters
relevant to their respective interests and constituencies.

(d) Seven members of the board shall constitute a quorum and the affirmative vote of a majority of the full
board shall be required for board action.

(Ord. No. 1540, § 2.2909, 11-9-92; Ord. No. 1724, 3-20-00; Ord. No. 1757, 6-11-01) 

3A



NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO 
BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

At the regular meeting of Monday, February 13, 2023, the Birmingham City Commission 
intends to appoint two alternate members to the Board of Zoning Appeals to serve three-year 
terms to expire February 18, 2026. 

Interested parties may recommend others or themselves for these positions by submitting a 
form available from the City Clerk's office.  Applications must be submitted to the City Clerk's 
office on or before noon on Wednesday, February 8, 2023. Applications will appear in the 
public agenda at which time the City Commission will discuss recommendations, and may 
make nominations and vote on appointments. 

Duties of Board
The Board of Zoning Appeals acts on questions arising from the administration of the zoning 
ordinance, including the interpretation of the zoning map. The Board hears and decides 
appeals from and reviews any order, requirement, decision or determination made by the 
Building Official. 

Applicant Name Criteria  
Applicants shall be 
property owners of 
record and registered 
voters. 

Qualifications 

Carl Kona Birmingham Property 
owner and registered 
voter 

Current alternate member, 
remodeling business experience 

NOTE: All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 2, 
Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   

SUGGESTED ACTION: 

To appoint _____________ as an alternate member to the Board of Zoning Appeals to serve 
a three-year term to expire February 18, 2026. 

3B



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
Chapter 126 – Section 126-671 – Seven Members – Three Year Terms 
Requirements – Property owners of record and registered voter 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals acts on questions arising from the administration of the zoning 
ordinance, including the interpretation of the zoning map. The board hears and decides appeals 
from and reviews any order, requirement, decision or determination made by the building official. 

Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Canvasser Jason

369 Kimberly

(248) 231-9972

jcanvasser@clarkhill.com
Attorney
7/9/2018 10/10/2023

Hart Kevin

2051 Villa

(248) 4967363

khartassociates@aol.com
Architect
2/27/2012 10/10/2023

Kona Carl

439 W. Merrill St

(248)540-2810

carlsbox@hotmail.com
Alternate Member, Financial Services
4/25/2022 2/17/2023

Lilley Richard

648 Cherry Ct.

248-594-6737

dicklilley@icloud.com
Regular Member
9/6/2018 10/10/2025

Miller John

544 Brookside

(248) 703-9384

jnmillerstudio@gmail.com
Architect
1/23/2012 10/10/2024

Morganroth Erik

631 Ann

(248) 762-9822

emorganroth@comcast.net
Real Estate/Builder
10/12/2015 10/10/2024

Thursday, November 3, 2022 Page 1 of 2

3B

cwoods
Rectangle



Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Reddy Ron

763 Wallace

(313) 820-7491

ron.reddy01@gmail.com
Regular member
2/11/2019 10/10/2025

Vacant
Alternate Member

2/18/2023

Yaldo Pierre

1936 Graefield

(248) 534-5585

pierreyaldo1@gmail.com
Attorney
2/28/2022 10/10/2025

Thursday, November 3, 2022 Page 2 of 2

3B

cwoods
Rectangle



Name of Board: Year: 2021
Members Required for Quorum: 4

MEMBER NAME JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC
SPEC 
MTG

SPEC 
MTG

Total 
Mtgs. 
Att.

Total 
Absent

Percent 
Attended 
Available

REGULAR MEMBERS
Lillie, Charles P P P P P P P A P P P P NM NM 11 1 92%
Miller, John P P P P P P A P P P P P NM NM 11 1 92%
Hart, Kevin P P A P A P A P P P P A NM NM 8 4 67%
Morganroth, Erik P P P P P P P P P A P P NM NM 11 1 92%
Canvasser, Jason P P P P P P A P P P P P NM NM 11 1 92%
Rodriguez, Francis P A P P P P A P P A A A NM NM 7 5 58%
Lilley, Richard P P P P P P P P P P A P NM NM 11 1 92%
Reserved 0 0 #DIV/0!
Reserved 0 0 #DIV/0!
ALTERNATES
Reddy, Ron P P P P P P P P P P P P NM NM 12 0 100%
Rodenhouse, Erin J. P P P P P P P P P P P P NM NM 12 0 100%
Reserved 0 0 #DIV/0!
Reserved 0 0 #DIV/0!
Present or Available 9 8 8 9 8 9 5 8 9 7 7 7 0 0

KEY: A = Member absent
P = Member present or available

CP = Member available, but meeting canceled  for lack of quorum
CA = Member not available and meeting was canceled for lack of quorum
NA = Member not appointed at that time

NM = No meeting scheduled that month
CM = Meeting canceled for lack of business items

Department Head Signature

CITY BOARD/COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE RECORD

Board of Zoning Appeals

3B



Name of Board: Year: 2022
Members Required for Quorum: 4

MEMBER NAME JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC
SPEC 
MTG

SPEC 
MTG

Total 
Mtgs. 
Att.

Total 
Absent

Percent 
Attended 
Available

REGULAR MEMBERS
Lillie, Charles A A A P A A P P P NA NA NA P NM 5 5 50%
Miller, John A P A P P P P P P P P A P NM 10 3 77%
Hart, Kevin CP P P P P P A P P P P P P NM 11 1 92%
Morganroth, Erik A P P P P P P P P P P P P NM 12 1 92%
Canvasser, Jason A P P P P P P P P A P P P NM 11 2 85%
Reddy, Ron NA NA P P P P P P P P P P P NM 11 0 100%
Yaldo, Pierre NA NA P P A P P P P P P P P NM 10 1 91%
Rodriguez, Francis CP NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 0 0 #DIV/0!
Lilley, Richard NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA P 1 0 100%
ALTERNATES
Reddy, Ron CP A NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 0 1 0%
Rodenhouse, Erin J. CP P NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 1 0 100%
Kona, Carl NA NA NA NA P P P P P P P P P 9 0 100%
Lilley, Richard NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA P P NA NA NA NA 2 0 100%
Present or Available 4 5 5 7 6 7 7 8 9 7 8 6 8 0

KEY: A = Member absent
P = Member present or available

CP = Member available, but meeting canceled  for lack of quorum
CA = Member not available and meeting was canceled for lack of quorum
NA = Member not appointed at that time

NM = No meeting scheduled that month
CM = Meeting canceled for lack of business items

Department Head Signature

CITY BOARD/COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE RECORD

Board of Zoning Appeals

3B



Name of Board: Year: 2023
Members Required for Quorum: 4

MEMBER NAME JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC
SPEC 
MTG

SPEC 
MTG

Total 
Mtgs. 
Att.

Total 
Absent

Percent 
Attended 
Available

REGULAR MEMBERS
Miller, John P 1 0 100%
Hart, Kevin P 1 0 100%
Morganroth, Erik A 0 1 0%
Canvasser, Jason P 1 0 100%
Reddy, Ron P 1 0 100%
Yaldo, Pierre P 1 0 100%
Lilley, Richard P 1 0 100%
Reserved 0 0 #DIV/0!
Reserved 0 0 #DIV/0!
ALTERNATES
Kona, Carl P 1 0 100%
Member 2 0 0 #DIV/0!
Reserved 0 0 #DIV/0!
Reserved 0 0 #DIV/0!
Present or Available 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

KEY: A = Member absent
P = Member present or available

CP = Member available, but meeting canceled  for lack of quorum
CA = Member not available and meeting was canceled for lack of quorum
NA = Member not appointed at that time

NM = No meeting scheduled that month
CM = Meeting canceled for lack of business items

Department Head Signature

CITY BOARD/COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE RECORD

Board of Zoning Appeals

3B



3B



Unified Development Ordinance                                            Page 1

CHAPTER 126 - ZONING
 

ARTICLE 8: ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTIES
 

8.01 The Board of Zoning Appeals
 

A. Establish: There shall be established and appointed by the City Commission, in accordance with Section 5, Act No. 
207 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1921 (MCL 125.585, MSA 5.2935), as amended, a Board of Zoning Appeals 
consisting of seven members each to be appointed for a term of three years.

B. Alternate Members: The City Commission may also appoint not more than two alternate members for the same term 
as regular members of the Board of Zoning Appeals. The alternate member may be called on a rotating basis to sit as 
a regular member of the Board of Zoning Appeals in the absence of a regular member. An alternate member may also 
be called to service in the place of a regular member for the purpose of reaching a decision on a case in which the 
regular member has abstained for reasons of conflict of interest. The alternate member having been appointed shall 
serve in the case until a final decision has been made. The alternate member shall have the same voting rights as a 
regular member of the Board of Zoning Appeals.

C. Procedure: Meetings of the Board of Zoning Appeals shall be held at the call of the chairperson, and at such other 
times as the Board of Zoning Appeals may determine. Such chairperson, or in his/her absence, the acting chairperson, 
may administer oaths and compel the attendance of witnesses. The Board of Zoning Appeals shall adopt rules of 
procedure and shall keep records of applications and the action thereon, which shall be a public record.

D. Appeals: An appeal to the Board of Zoning Appeals, based in whole or in part on the provisions of the Zoning 
Ordinance, may be taken by any person aggrieved, or by any governmental officer, department, Board of Zoning 
Appeals or bureau affected by the decision of the Building Official. Such appeal shall be taken by filing with the Board 
of Zoning Appeals a notice of appeal, on forms provided by the Building Official, specifying the ground thereof, and by 
paying the required fee. The Building Official shall transmit to the Board of Zoning Appeals all papers constituting the 
records upon which the appeal action was taken.

E. Hearing and Notice: The Board of Zoning Appeals shall fix a reasonable time for the hearing of an appeal and shall 
give due notice of the appeal to the persons to whom real property within 300 feet of the premises in question is 
assessed, and to the occupants of single- and two-family dwellings within 300 feet, the notice to be delivered 
personally or by mail to the respective owners and tenants at the address given in the last assessment roll. If the 
tenant’s name is not known, the term “occupant” may be used. A notice sign shall also be posted in a conspicuous 
place on the subject property. Notice signs will be provided by the City of Birmingham. It is the responsibility of the 
applicant to post the notice sign as required, to ensure that the notice sign remains posted during the entire notice 
period and to remove the notice sign the day after the public hearing the notice sign was advertising. At the hearing, 
any person or party may appear in person, by agent or by attorney. All such hearings shall be open to the public.

F. Powers and Duties: The Board of Zoning Appeals shall have the powers and duties set forth in MCL 125.581 et seq., 
MSA 5.2931 et seq. and as more particularly hereinafter enumerated. The Board of Zoning Appeals shall not have the 
power to change the zoning district of any property. The Board of Zoning Appeal's power and duties shall include the 
following:
1. Review of administrative decisions.

a. The Board of Zoning Appeals shall hear and decide appeals from and review any order, requirement, decision 
or determination made by an administrative official charged with the enforcement of the Zoning Ordinance.

b. It may reverse or affirm, wholly or partly, or may modify the order, requirement, decision or determination 
appealed from and shall make such order, requirement, decision or determination as in its opinion ought to be 
made in the situation, and to that end shall have all the powers of the officer from whom the appeal is taken.

2. Mapping disputes.
a. Where disputes arise as to the location of the floodplain boundary or the limits of the floodway, the Board of 

Zoning Appeals shall resolve the dispute and establish the boundary location in accordance with Section 1.15. 

3B



Unified Development Ordinance                                            Page 2

In all cases, the decision of the Board of Zoning Appeals shall be based upon the most current floodplain 
studies issued by the Office of Federal Insurance and Hazard Mitigation. Where the Office of Federal 
Insurance and Hazard Mitigation information is not available, the best available floodplain information shall be 
utilized.

b. Where a dispute involves an allegation that the boundary is incorrect as mapped and Office of Federal 
Insurance and Hazard Mitigation floodplain studies are being questioned, the Board of Zoning Appeals shall 
modify the boundary of the floodplain or the floodway only upon receipt of an official letter of map 
amendment issued by the Office of Federal Insurance and Hazard Mitigation.

3. Variances.
a. The Board of Zoning Appeals shall hear and grant or deny requests for variances from the strict application of 

the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance where there are practical difficulties or unnecessary hardships in 
carrying out the strict letter of such chapter. In granting a variance, the Board of Zoning Appeals may attach 
such conditions as it may deem reasonably necessary to promote the spirit and intent of the Zoning 
Ordinance. The Board of Zoning Appeals shall not grant any variance unless it first determines that:
i. Because of special conditions applicable to the property in question, the provisions of the Zoning 

Ordinance, if strictly applied, unreasonably prevent the property owner from using the property for a 
permitted purpose;

ii. Literal enforcement of the chapter will result in unnecessary hardship;
iii. The granting of the variance will not be contrary to the spirit and purpose of the Zoning Ordinance nor 

contrary to the public health, safety and welfare; and
iv. The granting of the variance will result in substantial justice to the property owner, the owners of property 

in the area and the general public.
b. Variances from the provisions of Section 4.13, Floodplain Regulations, shall only be granted by the Board of 

Zoning Appeals upon a determination of compliance with the general standards for variances contained in the 
Zoning Ordinance and in accordance with the following:
i. The variance granted will not result in flood heights in excess of those permitted by the Zoning Ordinance, 

additional threats to public safety, extraordinary public expense, create nuisances, cause fraud on or 
victimization of the public, or conflict with existing laws or ordinances.

ii. The variance granted shall be the minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford relief to the 
applicant.

iii. Variances may be granted for the reconstruction, rehabilitation or restoration of structures listed on the 
National Register of Historic Places or the Michigan Historic Markers listing of historic sites, or any other 
state register of historic places without meeting the requirements of this section.

c. Sign Variance Procedure. Any person who feels aggrieved by a decision of the City Planner or Design Review 
Board may have the sign reviewed by the Board of Zoning Appeals. A variance may be granted by the Board 
of Zoning Appeals only in cases involving practical difficulties when the evidence in the official record of the 
appeal supports all the following affirmative findings:
i. That the alleged practical difficulties are peculiar to the property of the person requesting the variance by 

reasons of the physical and/or dimensional constraints of the building and/or site, and result from 
conditions which do not exist generally throughout the City;

ii. That the granting of the requested variance would not be materially detrimental to the property owners in 
the immediate vicinity;

iii. That the granting of the variance would not be contrary to the general objectives of this Chapter and is in 
keeping with the spirit and intent of this ordinance; and

iv. That granting the variance will result in substantial justice being done, considering the public benefits 
intended to be secured by this Chapter, the individual hardships that will be suffered by a failure of the 
Board of Zoning Appeals to grant a variance, and the rights of others whose property would be affected by 
the allowance of the variance.

3B



Unified Development Ordinance                                            Page 3

v. In granting a variance, the Board of Zoning Appeals may attach such conditions as it may deem 
reasonably necessary to promote the spirit and intent of the Zoning Ordinance and the conditions specified 
in the sign ordinance, Chapter 86, Article 02, Section 2.06.

G. Miscellaneous:
1. No order of the Board of Zoning Appeals permitting the erection or alteration of buildings shall be valid for a 

period longer than one year, unless a building permit for such erection or alteration is obtained within such period 
and such erection or alteration is commenced and proceeds to completion in accordance with the terms of such 
permit.

2. No order of the Board of Zoning Appeals permitting a use of a building or premises shall be valid for a period 
longer than one year unless such use is established within such period; provided, however, that if the use of such 
permit is dependent upon the erection or alteration of a building, such order shall continue in full force and effect 
if a building permit for such use, erection or alteration is obtained within such period and such erections or 
alterations are commenced and proceed to completion in accordance with the terms of such permit.

3B



Birmingham City Commission DRAFT Minutes 
January 9, 2023 

Municipal Building, 151 Martin 
7:30 p.m.

Vimeo Link: https://vimeo.com/782771118 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Therese Longe, Mayor, opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 

II. ROLL CALL
City Clerk Bingham called the roll. 

Present: Mayor Longe 
Mayor Pro Tem McLain 
Commissioner Baller  
Commissioner Boutros 
Commissioner Haig  
Commissioner Host 
Commissioner Schafer 

Absent: None 

Staff: City Manager Markus; City Clerk Bingham, Assistant City Manager Ecker, Human Resources 
Manager Lambert 

III. PROCLAMATIONS, CONGRATULATORY RESOLUTIONS, AWARDS, APPOINTMENTS,
RESIGNATIONS AND CONFIRMATIONS, ADMINISTRATION OF OATHS, INTRODUCTION OF
GUESTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

Announcements 
● The City recommends members of the public wear a mask if they have been exposed to COVID-19

or have a respiratory illness. City staff, City Commission and all board and committee members
must wear a mask if they have been exposed to COVID-19 or actively have a respiratory illness.
The City continues to provide KN-95 respirators and triple-layered masks for attendees.

● The $1.3 million Birmingham Combined Sewer System Critical Rehabilitation Program Project was
funded in the Federal Omnibus Bill passed December 23, 2022. The Mayor thanked City Staff and
Congresswoman Stevens for their work on documenting the need and securing the funding.

● County Commissioner Charles Cavell

Appointments 

01-001-23 Appointment to the Historic District Commission

The Commission interviewed Mary E. Jaye for the appointment. 

MOTION: Nomination by Commissioner Boutros:  

5A

https://vimeo.com/782771118


2  January 9, 2023 - DRAFT 

To appoint Mary E. Jaye as an alternate member to the Historic District Commission to serve the remainder 
of a three-year term to expire September 25, 2025. 
 
VOICE VOTE:  Ayes, MPT McLain 

Commissioner Baller   
    Commissioner Boutros   
    Commissioner Schafer 
    Commissioner Host 
    Mayor Longe 

Commissioner Haig   
 
   Nays, None 
 
CC Bingham swore in Ms. Jaye. 

 
IV. OPEN TO THE PUBLIC FOR MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

 
V. CONSENT AGENDA 

01-002-23 Consent Agenda  
 
The following items were pulled from the Consent Agenda: 
 Commissioner Haig: Item H – Set Public Hearing to amend Article 4, Section 4.44, Article 3,  
    Section 3.04, Article 3, Section 3.16, and Article 9, Section 9.02 to provide  
    clear and enforceable outdoor dining standards  
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Boutros, seconded by Commissioner McLain: 
To approve the Consent Agenda excluding Item H. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Schafer 

Commissioner Host 
MPT McLain 
Commissioner Boutros  

    Mayor Longe    
Commissioner Baller 

    Commissioner Haig 
 
   Nays, None 

A. Resolution to approve the City Commission meeting minutes of November 28, 2022 as amended.  

B. Resolution to approve the City Commission meeting minutes of December 19, 2022. 

C. Resolution to approve the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, dated 
December 21, 2022, in the amount of $2,376,100.61. 

D. Resolution to approve the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, dated 
January 4, 2023, in the amount of $4,205,337.48. 

5A



3  January 9, 2023 - DRAFT 

E. Resolution to hold a 2022 review of establishments who have liquor licenses for consumption on 
premises and to consider same establishments for 2023 renewal at the regular City Commission 
meeting on Monday, February 27, 2023 at 7:30 p.m. 

F. Resolution to approve a special event permit as requested by the Birmingham Clerk’s Office to hold 
the Celebrate Birmingham Parade and Party in Shain Park on Sunday, May 21, 2023 contingent 
upon compliance with all permit and insurance requirements and payment of all fees and further 
pursuant to any minor modifications that may be deemed necessary by administrative staff at the 
time of the event, or event cancellation that may be deemed necessary leading up to or at the time 
of the event. 

G. Resolution to set a public hearing date of February 13, 2023 to consider the Special Land Use 
Permit, Final Site Plan and Design Review application for 300 S. Old Woodward – RH. 

01-003-23 (Item H) Set Public Hearing to amend Article 4, Section 4.44, Article 3, Section  
3.04, Article 3, Section 3.16, and Article 9, Section 9.02 to provide clear and 
enforceable outdoor dining standards  
 

Commissioner Haig said he would send along some recommended changes for minor errors and 
typographical issues, noting that none of the recommended changes were in regards to content. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Haig, seconded by Commissioner McLain: 
To adopt a resolution to set a public hearing date of February 13, 2023 to consider ordinance amendments 
to Article 4, Section 4.44, Article 3, Section 3.04, Article 3, Section 3.16, and Article 9, Section 9.02 to 
provide clear and enforceable outdoor dining standards. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Schafer 

Commissioner Host 
MPT McLain 
Commissioner Boutros  

    Mayor Longe    
Commissioner Baller 

    Commissioner Haig 
 
   Nays, None 
 

VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

VII. NEW BUSINESS 
01-004-23 City Manager Recruitment Update 
 
CM Markus, the Mayor, and HRM Lambert presented the item. CM Markus and HRM Lambert answered 
brief informational questions from the Commission.  
 
Commissioner Host said that if two out of the six proposed candidates ended up having to exit the process 
for whatever reason, he would like the opportunity to review the seventh and eighth candidates. 
 

5A



4  January 9, 2023 - DRAFT 

There was general consensus that two separate interview sessions scheduled for later in the afternoon 
would be most convenient. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Boutros, seconded by Commissioner Host: 
To adopt a resolution to approve a time frame of two four-hour sessions, with three candidates each, 
(estimated time needed for all interviews would be 8 hours), in which City Manager candidates will be 
interviewed remotely by the City Commission. 
 
The Commission confirmed for CM Markus that they would prefer interviews be scheduled to begin after 
2:30 p.m. on whichever days were selected. 
 
VOICE VOTE:  Ayes, Commissioner Schafer 

Commissioner Host 
MPT McLain 
Commissioner Boutros  

    Mayor Longe    
Commissioner Baller 

    Commissioner Haig 
 
   Nays, None 
 
01-005-23 Request For Closed Session To Discuss A Periodic Personnel Evaluation Of The  

City Manager 
  
MOTION: Motion by MPT McLain, Commissioner Boutros: 
To meet in closed session to discuss the personnel evaluation of the City Manager pursuant to Section 8(a) 
of the Open Meetings Act.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Schafer 

Commissioner Host 
MPT McLain 
Commissioner Boutros  

    Mayor Longe    
Commissioner Baller 

    Commissioner Haig 
 
   Nays, None 
 
The Commission went into closed session at 9:14 p.m. 
 
The Commission returned from closed session at 10:10 p.m. 
 
01-008-23 Increase in City Manager Markus’ Salary 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Boutros, Commissioner Baller: 
To amend City Manager Markus’ employment agreement to increase the City Manager’s annual salary by 
4.5% in agreement with the executive pay action the Commission agreed to in July 2022. 
 

5A



5  January 9, 2023 - DRAFT 

MPT McLain thanked CM Markus for his service to the City. 
 
Commissioner Baller stated that the performance review contained general positive comments on his 
tenure and expressions of gratitude from the Commissioners.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Schafer 

Commissioner Host 
MPT McLain 
Commissioner Boutros  

    Mayor Longe    
Commissioner Baller 

    Commissioner Haig 
 
   Nays, None 
 
Commission Items for Future Discussion 
 
01-006-23 Ad Hoc Senior Services Committee 
 
The Mayor recommended the Commission discuss at a future meeting potentially scheduling an agenda 
item to consider the creation of an Ad Hoc Senior Services Committee. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Baller, Mayor Longe: 
To discuss the formation of a committee to address senior services. 
 
VOICE VOTE:  Ayes, Commissioner Schafer 

Commissioner Host 
MPT McLain 
Commissioner Boutros  

    Mayor Longe    
Commissioner Baller 

    Commissioner Haig 
 
   Nays, None 
 
01-007-23 Improvements in Communication Methodology  
 
Commissioner Haig recommended the Commission discuss ways of improving communication 
methodologies. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Haig, Commissioner Host: 
To discuss ways of improving communication methodologies. 
 
VOICE VOTE:  Ayes, Commissioner Schafer 

Commissioner Host 
MPT McLain 
Commissioner Boutros  

    Mayor Longe    

5A



6  January 9, 2023 - DRAFT 

Commissioner Baller 
    Commissioner Haig 
 
   Nays, None 
 
Commission Discussion On Items From A Prior Meeting 
 

VIII. REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
 

IX. COMMUNICATIONS 
 

X. REPORTS 
A. Commissioner Reports  

1. Notice of intention to appoint to the Cablecasting Board 
2. Notice of intention to appoint to the Parks and Recreation Board 
3. Notice of intention to appoint to the Storm Water Utility Appeals Board 
4. Notice of intention to appoint to the Board of Zoning Appeals 

B. Commissioner Comments 
 
MPT McLain provided updates on the Michigan Municipal League’s (MML) new website, scheduled 
meetings, and available trainings. She stated that she was also appointed to the MML’s Transportation, 
Infrastructure, and Technology Committee. 
 

C. Advisory Boards, Committees, Commissions’ Reports and Agendas 
D. Legislation 
E. City Staff 
 1. Update on the 48th District Court Discussions 
 

ACM Ecker presented the update. ACM Ecker and CM Markus answered informational questions from the 
Commission. ACM Ecker noted that further information would be provided during an upcoming Commission 
agenda item. 

 
2. Communication regarding Board and Committee Activities 
 3. Letter from Brad Host to residents & Nextdoor response 
 

CM Markus presented both communications. 
 

INFORMATION ONLY 
 
Public Comment 
 

David Bloom noted that the contents of a Master Plan are typically used as strong guidance for future 
zoning changes. provided comments regarding the 2040 Master Plan and He also voiced his support for 
Commissioner Host’s public engagement on the matter.0F

1 
 

In reply to MPT McLain, the City Attorney confirmed that ‘taking property’ is a complex legal process that 
could not be decreed unilaterally by a commission or board. 
                                           
1 As amended at the January 23, 2023 meeting. 

5A



7  January 9, 2023 - DRAFT 

 
XI. ADJOURN 

 
Mayor Longe adjourned the meeting at 10:12 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Alexandria Bingham 
City Clerk 
 
 

 
Laura Eichenhorn 
City Transcriptionist 

5A



Birmingham City Commission  
Long Range Planning DRAFT Minutes 

January 21, 2023 
8:30 a.m. 

Municipal Building, 151 Martin 
Vimeo Link: https://vimeo.com/showcase/6708293/video/787788719 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Therese Longe, Mayor, opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 

II. ROLL CALL
Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk, called the roll. 

Present: Mayor Longe 
Mayor Pro Tem McLain 
Commissioner Boutros 
Commissioner Haig   
Commissioner Host   
Commissioner Schafer 

Absent: Commissioner Baller 

Staff: City Manager Markus; Public Services Manager Bernal, City Clerk Bingham, City Planner 
Blizinski, Golf Courses Manager Brito, Information Technology Manager Brunk, City Engineer Coatta, Library 
Director Craft, Planning Director Dupuis, Assistant City Manager Ecker, Assistant City Manager Fairbairn, 
Recreation Coordinator Folk, Parking Systems Manager Ford, Communications Director Gamboa, Finance 
Director Gerber, Police Chief Grewe, Building Official Johnson, Parks and Recreation Manager Laird, Human 
Resources Manager Lambert, Museum Director Pielack, Birmingham Shopping District Director Sheppard-
Decius, Fire Chief Wells, Department of Public Services Director Zielinski 

III. PUBLIC COMMENT

IV. DISCUSSION ITEMS
Mayor Longe and CM Markus made introductory remarks. 

I. Finance
a. Five-Year Financial Forecast
b. Online Budgeting Software

FD Gerber introduced the items. Spencer Tawa from Plante Moran presented Item I(a) and FD Gerber 
presented Item II(b). FD Gerber and CM Markus answered informational questions from the Commission. 

MPT McLain said it would be helpful that the online budgeting software could be used by the public. 

CM Markus said his previous experience using the budgeting software in Lawrence, KS was that it was 
relatively accessible for both City Staff and the public. 

5B

https://vimeo.com/showcase/6708293/video/787788719


2  January 21, 2023 - DRAFT 

In reply to FD Gerber’s comments about a shortfall in funds for capital, water, and sewer improvements, 
the Mayor noted that those circumstances would limit road improvements as well, since the City presently 
covers the costs of water and sewer improvements when road improvements are done. 
 
II. Public Services 

a. Ice Arena - A Year in Review 
b. Parks and Recreation Bond Update – Trail Improvements 
c. Golf Courses 
d. Electrifying Birmingham 

 
DPSD Zielinski introduced the items. RC Folk presented Item II(a), PRM Laird presented Item II(b), GCM 
Brito presented II(c), and PubSM Bernal presented Item II(d). PRM Laird answered informational questions 
from the Commission. 
 
The Mayor was pleased to note that both the Ice Arena and the Golf Courses were revenue positive, and 
stated that there was tremendous work and accomplishment by DPS Staff. She said she was enthusiastic 
about the needs that would be addressed as part of Phase II. She said she was also glad to see 
electrification on Public Services’ radar. 
 
MPT McLain recommended that residents explore the City’s interconnected trails, take photos, and upload 
the photos to social media with the hashtag #AllInBirminhgam. She thanked everyone for their work on 
the trails.  
 
The idea of CM Markus taking the Commissioners on a tour of some of the trails was raised.  
 
The Mayor noted that Birmingham’s recreational assets are one of the drivers of people moving to the City. 
 
Public Comment 
 
In reply to Pam Graham, RC Folk stated that she was monitoring the utility costs for the Ice Arena and 
those figures would be presented to both the Parks and Recreation Board and the Commission once 
available. 
 
III. Engineering 

a. Lead Service Line Replacement and Verification Progress Update  
b. Sewer and Water Infrastructure Planning and Construction Grants 
c. Roadway Asset Management Plan 
d. Upcoming Capital Improvement Projects for 2023/2024 

 
CE Coatta introduced the items. Mike MacDonald of Hubbell, Roth and Clark presented Item III(a), CE 
Coatta presented Items III(b) and III(d), and Nick Nicita of Hubbell, Roth and Clark presented Item III(c). 
CM Markus, FD Gerber, and CE Coatta answered informational questions from the Commission. 
 
In response to Commissioner Haig, CM Markus said CE Coatta would explore legal options for possibly 
withholding Certificates of Occupancy for new residents moving into properties where lead service lines 
had not yet been replaced until the replacements occur. 
 
Commissioner Schafer recommended that the documentation supplied to lead service line replacement 
candidates be updated with additional information to reflected the true risk of lead intoxication. She noted 

5B



3  January 21, 2023 - DRAFT 

that in her practice as a pediatrician all nine to 18-month old children continue to be screened for lead 
poisoning because it remains an issue presently.  
 
CE Coatta confirmed that would be done. 
 
The Mayor commended all those involved in the lead service line replacement process and noted that the 
City was significantly exceeding the State government’s required rate of replacements. She noted that due 
to the speed of the replacements, the City would be able to entirely fund the lead service line replacements 
with the Federal funds received for the project.  
 
Public Comment 
Ms. Graham said the lead service line replacement process results could be summarized as on-schedule, 
under-budget, with better than expected quality results and accurate planning. She commended those 
involved.  
 
In reply to an inquiry from Ms. Graham, CM Markus explained that the process of street improvements 
would not occur all at once because of City finances and some residents’ resistance to being assessed for 
the projects. He said he would not be supportive of assessing maintenance costs of unimproved roads to 
the residents of unimproved roads. 
 
MPT McLain noted that it was necessary for stakeholders to work together to increase the speed of the 
road improvements, even if the choice could initially be seen as a politically unpopular one. She noted that 
it was a safety issue, and that while costs have gone up for the process those costs would not become less 
expensive in the future. She recommended the City explore a reallocation of resources to the process. She 
also recommended a reconsideration of the analysis or science of how the process occurs in order to try 
to reduce the frustration for everyone involved. 
 
IV. Planning  

a. Birmingham Green - Sustainability and Climate Change 
b. The Birmingham Plan 2040 

 
PD Dupuis presented Items IV(a) and IV(b). PD Dupuis and CM Markus and answered informational 
questions from the Commission. 
 
MPT McLain thanked PD Dupuis for the detailed summary of how a master plan works.  
 
In reply to Commissioner Host, PD Dupuis said Staff would make the ‘Summary of Key Actions’ table from 
the first pages of the draft 2040 Plan more accessible to the Commission and the public moving forward. 
 
V. Fire Department   

a. Fleet Replacement Plan 
 
FC Wells presented Item V(a) and answered informational questions from the Commission. 
 
VI. Birmingham Shopping District  

a. Downtown Birmingham Economic Growth Plan 
 
BSDD Sheppard-Decius presented Item IV(a) and answered informational questions from the Commission. 
 

5B



4  January 21, 2023 - DRAFT 

Commissioner Haig recommended the BSD collaborate with other Birmingham assets, like the Birmingham 
Museum, to continue to increase Birmingham’s status as a destination. 
 
BSDD Sheppard-Decius and the Mayor concurred. 
 
The Mayor recommended that the BSD consider an increased focus in its strategic planning on hosting 
family-friendly events, noting that such events would bring families into the downtown and benefit the 
BSD. 
 
MPT McLain concurred with the Mayor. She noted that Commissioner Baller was interested in increasing 
events in the community and would likely be interested in providing feedback on the idea at a later date. 
 
Commissioner Host stated that he had heard a lot of positive feedback about BSDD Sheppard-Decius’ work. 
 
VII. Police Department   

a. City Hall Safety and Security Building Redesign and Expansion 
b. City Cameras and Small Cell Towers 

 
PC Grewe presented Items VII(a) and (b). PC Grewe and CM Markus answered informational questions 
from the Commission. 
 
In reply to Commissioner Haig, PC Grewe stated that a specification that no cameras posing a cybersecurity 
risk would be included in the RFP for City cameras. 
 
MPT McLain noted that the small cell towers options for co-locations represented a significant opportunity 
for the City.  
 
Commissioner Boutros spoke in favor of the building redesign and expansion plans. He thanked those 
involved in the project.  
 
Commissioner Haig recommended that the building redesign and expansion plans replace the word ‘restrict’ 
with either ‘control’ or ‘manage’ to more accurately convey the intent of the upgrades.  
 
Public Comment 
Ms. Graham spoke in support of the planned changes to City Hall that would benefit the Police Department. 
She also supported maintaining City Hall’s historic building. She recommended the City scrutinize whether 
the City needed to add more office space for other departments, noting that many departments would be 
implementing processes that conserve administrative labor and also that many City employees could work 
remotely. She stated that increasing office space would increase the City’s maintenance costs and needed 
to be justified.  
 
VIII. Parking 

a. Repairs Over the Next 3-5 Years 
 
PSM Ford presented Item VIII(a). PSM Ford and CM Markus answered informational questions from the 
Commission. 
 
In reply to Commissioner Haig, the Mayor recommended the Public Arts Board consider the possibility of 
murals being permitted in certain areas of the parking decks.  
 

5B



5  January 21, 2023 - DRAFT 

In reply to Commissioner Haig, PSM Ford said he would look into how close the decks may be getting to 
their structural design limit given the increased weights of both newer vehicles and electric vehicles.   
 
The Mayor noted that there is more room in the parking decks for transient users when businesses buy 
passes for their employees who frequently work from home.  
 
In reply to MPT McLain, PSM Ford said he would let the Commission know the planned installation date for 
the new TIBA equipment at the Pierce parking deck. 
 
MPT McLain also raised concerns that City parking spaces are smaller than necessary to comfortably 
accommodate the larger vehicles many people now drive.  
 
PSM Ford said that when restriping becomes a possibility in the garages, Staff and the Advisory Parking 
Committee would review the pros and cons of restriping to accommodate larger vehicles. 
 
Commissioner Boutros voiced appreciation for the parking improvements. He said that increased lighting 
should be the priority as it would likely draw more people to use the decks.  
 
The Mayor said she mainly hears concerns about the lighting, stairs, and elevators in the decks. 
 
In reply to Commissioner Haig, the Mayor noted that offering the first two hours free in the decks for 
transient parkers allows the City to compete with other nearby cities that do not charge for parking at all. 
 
IX.  IT 

a. Cyber Security 
 
ITM Brunk presented Item IX(a) and answered informational questions from the Commission. 
 
X.  Clerk’s Office  

a. Record Retention, Digitization and Retrieval 
 
CC Bingham presented Item X(a).  
 
XI. Building Department 

a. Downtown Code Enforcement Program  
 
BO Johnson presented Item XI(a) and answered informational questions from the Commission. 
 
Commissioner Boutros spoke positively about Item XI(a) and said it would help businesses with code 
compliance.  
 
Commissioner Haig and MPT McLain also voiced their support for Item XI(a). 
 
XII. Library    

a. Phase 3 Renovations 
 
LD Craft presented Item XII(a) and answered informational questions from the Commission. 
 
Commissioner Host spoke positively about Item XII(a). He thanked LD Craft for her work on the renovation 
process. He noted that there had been cost savings from the Library’s initial renovation proposal. 

5B



6  January 21, 2023 - DRAFT 

 
LD Craft acknowledged that the Library would not have as many services as had been imagined in the 
original proposal, but said that overall the Library was pleased with the increased level of services it would 
be able to provide and was pleased it had been able to realize some cost savings. 
 
The Mayor said she was pleased that the Library would be able to interface with Shain Park. She asked LD 
Craft to work with the BSD to work together on potential future family-friendly programming for Shain 
Park.  
 
LD Craft said she was enthusiastic about collaborating with City groups, including the BSD, and said Library 
Staff was already working on a list of potential programming opportunities. 
 
Commissioners Haig and Boutros expressed their support for the designs. 
 
Commissioner Boutros thanked the Library Board for their work on the renovation process.  
 
XIII. Birmingham Museum  

a. Expanded Digitization  
b. Reduce Physical Barriers 
c. Expand Outreach  

 
MD Pielack presented Items XIII(a), XIII(b), and XIII(c). 
 
The Mayor congratulated MD Pielack and said Museum Staff were doing a great job. She said she 
appreciated the opportunity to participate in the Underground Railroad ceremonies the Museum held and 
noted that information was read into the Congressional record.  
 
XIV. Manager’s Office 
 
CM Markus noted that the City now had a completed Strategic Plan, and the 2023 Long Range Plan and 
would have a budget before he left that would take the City from July 2023 through June 2024. He said 
the timing of his departure and the new City Manager’s arrival could not be at a better time for the City. 
He stated that he was exceptionally proud of the presentations made and of all the people behind those 
presentations. He noted that Staff was systematically addressing a lot of the topics the Commission had 
previously raised as issues. He noted that many Staff members were new, and work very collaboratively 
with Staff as a whole. He said the Commission would see some really good things from Staff moving 
forward. 
 
The Commission had a round of applause. 
 

a. Graphic Design Improvements – Communications 
b. Crime Reporting/Mapping Tool – Communications 
c. Succession, Development, and Retention – Human Resources 
d. Woodward Avenue Status Update 
e. Senior Services with Cris Braun, Executive Director of NEXT 
f. Resident Education and Engagement Opportunities    

 
CD Gamboa presented Items XIV(a) and XIV(b). HRM Lambert presented Item XIV(c). ACM Ecker 
presented Item XIV(d). Ms. Braun, Executive Director of NEXT, presented Item XIV(e). AtCM Fairbairn 

5B



7  January 21, 2023 - DRAFT 

presented Item XIV(f). Ms. Braun, CM Markus, and AtCM Fairbairn answered informational questions from 
the Commission.  
 
The Mayor expressed her enthusiasm for ACM Ecker’s efforts to help make Woodward Avenue safer. 
 
Commissioner Boutros commended Ms. Braun on her successes with NEXT. Commissioner Boutros also 
encouraged residents to take part in the programming ACM Fairbairn outlined as part of Item XIV(f). 
 
MPT McLain thanked Ms. Braun for all of her work on NEXT’s behalf and said NEXT’s Board was very proud 
of the organization’s successes.  
 
Commissioner Schafer stated that she was a graduate of Citizen’s Academy, and said that she has 
maintained connections with some of the people she attended with.  
 
Public Comment 
In reply to Rackeline Hoff, Ms. Braun explained that the $250,000 grant NEXT received could only be used 
for technology, capital improvement, infrastructure or professional services. Given the specificity of the 
options, Ms. Braun determined NEXT’s needs would be best served by applying for funds for professional 
services.  
 

V. ADJOURN 
 
Mayor Longe thanked all Staff and consultants for their presentations, IT for running the virtual aspect of 
the meeting, and CC Bingham for providing refreshments for the Commissioners and attendees. She 
adjourned the meeting at 3:23 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk 
 
 

 
Laura Eichenhorn, City Transcriptionist 

5B



Birmingham City Commission DRAFT Minutes 
January 23, 2023 

Municipal Building, 151 Martin 
7:30 p.m.

Vimeo Link: https://vimeo.com/showcase/6708293/video/791498334 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Therese Longe, Mayor, opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 

II. ROLL CALL
City Clerk Bingham called the roll. 

Present: Mayor Longe 
Mayor Pro Tem McLain 
Commissioner Baller  
Commissioner Boutros 
Commissioner Haig  
Commissioner Host 
Commissioner Schafer 

Absent: None 

Staff: City Manager Markus; City Clerk Bingham, City Planner Blizinski, City Engineer Coatta, 
Planning Director Dupuis, Assistant City Manager Ecker, Finance Director Gerber, City Attorney Kucharek 

III. PROCLAMATIONS, CONGRATULATORY RESOLUTIONS, AWARDS, APPOINTMENTS,
RESIGNATIONS AND CONFIRMATIONS, ADMINISTRATION OF OATHS, INTRODUCTION OF
GUESTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

Announcements 
● The City recommends members of the public wear a mask if they have been exposed to COVID-19

or have a respiratory illness. City staff, City Commission and all board and committee members
must wear a mask if they have been exposed to COVID-19 or actively have a respiratory illness.
The City continues to provide KN-95 respirators and triple-layered masks for attendees.

● Community House 100th Anniversary Proclamation

Appointments 

01-008-23 Appointment to the Public Arts Board

The Commission interviewed Annie VanGelderen for the appointment. 

MOTION: Nomination by Commissioner Boutros:  
To appoint Annie VanGelderen to the Public Arts Board as a regular member to serve a three-year term to 
expire January 28, 2026.  

VOICE VOTE: Ayes, MPT McLain 
Commissioner Baller 

5C

https://vimeo.com/showcase/6708293/video/791498334


2  January 23, 2023 - DRAFT 

    Commissioner Boutros   
    Commissioner Schafer 
    Commissioner Host 
    Mayor Longe 

Commissioner Haig   
 
   Nays, None 
 
CC Bingham swore in Ms. VanGelderen. 

 
IV. OPEN TO THE PUBLIC FOR MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

 
David Bloom recommended that the City make adjustments to certain aspects of the 2040 Master Plan 
prior to adoption so implementation of the Plan can occur more easily in the future. 
 
Dianne Anderson commended the Commission on taking up landlord-tenant issues and listed some other 
relevant aspects of the matter the Commission should consider. 
 
Linda Buchanan, Vice-President of the Baldwin House Board of Directors, urged that an expedient timetable 
be adopted for the Chester Street Parking garage audit.  
 

V. CONSENT AGENDA 
01-009-23 Consent Agenda  
 
The following items were pulled from the Consent Agenda: 
 Public:   Item A – City Commission meeting minutes of January 9, 2023 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Boutros, seconded by MPT McLain: 
To approve the Consent Agenda excluding Item A. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Schafer 

Commissioner Host 
MPT McLain 
Commissioner Boutros  

    Mayor Longe    
Commissioner Baller 

    Commissioner Haig 
 
   Nays, None 
 

B. Resolution to approve the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, dated 
January 11, 2023, in the amount of $6,986,194.11. 

C. Resolution to approve the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, dated 
January 18, 2023 in the amount of $995,061.06. 

D. Resolution to approve a one-year Professional Service Agreement, extendable at the discretion of 
the City Commission up to a total of three years, with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. for Residential 
Site Evaluation Services.  In addition, to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the agreement 
on behalf of the city. Funding for this service is paid by permit fees. AND To amend the Schedule 

5C



3  January 23, 2023 - DRAFT 

of Fees, Charges, Bonds and Insurance, effective March 1, 2023, in the Community Development 
section as indicated by the consultant fee quote. 

E. Resolution to approve the sculpture donation of “Shooting Star” by John Henry to be installed in 
the public greenspace between Woodward Ave, S. Old Woodward, and Haynes Street as indicated 
in Exhibit A in the staff report. 

F. Resolution to approve a special event permit as requested by Common Ground to hold the 
Birmingham Street Art Fair on September 23 and 24, 2023 contingent upon compliance with all 
permit and insurance requirements and payment of all fees and further pursuant to any minor 
modifications that may be deemed necessary by administrative staff at the time of the event, or 
event cancellation that may be deemed necessary by administrative staff, leading up to or at the 
time of the event. 

G. Resolution to appoint DPS Director Scott Zielinski as the alternate representative of the City of 
Birmingham on the SOCRRA Board of Trustees for the remainder of the 2022/2023 fiscal year.  

(Item A) City Commission meeting minutes of January 9, 2023 
 
Mr. Bloom asked that brief clarification be added to his comments at the end of the January 9, 2023 
minutes. 
 
The Commission agreed to review the requested changes to the minutes at the next Commission meeting. 
 

VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

VII. NEW BUSINESS 
01-010-23 Tenant Rights 
 
The Mayor thanked the public for their engagement on this matter, and thanked Staff and Council for their 
expeditious work on the item. 
 
CA Kucharek introduced an associate from Beier Howlett, Monika Koleci. CA Kucharek noted that Sec. 66-
50 should read ‘Right to Renew’ and not ‘Right to Renew and Relocation Assistance’, and provided the 
Commission with updated documentation reflecting the change.  
 
Ms. Koleci and CA Kucharek presented the item and answered informational questions from the 
Commission. 
 
Commissioner Host spoke in favor of the motion, stating that Birmingham has a significant number of 
renters and that they deserve fair treatment within the City. He thanked Staff, Council, and members of 
the public for their engagement on the matter. 
 
MPT McLain noted that it was the appropriate time to be looking at these protections as the City seeks to 
expand its availability of middle-income rentals. 
 
Commissioner Haig spoke to his experience being a landlord, and said this change would be slightly more 
complicated than the present rules but would also help improve people’s quality of life. 
 
Public Comment 
 

5C



4  January 23, 2023 - DRAFT 

Jim Gromer, attorney focusing on landlord-tenant issues, raised concerns with several aspects of the 
proposed ordinance. He noted that Michigan already has a law regarding retaliatory non-renewal that could 
be used to address some of the City’s concerns. 
 
Benjamin Tobin, representative of Group Five Management, raised concerns with the ordinance and spoke 
to the value of having a non-renewal option when dealing with certain resident challenges.  
 
Mr. Bloom said it might be worth revising the proposed ordinance to address some of the concerns raised 
by Messrs. Gromer and Tobin. 
 
Mary Taras, resident of Baldwin House, thanked the Commission for their work and support of the Baldwin 
House’s focus on social justice. 
 
Matthew Miller, attorney and representative for the Property Management Association of Michigan and the 
Detroit Metropolitan Apartment Association, raised concerns about the right-to-renew. He noted some 
potential unintended consequences that could stem from right-to-renew requirements. He noted that only 
one city in Michigan presently has right-to-renew provisions. 
 
Messrs. Gromer and Miller both said they would be happy to work with the City on revising aspects of the 
proposed ordinance. 
 
Duy Vu, representative for The Associated Management Company, said he helped Grand Rapids and 
Kalamazoo work on similar efforts. He supported the source of income provisions but raised concerns about 
right-to-renew provisions. He recommended the City work with Messrs. Gromer and Miller to revise the 
proposed ordinance. 
 
Seeing no further public comment, the Mayor invited CA Kucharek to reply to some of the concerns raised. 
 
CA Kucharek stated: 

● The ordinance would require a landlord inform a tenant whether their lease would be renewed and 
that a tenant be provided with good cause, in writing, for a non-renewal; 

● A good cause would allow a termination of a tenancy which is already provided for in State law; 
● There are many State laws to protect landlords from tenants’ violation of their lease agreement; 

and, 
● It is incumbent upon a landlord to document issues that would amount to a good cause for a non-

renewal. 
 
Commissioner Boutros said he was supportive of the aims in general but was concerned that, given public 
comment, disruptive tenants could take advantage of the proposed ordinance.  
 
MPT McLain said the aim of the ordinance was to balance the needs of good renters and the needs of 
landlords facing challenging tenant issues.  
 
Commissioner Haig observed that source of income and right-to-renew seemed to be the two sections of 
the proposed ordinance generating concerns. He said that it might be worthwhile to temporarily reserve 
judgment on the proposed ordinance, and to consider some suggestions for revisions from Messrs. Gromer 
and Miller.  
 
Commissioner Boutros concurred. 
 

5C



5  January 23, 2023 - DRAFT 

Commissioner Schafer said she trusted that CA Kucharek and Ms. Koleci considered issues raised by the 
public before the proposed ordinance language was brought before the Commission. Commissioner Schafer 
noted that many of the public commenters spoke in defense of particular interests, which were likely at 
least partially different from the interests of the Commission. She noted that the stories used by the public 
commenters to raise concerns about the proposed ordinance were anecdotes, and that anecdotal evidence 
does not disprove the merit of the proposed ordinance overall. 
 
MPT McLain concurred. 
 
The Mayor said that the source of income section seemed to largely be agreed upon, with the exception 
of settlements. She noted that the offers of assistance from Messrs. Gromer and Miller seemed to include 
the elimination of the right-to-renew section, as opposed to a revision of it. She noted that the ordinance 
had options to allow non-renewal when good cause could be demonstrated as set forth in Sec. 66-50(3)(c). 
She noted that the anecdotes shared by the public commenters described instances where courts have 
failed to enforce the State laws on evictions, which is not something that Birmingham could remedy with 
its ordinance. She invited CA Kucharek to comment. 
 
CA Kucharek said she would consult with either one or both of Messrs. Gromer and Miller and would 
consider their suggestions. She said that did not mean that she would necessarily recommend any changes. 
She said she wanted the Commission to be certain that it was moving forward with the best ordinance 
possible.  
 
Commissioner Haig voiced his support for CA Kucharek’s proposal. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Host, seconded by Commissioner Haig: 
To table the tenant rights ordinance. 
 
VOICE VOTE:  Ayes, Commissioner Schafer 

Commissioner Host 
MPT McLain 
Commissioner Boutros  

    Mayor Longe    
Commissioner Baller 

    Commissioner Haig 
 
   Nays, None 
 
01-011-23 Climate Emergency Declaration and Ad Hoc Environmental Sustainability 
Committee Establishing Resolution 
 
PD Dupuis and CM Markus presented the item. PD Dupuis, the Mayor, and CM Markus answered 
informational questions.  
 
It was noted that the Ad Hoc Committee would do the preliminary work that would allow for the later 
creation of a permanent Sustainability Board. 
 
Commissioner Haig noted that access to the software that would be used for the greenhouse gas study 
would be a cost item. He said he was interested in knowing whether the software indicated significant 
changes that Ferndale and Royal Oak could make in their sustainability practices, or whether the 
recommended changes were more minor. 

5C



6  January 23, 2023 - DRAFT 

 
PD Dupuis said Planning Staff would consult with Ferndale and Royal Oak.  
 
CM Markus said he was confident that there were communities across the country that could offer examples 
of significant changes that Birmingham could emulate.  
 
Commissioner Schafer thanked Staff for their work on the item. She said she hoped the Ad Hoc Committee 
would create the foundation for a permanent Sustainability Board because it was important to increase 
and then maintain attention on the importance of sustainability.  
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Schafer, seconded by MPT McLain: 
To declare a climate emergency, establish the Ad Hoc Environmental Sustainability Committee, and direct 
Planning Staff to facilitate the immediate development of a greenhouse gas emissions inventory to set a 
baseline and develop greenhouse gas emission reduction targets for 2030 and 2050. 
 
Commissioner Host noted that Birmingham has some world authorities in matters of sustainability who 
were eager to get involved in these efforts. 
 
VOICE VOTE:  Ayes, Commissioner Schafer 

Commissioner Host 
MPT McLain 
Commissioner Boutros  

    Mayor Longe    
Commissioner Baller 

    Commissioner Haig 
 
   Nays, None 
 
The Mayor thanked Staff for their work on the item. 
 
01-012-23 Wayfinding Update RFP  
 
PD Dupuis presented the item and PD Dupuis and CM Markus answered informational questions. 
 
Commissioner Haig said he liked the wayfinding examples that were branded or themed in ways that were 
particular to the municipality in which they were located. 
 
PD Dupuis confirmed that the design services contractor would be looking to find and implement a relevant 
brand theme for Birmingham. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Boutros, seconded by Commissioner Host: 
To approve an agreement with Corbin Design for design services in the amount not to exceed $58,550 
from account # 101.0-701.000-811.0000. In addition, 7C to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the 
agreement on behalf of the City and further, to approve the appropriations and amendment to the General 
Fund budget as follows: Revenues: Draw from Fund Balance 101.0-000.000-401.0000 $8,550 Expenses: 
Planning – Other Contractual Services 101.0-701.000-811.0000 $8,550 
 
VOICE VOTE:  Ayes, Commissioner Schafer 

Commissioner Host 
MPT McLain 

5C



7  January 23, 2023 - DRAFT 

Commissioner Boutros  
    Mayor Longe    

Commissioner Baller 
    Commissioner Haig 
 
   Nays, None 
 
01-013-23 Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) Drinking 
Water Asset Management (DWAM) Grant  
 
CM Markus said this item was under New Business instead of the Consent Agenda in order to inform the 
public and the Commission about City Staff’s regular efforts to obtain grants for City work. 
 
CE Coatta presented the item and CE Coatta and CM Markus answered informational questions.  
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Haig, seconded by MPT McLain: 
To approve the agreement between the City of Birmingham and the Michigan Department of Environment, 
Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) for a $745,680.00 Drinking Water Assessment Management grant award. 
In addition, authorize the City Engineer to electronically sign the agreement on behalf of the city.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Schafer 

Commissioner Host 
MPT McLain 
Commissioner Boutros  

    Mayor Longe    
Commissioner Baller 

    Commissioner Haig 
 
   Nays, None 
 
01-014-23 Funding Agreement for the 48th District Court 
 
ACM Ecker presented the item and ACM Ecker and FD Gerber answered informational questions.  
 
The Mayor commended ACM Ecker and CA Kucharek for their work on the matter. She said the proposed 
agreement was not perfect but was better than the previous alternatives. 
 
Commissioner Baller commended ACM Ecker for her leadership in creating this proposed funding 
agreement.  
 
In reply to Commissioner Baller, ACM Ecker stated she would make the City’s representatives in the State 
Legislature aware of the difficulties Birmingham faced in this process. 
 
MPT McLain thanked all Staff and others involved in creating the proposed funding agreement. 
 
MOTION: Motion by MPT McLain, seconded by Commissioner Boutros: 
To approve an Addendum to the existing 48th District Court funding agreement with Bloomfield Township 
and W. Bloomfield Township and to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the agreement on behalf of 
the City, subject to the approval of the Political Subdivision Distribution / Funding Agreement by all four 
political subdivisions.  

5C



8  January 23, 2023 - DRAFT 

 
Commissioner Host thanked ACM Ecker for her work, and said he still had concerns about the costs to the 
City to operate the Court. He said he would be voting against the proposed funding agreement for that 
reason. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Schafer 

MPT McLain 
Commissioner Boutros  

    Mayor Longe    
Commissioner Baller 

    Commissioner Haig 
 
   Nays, Commissioner Host 
 
Commission Items for Future Discussion 
Commission Discussion On Items From A Prior Meeting 
 

VIII. REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
 

IX. COMMUNICATIONS 
 

X. REPORTS 
A. Commissioner Reports  
B. Commissioner Comments 

 
MPT McLain reported on the MML Live discussion and on upcoming MML events. She also noted that the 
upcoming Polar Plunge to support the Special Olympics would take place on February 4, 2023 at 10 a.m. 
 
The Mayor noted that the MML was soliciting comments regarding potential updates to the Michigan Open 
Meetings Act. 
 
Commissioner Schafer thanked the Police Department for a good experience with using the Co-Responder 
program with one of Commissioner Schafer’s patients. 
 
Commissioner Host thanked Oakland County Commissioner Cavell for his assistance with getting NEXT a 
grant and thanked NEXT Director Braun for her leadership of NEXT.  
 
Commissioner Host thanked the Police Department for their work on a recent case, and for their efforts to 
maintain public safety in the City. 
 

C. Advisory Boards, Committees, Commissions’ Reports and Agendas 
D. Legislation 
E. City Staff 
1. City Manager’s Report 

 
CM Markus and CA Kucharek presented the report. 
 

INFORMATION ONLY  
 

5C



9  January 23, 2023 - DRAFT 

XI. ADJOURN 
 
Mayor Longe adjourned the meeting at 10:34 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk 
 
 

 
Laura Eichenhorn, City Transcriptionist 

5C



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

01/25/2023
02/13/2023

PAPER CHECK

70.72ACTION MAT & TOWEL RENTAL, INC006638290197

207.50AIR HANDLERS SERVICE CORP.009507290198

284.36AIRGAS USA, LLC003708290199

42.73ALAN RUTTERMISC*290200

200.00ALLIED SIGNS INCBDREFUND290201

100.00AMERICAN STANDARD ROOFINGBDREFUND290202

199.95AT&T006759*290203

156.43AT&T006759*290204

838.16AT&T MOBILITY003703*290205

100.00BEST CHOICE TOTAL HOME IMPROVEMENTBDREFUND290206

100.00BLUMKE INSTALLATIONSBDREFUND290207

500.00BOGAERTS II, ALEXANDER VBDREFUND290208

100.00BONGGREN, AMY MORANBDREFUND290209

404.16BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC003526290210

4,605.73BSB COMMUNICATIONS, INC.005717290211

500.00BUDMAN DENTONBDREFUND290212

97.02CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA INC009078*290213

642.48CAPITAL TIRE, INC.007732*290214

100.00CARRERA LANDSCAPING INCBDREFUND290215

100.00CEDAR PRESERVATION SYSTEMS LLCBDREFUND290216

171.06CINTAS CORPORATION000605290217

36.77CINTAS CORPORATION000605290218

836.00CIVICPLUS, LLC009540*290219

1,624.44CLEAR RATE COMMUNICATIONS, INC008006*290220

100.00CLEMENT CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LLCBDREFUND290221

203.14COMCAST008955*290222

2,728.64CONSUMERS ENERGY000627*290223

1,169.83COOL THREADS EMBROIDERY008512290224

499.20CYNERGY PRODUCTS004386290225

2,275.00DAVEY RESOURCE GROUP, INC.009529290226

127.96DEMCO, INC000575290227

223.31DTE ENERGY000179*290228

8,677.94DTE ENERGY000180*290229

300.00EARL DAUP SIGNS LTDBDREFUND290230

924.14ELITE IMAGING SYSTEMS, INC004493290231

500.00Envision Carpentry & ConstructionBDREFUND290232

300.00FAST SIGNS OF BIRMINGHAMBDREFUND290233

491.07FERGUSON ENTERPRISES, INC.007136290234

500.00FINISHED BASEMENTS PLUS LLCBDREFUND290235

51,400.00FLS PROPERTIES #5, LLCBDREFUND290236

300.00FOUNDATION SYSTEMS OF MICHIGAN INC.BDREFUND290237

100.00GREAT OAKS LANDSCAPEBDREFUND290238 5D



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

01/25/2023
02/13/2023

223.96 GRID 4 COMMUNICATIONS INC.006666*290239

279.60 GUARDIAN ALARM000249290240

900.00 HILLAN HOMES, INCBDREFUND290241

868.68 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES001956*290242

200.00 HUNT SIGN COMPANYBDREFUND290243

34.00 INDUSTRIAL STEAM CLEANING008614290244

1,439.05 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES001090290245

200.00 INTERCITY NEONBDREFUND290246

500.00 JON OENBDREFUND290247

500.00 Joseph BongiovanniBDREFUND290248

200.00 KOA 520 LLCBDREFUND290249

100.00 KOLB, GREGBDREFUND290250

300.00 LAW OFFICE OF BRIAN P. FENECH009386*290251

533.85 LEVINE & SONS INCMISC*290252

280.00 MACP001669290253

439.00 MADISON GENERATOR SERVICE INC003934290254

64.46 MADISON HEIGHTS FIRE DEPT005116*290255

100.00 MCGLINCH & SONS COBDREFUND290256

100.00 MELISTAS HOMES, LLCBDREFUND290257

80.00 MIDWEST COLLABORATIVE006349290258

2,500.00 MILFORD CONTRACTINGBDREFUND290259

206.02 MISKO PLBG LLCBDREFUND290260

2,221.59 MOBILE HEALTH RESOURCES007163290261

857.10 NELSON BROS SWR & PLBG SVC INCBDREFUND290262

100.00 NEST CONSTRUCTIONBDREFUND290263

7,980.00 NICK'S MAINTENANCE SERVICE004827290264

825.00 OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE002853290265

216.78 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC009478*290266

11,086.63 OVERDRIVE, INC.006785290267

100.00 PELLA WINDOWS & DOORS, INC.BDREFUND290268

500.00 PETRUCCI HOMESBDREFUND290269

500.00 PETRUCCI WOODWARD LLCBDREFUND290270

95.00 SCOT POUNDERS006691*290271

500.00 PRIME HOME REMOD LLCBDREFUND290272

500.00 PWD, LLCBDREFUND290273

3,046.23 R & R FIRE TRUCK REPAIR INC004137290274

1,000.00 RENEWAL BY ANDERSENBDREFUND290275

200.00 RICHARD JOSEPH CHRISTIEBDREFUND290276

3,200.00 RICHARD KEITH WIANDBDREFUND290277

300.00 ROMA CEMENT CO INCBDREFUND290278

271.54 ROYAL OAK P.D.Q. LLC000218290279

2,500.00 SALEM JIDDOUBDREFUND290280

100.00 SAS SERVICES INCBDREFUND290281

5D



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

01/25/2023
02/13/2023

100.00 SEBOLD AND KAGE INCBDREFUND290282

159.00 SECURE DOOR, LLC006590290283

1,824.32 SHEHBAZ MAHMOOD AND HALLAHAN &TAXMISC*290284

194.35 SHRED-IT USA004202*290285

200.00 SL MARTIN LLCBDREFUND290286

3,152.00 SP+ CORPORATION007907290287

774.58 SPARTAN DISTRIBUTORS INC000260290288

900.00 STAR BUILDERS INCBDREFUND290289

100.00 STEVE'S CONCRETEBDREFUND290290

2,773.55 STRYKER SALES CORPORATION004544290291

19.69 SUBURBAN BUICK GMC INC000256290292

125.00 T-MOBILE USA, INC008697290293

1,000.00 TERRI BROWNBDREFUND290294

19,828.00 THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY009590*290295

100.00 THE OUTDOOR GROUPBDREFUND290296

100.00 THOMAS JAMES O'LEARYBDREFUND290297

80.00 TIRE WHOLESALERS CO INC000275290298

1,260.00 TRATTORIA DA LUIGI008017*290299

133.57 TRI-COUNTY INTL TRUCKS, INC.005481290300

100.00 TRIPLE T CONSTRUCTIONBDREFUND290301

1,774.20 TUUCI, LLC.006881290302

720.29 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*290303

128.49 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*290304

1,500.00 WALLSIDE INCBDREFUND290305

1,500.00 WALLSIDE WINDOWSBDREFUND290306

677.87 WELLS FARGO VENDOR FIN SERV009026290307

100.00 WILLIAM OLMSTEADBDREFUND290308

707.79 WOLVERINE POWER SYSTEMS004512*290309

4,825.00 XANDER BOGAERTSBDREFUND290310

66.47 XEROX CORPORATION008391*290311

100.00 ZLM SERVICES LLCBDREFUND290312

200.00 ZWEIG, BRYAN MBDREFUND290313

SUBTOTAL PAPER CHECK $174,210.40

ACH TRANSACTION

599.99 ABEL ELECTRONICS INC002284*7107

1,817.43 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267108

17.40 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC009126*7108

399.93 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267109

159.57 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267110

8.97 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267111

446,061.22 ANGELO IAFRATE CONSTRUCTION008655*7112

26.49 MATTHEW J. BARTALINO003839*7113

300.00 BATTI LAW PLLC009383*7114 5D



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

01/25/2023
02/13/2023

82.50 BEIER HOWLETT P.C.000517*7115

153.90 BIRMINGHAM OIL CHANGE CENTER, LLC007624*7116

1,000,135.99 BIRMINGHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS-TAXES008840*7117

1,905.24 CANFIELD EQUIPMENT SERVICE INC.0078757118

22,500.00 CAPFINANCIAL PARTNERS, LLC0093267119

232.75 CONTRACTORS CONNECTION INC0013677120

50.02 DORNBOS SIGN & SAFETY INC000565*7121

2,205.40 GRAINGER000243*7122

542.50 MICHELLE HOLLO0079277123

27,914.50 J.H. HART URBAN FORESTRY0002617124

522.26 JOE'S AUTO PARTS, INC.003458*7125

500.00 K AND Q LAW PC009539*7126

481.10 KANOPY, INC008827*7127

82.39 LIGHTING SUPPLY COMPANY0002877128

895.46 LOWER HURON SUPPLY CO INC003527*7129

310.00 MARCIA C ROSS PC009398*7130

11,378.24 MIDWEST TAPE0020137131

500.00 N.L. SMITHSON & ASSOCIATES PLLC009400*7132

792.00 NBS COMMERCIAL INTERIORS0083367133

205.00 NELSON BROTHERS SEWER001194*7134

864.95 NYE UNIFORM COMPANY006359*7135

447,995.01 OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER- TAX PYMNT008843*7136

1,902.98 ROAD COMM FOR OAKLAND CO000478*7137

73,144.00 SOCRRA0002547138

199.30 SOCRRA000254*7138

287.08 TERMINAL SUPPLY CO.0002737139

SUBTOTAL ACH TRANSACTION $2,045,173.57

*-Indicates checks released in advance and prior to commission approval in order to avoid penalty
or to meet contractual agreement/obligation.

Mark Gerber
Finance Director/ Treasurer

All bills, invoices and other evidences of claim have been audited and approved for payment.

GRAND TOTAL $2,219,383.97

5D



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

02/01/2023
02/13/2023

PAPER CHECK

545.00AETNAMISC*290314

40.00ALEX EIKENBERRYMISC*290315

670.00ALEXANDER JACOBMISC*290316

636.16ALLIANCE ENTERTAINMENT, LLC009440290317

100.00ALLIED SIGNS INCBDREFUND290318

16,800.00AMCOBI008431*290319

3,393.00ANDERSON ECKSTEIN WESTRICK INC000167290320

100.00APEX CONSTRUCTIONBDREFUND290321

168.00ARTECH PRINTING INC000500290322

48.00ARTECH PRINTING INC000500290322

414.81AT&T006759*290323

2,360.05AT&T006759*290324

9,129.91CITY OF AUBURN HILLS003294290325

531.70BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS000843290326

100.00BELFOR USA GROUP INCBDREFUND290327

133.55BENJAMIN CASTLEMISC*290328

624.00BIRMINGHAM PAPERS009535290329

29,357.00BS&A SOFTWARE, INC006520290330

2,001.53CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA INC009078*290331

1,970.70CAPITAL ONE BANK003904*290332

25,506.18CARDNO, INC.007933290333

91.43CARL GREGGMISC*290334

203.23CCH INCORPORATED000443290335

18.39CENGAGE LEARNING INC000902*290336

227.60CINTAS CORPORATION000605290337

128.83CINTAS CORPORATION000605*290338

120.04CINTAS CORPORATION000605*290339

9,496.69CITY OF WIXOMTAXMISC*290340

93.85COMCAST008955*290341

4,967.61CONSUMERS ENERGY000627*290342

1,000.00COSGROVE JR, DAVID SBDREFUND290343

200.00CUPISZ, ANTHONY JBDREFUND290344

4,819.00THE D.M. BURR GROUP009024290345

100.00DAVID HOSEY JRMISC*290346

90.09JAMIE DEBANO008266*290347

495.00E-KIT SUPPLY009591290348

90.00DORSEY EMERGENCY MEDICAL ACADEMY009073290349

10,264.51DOUGLAS N WOOD TRUSTTAXMISC*290350

142.00DTE ENERGY000179*290351

14.79DTE ENERGY000179290352

1,547.76DTE ENERGY000179*290353

50.99DTE ENERGY000179*290354 5E



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

02/01/2023
02/13/2023

315.14 DTE ENERGY000179*290355

6,247.43 DTE ENERGY000179*290356

1,918.81 DTE ENERGY000179*290357

840.66 DTE ENERGY000179*290358

2,965.40 DTE ENERGY000179*290359

14.79 DTE ENERGY000179*290360

1,735.46 DTE ENERGY000179*290361

37.62 DTE ENERGY000179*290362

105.28 DTE ENERGY000179*290363

70.78 DTE ENERGY000179*290364

649.94 DTE ENERGY000179*290365

45.20 DTE ENERGY000179*290366

570.46 DTE ENERGY000179*290367

121.92 DTE ENERGY000179*290368

5,429.17 DTE ENERGY000179*290369

189.92 DTE ENERGY000179*290370

101.59 GARY EISELE008164290371

35.00 ENVER TABAKOVICBDREFUND290372

500.00 FATHER & SON CONSTRUCTION COBDREFUND290373

2,405.55 FINDAWAY WORLD, LLC005651290374

99.30 FRANCES MURRAYMISC*290375

310.62 GORDON FOOD004604*290376

398.00 GRAPHIC SCIENCES, INCMISC290377

150.00 GREAT LAKES CUSTOM BUILDER LLCBDREFUND290378

8,151.66 GREAT LAKES WATER AUTHORITY008007*290379

906.59 HAAS, ALYCE MBDREFUND290380

65.01 NICHOLAS HILL009419*290381

237.27 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES001956*290382

151.55 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES007211*290383

200.00 Home Exteriors of Michigan LLCBDREFUND290384

9.95 HOUR MEDIAMISC290385

109.03 HOWIES HOCKEY INC009563*290386

500.00 I SIGNSBDREFUND290387

6,314.16 IDEAL SHIELD002023290388

56.72 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES001090290389

10,000.00 INNOVA BM CAPITAL LLCBDREFUND290390

5,950.00 INTEGRA REALTY RESOURCES - DETROIT009412*290391

200.00 JOHN GRAHAM TOTAL CONSTRUCTION, INCBDREFUND290392

310.45 JOHN LAZARMISC*290393

82.50 KELLER THOMA000891290394

400.00 KRAEMER DESIGN GROUP LLC009524290395

670.00 KRISTEN BRUNHOFER SHEEHYMISC*290396

1,400.00 LAMARCO HOMES LLCBDREFUND290397

5E



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

02/01/2023
02/13/2023

2,124.11 JOSEPH LAMBERT008792*290398

147.16 LESLIE ELECTRIC COMPANY000284290399

1,940.21 THE LIBRARY NETWORK000797290400

300.00 Life Construction and Design, LLCBDREFUND290401

81.45 LINDA OMANMISC*290402

1,559.12 LITTLE PRINCE PROPERTIES INCBDREFUND290403

100.00 LORI GAIL GREENBERGBDREFUND290404

1,200.00 LYNCH CUSTOM HOMESBDREFUND290405

200.00 MANCANI CONSTRUCTION INCBDREFUND290406

900.00 MELISTAS HOMES, LLCBDREFUND290407

368.00 MERGENT INC.002649290408

325.00 MGSE SECURITY LLC009085*290409

750.00 MICHAEL MORRISON009200*290410

100.00 MICHIGAN MECHANICAL VENTURESBDREFUND290411

30,132.05 MICHIGAN RECREATIONAL CONSTRUCTION006227*290412

19,650.32 MIDWEST COLLABORATIVE006349290413

2,657.30 MIKHAIL & SUSANNA PINELISTAXMISC*290414

2,958.06 MKSK INC008319290415

115.99 NICOLSON ASSOCIATES INC009261290416

200.00 Nizar MikhailBDREFUND290417

6,661.00 OAKLAND COUNTY000477*290418

559.00 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS004370290419

319.87 OCLC, INC.000678290420

323.40 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC009478*290421

12,260.50 P.K. CONTRACTING INC001325290422

136.74 PATRICK EBBINGMISC*290423

700.00 PELLA WINDOWS & DOORS, INC.BDREFUND290424

318.75 PETRUCCI WOODWARD LLCBDREFUND290425

38.75 ELISABETH PHOU006432290426

200.00 PROSIGN AND AWNINGBDREFUND290427

78.00 PTS COMMUNICATIONS, INC006625*290428

38.85 RAIN MASTER CONTROL SYSTEMS008342*290429

175.00 RED WING BUSINESS ADVANTAGE ACCT005379*290430

90.99 RUTH LITTLETONMISC*290431

100.00 SAS SERVICES INCBDREFUND290432

361.63 SPARTAN DISTRIBUTORS INC000260290433

25.00 T-MOBILE USA, INC008697290434

200.00 TECHHOME BUILDING CO., LLCBDREFUND290435

8,548.00 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT ASSOC.008339290436

276.25 US FIGURE SKATING ASSOC.001279*290437

308.99 VAN DYKE GAS CO.000293*290438

772.33 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*290439

679.56 WEINGARTZ SUPPLY CO.000299290440

5E



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

02/01/2023
02/13/2023

38,750.00 WJE-WISS, JANNEY, ELSTNER ASSOC.INC007620290441

1,675.00 WOLVERINE POWER SYSTEMS004512*290442

217.94 XEROX CORPORATION008391*290443

SUBTOTAL PAPER CHECK $329,388.65

ACH TRANSACTION

2,749.09 ALEXANDRIA BINGHAM009323*7141

1,027.05 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267142

812.36 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC009126*7142

4,725.00 AMERICAN PRINTING SERVICES INC003243*7143

256.90 ARAMARK003946*7144

357.00 LISA MARIE BRADLEY003282*7145

627.00 CLAIRE CHUNG009122*7146

505.45 CONTRACTORS CLOTHING CO0026687147

4,595.65 CROWN CASTLE FIBER LLC009195*7148

393.99 DORNBOS SIGN & SAFETY INC000565*7149

1,720.00 FLEIS AND VANDENBRINK ENG. INC007314*7150

1,050.00 HAYES PRECISION INC001672*7151

31,624.25 J.H. HART URBAN FORESTRY0002617152

325.33 JOE'S AUTO PARTS, INC.003458*7153

370.50 HAILEY R KASPER007827*7154

1,979.30 LEE & ASSOCIATES CO., INC.005550*7155

154.00 MICHAEL SIMON009370*7156

442.51 MIDWEST TAPE0020137157

140.00 MY CONCIERGE MICHIGAN, LLC0093317158

28,540.00 NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS0018647159

211.00 NYE UNIFORM COMPANY006359*7160

978.17 OSCAR W. LARSON CO.002767*7161

599.97 PAUL C SCOTT PLUMBING INC006853*7162

39,820.00 PENCHURA, LLC0060277163

47.00 ROSE PEST SOLUTIONS001181*7164

198.00 SIGNS-N-DESIGNS INC003785*7165

570.00 THOMAS M MARKUS0092547166

5,019.00 WM. CROOK FIRE PROTECTION CO.0020887167

SUBTOTAL ACH TRANSACTION $129,838.52

5E



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

02/01/2023
02/13/2023

*-Indicates checks released in advance and prior to commission approval in order to avoid penalty
or to meet contractual agreement/obligation.

Mark Gerber
Finance Director/ Treasurer

All bills, invoices and other evidences of claim have been audited and approved for payment.

GRAND TOTAL $459,227.17

5E



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

02/08/2023
02/13/2023

PAPER CHECK

672.00 48TH DISTRICT COURT000855*290451

9,404.00 911 MECHANICAL009406290452

100.00 Air-Tite Replacement Co. Inc.BDREFUND290453

542.29 ALLIED INC001000290454

4.28 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC009126290455

3,492.00 ANDERSON ECKSTEIN WESTRICK INC000167290456

1,994.00 ARTECH PRINTING INC000500290457

3,225.00 AUDACY OPERATIONS, INC.009294*290458

479.50 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS000843290459

513.75 BAYSCAN TECHNOLOGIES009213290460

125.00 BELFOR USA GROUP INCBDREFUND290461

200.00 BENINATI POOL AND SPABDREFUND290462

457.82 BEVERLY HILLS LIONS CLUBMISC*290463

500.05 BIDNET004931*290464

915.64 BIRMINGHAM EDUCATION FOUNDATION008686*290465

200.00 BLOOMFIELD CONSTRUCTION COBDREFUND290466

400.00 BLOOMINGDALE HOMES INCBDREFUND290467

100.00 BOTTOMS UP BASEMENT FINISHINGBDREFUND290468

1,400.00 BRANDYWINE CONSTRUCTION LLCBDREFUND290469

2,054.00 BS&A SOFTWARE, INC006520290470

1,450.00 BSB COMMUNICATIONS, INC.005717290471

38.92 JOSEPH BUNTING009420*290472

2,089.21 CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA INC009078*290473

100.00 CAPPUSO BUILDING LLCBDREFUND290474

3,020.57 CASS COLLISION CLAWSON, INC008959290475

227.89 CCH INCORPORATED000443*290476

543.74 CENGAGE LEARNING INC000902290477

1,204.61 CERTIFIED POWER, INC007134290478

3,606.92 CHARLES C WANG TRUSTEETAXMISC*290479

66.84 CHICAGO DISTRIBUTION CENTERMISC290480

5,422.10 CHRISTOPHER CHARBONEAUTAXMISC*290481

342.12 CINTAS CORPORATION000605290482

36.77 CINTAS CORPORATION000605290483

366.89 CINTAS CORPORATION000605290484

1,420.85 CLAUDE & SANDRA REITELMANTAXMISC*290485

598.00 CONNECTEDSIGN, LLC008486290486

4,966.65 CONSUMERS ENERGY000627*290487

150.00 CONWAY, SUSANMISC*290488

918.00 COSTAR REALTY INFORMATION, INC008801*290489

1,400.00 COUNTRYSIDE CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, IBDREFUND290490

169.00 CRAIN COMMUNICATIONS, INC005437*290491

783.84 DALE ANNE SCHAULE-WALLACETAXMISC*290492 5F



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

02/08/2023
02/13/2023

1,285.00DOW JONES & COMPANY INC.MISC*290493

143.11DTE ENERGY000179*290494

1,870.81DTE ENERGY000179*290495

95.27DTE ENERGY000179*290496

143.49DTE ENERGY000179*290497

2,400.44DTE ENERGY000179*290498

64.74DTE ENERGY000179*290499

16.76DTE ENERGY000179*290500

66.45DTE ENERGY000179*290501

195.95DTE ENERGY000179*290502

100.00FERLITO CONSTRUCTIONBDREFUND290503

353.95FINDAWAY WORLD, LLC005651290504

100.00FOUNDATION SYSTEMS OF MICHIGAN INC.BDREFUND290505

100.00GILES CONSTRUCTIONBDREFUND290506

72.00MADELINE GOLD009556*290507

678.20GORDON FOOD004604*290508

433.70GREAT LAKES POPCORN CO000245*290509

100.00HOLLADAY, HEATHERBDREFUND290510

100.00HOME DEPOT USA INCBDREFUND290511

400.00HRH CONSTRUCTION LLCBDREFUND290512

1,340.00HUGHES BUILDING LLCBDREFUND290513

1,381.00HYDROCORP000948290514

255.00IAFC MEMBERSHIP001234290515

4,299.45IHEART MEDIA009259*290516

225.00IIMC001820*290517

5,022.57INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES001090290518

200.00ITALY AMERICAN CONSTRUCTION COBDREFUND290520

34.00JAY HALLMISC*290521

707.00JENETTE MAITZ009559*290522

25.64JENNIFER HANAWALTMISC290523

150.00JOANN ORLANSMISC*290524

300.00KASTLER CONSTRUCTION  INCBDREFUND290525

260.76RYAN KEARNEY005465*290526

100.00KEARNS BROTHERS INCBDREFUND290527

100.00KELLETT CONSTRUCTION COMPANYBDREFUND290528

458.00KGM DISTRIBUTORS INC004088*290529

262.99KNAPHEIDE TRUCK EQUIPMENT000353290530

194.38LESLIE ELECTRIC COMPANY000284290531

1,200.00LEVINE  SONS INCBDREFUND290532

457.82LIGHTHOUSE MIMISC*290533

103.05LITHIA MOTORS, INC SUPPORT SERVICES009375290534

157.69M & K TRUCK CENTERS008551290535

2,476.00MACALLISTER RENTALS007910290536

5F



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

02/08/2023
02/13/2023

10,000.00 Matthews-Hargreaves ChevroletBDREFUND290537

73.00 MERGE MOBILE, INC.008793290538

125.00 MGSE SECURITY LLC009085290539

200.00 MHRAC INCBDREFUND290540

686.73 MICAH 6 COMMUNITYMISC*290541

600.00 MICHIGAN RADIO NPR009251*290542

350.00 MIFMA007662*290543

742.29 MJ AWARDS001169290544

50.00 MOLNAR, MAREEMISC*290545

2,000.00 MOORE DEVELOPMENT GROUP LLCBDREFUND290546

10,700.00 NICK'S MAINTENANCE SERVICE004827*290547

70.00 OAKLAND CO CLERKS ASSOC001686*290548

1,235.25 OAKLAND COUNTY000477*290549

5,097.48 OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER000919*290550

900.00 OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER000919*290551

520.00 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS004370290552

214.07 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC009478*290553

2,000.00 ORCHARD DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTIOBDREFUND290554

500.00 OSKUI, BEHROUZBDREFUND290555

1,400.00 PAUL CAPPUSOBDREFUND290556

500.00 PELLA WINDOWS & DOORS, INC.BDREFUND290557

100.00 PROSIGN AND AWNINGBDREFUND290558

1,500.00 RENEWAL BY ANDERSENBDREFUND290559

1,200.00 RICHARD TRUDO009144*290560

42.95 ROYAL OAK P.D.Q. LLC000218290561

300.00 SCHREIBER, MICHAELBDREFUND290562

234.26 SHARE CORPORATION009548*290563

6,325.47 SIGNATURE CLEANING LLC009009*290564

1,955.20 SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY, INC008073*290565

11,020.00 SP+ CORPORATION007907290566

100.00 SP+ CORPORATION007907*290566

2,339.95 SPARTAN DISTRIBUTORS INC000260290567

139.20 STRYKER SALES CORPORATION004544290568

100.00 SUAREZ-MANJARRES, LUISBDREFUND290569

500.00 TEMPLETON BUILDING COMPANYBDREFUND290570

1,144.55 THE GREAT DECORATE009336290571

500.00 THOMAS SEBOLD & ASSOCIATES, INBDREFUND290572

27,712.00 TRAFFIC & SAFETY CONTROL SYSTEMS009552290573

340.00 TURNER SANITATION, INC004379*290574

147.14 UPTOWN MARKET OF BIRMINGHAM008941290575

279.03 VAN DYKE GAS CO.000293*290576

147.27 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*290577

103.15 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*290578

5F



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

02/08/2023
02/13/2023

149.34 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*290579

76.02 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*290580

180.19 GREG WALD002996*290581

4,020.14 WDIV/TV4003932*290582

113.39 WEINGARTZ SUPPLY CO.000299290583

4,290.92 WEISSMAN'S COSTUMES002171*290584

1,000.00 WHITELAW CUSTOM HOMES INC.BDREFUND290585

1,199.00 WORLD BOOK INC000839*290586

2,047.05 WXYZ/TV 7006863*290587

SUBTOTAL PAPER CHECK $191,402.51

ACH TRANSACTION

1,934.00 KATHERINE ABELA008226*7176

439.66 ALLEGRA MARKETING, PRINT, MAIL001797*7177

1,569.11 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267178

18.99 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267179

19.40 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267180

10.49 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267181

47.98 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267182

49.39 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267183

134.85 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267184

35.48 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267185

30.99 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267186

86.37 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267187

10.99 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267188

138.98 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267189

418.25 ART/DESIGN GROUP LTD001357*7190

375.95 BELL EQUIPMENT COMPANY000518*7191

15.29 BEVERLY HILLS ACE007345*7192

1,811,018.83 BIRMINGHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS-TAXES008840*7193

764.80 BRENNA SANDLES008983*7194

13.04 JAIMI BROOK0085457195

1,631.92 CANFIELD EQUIPMENT SERVICE INC.0078757196

195.50 CLAIRE CHUNG009122*7197

114.87 CONTRACTORS CLOTHING CO0026687198

93.00 MARSHALL CRAWFORD007638*7199

106.00 CHRISTOPHER DEMAN006999*7200

203.83 DORNBOS SIGN & SAFETY INC000565*7201

6,393.15 DUNCAN PARKING TECH INC001077*7202

215.00 FLEIS AND VANDENBRINK ENG. INC007314*7203

562.97 GRAINGER000243*7204

6,471.94 INSIGHT INVESTMENT008851*7205

245.00 JAX KAR WASH002576*7206

671.31 JOE'S AUTO PARTS, INC.003458*7207 5F



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

02/08/2023
02/13/2023

1,688.57 KONE INC0040857208

362.20 LEE & ASSOCIATES CO., INC.005550*7209

604.17 LOWER HURON SUPPLY CO INC003527*7210

603.22 MIDWEST TAPE0020137211

1,107.50 MILES PARTNERSHIP LLLP009242*7212

435.00 NELSON BROTHERS SEWER001194*7213

3,712.50 NYE UNIFORM COMPANY006359*7214

673,575.33 OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER- TAX PYMNT008843*7215

240.00 PENCHURA, LLC006027*7216

470.40 PEPSI COLA001753*7217

36.00 JESSICA RAK008875*7218

74.00 ROSE PEST SOLUTIONS001181*7219

82,545.00 SOCRRA0002547220

140,956.66 SOCWA001097*7221

281.45 TOTAL ARMORED CAR SERVICE, INC.002037*7222

6,642.57 US SIGNAL COMPANY LLC0092667223

372.86 WITMER PUBLIC SAFETY GROUP INC0091287224

1,176.00 YELLOW DOOR LAW009379*7225

SUBTOTAL ACH TRANSACTION $2,748,920.76

*-Indicates checks released in advance and prior to commission approval in order to avoid penalty
or to meet contractual agreement/obligation.

Mark Gerber
Finance Director/ Treasurer

All bills, invoices and other evidences of claim have been audited and approved for payment.

GRAND TOTAL $2,940,323.27

5F



 

 
MEMORANDUM 
Engineering Department 
 

 
DATE:  February 13, 2023  
 
TO:  Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 
 
FROM: Melissa A. Coatta, City Engineer 
 
SUBJECT:  Elevated Water Tanks Rehabilitation Project: Two (2) 500,000 Gallon 

Radial Arm Tanks Exterior Overcoat and Miscellaneous Repairs  
  Contract #2-22 (W) Contract Award  
 
 
INTRODUCTION:  
Bids for the two (2) 500,00 Gallon Radial Arm Tanks Exterior Overcoat and Miscellaneous Repairs 
were opened on October 26, 2022. The city received four bids, and the Engineering Department 
is recommending an award for the project to Fedewa, Inc.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
The city owns two (2) 500,000 gallon water tanks: Derby Water Tank which is located west of 
Adam/CNN Railroad and south of Derby Road, and Hunter Water Tank located east of Woodward 
Ave. and north of Maple Road.  Both water tanks were inspected by Dixon Engineering in 2021 
and their report recommends an exterior overcoat and miscellaneous repairs at both water tanks.   
 
The Engineering Department opened and read bids for the project on October 26, 2022. Four (4) 
bids were received, as listed in the attached summary.  The low bidder was Fedewa Inc., with a 
bid of $482,699.00. The city discussed Fedewa Inc.'s previous water tank projects and experience 
with Dixon Engineering. Attached for reference is Dixon Engineering’s recommendation that 
Fedewa be selected based on the bids received.  
 
Fedewa Inc. is located in Hastings, Michigan, and has completed several water tank projects 
within the State of Michigan.  Based on this information, the Engineering Department 
recommends awarding the elevated water tank rehabilitation contract to Fedewa, Inc.   
 
As is required for all of the city's construction projects, Fedewa Inc., has submitted a 5% bid 
security which will be forfeited if they do not provide the signed contract, bonds, and insurance 
required by the contract.  
 

 

5G



2 

LEGAL REVIEW:  
The City Attorney reviewed sections of the bid documents prior to bidding, and the city’s standard 
contract language was used.  

FISCAL IMPACT: 
The total construction cost of the project is estimated to be $530,968.90 which includes the 
Fedewa Inc. bid amount of $482,699.00 and a 10% construction contingency.  The project award 
will be funded by the following accounts: 

Fund Account Fund ID Number Project Award 10% 
Contingencies 

Total 

Water Fund 591.0-543.000-981.0100 - Derby $209,699.00 $20,969.90 $230,668.90 

Water Fund 591.0-543.000-981.0100 - Hunter $273,000.00 $27,300.00 $300,300.00 

Total Costs $482,699.00 $48,269.90 $530,968.90 

No Amendments to the 2022/2023 fiscal year budgets are required for this work as there are 
adequate funds in the Water Funds to accommodate this request.  Additionally, continued 
maintenance on both water towers is more sustainable by extending the service life of the water 
tower versus demolition and construction of new water towers.   

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
Communication with property owners in the project area will be included in the general project 
announcement.   

SUMMARY: 
It is recommended that the two (2) 500,000 Gallon Radial Arm Tanks Exterior Overcoat and 
Miscellaneous Repairs #2-22 (W), be awarded to Fedewa Inc. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

• Project Area Map
• Bid Summary
• Dixon Engineering Recommendation
• Signed copy of contract

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion adopting a resolution to approve the construction project budget and award the 
two (2) 500,000 Gallon Radial Arm Tanks Exterior Overcoat and Miscellaneous Repairs #2-22 (W) 
to Fedewa Inc. in the amount of $482,699.00. In addition, to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk 
to sign the agreement on behalf of the city. Funding for this project has been budgeted in the 
following accounts: 

Fund Account Fund ID Number Project Award 10% 
Contingencies 

Total 

Water Fund 591.0-543.000-981.0100 - Derby $209,699.00 $20,969.90 $230,668.90 

Water Fund 591.0-543.000-981.0100 - Hunter $273,000.00 $27,300.00 $300,300.00 

Total Costs $482,699.00 $48,269.90 $530,968.90 

5G



0 2,800 5,6001,400
Feet

1 inch = 1,496 feet

2023
Water Tank

 Maintainance 2-22(W)

Disclaimer: The information provided by this program has been
compiled from recorded deeds, plats, taxmaps, surveys, and 

other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded 
map or survey.

The data provided hereon may be inaccurate or out of date and 
any person or entity who relies on said information for any purpose

 whatsoever does so solely at his or her own risk. 

Data Sources:  Oakland County GIS Utility, City of Birmingham

¯

Legend
Water Tank Maintenance 2-22(W)

MAPLE

OAK AD
A

M
S

W
OODW

ARD

ETO
NBATE

S

DERBY

BIRD

PIER
C

E

COLE

LINCOLN

FOURTEENMILE

FA
IR

FA
X

PI
LG

R
IM

VILLA

REDDING

PU
R

IT
A

N

H
EN

R
IE

TTA

TO
R

R
Y

SU
FF

IE
LD

ANN

FAIRWAY

NORTHLAWN

OLDW
OODW

ARD

SO
U

TH
FIELD SMITH

C
R

AN
B

R
O

O
K

RAYNALE

LA
KE

PAR
K

ELM

PARK

BROWN

LA
KE

SID
E

HAZEL

G
R

AN
T

ABBEY

HOLLAND

PEMBROKE

MIDVALE

DAVIS

C
H

ES
TE

R
FI

EL
D

QUARTON

M
E

LTO
N

WEBSTER

WILLITS

STAN
LEY

PINE

SH
IP

M
AN

LA
R

C
H

LE
A

HARMON

PURDY

YOSEMITE

HENLEY

AR
LI

N
G

TO
N

HANNA

HAYNES

M
A

R
YLAN

D

WIMBLETON

MERRILL

C
O

O
LID

G
E

PLEA
SAN

T FRANK

O
X

FO
R

D

TAU
N

TO
N

BOWERS

HUMPHREY

SHEFFIELD

YORKSHIRE

W
ES

TW
O

O
D

ED
G

E
W

O
O

D

LIN
D

EN

LA
TH

AM

AR
G

YL
E

C
H

ESTE
R

WINDEMERE

CHAPIN

MADISON

BIR
M

IN
G

H
A

M

ASPEN

W
ATKIN

S

RIVENOAK

EMMONS

W
ES

TC
H

ES
TER

W
A

SH
IN

G
TO

N

BUCKINGHAM

MARTIN

SHIRLEY

DORCHESTER

MANCHESTER

AVON

KNOX

BIGBEAVER

C
ED

AR

BALD
W

IN

GEORGE

W
ILLO

W

W
O

RTH

FOREST

CROFT

BE
RW

YN

OAKLAND

BRADFORD

MOHEGAN

VINEWOOD

R
U

G
B

Y

TOWNSEND

WALLACE

KENNESAW

RUFFNER

BANBURY

RIDGEDALE

LA
KE

VIEW

G
LE

N
H

U
R

ST

SH
E

PA
R

D
BU

SH

FERNDALE

BENNAVILLE

WAKEFIELD

BR
YN

M
AW

R
W

EL
LE

SL
EY

BR
O

O
KW

O
O

D

W
O

O
D

LEA

HI
LL

SI
D

E

LEW
IS

TOTTENHAM

NORFOLK

C
AM

B
R

ID
G

E

DEWEY

G
R

AE
FI

EL
D

HAMILTON

KIM
BE

R
LEY

G
O

LFV
IEW

LANDONFLO
Y

D

BR
O

O
KSID

E

LY
O

N
H

U
R

ST

MIDLAND

SOUTHLAWN

ARD
EN

G
R

EE
N

LAW
N

ATEN

PEABO
DY

CANTERBURY

PO
LO

RIVERSIDE

DUNSTA
BLE

KENWOOD

M
A

PLE
H

ILL

BLOOMFIELD

C
O

M
M

ER
C

E

LAW
NDALE

M
IL

LR
AC

E

HAYNES

PINE

G
LE

N
H

U
R

ST

FRANK

LA
KE

SID
E

STAN
LEY

SH
IR

LE
Y

NORTHLAWN

BOWERS

W
O

R
TH

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D

HAZEL

CHAPIN

BUCKINGHAM

FOURTEENMILE

BOWERS

HUMPHREY

ETO
N

RUFFNER

G
O

LFV
IEW

5G



Birmingham, Michigan - 1 - 500,000 Gallon Radial Arm Tanks

2023 Water Tower Painting Project -October 26, 2022 - 2:00 p.m.

LC United Seven Brothers Fedewa G&L Tank E&L Painting Inspec Coatings

Sterling Heights, Shelby Twp., Hastings, Shelbyville, Howell, Campbell,

MI MI MI TN MI OH

Derby

Section 03 00 00

Catch Basin (1) 6,800 8,000 5,000 4,800

Section 05 00 00

Riser Grate (2) 8,000 9,000 3,200 5,200
Overflow Pipe Discharge Mod. (3) 10,000 7,699 4,000 4,800
Wet Interior Ladder (4) 16,400 16,000 8,000 8,700
Riser Manway (5) 9,800 16,000 8,200 10,800
Roof Handrail & Painter's Railing (6) 24,000 26,000 24,000 17,600

Section 09 00 00

Exterior Overcoat (7) 287,100 114,000 348,000 180,000
Logos (8) 13,000 5,000 12,000 11,400
Dry Interior Spot Reapinting (9) 11,500 3,000 5,000 12,600

Section 16 00 00

Aviation Light (10) 4,800 3,000 5,000 4,200
Electrical Diagnosis (11) 6,500 2,000 5,000 8,900

Project Total Derby 397,900 209,699 427,400 269,000

Acknowledgment of Addendum 1 Yes Yes Yes No

Bid Bond 5% 5% 5% 5%

15G



Birmingham, Michigan - 1 - 500,000 Gallon Radial Arm Tanks

2023 Water Tower Painting Project -October 26, 2022 - 2:00 p.m.

LC United Seven Brothers Fedewa G&L Tank E&L Painting Inspec Coatings

Sterling Heights, Shelby Twp., Hastings, Shelbyville, Howell, Campbell,

MI MI MI TN MI OH

Hunter

Section 05 00 00

Riser Manway (1) 9,800 16,000 8,200 10,800
Roof Handrail & Painter's Railing (2) 24,000 25,000 24,000 17,600
Anchor Bolt Nut Replacement (3) 2,400 3,000 1,500 5,600
Wet Interior Roof Hatch (4) 7,500 4,000 4,000 2,600
Balcony Opening (5) 3,900 3,000 2,000 2,200
Riser Grate (6) 6,500 10,000 3,200 5,200
Overflow Pipe Discharge Mod. (7) 8,500 7,000 4,000 4,800
Sway Rod Adjustment (8) 2,000 2,000 3,500 6,600
Wet Interior Ladder (9) 13,000 17,000 8,000 8,700
Roof Platform (10) 22,900 18,000 15,000 14,500
Roof Vent (11) 5,700 5,000 7,000 7,000

Section 09 00 00

Exterior Overcoat (12) 277,000 158,000 366,000 180,000
Logos (13) 13,000 5,000 12,000 11,400

Project Total Hunter 396,200 273,000 458,400 277,000

Project Total (Derby & Hunter) 794,100 482,699 885,800 546,000

Acknowledgment of Addendum 1 Yes Yes yes No

Bid Bond 5% 5% 5% 5%

25G



 DIXON 
ENGINEERING & INSPECTION SERVICES 
FOR THE COATING INDUSTRY 

  
 1104 Third Avenue 
 Lake Odessa, MI 48849 
 Telephone: (800) 327-1578 
 Fax: (616) 374-7116 
  

 

 

 

 

October 31, 2022 

 

 

 

City of Birmingham 

151 Martin Street 

Birmingham, MI 48012 

 

Attn:  Melissa Coatta, PE, City Engineer 

 

Re:  Water Tank Project Bids 

 

Dear Ms. Coatta: 

 

Recent bids were reviewed for the Derby and Hunter water storage tanks project slated for the 

2023 season.  

 

Dixon Engineering prepared the bid specifications for both tanks.  There were four bidders.  One 

also came in the following day and was rejected.  All bidders are contractors that are primarily 

tank contractors specializing in tank repair and coatings. Bids ranged from $482,699 to 

$885,800. 

 

The low bidder was Fedewa Inc. from Hastings Michigan at $482,699. 

 

Dixon Engineering recommends award to Fedewa Inc. in the amount of $482,699. 

 

Dixon Engineering will prepare the notice of award, once this is signed the contractor must 

supply the required bonds and insurance so contract documents can be prepared.  

 

Should you have any questions, please free to contact me at 616 374 3221 Ext. 310. 

 

FOR DIXON ENGINEERING, INC., 

 

 

 

Thomas Rounds 

Project Manager 

5G



5G



5G



MEMORANDUM 
Planning Division 

DATE:  February 6th, 2023 

TO:  Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Brooks Cowan, Senior Planner 

APPROVED: Nicholas Dupuis, Planning Director 

SUBJECT: Set Public Hearing for 34350 Woodward Ave & 909-911 Haynes Street – Fred 
Lavery Porsche Dealership – Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan & Design 
Review 

INTRODUCTION: 
The applicant has submitted an application for a Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan and 
Design Review for a three-story auto sales agency in the MU-5 and MU-7 zones of the Triangle 
District.   

BACKGROUND: 
The applicant orginally received a Special Land Use Permit in 2010 to operate a Porsche car 
dealership at 34350 Woodward Ave. The applicant is proposing to demolish the existing building 
as well as the adjacent site at 909-911 Haynes, combine the lots, and construct a multi-story auto 
sales agency capable of accomodating a larger fleet of vehicles on-site.  

On October 26th, 2022, (Agenda – Minutes) the applicant appeared before the Planning Board for 
a Community Impact Study and Preliminary Site Plan Review. Upon review the Planning Board 
moved to accept the CIS with the following conditions: 

1. The applicant resolve all issues related to the Transportation Impact Study as requested
by the City’s traffic consultants;

2. The applicant obtain site plan review and recommendation from the Multi-Modal
Transportation Board (MMTB) related to vehicular and pedestrian traffic safety features
for the intersection of Haynes Street, Elm Street, and Woodward Ave;

3. The applicant provide the Planning Department with copies of any existing due care plans,
plans developed in connection with the construction of the project, information about the
existence of any vapors during the process of construction, and plans for remediation of
any hazardous vapors identified; and,

4. The applicant comply with all requests from City Departments.

5H

chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Agenda%20FULL%20(AMENDED)%20-%2010-26-22.pdf
chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Minutes%20(APPROVED-PROTECTED)%20-%2010-26-22.pdf


 
 
 
 
 

2 
 

The Planning Board also moved to recommend the Preliminary Site Plan with the following 
conditions: 
 

1. The applicant obtain site plan review and recommendation from the MMTB related to 
vehicular and pedestrian traffic safety features for the intersection of Haynes Street, Elm 
Street, and Woodward Ave;  

2. The applicant provide sidewalks along Elm Street, Woodward Ave, and Haynes Street that 
are a minimum of 12 feet wide; 

3. The applicant comply with all department requests. 
 
On December 1st, 2022, (Agenda – Minutes) the applicant appeared before the Multi-Modal 
Transportation Board to review recommendations of the Triangle District Plan’s concepts for the 
intersection of Elm Street, Haynes Street, and Woodward Avenue. The Multi-Modal Transportation 
Board moved to recommend option C2 which is reducing Elm Street to one-way southbound 
between Bowers Street and Haynes Street.  
 
On January 25th, 2023, (Agenda – Minutes) the Planning Board moved to recommend approval to 
the City Commission the Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan and Design Review application 
for 34350 Woodward Ave & 909-911 Haynes Street – Fred Lavery Porsche - with the following 
conditions: 
 

1. The applicant must provide details regarding the species of landscaping proposed for the 
entrance to ensure that no prohibited species are being used; 

2. The applicant relocate the crosswalk on Elm to the north to avoid conflict with the service 
entry to a location approved by Staff; 

3. The Planning Board expresses a high priority on making the intersection of Haynes, 
Woodward, and Elm safer through a reconfiguration similar to Option C2 as expeditiously 
as possible by the City Commission; 

4. The applicant provide updated site plans and surveys addressing concerns related to the 
electrical pole in the sidewalk on the northwest corner of the property; 

5. The applicant provide updated lighting information regarding the light fixture 
specifications and the parking lot circulation area lumen values; 

6. The Planning Board approve deviations to the architectural requirements of of Section 
3.09(D)(1), Section 3.09(B)(2), and Section 3.09(A)(4) to enable the applicant creativity 
and flexibility in design for a metal exterior, a non-inset front door, and a garage door on 
the front façade with the condition that the applicant provide a front elevation drawing of 
the proposed building superimposed on a color drawing or photograph of the entire block 
showing the relation of the proposed building design to other buildings along the block; 

7. The applicant comply with all department requests; and, 
8. That the applicant obtain a lot combination to create a single parcel for 34350 Woodward 

Ave & 909-911 Haynes Street. 
 
The applicant has been coordinating with staff on providing all required documents and 
applications required by the Planning Board in their conditions of approval. Site plans that address 
all of the conditions of approval will be provided at the public hearing. City staff recommends 
that the City Commission consider requiring the applicant to be responsible for all 
costs related to the reconfiguration of Elm Street. 
 
LEGAL REVIEW: 

5H

chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/12.1.22%20MMTB%20Agenda%20Packet%20-%20FULL.pdf
chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/12.01.2022%20Approved%20MMTB%20mins.pdf
chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Agenda%20FULL%20-%201-25-23.pdf


 
 
 
 
 

3 
 

The City Attorney has reviewed this request and has no objections as to the form and content. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The Triangle District Urban Design Plan recomends reconfiguration of the intersection of 
Woodward Ave, Haynes Street, and Elm Street adjacent to the subject site. If the City 
Commission wishes to have the recommended improvements made to the intersection 
of Woodward Ave, Haynes Street, and Elm Street, the City Commisison may require 
that the applicant make such improvements as a condition of their SLUP. If the applicant 
is not required to provide such changes, then the City of Birmingham would be responsible for any 
costs related to reconfigurations of Elm Street if the City wishes to pursue such enhancements.  
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
As required for a Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan and Design Review, a legal ad was placed 
in a newspaper of local circulation to advertise the nature of the request in advance of the January 
25th, 2023 Planning Board meeting, and notices were sent out to all property owners and tenants 
within 300 ft. of the property. In addition, a second round of notices will be sent out to advertise 
the public hearing at the City Commission on March 13th, 2023.  
 
SUMMARY: 
The Planning Division requests that the City Commission set a public hearing date of March 13th, 
2023 to consider the Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan and Design Review application for 
34350 Woodward Ave & 909-911 Haynes Street – Fred Lavery Porsche.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Please find attached the following documents for your review: 

 
• Special Land Use Permit Resolution 
• Current Site/Design Plans 
• Planning Board report 
• Triangle District Urban Design Plan – relevant pages 

 
SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion adopting a resolution to set a public hearing date of March 13th, 2023 to consider 
the Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan and Design Review application for 34350 Woodward 
Ave & 909-911 Haynes Street – Fred Lavery Porsche. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5H



 
 
 
 
 

4 
 

Fred Lavery Porsche 
34350 Woodward Ave  

Special Land Use Permit 2023 
 

WHEREAS, A Special Land Use Permit application was filed in November 2022 for 
approval of a new three-story auto sales agency in the the MU-7 and MU-5 zoning districts; 

 
WHEREAS, The land for which the Special Land Use Permit is sought is located on the 

east side of Woodward Ave at the northeast corner of Elm Street and Haynes Street; 
 

WHEREAS, The land is zoned MU-7 and MU-5, which permits the operation of an auto 
sales agency with a Special Land Use Permit; 

 
WHEREAS, Article 7, section 7.34 of Chapter 126, Zoning requires a Special Land Use 

Permit to be considered and acted upon by the Birmingham City Commission, after receiving 
recommendations on the site plan and design from the Planning Board for the proposed Special 
Land Use; 
 

WHEREAS, The Planning Board on January 25th, 2023 reviewed the application for a Special 
Land Use Permit ,  Final Site Plan and Design Review and recommended approval to the City 
Commission for the contstruction of a new three-story auto sales agency with the following 
conditions: 

 
1. The applicant must provide details regarding the species of landscaping proposed for the 

entrance to ensure that no prohibited species are being used; 
2. The applicant relocate the crosswalk on Elm to the north to avoid conflict with the service 

entry to a location approved by Staff; 
3. The Planning Board expresses a high priority on making the intersection of Haynes, 

Woodward, and Elm safer through a reconfiguration similar to Option C2 as expeditiously 
as possible by the City Commission; 

4. The applicant provide updated site plans and surveys addressing concerns related to the 
electrical pole in the sidewalk on the northwest corner of the property; 

5. The applicant provide updated lighting information regarding the light fixture 
specifications and the parking lot circulation area lumen values; 

6. The Planning Board approve deviations to the architectural requirements of of Section 
3.09(D)(1), Section 3.09(B)(2), and Section 3.09(A)(4) to enable the applicant creativity 
and flexibility in design for a metal exterior, a non-inset front door, and a garage door on 
the front façade with the condition that the applicant provide a front elevation drawing of 
the proposed building superimposed on a color drawing or photograph of the entire block 
showing the relation of the proposed building design to other buildings along the block; 

7. The applicant comply with all department requests; and, 
8. That the applicant obtain a lot combination to create a single parcel for 34350 Woodward 

Ave & 909-911 Haynes Street. 
 

WHEREAS, The Birmingham City Commission has reviewed Fred Lavery Porsche’s Special 
Land Use Permit application and the standards for such review as set forth in Article 7, section 
7.36 of Chapter 126, Zoning, of the City Code; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The Birmingham City Commission finds the 

5H



 
 
 
 
 

5 
 

standards imposed under the City Code have been met, subject to the conditions below, and that 
Fred Lavery Porsche’s application for a Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan and Design Review 
at 34350 Woodward Ave is hereby approved; 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Commission determines that to ensure 

continued compliance with Code standards and to protect public health, safety, and welfare, this 
Special Land Use Permit is granted subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. Fred Lavery Porsche shall abide by all provisions of the Birmingham City 

Code; 
2. Fred Lavery Porsche is responsible for all costs related to the 

reconfiguration of Elm Street at the intersection of Elm Street, 
Haynes Street, and Woodward Ave; 

3. Fred Lavery Porsche enter into a streetscape agreement with the 
City that will address all staff concerns including but not limited 
to moving the DTE electric pole on the northwest corner of the 
property, the electric vehicle charging stations, and the Elm 
Street reconfiguration; 

4. Fred Lavery Porsche shall comply with the conditions of approval assigned 
by the Planning Board and City Commission; and 

5. The Special Land Use Permit may be canceled by the City Commission 
upon finding that the continued use is not in the public interest. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That failure to comply with any of the above conditions shall 

result in termination of the Special Land Use Permit. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Except as herein specifically provided, Fred Lavery Porsche 

and its heirs, successors, and assigns shall be bound by all ordinances of the City of 
Birmingham in effect at the time of the issuance of this permit, and as they may be subsequently 
amended. Failure of Fred Lavery Porsche to comply with all the ordinances of the City may 
result in the Commission revoking this Special Land Use Permit. 

 
BE FURTHER RESOLVED that Fred Lavery Porsche is recommended for the 

construction of a three-story auto sales agency, subject to final inspection. 
 
I, Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk of the City of Birmingham, Michigan, do hereby certify that 
the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the resolution adopted by the Birmingham City 
Commission at its regular meeting held on March 13th, 2023. 
 
 
 

 

Alexandria Bingham 
City Clerk  

 

5H



01/20/2023-- 02:26PM-- Scale1: 29013/16

5H



10.26.2022 CIS / Preliminary 
Site Plan Review 
 
/1\ 1.25.2023 
Final Site Plan Review 

5H



C1.10

200'200'200' RadiusRadiusRadiusRadiusRadius
AdjacentAdjacentAdjacentAdjacentAdjacentAdjacent PropertiesPropertiesProperties

10.26.2022 CIS / Preliminary 
Site Plan Review 

/1\ 1.25.2023 
Final Site Plan Review 

See Sheets 
C 2.00
C 3.00

5H



ST
R

EE
T

HAYNES STREET

Z
:\M

IC
H

IG
A

N
\D

ET
\2

02
2\

D
ET

-2
20

17
9 

FR
ED

 L
A

V
ER

Y
 P

O
R

SC
H

E 
- 

34
35

0 
W

O
O

D
W

A
R

D
 A

V
EN

U
E,

 B
IR

M
IN

G
H

A
M

, M
I\C

A
D

D
\E

X
H

IB
IT

S\
20

23
-0

1 
EL

M
 S

T
R

EE
T

 E
X

H
IB

IT
S.

D
W

G

IS
SU

E
D

A
T

E
D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N

NOT APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION

E
LM

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
S

BY

TITLE:

SCALE: PROJECT ID:

DRAWING:

O
A

K
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

, N
E

W
 JE

R
SE

Y

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
CA

R
DE

AL
ER

SH
IP

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T

DET-220179

1
11

/2
8/

20
22

FO
R 

M
U

LT
I-M

O
D

A
L 

T
RA

N
SP

O
RT

A
T

IO
N

 B
O

A
RD

N
K

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
B

IR
M

IN
G

H
A

M
34

35
0 

W
O

O
D

W
A

R
D

 A
V

E
N

U
E

R
ut

he
rf

or
d,

 N
J ·

N
ew

 Y
or

k,
 N

Y
 ·

Bo
st

on
, M

A
Pr

in
ce

to
n,

 N
J ·

T
am

pa
, F

L 
·

D
et

ro
it,

 M
I

w
w

w
.s

to
ne

fie
ld

en
g.

co
m

H
ea

dq
ua

rt
er

s:
  9

2 
Pa

rk
 A

ve
nu

e,
 R

ut
he

rf
or

d,
 N

J 0
70

70

Ph
on

e 
20

1.
34

0.
44

68
 ·

  F
ax

 2
01

.3
40

.4
47

2

CHARLES D. OLIVO, P.E.
MICHIGAN LICENSE No. 6201058003
LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER

2
01

/1
6/

20
23

FO
R 

M
U

LT
I-M

O
D

A
L 

T
RA

N
SP

O
RT

A
T

IO
N

 B
O

A
RD

N
K

3
01

/2
0/

20
23

PE
R 

C
IT

Y
 C

O
M

M
EN

T
S

N
K

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

0' 40'20'20'

1" = 20'

ELM STREET/HAYNES
STREET/WOODWARD

AVENUE INTERSECTION
CONFIGURATION

C2.00

1" = 20'

Triangle District Plan - Option C2 Rendering for Elm Street

5H

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY

AutoCAD SHX Text
?

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY

AutoCAD SHX Text
?

User
Typewritten Text
Elm, Haynes and Woodward Intersection(from Triangle District Master Plan)

User
Text Box
PLAN C2



REMOVAL OF EXISTING
CROSSWALK AND 2

ON-STREET PARKING SPACESW
O

O
D

W
ARD

 AVEN
U

E

HAYNES STREET

CONSTRUCT
PEDESTRIAN PLAZA

12'

EL
M

 S
T

R
EE

T

16'

CONSTRUCT NEW
CROSSWALK

ONE-WAY SIGN
ONE-WAY SIGN

DO NOT
ENTER SIGN

DO NOT
ENTER SIGN

SOLID WHITE LINESOLID WHITE LINE

Z
:\M

IC
H

IG
A

N
\D

ET
\2

02
2\

D
ET

-2
20

17
9 

FR
ED

 L
A

V
ER

Y
 P

O
R

SC
H

E 
- 

34
35

0 
W

O
O

D
W

A
R

D
 A

V
EN

U
E,

 B
IR

M
IN

G
H

A
M

, M
I\C

A
D

D
\E

X
H

IB
IT

S\
20

23
-0

1 
EL

M
 S

T
R

EE
T

 E
X

H
IB

IT
S.

D
W

G

IS
SU

E
D

A
T

E
D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N

NOT APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION

E
LM

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 M
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
S

BY

TITLE:

SCALE: PROJECT ID:

DRAWING:

O
A

K
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

, N
E

W
 JE

R
SE

Y

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
CA

R
DE

AL
ER

SH
IP

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T

DET-220179

1
11

/2
8/

20
22

FO
R 

M
U

LT
I-M

O
D

A
L 

T
RA

N
SP

O
RT

A
T

IO
N

 B
O

A
RD

N
K

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
B

IR
M

IN
G

H
A

M
34

35
0 

W
O

O
D

W
A

R
D

 A
V

E
N

U
E

R
ut

he
rf

or
d,

 N
J ·

N
ew

 Y
or

k,
 N

Y
 ·

Bo
st

on
, M

A
Pr

in
ce

to
n,

 N
J ·

T
am

pa
, F

L 
·

D
et

ro
it,

 M
I

w
w

w
.s

to
ne

fie
ld

en
g.

co
m

H
ea

dq
ua

rt
er

s:
  9

2 
Pa

rk
 A

ve
nu

e,
 R

ut
he

rf
or

d,
 N

J 0
70

70

Ph
on

e 
20

1.
34

0.
44

68
 ·

  F
ax

 2
01

.3
40

.4
47

2

CHARLES D. OLIVO, P.E.
MICHIGAN LICENSE No. 6201058003
LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER

2
01

/1
6/

20
23

FO
R 

M
U

LT
I-M

O
D

A
L 

T
RA

N
SP

O
RT

A
T

IO
N

 B
O

A
RD

N
K

3
01

/2
0/

20
23

PE
R 

C
IT

Y
 C

O
M

M
EN

T
S

N
K

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

0' 40'20'20'

1" = 20'

ELM STREET/HAYNES
STREET/WOODWARD

AVENUE INTERSECTION
CONFIGURATION (ALT)

C3.00

1" = 20'

Option C2 of the Triangle District Plan Elm Street Concept

5H

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY

AutoCAD SHX Text
?

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY

AutoCAD SHX Text
?

User
Polygon

User
Polygon

User
Polygon

User
Text Box
C2.10

User
Text Box
PLAN C2.1

User
Typewritten Text
Elm / Haynes & Woodward Intersection + Crosswalks

User
Rectangle

User
Typewritten Text
              SIDEWALK         CONNECTION   TO CROSSWALK

User
Rectangle

User
Line

User
Line

User
Line

User
Typewritten Text
SIDEWALK CONNECTIONTO CROSSWALK

User
Line

User
Typewritten Text
SIDEWALK

User
Typewritten Text
EXISTINGCROSSWALK



S 1.00

Option C1 of Triangle District Plan Elm Street Concept

5H

User
Text Box
3

User
Text Box
PLAN S3

User
Typewritten Text
Elm, Haynes & Woodward Intersection + Crosswalks



2 - 12' X 40
LOADING SPACES

LoLoadingo
1

Loading

LoLoadingo
2

Loading

Motorized
Gate

7 Spacesaces

7

6

4

3

2

1

4
SHOWROOMSHOWROOM

09.15.2022

USE GROUP - "B"

USE GROUP - "S"

VERTICAL CIRCULATION

17 SERVICE SPACES
12 HAYNES STREET PUBLIC SPACES
7 SHOWROOM INVENTORY SPACES
29 VEHICLE TOTAL CAPACITY AT GRADE

Luckenbach
Ziegelman
Gardner
Archtects
PLLC

PARKING & LOADING

SERVICECI PARKINGRR
(100 spaces)ec

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Charging
Stations

g gCharging
(1 per 2 stalls
typical)
((1 pp

PARTS

SERVICE

STORAGE
TOOL STORAGE

SERVICE DRIVE

12'

0'440

0'440

12 PUBLIC STREET PARALLEL PARKING SPACES
(SEE SHEET A/LA 100.1)

77 SHOWROOM
INVENTORY
VEHICALSVEHICALSSVEHICALS

LEGENDLEGENDLEGENDLSITE PLAN
w/Dealership
Level 1

12' MIN
CLEAR 
REQ'D (

ASHHHAAAAAWAWAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA HHHAAAWWWWAAAAWWAWWWAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA YYSYYBBBBAYYB
2  (2 (22 22222222222(2(2 ss)sseacspaspssssspspspsssspsssssssssppsssssssssssssps ea esse  (9  ss(( s

2\/22 /1\
)))))

10.26.2022 CIS / Preliminary 
Site Plan Review 

/1\ 1.25.2023 
Final Site Plan Review 

5H



/1\

10.26.2022 CIS / Preliminary
Site Plan Review 

/1\ 1.25.2023 
Final Site Plan Review 

5H



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

EXISTING CONDITIONS

PROPOSED MATERIALS

PROPOSED  
CROSSWALK 
LOCATION 

EXISTING 
CROSSWALK 
LOCATION 99

"81'-0"81'-0"

10.26.2022 CIS / Preliminary 
Site Plan Review 

/1\ 1.25.2023 
Final Site Plan Review 

22 BAYS

5H



LEVEL 1
17 SERVICE PARKING

7 SHOWROOM INVENTORY
24 VEHICLE TOTAL CAPACITY @ L1

SERVICE PARKING

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 99 10

Motorized Gate

PARTS
RECLAIM TRANSFORMER

DUMPSTER
ENCLOSURE

2 LOADING
SPACES

12' X 40'
EACH

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

AREA BELOW LEVEL 2 PARKING STRUCTURE

09.15.2022

USE GROUP - "B"

USE GROUP - "S"

VERTICAL CIRCULATION

LEGENDPLANPLANPLANPLAN
LEVEL 1

SERVICE PARKING

7 SHOWROOMSHOWROOM
INVENTORYINVENTORY
VEHICLESVEHICLES

SHOWROOMSHOWROOM

SERVICE RIGHT UP

SERVICEE C

PARTSPARTSPARTSPARTSPARTSPARTS STORAGESTORAGESTORAGESTORAGESTORAGESTORAGESTORAGESTORAGE //
PARTSPARTSPARTSPARTSPARTSPARTS STORAGESTORAGESTORAGESTORAGESTORAGESTORAGESTORAGESTORAGE MEZMEZMEZMEZMEZ SERVICE

STORAGE TOOL ROOM
STORAGE

(OPEN (OOPEN TO TO SERVICE SERVICE AREA AAREA BELOW)BELOWW)

SERVICE WRITE UP

PARTS STORAGE & 
PARTS MEZZANINE ABOVE

91                  2                   3                    4                    5               6                  7                     8

CAR WAAAASH  A 22(222 BAYS)

10.26.2022 CIS / Preliminary 
Site Plan Review 

/1\ 1.25.2023 
Final Site Plan Review 

/1\

LEVEL 1 
16 SERVICE PARKING 
  7 SHOWROOM INVENTORY 
23 TOTAL VEHICLE CAPACITY

/1\

5H

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle



LEVEL 2
51 INVENTORY, DEMO, LOANER SPACES
11 INVENTORY (STACKED)
TOTAL VEHICLE CAPACITY = 62

OPENOOPENOPEN TO SHOWROOMSHOWROOM BELOW

09.15.2022

OFFICE / STORAGE

ELEV

USE GROUP - "B"

USE GROUP - "S"

VERTICAL CIRCULATION

L2 OFFICE AREA

10 INVENTORYEE PARKINGGG

11 NEWWW CAR INVENTORYRYR PARKING
(STACKED)KK

1 2 3 4 55 666 7 8 9 10
DEMOMO & INVENTORY PARKINGP

DEMO / LOANER PARKING PARKING

3 DEMO / LOANER

12 USED CAR INVENTORYNE

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 1110

9

L2 PARKING STRUCTURE

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

12

1 22 32

11 22 3

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 1010 1110

LEGENDPLAN
LEVEL 2

10.26.2022 CIS / Preliminary 
Site Plan Review 
 
/1\ 1.25.2023 
Final Site Plan Review 

5H



Luckenbach
Ziegelman
Gardner
gZiegelman

Architects
PLLC

3

OFFICE/OFFICE/
SSTORAGESTORAGE

LEVEL 3

ELEV

SKYLIGHT

ROOFTOP MECHANICAL AREA
ON ROOF OF LEVEL 2

6' HIGH MIN MECHANICAL SCREEN
BLACK CORRUGATED METAL PANEL
TO MATCH BUILDING FACADE

LEVEL 3
13 EMPLOYEE PARKING SPACES
35 INVENTORY + LOANER SPACES
11 STACKED INVENTORY SPACES
4 HANDICAP PARKING SPACES
1 VAN ACCESSIBLE HDCP PARKING SPACE

USE GROUP - "B"

USE GROUP - "S"

VERTICAL CIRCULATION

09.15.2022

ROOFTOP PARKING

1 VAN HDCP
PARKING SPACE

13'X20'
MIN

EMPLOYEEEM PARKINGKI

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

9'x20" = 180 SF
SPACE TYPICAL

8'8'8'8'8' 5' 8'

11 2

4 HDCP GPARKINGGARKINNAPARKINGNP SPACES

SERVICE LOANER PARKING

12 13

NEWWE CAR INVENTORYTT
(STACKEDTAT PARKINGNN L)

SERVICE LOANER PARKING

NEW CAR INVENTORYIN

24'

12

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 1010 11

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

3 4 1919 18 17 16 15 14 13 12 114 19

1 2 32

11 2 32

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 99 10

NEWWW CAR INVENTORYOT

LEGENDPLAN
LEVEL 3

10.26.2022 CIS / Preliminary 
Site Plan Review 
 
/1\ 1.25.2023 
Final Site Plan Review 

5H



Luckenbach
Ziegelman
Gardner
gZiegelman

Architects
PLLC

09.15.2022

ROOFTOP PARKING
SEE A204

VEHICULAR RAMPDOWN

ROOFTOP PARKING

LEVEL 2 ROOF

ROOFTOP
MECHANICAL
ON LEVEL 2
ROOF

LEVEL 3

LEVEL 2
ROOF

SKYLIGHT

10.26.2022 CIS / Preliminary 
Site Plan Review 
 
/1\ 1.25.2023 
Final Site Plan Review 

5H



Luckenbach
Ziegelman
Gardner
gZiegelman

Architects
PLLC

3 BENCHES + 3 TRASH BINS
BICYCLE RACK LOCATION

Haynes Street Elevation
BEGA EXTERIOR
LIGHTING FIXTURE
ABOVE DOORS TYPICAL

AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS 1

AS-1AS 1AS 1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS 1

AS-1

AS-1AS 1AS 1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS 1AS 1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS 1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS 1 AS-1AAS-1AAAAAAS-1AAAAAAAAS-11111111AS-11111111

PYLON GROUND SIGNSIGN
(RE-USE EXISTING)

NEW GINKGO TREES
(NON-FRUIT BEARING-
TO
((NON-FRUIT

MATCH
(NON-FRUIT

EXISTING)
TYPICAL AS-1

PUBLIC CHARGING KIOSK #2PUBLIC CHARGING KIOSK #1

09.15.2022

Elm Street Elevation

1AS-1111111111111111111111111111AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 111AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS 1AAAS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AAS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AAS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AAS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1 1AS-11AS-11AS-11AS-11AS-11AS-11AS-1S 11111AS-11AS-11111AS-11AS-11111AS-11AS-11111AS-11AS-11111AS-11AS-1AS-1AS-111AS-11AS-1AS-1AS-111AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1----

BLACK ANODIZED ALUMINUM
& GLASS OVERHEAD DOOR

SAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1SSSAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1S-AS-1AS-1AS-1SSSSSSSS

A

AS-1ASASASASASASASAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1SSSAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1ASAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1ASAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1ASAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1ASAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1ASAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1ASAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1ASAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1ASAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1 AS-1111111111111111111111AAAAAAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AAAAAS-1AAAA

AS-1- AS-1

PYLON GROUND SIGN
PYLON BUILDING SIGNAGE

PYLON BUILDINGBUILDING SIGNAGE

1111AS-1111111111AS-1111111111AS-111111111111AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1SSAS 1AS-1AS 1AS 1AAAAAAS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AAS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AAS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AAS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1ASAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AAS-1AAS-1AAAAAAAS-1AS-1AAAA

RED LED LIGHTING AT ALL HORIZONTAL REVEALS TYPICAL

RED LED LIGHTINGLIGHTINGLIGHTING AT ALL HORIZONTALHORIZONTALHORIZONTAL REVEALSREVEALSREVEALS

Fredd LaveryyLaveryFFredFredFredFredFred LaveryLLaveryLaveryLaveryaLaveryaLaveryveryLaveryLaveryLaveryLaLavery

(3' W x 8' H x 1' D)

Fred Lavery
STANDOFF

yLavery
SIGN

SIMILAR TO
EXISTING

(12'L X 2' H)

Porche Shield Service Sign
Similar to Existing
(48" H x 30"W)

Existing
ServiceeServiceeServiceeServiceSServiceSSServiceServiceeServiceeServiceSSServiceSSS

SERVICE WRITE UP
ENTRY/EXIT

PARKING GARAGE ENTRY

SHOWROOM ENTRY NEW CAR DELIVERY EXIT

SHOWROOM
ENTRY LOCATION

ServiceS iServiceServiceServiceServiceeServiceServiceServiceSSSSServiceSSS eServiceSServiceS

EXISTING STREET LIGHTS TO REMAIN

CW-2
CLEARCLEAR GLASSGLASS
INININ ALUMALUMALUMU FRAMEFRAMEFRAME
(80%( MIN LT)VLL

W/ CLEAR GLASS - MIN VLT = 80%

*CLEAR GLASS
VLT = MIN 80%

W/ CLEAR GLASS - VLT = MIN 80%

EXISTING STREETLIGHTS IN
EXISTING LOCATIONS TO REMAIN

NEW STREET TREES IN EXISTING WELLS
(GINKGO - non fruit bearing variety)
TO
((GINKGO

MATCH
(GINKGO

EXISTING
bearing

PP
PARKING

VV
O

AS-111111111AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-11111111AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AAAAAAAS-1AAAAAAAAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1ASAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1ASAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AAS-1AAAAAS-1AS-1AAS-1

EXISTING STREET TREES (GINKGO) TO REMAIN

EXISTING STREET
LIGHT TO BE
RELOCATED (RE-USE

EXISTING)
((RE-USE

ViewView View From FFFFrF Street 
or walkeSidee

Blacck Loouverouver BarBar 
Rail and d PostsP t

Blacck Metal e (steel) 
Corrrugatedted PanelPanel

((

Louver Rail RR
Section S tiSection DetaililailDD

Partial P ti l ation ElevaEleva Perspective

BBLACK K B METALMMETAALLLLLL LOULLOOLOUVERLOUVERLLOOUVVERRLOULLOOU
GGUARDUAARRDDG RAIL RA L ANDAND POSTSPOSTPOSTSSTSSTSPOSSTSST

BLACK METAL LOUVER 
GUARD RAIL AND POSTS

09.15.20221.25.202315.20215.202

333

1/2" x 3"3 Steel Bar 
@ @ 4" O.C.O Typical

5H



Luckenbach
Ziegelman
Gardner
gZiegelman

Architects
PLLC

Elm Street

AS-1AS 1AS 1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS 1

DUMPSTERDUMPSTER
ENCLOSLURE
(MASONRY)

PARTSPARTS RECYCLERECYCLE
ENCLOSURE
(MASONRY)
9'
((MASONRY)

HEIGHT
(MASONRY)

6' MIN
HEIGHT

P
R
O
P
E
R
T
Y

L
I
N
E

P
R
O
P
E
R
T
Y

L
I
N
E

DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE
6' MINIMUM HEIGHT

(MASONRY)

PARTS ENCLOSURE.
6' MINIMUM HEIGHT.
(MASONRY)= CHARGING KIOSK

CK CK CK CK CK

PPP
R
O
P
E
R
T
Y

L
I
N
E

09.15.2022

Haynes Street

10.26.2022 CIS / Preliminary 
Site Plan Review 

/1\ 1.25.2023 
Final Site Plan Review 

BLACK METAL BAR LOUVER
GUARD RAIL AND POSTS
(SEE SEE SEE #3#3#3 - PartialPartial Partial ElevationElevation Elevation Perspective)PerspectivePerspective
SHHEET H
((

A400

BLACK METAL BAR LOUVER
GUARD RAIL L L ANDANDAND POSTSPOSTSPOSTS
(SEE #3 - Partial r Elevation Perspective)
SHEET 
((

A4000

5H

User
Polygon

User
Polygon

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle

User
Polygon

User
Polygon

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle

User
Polygon

User
Polygon

User
Polygon

User
Polygon

User
Polygon

User
Polygon

User
Polygon

User
Polygon

User
Polygon

User
Polygon

User
Polygon

User
Polygon

User
Rectangle

User
Polygon

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle

User
Polygon

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle

User
Polygon

User
Polygon

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle

User
Polygon

User
Rectangle

User
Polygon

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle

User
Polygon

User
Polygon

User
Polygon



09/16/2022 -- 05:45 PM -- Scale 1 : 192

10.26.2022 CIS / Preliminary 
Site Plan Review 
 
/1\ 1.25.2023 
Final Site Plan Review 

5H



LEVEL 33
StorageStorage

ROOF

ROOF

Mechannicaln Roof Plan M01
10.26.2022 CIS / Preliminary 
Site Plan Review 
 
/1\ 1.25.2023 
Final Site Plan Review 

5H



L01L01

L01.1L

L01.1L01.1L01.1

L01.22

10.26.2022 CIS / Preliminary 
Site Plan Review 
 
/1\ 1.25.2023 
Final Site Plan Review 

5H



1L01.

10.26.2022 CIS / Preliminary 
Site Plan Review 
 
/1\ 1.25.2023 
Final Site Plan Review 

5H



L01.2L01L01.2

10.26.2022 CIS / Preliminary 
Site Plan Review 
 
/1\ 1.25.2023 
Final Site Plan Review 

5H



 
MEMORANDUM 
Planning Division 
 

 
DATE:  January 20th, 2023  
 
TO:  Planning Board 
 
FROM: Brooks Cowan, Senior Planner 
 
Approved:  Nick Dupuis, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT:  34350 Woodward & 909-911 Haynes Street - Fred Lavery Porsche – SLUP 

Amendment and Final Site Plan and Design Review 
 
 
The applicant is proposing to demolish both buildings at 34350 Woodward Ave and 909-911 
Haynes Street and construct a three story auto sales agency spanning across both properties. 
Both parcels are zoned B-2, General Business. 34350 Woodward is zoned MU-7 in the Triangle 
Overlay District while 909-911 Haynes Street is zoned MU-5. Auto sales agencies require a Special 
Land Use Permit (SLUP) to operate in the B2 District as well as the MU-5 and MU-7 Districts. The 
applicant orginally received a Special Land Use Permit in 2010 to operate a Porsche car dealership 
at 34350 Woodward Ave. Upon approval, the applicant will also be required to apply for a lot 
combination with the City Commission. The lot combination hearing with City Commission shall 
be held after the SLUP hearing. 

In 2016, the applicant received a temporary SLUP amendment to use the building next door at 
909-911 Haynes as an office for the Porsche sales and management team for one year while 
renovations were made to the Porsche dealership at 34350 Woodward Ave. Conditions of approval 
were that the applicant could not have cars for sale parked on 909-911 Haynes Street. 

In January 2020, the applicant appeared before the Planning Board for Final Site Plan review and 
SLUP amendment to demolish the building at 909-911 Haynes Street and expand the Porsche 
dealership’s parking lot. After discussions regarding how the Triangle District Overlay requires 
expanding uses to bring the entire site into conformity, and that the Triangle District Urban Design 
Plan’s Worth Street Extension is recommended to pass through the subject property, the owner 
withdrew their application.  

In January, March, and April of 2021, the applicant appeared before City Commission to apply for 
a lot combination. It was determined that expanding the use through a lot combination meant 
that the site would not satisfy the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance, and therefore would 
not satisfy the requirements for a lot combination. It was recommended that the applicant appear 

5H

https://bhamgov.org/about_birmingham/city_government/boards___commissions/planning_board.php


before the Planning Board and obtain Final Site Plan and SLUP approval before obtaining a lot 
combination. City staff recommends that the Planning Board review the City 
Commission Memos from January 25th, 2021, March 22nd, 2021, and April 26th, 2021 
regarding the lot combination of the subject site and recommendations of the 
Triangle District Urban Design Plan. 

On October 26th, 2022, the applicant appeared before the Planning Board for a Community Impact 
Study and Preliminary Site Plan Review. Upon review the Planning Board moved to accept the 
CIS with the following conditions: 

1. The applicant resolve all issues related to the Transportation Impact Study as requested 
by the City’s traffic consultants; 

2. The applicant obtain site plan review and recommendation from the Multi-Modal 
Transportation Board (MMTB) related to vehicular and pedestrian traffic safety features 
for the intersection of Haynes Street, Elm Street, and Woodward Ave;  

3. The applicant provide the Planning Department with copies of any existing due care plans, 
plans developed in connection with the construction of the project, information about the 
existence of any vapors during the process of construction, and plans for remediation of 
any hazardous vapors identified; and, 

4. The applicant comply with all requests from City Departments. 
 

The Planning Board also moved to recommend the Preliminary Site Plan with the following 
conditions: 

1. The applicant obtain site plan review and recommendation from the MMTB related to 
vehicular and pedestrian traffic safety features for the intersection of Haynes Street, Elm 
Street, and Woodward Ave;  

2. The applicant provide sidewalks along Elm Street, Woodward Ave, and Haynes Street that 
are a minimum of 12 feet wide; 

3. The applicant comply with all department requests. 
 

On December 1st, 2022, the applicant appeared before the Multi-Modal Transportation Board to 
review recommendations of the Triangle District Plan’s concepts for the intersection of Elm Street, 
Haynes Street, and Woodward Avenue. The Multi-Modal Transportation Board moved to 
recommend option C2 which is reducing Elm Street to one-way southbound between Bowers 
Street and Haynes Street. (Minutes are attached).  

The applicant has addressed some of the recommendations of staff regarding Elm Street, while 
also providing a concept of their preferred Elm Street alignment with the updated Final Site Plan 
and SLUP review.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5H

https://www.bhamgov.org/about_birmingham/city_government/boards___commissions/city_commission/index.php
https://bhamgov.org/about_birmingham/city_government/boards___commissions/planning_board.php
https://bhamgov.org/about_birmingham/city_government/boards___commissions/multi-modal_transportation_board.php


1.0 Land Use & Zoning 
 
1.1 Existing Land Use – The existing land use is commercial with two buildings, one 

an auto sales agency and the other a two story office-retail use 
 

1.2 Zoning – The subject site exists within the B2 (General Business), MU-5 (Mixed-
Use 5), and MU-7 (Mixed-Use 7) Zoning Districts. 

 
1.3 Summary of Adjacent Land Use & Zoning – The following chart summarizes 

existing land use and zoning classifications of the adjacent and/or nearby 
properties: 

 
 North South East West 

Existing 
Land Use 

Commercial/ 
Office 

Commercial/ 
Office 

Commercial/ 
Office Commercial 

Existing 
Zoning 
District 

B2 (General 
Business) 

B2 (General 
Business) 

B2 (General 
Business) & 
O2 (Office-

Commercial) 

B2 (General 
Business) 

Overlay 
Zoning 
District 

MU-3 & MU-5 MU3 & MU-5 N/A MU-5 & MU-7 

 
2.0 Setback, Bulk, & Height Requirements 

 
The attached zoning compliance summary analysis provides the required and proposed 
bulk, area, and placement regulations for the proposed project. The applicant appears to 
satisfy the bulk, area and placement requirements of the Triangle District with particular 
clarifications noted below. 

  
Article 3, Sections 3.08(C) & 3.08(D) of the Triangle District Overlay requires building 
facades in the MU-5 and MU-7 Districts to be built within 0-5 feet of the front lot line for 
a minimum of 75% of the street frontage length which the applicant appears to satisfy. 
Furthermore, Article 3.08(F) allows frontyard building setback exceptions when additional 
sidewalk and landscaping enhancements have been provided which is the case for the 
proposed showroom entrance at the corner of Elm, Woodward Ave, and Haynes. 

 
It is also of note that the Triangle District Overlay does not regulate the size of the third 
floor. Article 3, Sections 3.08(C) & 3.08(D) for the MU-5 and MU-7 Districts only require 
three floors as a minimum. The third floor is proposed to be 1,660 square feet. Obtaining 
a lot combination will bring both parcels into conformity. 

 
3.0 Screening & Landscaping 

 
3.1 Dumpster Screening – The dumpster is proposed to be located in the northeast 

corner of the property. The eastern elevation indicates the dumster will consist of 
masonry and with a 6’ minimum height, which is also concealed by the Haynes 
Street Façade. 

5H



 
3.2 Parking Lot Screening – Article 4, Section 4.54 (C) of the Zoning Ordinance requires 

screening to be placed along the front or side of any parking facility that abuts a 
street, alley, passage or mixed passage. The site plan indicates 7 ground level 
parking spaces accessible from Haynes Street. The ground level parking spaces 
are screened by the building’s two-story metal façade along Haynes Street as 
indicated in the eastern elevation design.  

 
The applicant has provided black metal louvers for the upper level parking facility 
in order prevent large blank walls from facing Haynes Street. The black metal 
louvers also provide adequate screening for the upper level parking. 

 
3.3 Mechanical Equipment Screening – The site plan indicates rooftop and ground-

mounted mechanical units that will require screening. The level 3 floor plan 
indicates five mechanical rooftop units screened by a black corrugated metal panel 
screen wall that is 5 feet in height and will match the building façade. The proposed 
rooftop mechanical units are 39 inches in height and therefore are completely 
concealed by the screenwall. The ground level transformer on the northeast corner 
of the building is screened by the building’s façade along Haynes Street. 
 

3.4 Landscaping – The applicant is proposing additional landscaping at the entrance 
of the building on the corner of Haynes, Woodward, and Elm. Article 4, Section 
4.20(E) of the Zoning Ordinance does not require the applicant to provide 
landscaping on-site due to its location in a commercial zoning district. The 
applicant must provide details regarding the species of landscaping 
proposed for the entrance to ensure that no prohibited species are being 
used.  

 
Streetscape Elements – The applicant has provided a number of street trees, street 
lights, and streetscape furnishings. In terms of street trees, Article 4, Section 4.20 
(G) requires at least 1 street tree for each 40 linear feet of frontage along a street. 
The site plan indicates a total of 11 street trees which satisfies the ordinance 
requirements. A breakdown of the required and proposed street trees is provided 
below: 

 
Street Linear Frontage (ft.) Required Provided 
Haynes 313’ 8 8 
Elm 89’ 2 3 
Woodward 25’ N/A 0 
Total   11 

 
 
The site plan indicates a total of 13 street lights which appear to be adequately 
spaces approximately 40 feet apart. All streetlights proposed are expected to meet 
the streetscape standards for the Triangle District. 
 
In regards to streetscape furnishings, the applicant has proposed 3 benches, 3 
trash receptacles, and 5 bike racks along Haynes Street. All benches, bike racks, 

5H



and trash receptacles are expected to meet the streetscape standards of the 
Triangle District.  
 
To support an all electric fleet, the applicant is also providing two electric car 
charging kiosks for the public along Haynes Street on the eastern portion of the 
property. 
 
Section 3, Article 3.12(B) requires sidewalks in the Triangle Overlay District to be 
a minimum of 12 feet wide. The sidewalk surrounding the building appears to be 
12 feet along Haynes and Elm Street.  
 
The northwest corner of the property has a congested sidewalk space transitioning 
from the subject site to the northern property on Elm Street. There is an electrical 
pole in the middle of the sidewalk and a city streetlight directly south of it which 
impedes pedestrian passage.  
 
 

4.0 Parking, Loading & Circulation 
 
4.1 Parking – Article 4, Section 4.46 of the Zoning Ordinance requires the applicant to 

provide the following off-street parking for the uses proposed in the site plans 
submitted: 
 
Proposed Use Requirements  Area or Units Spaces 
Sales Room 1 per 300 SF 6,800 SF 23 
Office 1 per 300 SF 8,460 SF 4 
Service Stalls 1 per Stall 12 Stalls 12 
Other (Storage) 1 per 550 SF 4,269 SF 8 
    
Total Required - - 47 
Total Proposed - - 155  

 
Article 4, Section 4.46(A) Table A Parking Standards of the Zoning Ordinance 
requires motor vehicle sales and service establishments to provide 1 space for 
each 300 square feet of floor area of sales room plus 1 space per each auto service 
stall, not to be used for new or used car storage. 
 
The first floor sales room is 6,800 square feet, while the cumulative office space 
on floors one, two, and three is 8,460 square feet. There are 12 service stalls and 
4,269 squaure feet of storage which is classified as “other” for parking. The 
applicant is required to provide 47 parking spaces on-site for the proposed uses. 
 
The applicant is providing a total of 155 parking spaces that consist of 7 ground 
level surface parking spaces, 10 interior building service parking spaces on the first 
floor, 62 parking spaces on the second level parking facility, 64 parking spaces on 
the third floor, and 12 public on-street parking spaces. City staff did not count 
showroom spaces as open and accessible. The applicant satisfies the parking 
requirements.  

5H



 
Article 3, Section 3.08(G)(1)(b) of the Zoning Ordinance permits no more than 60 
feet of parking lot frontage for corner lots. Given that all parking spaces are within 
the buildng façade, the applicant appears to satisfy this requirement.  
 
Article 3, Section 3.08(G)(4) of the Zoning Ordinance enables the Planning Board 
to allow a multi-level parking facility above the first floor to occupy the frontage 
provided that the façade of the parking structure is integrally designed with the 
architecture of the overall building, utilizes the same building materials, and has 
wall openings that provide proportions and rhythm that are compatible with 
building upper story fenestration. The applicant has proposed a series of black 
metal louvers for the upper level parking facility that appears to be integrally 
designed with the architecture of the overall building. 
 

4.2 Loading – Based on the habitable commercial space within the proposed 
development, the applicant is required to provide two off-street loading space with 
the following minimum dimensions: 40 feet long, 12 feet wide and 14 feet high. 
Article 4, Section 4.24(C)(4) requires that loading spaces be screened. The loading 
spaces are located within the interior elevations of the building and are screened 
by the front façade and garage door. 
  

4.3 Vehicle Circulation & Access – The site plans indicate that the main vehicular 
access to the site will be from Hanyes Street on the east side of the property. The 
access drive is 24 feet wide and is regulated by a black anondized aluminum and 
glass overhead door. Vehicles may enter at the ground level parking lot and take 
the ramp to the second or third floor parking structure facility. The curb cut along 
Haynes Street also provides access to the ground level service shop.  
 
Article 3, Section 3.09(A)(4) of the Zoning Ordinance does not allow garage doors 
on the front façade, however Architectural exemptions are availabe through the 
provisions of Article 3, Section 3.11 of the Zoning Ordinance. The Planning Board 
may wish to discuss the presense of an overhead door regulating access to on-site 
parking.  
 
In regards to on-site vehicular circulation, the site plans indicate that employee 
parking will be on a portion of the the third level parking facility. A large portion 
of the second and third level parking facility will be used for vehicle inventory.  

 
A second curb cut for vehicular ingress and egress is proposed on the northwest 
corner of the building facing Elm Street. The proposed curb cut will provide access 
to the interior of the building for the service shop. Access to the service area is 
also regulated by a black annodized and glass overhead door. A  concern of City 
staff is that the proposed curb cut for vehicular ingress an egress is facing a 
pedestrian crosswalk connecting across Elm Street and Woodard Ave.  
 
As discussed during the CIS & Preliminary Site Plan Review, the Triangle District 
Plan calls out the intersection of Elm Street, Bowers Street, and Woodward Ave as 

5H



an area unsafe for pedestrians and vehicle, and therefore recommends three 
different option for restructuring Elm Street. 
 
On December 1st, 2022, the Multi-Modal Transporation Board (MMTB) reviewed 
the Triangle District Plan’s recommendations for Elm Street in relation the 
applicant’s proposed project. Upon discussion of the project and the three different 
options for Elm Street, the MMTB recommended option C2 which includes a bump 
out that cuts off Haynes Street from Elm Street and reduces Elm Street to one-
way southbound. Option C2 also eliminates the right-turn action from northbound 
Woodward Ave onto Elm Street. The MMTB provided some commentary on the 
timeline of the project, however as an advisory board, that is not within their 
purview. 
 
The applicant has provided two different concepts for updating the vehicular and 
pedetrian access to the intersection of Haynes Street, Elm Street, and Woodward 
Ave. One concept is option C2 from the Triangle District Plan as recommended by 
the MMTB.  The other concept incorporates recommendations of option C1 of the 
Triangle District Plan where Elm Street remains a two-way street. The extended 
bumpout of option C1 would require northbound cars on Woodward Ave to slow 
down to complete the right turn onto northbound Elm Street.  
 
It is also of note that City staff discussed the proposal of enhancing the intersection 
of Haynes Street, Elm Street, and Woodward Ave with MDOT. The representatives 
were in support of enhancing the intersection and indicated pulling a permit for 
review should only take 4-6 weeks. 

 
The Planning Division requests that the Planning Board recommend a 
preference for the Triangle District Plan’s recommendations for Elm 
Street in relation to the proposed project and provide direction for the 
applicant regarding options C1 or C2 with Elm Street being a one way or 
two way street. 

 
4.4 Pedestrian Circulation & Access – The main pedestrian access to the building is at 

the corner of Elm Street, Woodward Ave, and Haynes Street which leads into the 
Porsche showroom. There are four additional pedestrian entrances to the site 
facing Haynes Street, and one facing Elm Street. 

 
The updated site plan maintains a 12 foot sidewalk surrounding the entire frontage 
of the property. A concern of City staff is that there is an electrical pole in the 
sidewalk to the right of the proposed garage facing Elm Street. The Engineering 
Department comments from Preliminary Site Plan included requiring the applicant 
to move the electrical pole in the middle of the sidewalk. This concern has not 
been addressed in the updated site plans. Therefore the applicant must 
provide updated site plans and surveys addressing concerns related to 
the electrical pole in the sidewalk on the northwest corner of the 
property.   
 

5H

https://bhamgov.org/about_birmingham/city_government/boards___commissions/multi-modal_transportation_board.php


As previously mentioned, a concern of City staff is that there is a pedestrian 
crosswalk in the Elm Street location where the applicant is proposing a curb cut 
for a garage to the service area. Options C1 & C2 of the Triangle District Plan 
attempt to address issues of the vehicular speeds and pedestrian crossings at this 
intersection. The Planning Division recommends that the Planning Board discuss 
their preference of options for Elm Street in order to enhance the pedestrian safety 
of crossing Elm Street near Woodward Ave.  

 
5.0 Lighting 

 
The applicant is proposing twelve exterior light fixtures. Eight lights are proposed to face 
the street frontage of Elm and Haynes Street, two exterior lights will face the eastern 
parking lot, and one exterior light is proposed in the exterior. The exterior light fixtures 
pictured on the elevations labeled AS-1 appear to be cut-off fixtures and are labeled as 
Bega exterior lighting fixtruers, however the plans do not appear to provide a detailed 
specification sheet regarding the type of light fixture. Information such as the watts and 
lumens have been provided though. The applicant must provide staff specifications 
of the exterior lights to verify they are cut off fixtures. 
 
The applicant has also provided a detailed photometric plan of the site. The lumens do 
not exceed 1.5 foot candles at any property line. City staff request that the applicant 
update the photometric plan to provide a table showing the range of lumen 
values for the parking circulation area on the east side of the building to verify 
the lighting requirements for parking lot circulation areas have been met. 
 

6.0 Departmental Reports 
 
1. Engineering Division – Comments from the Engineering Division will be 

provided by the Planning Board meeting of January 25th, 2023. 
 

2. Department of Public Services – Comments from DPS will be provided by the 
Planning Board meeting of January 25th, 2023. 
 

3. Fire Department – Please see the attached Fire Department comments. 
 

4. Police Department – The Police Department have no concerns and think either 
option for Elm Street is better than what currently exists. 
 

5. Building Division – Please see the attached Building Department comments. 
 

6. Parking Manager – The Parking Manager has no concerns at this time. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

5H



7.0 Design Review 
 
The proposed building has frontage along Elm Street and Haynes Street where the first 
floor façade predominantly consists of glazing. The showroom entrance has a metallic 
design above that appears to be modeled after the Porsche 911 rear window louvres. The 
curved architectural reveals will be illuminated by red lighting. The Western elevation has 
a large “PORSCHE” sign in red with sillver metal composite spanning most of the façade 
above the first floor glazing.  
 
The southern elevation has a long stretch of glazing for the first floor parts and storage 
rooms facing Haynes Street. Levels two and three consist of ribbed metal with metal 
louvers where the multi-level parking facility is. As previously mentioned, Article 3, Section 
3.08(G)(4) of the Zoning Ordinance enables the Planning Board to allow a multi-level 
parking facility above the first floor to occupy the frontage provided that the façade of the 
parking structure is integrally designed with the architecture of the overall building, utilizes 
the same building materials, and has wall openings that provide proportions and rhythm 
that are compatible with with building upper story fenestration.  
 
A portion of the first floor on the eastern elevation is exposed where the parking and 
charging kiosks are located. Behind the parking spaces are glass overhead doors for 
service station entry and access to the upper level parking facility. Levels two and three 
are exposed parking facility space with metal louvers and guard rail posts. 
 
The northern elevation consists of architectural ribbed metal metal louvers and guard rail 
posts for the multi-level parking facility. There are no windows facing north along the 0’ 
lot line. 
 
In regards to ground floor glazing, the first floor of the Haynes Street elevation has a 
glazing percentage of 86.7% and the first floor of of Elm street has a glazing percentage 
of 87.2%. Both street facing elevations satisfy the glazing requirement of 70% minimum 
between 1-8 feet from ground level. The applicant must provide staff with glass 
specification sheets to verify that the glazing meets the requirements of 66% visual light 
transmittance and reflectivity of 15% or less.  
 
In regards to Article 3, Section 3.09 Commercial/Mixed Use Architectural Requirements of 
the Triangle District Overlay, there are a few issues with the proposed design. Article 3, 
Section 3.09(D)(1) requires that all walls exposed to public view or parking area shall be 
constructed of not less than 60% brick, stone, or glass. The proposed building does not 
satisfy the building material requirements of the Triangle District Overlay given that the 
exterior is predominantly metal. 
 
Article 3, Section 3.09(B)(2) requires the front entranceway to be inset 3 feet from the 
front building wall. The curving front entranceway of the Porsche dealership does not 
appear to satisfy this requirement though. 
 
It is also of note that the applicant is proposing two overhead doors on their front façade, 
one facing Elm Street and another facing Haynes Street. The garage doors consist of black 

5H



anondized aluminum and glass. However, Article 3, Section 3.09(A)(4) states that garage 
doors shall not be permitted on a front façade. 
 
Article 3, Section 3.11 of the Triangle District Overlay requirements enables the Planning 
Board to approve deviations to the architectural requirements of Section 3.09 in order to 
allow for creativity and flexibility in design with the following standards: 
 

The Planning Board may approve deviations to the architectural requirements of 
Section 3.09 and Section 3.10 in order to allow for creativity and flexibility in design. 
A front elevation drawing of the proposed building shall be provided superimposed 
on a color drawing or photograph of the entire block showing the relation of the 
proposed building design to other buildings along the block, which shall be utilized 
to evaluate the proposed building design based upon all of the following criteria: 

A. Demonstrates innovation in architectural design, provided the building design 
shall be in keeping with the desired character of the Triangle Overlay District, 
as articulated in the Triangle District Urban Design Plan. 

B. The building is oriented towards the front sidewalk with a functioning entrance 
and enhances the continuity of the pedestrian oriented environment. A 
modification shall not result in an increased dominance of vehicular parking or 
garage doors along the front of the building. 

C. The roof design shall not be out of character with other buildings along the 
block and shall be within the minimum and maximum height requirements of 
the district. 

D. The exterior finish materials shall be of equal or better quality and durability 
as those permitted herein, with the intent to allow for new technologies in 
building material while maintaining the desired character of the Triangle 
Overlay District. 

E. Ground floor windows shall be provided along the front sidewalk to maintain 
the pedestrian orientation of the streetscape and upper story windows shall 
not be incompatible with the rhythm and proportions of windows on other 
buildings along the block. 

 
The Planning Division recomends that the Planning Board approve deviations 
to the architectural requirements of of Section 3.09(D)(1), Section 3.09(B)(2), 
and Section 3.09(A)(4) to enable the applicant creativity and flexibility in 
design for a metal exterior, a non-inset front door, and a garage door on the 
front façade with the condition that the applicant provide a front elevation 
drawing of the proposed building superimposed on a color drawing or 
photograph of the entire block showing the relation of the proposed building 
design to other buildings along the block. 

 
 Signage  

The Elm Street elevation has a red Porsche backlit sign 102 SF in dimension. The curved 
entryway at the corner of Elm and Haynes Street has two pylon ground signs that are 
both 24 SF in dimension. The Haynes Street elevation has a sign reading “Fred Lavery” 
24 SF in dimension. The total signage square footage is 174 SF, which is less than the 
nearly 500 feet of total street frontage of the property.  

5H

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-391
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-392
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=475
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=646
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=601
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=630
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=475


8.0 Required Attachments 
 
 Submitted Not Submitted Not Required 
Existing Conditions Plan ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Detailed and Scaled Site Plan ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Certified Land Survey ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Interior Floor Plans ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Landscape Plan ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Photometric Plan ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Colored Elevations ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Material Specification Sheets ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Material Samples ☐ ☒ ☐ 
Site & Aerial Photographs ☒ ☐ ☐ 

 
9.0 Approval Criteria 

 
In accordance with Article 7, section 7.27 of the Zoning Ordinance, the proposed plans 
for development must meet the following conditions: 

 
(1) The location, size and height of the building, walls and fences shall be such that 

there is adequate landscaped open space so as to provide light, air and access 
to the persons occupying the structure. 

(2) The location, size and height of the building, walls and fences shall be such that 
there will be no interference with adequate light, air and access to adjacent lands 
and buildings. 

(3) The location, size and height of the building, walls and fences shall be such that 
they will not hinder the reasonable development of adjoining property nor 
diminish the value thereof. 

(4) The site plan, and its relation to streets, driveways and sidewalks, shall be such 
as to not interfere with or be hazardous to vehicular and pedestrian traffic. 

(5) The proposed development will be compatible with other uses and buildings in 
the neighborhood and will not be contrary to the spirit and purpose of this 
chapter. 

(6) The location, shape and size of required landscaped open space is such as to 
provide adequate open space for the benefit of the inhabitants of the building 
and the surrounding neighborhood. 

 
In addition, Article 7, Section 7.36 requires applications for a Special Land Use Permit 
to meet the following criteria: 
 

(1) The use is consistent with and will promote the intent and purpose of this 
Zoning Ordinance. 

5H



(2) The use will be compatible with adjacent uses of land, the natural environment, 
and the capabilities of public services and facilities affected by the land use. 

(3) The use is consistent with the public health, safety and welfare of the city. 
(4) The use is in compliance with all other requirements of this Zoning Ordinance. 
(5) The use will not be injurious to the surrounding neighborhood. 
(6) The use is in compliance with state and federal statutes. 

 
10.0 Recommendation 

 
Based on a review of the site plans submitted, the requirements outlined in Article 7, 
Section 7.27 of the Zoning Ordinance, and the SLUP requirements of Article 7, Section 
7.36,  the Planning Division recommends that the Planning Board recommend APPROVAL 
of the SLUP and Final Site Plan for 34350 Woodward Ave & 909-911 Haynes Street with 
the following conditions: 
 

1. The applicant must provide details regarding the species of landscaping 
proposed for the entrance to ensure that no prohibited species are being used;  

2. The applicant provide option (C1 or C2) as indicated in the submitted proposals 
of the Triangle District Plan’s recommendations for Elm Street to be included 
in the site plan and proposed survey before the public hearing with City 
Commission; 

3. the applicant provide updated site plans and surveys addressing concerns 
related to the electrical pole in the sidewalk on the northwest corner of the 
property; 

4. The applicant provide updating lighting information regarding the light fixture 
specifications and the parking lot circulation area lumen values; 

5. The Planning Board approve deviations to the architectural requirements of of 
Section 3.09(D)(1), Section 3.09(B)(2), and Section 3.09(A)(4) to enable the 
applicant creativity and flexibility in design for a metal exterior, a non-inset 
front door, and a garage door on the front façade with the condition that the 
applicant provide a front elevation drawing of the proposed building 
superimposed on a color drawing or photograph of the entire block showing 
the relation of the proposed building design to other buildings along the block; 
and 

6. The applicant comply with all department requests. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5H



 
11.0 Sample Motion Language 
 

Motion to recommend APPROVAL to the City Commission of the Special Land Use Permit 
for 34350 Woodward Ave & 909-911 Haynes Street with the following conditions: 
 

1. The applicant must provide details regarding the species of landscaping 
proposed for the entrance to ensure that no prohibited species are being used;  

2. The applicant provide option (C1 or C2) as indicated in the submitted proposals 
of the Triangle District Plan’s recommendations for Elm Street to be included 
in the site plan and proposed survey before the public hearing with City 
Commission; 

3. the applicant provide updated site plans and surveys addressing concerns 
related to the electrical pole in the sidewalk on the northwest corner of the 
property; 

4. The applicant provide updating lighting information regarding the light fixture 
specifications and the parking lot circulation area lumen values; 

5. The Planning Board approve deviations to the architectural requirements of of 
Section 3.09(D)(1), Section 3.09(B)(2), and Section 3.09(A)(4) to enable the 
applicant creativity and flexibility in design for a metal exterior, a non-inset 
front door, and a garage door on the front façade with the condition that the 
applicant provide a front elevation drawing of the proposed building 
superimposed on a color drawing or photograph of the entire block showing 
the relation of the proposed building design to other buildings along the block; 
and 

6. The applicant comply with all department requests. 
 

OR 
 

Motion to POSTPONE the Special Land Use Permit for 34350 Woodward Ave & 909-911 
Haynes Street pending receipt of the following: 
 

1. ___________________________________________________________ 
2. ___________________________________________________________ 
3. ___________________________________________________________ 

 
OR 

 
Motion to recommend DENIAL to the City Commission of the Special Land Use Permit for 
34350 Woodward Ave & 909-911 Haynes for the following reasons: 
 

1. ___________________________________________________________ 
2. ___________________________________________________________ 
3. ___________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 

5H



 
Motion to recommend APPROVAL to the City Commission of the Final Site Plan and 
Design Review for 34350 Woodward Ave & 909-911 Haynes Street with the following 
conditions: 
 

7. The applicant must provide details regarding the species of landscaping 
proposed for the entrance to ensure that no prohibited species are being used;  

8. The applicant provide option (C1 or C2) as indicated in the submitted proposals 
of the Triangle District Plan’s recommendations for Elm Street to be included 
in the site plan and proposed survey before the public hearing with City 
Commission; 

9. the applicant provide updated site plans and surveys addressing concerns 
related to the electrical pole in the sidewalk on the northwest corner of the 
property; 

10. The applicant provide updating lighting information regarding the light fixture 
specifications and the parking lot circulation area lumen values; 

11. The Planning Board approve deviations to the architectural requirements of of 
Section 3.09(D)(1), Section 3.09(B)(2), and Section 3.09(A)(4) to enable the 
applicant creativity and flexibility in design for a metal exterior, a non-inset 
front door, and a garage door on the front façade with the condition that the 
applicant provide a front elevation drawing of the proposed building 
superimposed on a color drawing or photograph of the entire block showing 
the relation of the proposed building design to other buildings along the block; 
and 

12. The applicant comply with all department requests. 
 

OR 
 

Motion to POSTPONE the Final Site Plan and Design Review for 34350 Woodward Ave & 
909-911 Haynes Street pending receipt of the following: 
 

4. ___________________________________________________________ 
5. ___________________________________________________________ 
6. ___________________________________________________________ 

 
OR 

 
Motion to recommend DENIAL to the City Commission of the Final Site Plan and Design 
Review for 34350 Woodward Ave & 909-911 Haynes for the following reasons: 
 

4. ___________________________________________________________ 
5. ___________________________________________________________ 
6. ___________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

5H



Page 1 of 3 
 

Zoning Compliance Summary | 34350 Woodward Ave & 909-911 Haynes Street | 01/21/2022 
 

Zoning Compliance Summary Sheet 
 SLUP and Final Site Plan Review 

34350 Woodward Ave & 909-911 Haynes 
 
 
Existing Site: 1 story auto sales agency & 2 story commercial building 

Zoning: B2 (General Business) & MU-5/MU-7 (Triangle District Overlay) 
Land Use: Retail/Office/ Auto Sales Agency 

 
Existing Land Use and Zoning of Adjacent Properties: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Land Area:   Existing: 42,875 SF 
Proposed: 42,875 SF  

Dwelling Units: Existing: 0 units 
Proposed: 0 units 

 
Minimum Lot Area/Unit: Required: N/A 

Proposed: N/A 

Min. Floor Area /Unit: Required: N/A 

Proposed: N/A 

 
Max. Total Floor Area: 

 
Required: 

 
N/A 

Proposed: N/A 

Min. Open Space: Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A  

Max. Lot Coverage: Required: N/A 

 North South East West 
Existing 
Land Use 

Commercial/ 
Office 

Commercial/ 
Retail 

Commercial/ 
Office Commercial 

Existing 
Zoning 
District 

B2 (General 
Business) 

B2 (General 
Business) 

B2 (General 
Business) & 
O2 (Office-

Commercial) 

B2 (General 
Business) 

Overlay 
Zoning 
District 

MU3 MU-7 & MU-5 MU-5 MU3 

5H



Page 2 of 3 
 

Zoning Compliance Summary | 34350 Woodward Ave & 909-911 Haynes Street | 01/21/2022 
 

Proposed: N/A  

Front Setback: Required: 0-5 ft. for a minimum of 75% of the street frontage 
length 

Proposed: Within 0-5 feet of the front lot line for greater than 75% 
of the street frontage length. 
 

Side Setbacks Required: 0 ft. with walls facing side lot line w/ no windows 
10 ft. for walls with windows 

Proposed: 0 ft. 

Rear Setback: Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A 

 
Max. Bldg. Height: Permitted: 66 ft., 5 stories (MU-5) 

90 ft., 7 stories (MU-7) 
Proposed: 45 ft., 3 stories  

Min. Bldg. Height: Permitted: 34 ft., 3 stories (MU-5) 
34 ft., 3 stories (MU-7) 

 Proposed: 45 ft., 3 stories  
 

Floor-Floor Height: Required: 14 ft. minimum (1st story) 
Proposed: 14 ft 

Front Entry: Required: On frontage line 
Proposed: On frontage line  

Absence of Bldg. Façade: Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A  

Opening Width: Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A 

 
Parking: Required: 35 off-street spaces  

Proposed: 47 off-street spaces available to workers and patrons 
160 total on-site: accessible + inventory 
 

Min. Parking Space Size: Required: 180 sq. ft. 
Proposed: 180 sq. ft. 

Parking in Frontage: Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A  

Loading Area: Required: 2 off-street loading space 
40 ft. x 12 ft. x 14 ft. 

5H



Page 3 of 3 
 

Zoning Compliance Summary | 34350 Woodward Ave & 909-911 Haynes Street | 01/21/2022 
 

Proposed: 2 off-street loading space 
40 ft. x 12 ft. x 14 ft. 

Screening:   
  

Parking: Required: 6 ft. masonry screen wall 
Proposed: Screened by building facade 

Loading: Required: Screened from view 
Proposed: Interior loading area screened by building 

Rooftop Mechanical: Required: Screened from view 
Proposed: 5 ft. screen wall  

Elect. Transformer: Required: Obscured from public view 
Proposed: Screened by building facade 

Dumpster: Required: Masonry screen wall with wood gates 
Proposed: Screened by building façade and masonry screen wall 

 

5H



City of Birmingham fire Department

572 South AdAmS • BirminghAm, michigAn 48009 • 248.530.1900  FAx 248.530.1950

ALAN  G. SOAVE
  Fire mArShAl

mAtthew J. BArtAlino

ASSiStAnt chieF / oPerAtionS

PAul A. wellS

Fire chieF

January 19th, 2023

RE: Final Site Plan Review Comments 
34350 Woodward, Fred Lavery

• Follow International Fire Code 2015 for submitted plans.

• Sec. 54-32. - Emergency Power Shutdown Device
All commercial and residential structures/buildings constructed or having major renovations 
performed after the implementation of this ordinance shall provide a KNOX-VAULT 4500 Series 
Power Shutdown device, and installed as approved by the Fire Marshal, located on the exterior of the 
building. All required power shut down devices shall be installed and maintained at the building 
owner's expense. All required power shut down devices shall be installed by a qualified, licensed 
electrician.

• Knox Pad Locks required on construction fencing access gates

• Follow Chapter 33 of IFC  2015 edition "Fire Safety During Construction and Demolition"

• A Knox Box will be required

• Sprinkler System and Alarm Plans-Submit plans to AHJ for review and approval .

• CO Gas detection system and ventilation for parking garages as needed.

• FDC – facing the street within 100 feet of a Fire Hydrant.

• Construction phase of the project install a standpipe system with access to all floors

• Bi-Directional amplifier may be required.  First responder radio signal strength will be assessed 
toward the end of the construction phase.

• All life safety requirements listed in International Fire Code and NFPA documents and standards 
shall be followed and enforced.  

5H



CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
Community Development – Building Department 

151 Martin Street, Birmingham, MI 48009 
 
 
 

Final Site Plan Review Comments Page 1 
 

January 19, 2023 
 
 
RE:  Final Site Plan Review Comments 

34350 Woodward, Fred Lavery                      
 

As requested, the Building Department has examined the plans for the proposed project 
referenced above. The plans were provided to the Planning Department for site plan review 
purposes only and present conceptual elevations and floor plans. Although the plans lack 
sufficient detail to perform a code review, the following comments are offered for Planning Design 
Review purposes and applicant consideration: 
 
Applicable Building Codes: 
 
 2015 Michigan Building Code. Applies to all buildings other than those regulated by 

the Michigan Residential Code. 
 
 2015 Michigan Mechanical Code. (Residential requirements for mechanical 

construction in all detached one and two-family dwellings and multiple single-family 
dwellings (townhouses) not more than three stories in height with a separate means of 
egress and their accessory structures are contained in the Michigan Residential Code) 

 
 2018 Michigan Plumbing Code. (Residential requirements for plumbing construction 

in all detached one and two-family dwellings and multiple single-family dwellings 
(townhouses) not more than three stories in height with a separate means of egress and 
their accessory structures are contained in the Michigan Residential Code) 

 
 2017 National Electrical Code along w ith the Michigan Part 8 Rules. (Residential 

requirements for electrical construction in all detached one and two-family dwellings and 
multiple single-family dwellings (townhouses) not more than three stories in height with 
a separate means of egress and their accessory structures are contained in the Michigan 
Residential Code) 

 
Review Comments: (These comments remain from our initial review) 
 

1. Exterior doors shall not open or project into the public right of way (Building Code Section 
3202.2) 

 
2. The proposed building is setback 0-feet from the north and east property lines. These 

walls will need to have a fire resistive rating in accordance with Table 601 of the MBC. 
Table 705.8 of the Building Code will not permit the proposed openings on the first floor 
and all parking levels.  
 

3. The rooftop parking level will require access to two remote exit stairways (Building Code 
Section 406.5.7). 

5H



CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
Community Development – Building Department 

151 Martin Street, Birmingham, MI 48009 
 
 
 

Final Site Plan Review Comments Page 2 
 

4. The N/E exit stair will need to be enclosed with fire barriers in accordance with Chapter 
10 of the Building Code and comply with item 3 above.  
 

5. The office/storage area on level 3 has access to only 1 exit stair. Access to two exits is 
required in accordance with Section 1006 of the Building Code.  
 

6. The exit stairs on level 2 in the office area are not remotely separated as required by 
Section 1007.1.1 of the Building Code.  

5H



 

18 Triangle District Urban Design Plan | Birmingham Michigan 

Circulation  

To supplement the streetscape and walkability improvements, there are a 

number of roadway improvements recommended through the Triangle 

District.  Some will enhance traffic operations and safety, while others are 

intended to make the district more walkable.   

Maple Road (A).  Maple Road between Woodward and Adams should be 

converted from two lanes in each direction to an imbalanced roadway 

configuration, for example with two westbound lanes, one eastbound lane 

and a center turn lane, as depicted in A1.  This configuration would 

improve access into the Triangle along Elm Street and to the businesses 

along Maple without widening.  Additionally, intersection improvements 

should be made at Elm and Maple to better emphasize this entrance to the 

Triangle District.   

Hazel Street (B).  The segment of Hazel between Woodward and Elm 

could be closed to minimize the number of access points along Woodward 

Avenue and minimize cut-through traffic in the residential neighborhood.  

The new space could be used as open space or could be conferred to a 

property owner or developer in a beneficial exchange. 

Woodward/Elm (C).  There are a number of options for the short block 

of Elm Street between Bowers and Woodward Avenue (C).  Because of 

the slight angle from Woodward Avenue, traffic on Woodward Avenue 

tends to enter Elm at high speeds.  In addition, the intersection with 

Bowers has limited sight distance because of building placements and a 

narrow right-of-way.  The intersection of Elm at Woodward should be 

reconfigured to require traffic entering the District at Elm to make a right 

turning movement rather than merely veering right (C1).  This would slow 

traffic and improve safety for pedestrians and motorists.  Additionally, this 

portion of Elm south of Bowers could be converted to southbound traffic 

only with the former northbound lanes converted to angled street parking 

(C2).  Alternatively, this segment could be vacated altogether and used as 

open space or developable land for an adjacent parcel (C3).   
Circulation Recommendations 

CC  

BB  

AA  

DD  

EE  

FF  

Inset of Worth Realignment 

5H



 

Triangle District Urban Design Plan | Birmingham Michigan 19 

Woodward/Worth (D).  The intersection of Worth Street at 

Woodward Avenue shares many of the same problems as Bowers 

discussed above.  It is recommended that this intersection be reconfigured 

to form a right angle, greatly slowing traffic and creating the opportunity in 

the vacated right-of-way for a small greenspace with public art, landscaping, 

and wayfinding signs.  

Worth Street (E).  Currently Worth Street ends at Haynes Street.  This 

prevents circulation between the Triangle District‟s northern and southern 

halves.  Worth should be realigned parallel to Woodward Avenue and 

extended to Bowers.  This will improve north/south interior connectivity 

within the Triangle District and better link the north and south halves of 

the District, which will help support redevelopment of this area.  This road 

reconfiguration will also allow the creation of Worth Plaza in the heart of 

the Triangle District.  The alignment of Worth Street will be through the 

rear of the Boarder‟s parking lot and buildings currently located between 

Bowers and Haynes.  Therefore Worth Street realignment will need to be 

done in conjunction with the development of a parking structure and 

redevelopment of the properties on the north side of Haynes.  The specific 

alignment shown on this plan is conceptual and could be varied, provided 

the ultimate alignment created Worth Plaza. 

Bowers Street (F).  Bowers Street should also be emphasized as an 

east/west connector corridor that connects the residential areas east of 

Adams to the Triangle District and Downtown. 

Additional traffic modeling and detailed geometric designs will need to be 

evaluated further by the City‟s traffic engineer prior to implementing these 

recommendations.  

Maple Road (A1) 

Woodward/Elm (C1) Woodward/Elm (C2) 

Woodward/Elm (C3) Woodward/Worth (D1) 

5H



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Department of Public Services 

DATE:  February 13, 2023 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Mike Bernal, Public Services Manager 

APPROVED BY: Scott Zielinski, Director of Public Services 

SUBJECT:  Truck & Trailer Specialties, Attenuator Purchase 

INTRODUCTION: 
As the City of Birmingham encourages safe work practices, and is continually looking for ways to 
increase the safety on the jobsite for our staff, the Department of Public Service recommends 
purchasing a trailer attenuator. This attenuator features a "crash cushion", adding a further layer of 
protection for our road workers. The attenuator will be purchased from Truck & Trailer Specialties, Inc., 
located at 900 Grand Oaks Drive, Howell, MI 48843, through the MiDeal Cooperative Purchase 
Agreement #071B7700086. 

BACKGROUND: 
The Department of Public Service uses arrow boards while conducting road work and other activities. 
Although arrow boards are informative and useful on road projects, the current arrow board offers little 
to no protection to our workers. The recommended unit provides additional protection by reducing the 
impact forces and redirecting the impacting vehicle away from the deadly "coffin corners" at the rear 
of the truck. 

LEGAL REVIEW:  
This purchase has been reviewed against the current purchasing guidelines and approved by the City 
Attorney. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
The cost for the trailer attenuator is $32,275. Funds are available in the Auto Equipment Fund, account 
#661.0-441.006-971.0100. Environmental impacts were reviewed for this product and found to not 
apply as there are no EV options available. 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
This does not apply to this purchase. 

5I



2 

SUMMARY: 
The Department of Public Service recommends purchasing a trailer attenuator that features a "crash 
cushion," adding a further layer of protection for our road workers.  

ATTACHMENTS:  
Attached to this report is the city agreement and the vendor quote, including specifications and warranty 
information.    

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion adopting a resolution to approve the purchase of a trailer attenuator from Truck & 
Trailer Specialties, Inc., located at 900 Grand Oaks Drive, Howell, MI 48843, through the MiDeal 
Cooperative Purchase Agreement #071B7700086, in the amount not to exceed $32,275, in addition to 
authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the agreement on behalf on the City. Funding for this 
purchase has been budgeted in the FY 2022-2023 Auto Equipment Fund account #661.0-
441.006.971.0100. 

5I



5I



5I



5I



5I



5I



5I



5I



1 
 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 
City Clerk’s Office 
 

 
DATE:  February 13, 2023  
 
TO:  Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 
 
FROM: Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:  Special Event Application:  Birmingham Movie Nights 
 
 
INTRODUCTION:  

Birmingham Shopping District has submitted a Special Event application to hold the 
Birmingham Movie Nights Friday June 9, July 14, August 11, and September 8, 2023.  
Set up for the event is scheduled on event days from 12-6:30 p.m.  The event begins 
at 6:30 p.m. and concludes at 10:00 p.m. Tear down is scheduled for end of movie 
– 11:00 p.m.  

 
BACKGROUND: 

The necessary departments reviewed the proposed event details submitted in the 
application, department heads gave feedback on requirements and estimated costs.  
DPS, Planning, Building, Engineering, Police, and Fire have indicated their approval.  
SP+ Parking has been notified of the event for planning purposes.  
 
The location of Birmingham Movie Nights  will be Booth Park. 
 
The following events occur June-September in Birmingham, and do not pose a conflict 
for this event: 
 

       
• Day on the Town                             7/29         City Streets 
• In the Park Concert Series     6/14 – 8/16 Shain Park 
• Common Ground Art Fair     9/23 – 9/24 Shain Park & city streets 
• Yoga in the Park        6/24          Shain Park 

 
 

 
LEGAL REVIEW:  

The City Attorney has reviewed and has no concerns or objections. 
 
 

5J



2 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
All costs associated with this event will be paid by applicant. 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
Birmingham Shopping District notified residents and businesses about the details of 
this event by letter which was mailed at least two weeks prior to the Commission 
meeting. The addresses that were notified were within 300 feet of the event space. 

SUMMARY: 
The City Commission is being asked to approve a special event permit for Birmingham 
Movie Nights  to be held Fridays   June 9, July 14, August 11, and September 8, 2023,  
from 6:30 p.m. – 10:00 p.m. with set up 12:00 p.m. – 6:30 p.m.  Tear down will begin 
at end of movie – 11:00 p.m. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Special Event application
2. Notification letter with map of event area distributed to residents/businesses within

300 feet of the event area dated 1/23/2023. Notification addresses are on file in
the Clerk’s Office.

3. Department Approval page with comments and estimated costs

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
To make a motion adopting a resolution to approve a special event permit as requested 
by the Birmingham Shopping District to hold Birmingham Movie Nights on June 9, July 
14, August 11, and September 8, 2023,   contingent upon compliance with all permit 
and insurance requirements and payment of all fees and, further pursuant to any 
minor modifications that may be deemed necessary by administrative staff at the time 
of the event, or event cancellation that may be deemed necessary by administrative 
staff, leading up to or at the time of the event. 

5J



5J



5J



5J



5J



5J



5J



5J



5J



5J



5J



5J



DEPARTMENT APPROVALS 
 EVENT NAME: Movie Nights  
LICENSE NUMBER # 23-00012104 COMMISSION HEARING DATE: 02/13/23  
NOTE TO STAFF:  Please submit approval by 02/03/23 DATE OF EVENT: 6/9, 7/14, 8/11, 9/8  
  

DEPARTMENT APPROVED COMMENTS PERMITS 
REQUIRED 

(Must be obtained 
directly from individual 

departments) 

ESTIMATED 
COSTS 

(Must be paid two 
weeks prior to the 

event. License will not 
be issued if unpaid.) 

ACTUAL 
COSTS 

(Event will be 
invoiced by the 
Clerk’s office 

after the event) 
 

PLANNING 
101.0-000.000-636.0005 

248.530.1855 
 

 
TBC 

 
No Cost No Comment 

  
 
            0 

  

BUILDING 
101.0-000.000.636.0005 

248.530.1850 

MJM No Department Involvement.  $0  

FIRE 
101.0-000.000-636.0004 

248.530.1900 

AS Response for emergencies from stations. 
Cooking areas and food trucks require 
inspection.  
Fire extinguisher required for cooking 
areas.   
Crowd managers required 1/250 people 
ratio 
Provide wire bridges for extension cords 
Tents require flame retardant cert.  

 $0  

POLICE 
101.0-000.000.636.0003 

248.530.1870 

RK 
1/26/23 

On duty personnel to provide extra patrol.  $0 $0 

PUBLIC SERVICES 
101.0-000.000-636.0002 

248.530.1642 

 
CL 

1/25/23 

No stakes driven in the ground.  
Estimated costs include: 
Banner placement and removal. 
Barricade placement and removal for 
each event. 
Set up and clean up for each event even 
if the event is cancelled.  Additional cost 
is possible if the event exceeds the typical 
scope for set up, and /or if extra clean up 
is necessary. 

  
 
 
 

$2,500 

 

5J



ENGINEERING 
101.0-000.000.636.0002 

248.530.1839 

KC 
1/26/23 

 Obstruction $65  

SP+ PARKING 
AF N. Old Woodward Garage and metered 

spaces will be available at the posted 
rates 

 $0 $8 

INSURANCE 
248.530.1807 

 Need to submit COI no less than 2 weeks 
prior to event 
Need to submit Hold Harmless Agreement 

None $0 $0 

CLERK 
101.0-000.000-614.0000 

248.530.1803 

 Notification letters to be mailed by 
applicant no later than ___.  
Notification addresses on file in the 
Clerk’s Office.   
 

Applications for 
vendors license 
must be submitted 
no later than ____. 

$165  
 
 

 

   TOTAL DEPOSIT 
REQUIRED 
 
$2730 

ACTUAL 
COST 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Rev. 2/8/23 
h:\shared\special events\- general information\approval page.doc 

FOR CLERK’S OFFICE USE 
 
Deposit paid ___________ 
 
Actual Cost     
 
Due/Refund    
 

5J



  DATE:  February 7, 2023 

FROM: Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk 

SUBJECT:     Advisory Parking Committee resignation – Steven Kalczynski 

INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND: 
Advisory Parking Committee member Kalczynski submitted his resignation from the 
board effective January 30, 2023. This creates a vacancy for the remainder of his three-
year term to expire September 4, 2023. 

LEGAL REVIEW: 
n/a 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
n/a 

   PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
The City Clerk’s office will publish a notice of intention to appoint to this position, post 
the vacancy on the “board and commission opportunities” portion of the city’s website 
and include it in the city’s digital news vehicles as publication schedules permit. 

SUMMARY: 
The City Commission is being asked to approve accept the resignation of Steven 
Kalczynski from the Advisory Parking Committee, thank him for his service, and to direct 
the City Clerk to begin the process of filling the vacancy. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resignation email

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
To make a motion to accept the resignation of Steven Kalczynski from the Advisory 
Parking Committee, to thank him for his service and to direct the City Clerk to begin 
the process of filling the vacancy. 

5K



5K



5K



 

 
 

       DATE:                       February 7, 2023 
 
 

FROM: Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk 
 

SUBJECT:                  Martha Baldwin Park Board resignation – Patrick Rock 
 

 

 
INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND: 

Martha Baldwin Park member Patrick Rock submitted his resignation from the board 
effective February 2, 2023. This creates a vacancy for the remainder of his three-year 
term to expire May 1, 2024. 

 
LEGAL REVIEW: 

n/a 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
n/a 
 

       PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
The City Clerk’s office will publish a notice of intention to appoint to this position, post 
the vacancy on the “board and commission opportunities” portion of the city’s website 
and include it in the city’s digital news vehicles as publication schedules permit. 

 
SUMMARY: 

The City Commission is being asked to approve accept the resignation of Patrick Rock 
from the Martha Baldwin Park Board, thank him for his service, and to direct the City 
Clerk to begin the process of filling the vacancy. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resignation email 

 
SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 

To make a motion to accept the resignation of Patrick Rock from the Martha Baldwin 
Park Board, to thank him for his service and to direct the City Clerk to begin the 
process of filling the vacancy. 

5L



5L



MEMORANDUM 
Legal Department 

DATE: February 13, 2023 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager and City Commission 

FROM: Mary M. Kucharek 

SUBJECT: Code of Conduct 

INTRODUCTION: 

The purpose of this Code of Conduct is to define the minimum standards of conduct that 
are expected of the City Commission and the individual Commissioners as determined by the City 
Commission, in conjunction with its Ethics Ordinance, in order to collaborate and conduct efficient 
and productive meetings.   

BACKGROUND: 

In January and February of 2022, the City Commission discussed the desire to draft and 
adopt a Code of Conduct for the City Commission in conjunction with the Rules of Procedure 
which have already been adopted.  At a workshop, the City Commission discussed and reviewed 
potential language of a Code which was presented by Assistant City Manager, Jana Ecker. Staff 
drafted and presented a proposed Code of Conduct on July 11, 2022.  Discussion occurred and 
suggestions were made by the City Commission. The City Manager now directs it is time once 
again to consider adopting a Code of Conduct. 

LEGAL REVIEW: 

The City Attorney has collaboratively drafted the Code of Conduct for your consideration 
and recommends City Commission approval and adoption.   

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The Code of Conduct is believed to foster more productive and efficient meetings of the 
Birmingham City Commission. Staff members also attend Birmingham City Commission meetings 
and whenever decisions are made and meetings are held that are more congenial and efficient 
then productivity is increased, which is always financially beneficial to the tax paying citizens.

6A



2 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 

Once approved, this Code of Conduct will be published on the City of Birmingham website 
along with the City Commission’s Rules of Procedure.    

SUMMARY: 

The City Commission is asked to review and adopt this Code of Conduct to establish the 
defined conduct standards and expectations.  This document will result in published and accepted 
expectations of the City Commission and individual Commissioners.  This Code of Conduct is to 
be a self-regulatory policy. 

ATTACHMENTS:  

The City of Birmingham Code of Conduct. 

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 

Make a motion adopting a resolution to approve the City of Birmingham Code of 
Conduct and further direct staff to publish the Code of Conduct as adopted on the City of 
Birmingham website along with the Rules of Procedure of the Birmingham City Commission. 

6A



 

 

 
 

City Commission 
Code of Conduct 

Resolution #__________ 
 

Sec. 1-1. – Purpose 

As elected leaders of the community, the City Commission is entrusted to collaborate, and 
work as a united team committed to the residents of the City of Birmingham.  In order to be 
effective, City Commissioners must come to meetings with an open mind, think strategically about 
City issues, and conduct themselves in a respectful and professional manner at all times to 
maintain a culture of candor, trust, and respect. 

 

Sec. 1-2. – Role of City Commission  

(1)  The role of the City Commission is to: 
 
(a) Make policy decisions. 
 
(b) Hire & consult with the City Manager. 
 
(c) Consider For Approval: 

i. Budget and related work plan; 
ii. Ordinances & policy decisions; 
iii. Certain Development proposals; and 
iv. Rezoning requests. 

 
(d) Appoint representatives to advisory boards and committees.  
 

(2)  Each City Commissioner is expected to: 
 
(a) Act in accordance with the established and accepted Rules of Procedure. 
 

6A



 

 

 

 

 
2 

 

(b) Act in accordance with the City Charter and the City Code of Ordinances. 
 
(c) Recognize the City Commission as a whole speaks through its motions and 

resolutions collaboratively. 
 

(3) In accordance with the City Charter and Code of Ordinances, the City Commission does 
not have authority to: 

 
(a) Hire and fire staff. 
 
(b) Direct the activities of staff members, other than the City Manager. 
 
(c) Individually direct the activities of boards, committees, subcommittees or other 

resident groups. 
 
(d) Individually approve policies, projects, etc. 
 
(e) Individually commit City resources or staff to specific causes. 
 
(f) Individually enforce policies, City Code, etc. 
 
(g) Individually speak or prepare official correspondence on behalf of the City unless 

authorized by the City Commission as a whole. 
 

(4) City Commissioners recognize it is the role of the City Manager to: 
 
(a) Provide best efforts & advice to the City Commission. 
 
(b) Manage City operations & direct staff. 
 
(c) Propose budget & policies. 
 
(d) Implement City Commission decisions. 
 
(e) Deliver services to the citizens. 
 
(f) Equitably enforce codes & policies. 
 

(5) City Commissioners recognize it is the role of independent boards, committees, 
subcommittees & task forces to: 
 
(a) Provide the community’s perspective. 
 

6A



 

 

 

 

 
3 

 

(b) Propose future projects and plans. 
 
(c) Advise the City Commission.  
 
(d) Hold hearings as directed by City Commission, the Charter and ordinances. 

 

Sec. 1-3. – City Commissioner Conduct with City Staff and Boards, Committees 
and Commissions 

(1) To ensure the safe and efficient operation of City government, and to protect the best 
interest of the City, City Commissioners commit to: 

 
(a) Respect staff as valued resources and members of the team. 

 
(b) Treat all staff as professionals. 

 
(c) Refrain from disrupting staff from their jobs. 

 
(d) Support the maintenance of a positive and constructive workplace environment for 

City employees where individual members, City staff and the public are free to 
express their ideas and work to their full potential. 

 
(e) Provide direction to the City Manager and not direct the work of individual staff 

members. 
 

(f) Send to the City Manager all communications and questions for staff. 
 

(g) When possible, notify the City Manager in advance of a City Commission meeting 
of questions or requests to pull agenda items from the consent agenda so the 
appropriate staff can compile the information needed. 

 
(h) Agree that information individual Commissioners ask of the City Manager will be 

provided to all City Commission members. 
 

(i) Refrain from soliciting political support from staff. 
 

 
(2) To protect the best interest of the City, City Commissioners commit the following to Board, 

Committee and Commission Members: 
 
(a) View boards and committees as vitally important resources to support decision-

making. 
 

6A



 

 

 

 

 
4 

 

(b) Communicate effectively in a public forum with boards and committees to ensure 
they have the tools to do their work. 

 
(c) Give clear direction as a body and take adequate time to review the result of a 

board’s deliberations. 
 
(d) Refrain from using their position to influence the deliberations or outcomes of boards 

and committees because of the value of the independent advice of boards, 
committees and task forces to the public decision-making process.  

 
(e) Agree not to attend board, committee or task force meetings in person.  However, 

City Commissioners may view meetings if doing so only as an anonymous observer 
via video or broadcast television, unless a City Commissioner is an appointed 
member of a board, committee or task force. 

 
 

Sec. 1-4. - City Commissioner Conduct with One Another 

 The Birmingham City Commission is comprised of individuals with a wide variety of 
backgrounds, educational and work experiences, personalities, values, opinions and goals.  All 
City Commissioners have chosen to serve in public office in order to preserve and protect the 
present and the future of Birmingham. As City Commissioners may “agree to disagree” on more 
controversial issues, each Commissioner agrees to abide by the following standards of conduct. 

(1) IN PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 

(a) Practice civility, professionalism and decorum in discussions and debate. 
Difficult questions, tough challenges to a particular point of view, criticism of ideas 
and analysis of ideas and information are legitimate elements of a free democracy 
in action.  This does not allow, however, City Commissioners to make belligerent, 
personal, impertinent, slanderous, threatening, abusive, or disparaging comments.  
No shouting or physical actions that could be construed as threatening will be 
tolerated. City Commissioners should conduct themselves in a professional manner 
at all times.   

 
(b) Use Respectful Behavior at All Times. 

  
i. City Commissioners shall: 

 
1. Treat people with courtesy, politeness and kindness. 
2. Encourage others to express their opinions and ideas. 
3. Listen to what others have to say. 
4. Use the ideas of others to improve decisions and outcomes. 
5. Recognize and respect differences. 

6A



 

 

 

 

 
5 

 

6. Prepare for the issues at hand. 
7. Focus on the business of the body. 
8. Consider only legally germane information in decisions. 
9. Act as a decision maker, not an advocate for any position or project. 

 
 

ii. City Commissioners shall not: 
1. Speak over or cut off another individual’s comments. 
2. Insult, disparage, or put down people or their ideas. 
3. Bully others by displaying a pattern of belittling, demeaning, judgmental 

or patronizing comments. 
4. Threaten or commit acts of violence. 

 
(c) Honor the role of the Mayor in maintaining order. 
 It is the responsibility of the Mayor to keep the comments of City Commissioners on 

track during public meetings. City Commissioners should honor efforts by the Mayor 
to focus discussion on current agenda items. If there is disagreement about the 
agenda or the Mayor’s actions, those objections should be voiced politely and with 

reason, following procedures outlined in parliamentary procedure and the Rules of 
Procedure. 

 
(d) Avoid personal comments that could offend other City Commissioners. 

If a City Commissioner is personally offended by the remarks of another City 
Commissioner, the offended City Commissioner should make notes of the actual 
words used and call for a "point of personal privilege" that challenges the other City 
Commissioner to justify or apologize for the language used.  The Mayor will maintain 
control of this discussion. 

 
(e) Demonstrate effective problem-solving approaches. 
 City Commissioners should work together to resolve issues and act as public role 

models. City Commissioners have the opportunity to demonstrate how individuals 
with disparate points of view can find common ground and seek a compromise that 
benefits the community as a whole.  

 
(f) Be punctual and keep comments relative to topics discussed. 

City Commissioners have made a commitment to attend meetings and partake in 
discussions. City Commissioners must be punctual to ensure meetings start on time. 
City Commissioners must keep discussions relative to the topic at hand in order to 
allow adequate time to fully discuss scheduled issues. 

 
(2) IN PRIVATE ENCOUNTERS 

 
(a) Continue respectful behavior in private. 

6A



 

 

 

 

 
6 

 

 The same level of respect and consideration of differing points of view that is 
deemed appropriate for public discussions should be maintained in private 
conversations as elected officials recognize that as public officials, they are always 
on display and even private conversations can have a public presence. 

 
(b) Be aware of the insecurity of written notes, voicemail messages, and e-

mail. 
 Technology allows words written or said without much forethought to be distributed 

wide and far. Written notes, voicemail messages and e-mail should be treated as 
potentially "public" communication. 

 
(3) EX PARTE COMMUNICATION 

 
(a) Ex Parte Contacts/Fair Hearings.  

City Commissioners shall exercise caution in receiving or seeking out information 
and evidence on any quasi-judicial matter while such matter is pending before the 
City Commission or any agency, board, or committee thereof, except at the public 
hearing.  

  
(b) Exposure to Information.   

A City Commissioner that is exposed to information or evidence about a pending 
matter outside of the public hearing, through contacts by constituents, interested 
parties, the applicant, or through site visits must disclose all contacts, information 
and/or evidence acquired from such contacts, during the public hearing or meeting, 
and before the public comment period is opened. Self-reporting and disclosure is 
mandatory. 

 
Sec. 1-5. - Working with the Public 

 
(1) Residents.   

City Commissioners are sometimes the first call for help from residents. The City 
Commission acknowledges if a resident receives conflicting information from different 
City Commissioners that it is difficult for the resident and could increase liability for the 
City. Therefore, City Commissioners agree to direct all residents to the City staff or 
GovPilot to address their concerns. If the City Manager determines that the question 
and response is of public importance, the Manager may remark, clarify, and share the 
information with the City Commission at a public meeting. 
 

(2) Business or other interests.  
The purpose of a City Commission meeting is to discuss information, review information, 
and decide upon issues in an open and transparent public process. City Commissioners 
should not meet with applicants outside of a public meeting to facilitate ideas about 

6A



 

 

 

 

 
7 

 

proposals.  The City Commission should be receiving all information as a whole 
Commission in a public meeting. 

 
(3) The City Commission’s overarching principals for working with the community 

are: 
 

(a) Do not grant any special consideration, treatment, or advantage to anyone. 
 
(b) Do not advocate for a personal or specific point of view outside of City Commission 

meetings with the public. 
 

(c) City Commissioners should not prejudge an issue before the whole City Commission 
has received the information in a public meeting.  Due process of an item means all 
the information is put to the whole public body before a decision is made.  Each City 
Commissioner agrees not to make a decision about an issue before the City 
Commission until the deliberation process occurs at a public meeting and 
Commissioners are called upon to cast their vote. 

 
(d) Each City Commissioner may discuss an issue the City Commission has already 

decided upon by explaining how the City Commission as a whole arrived at the 
decision, and supporting the decision of the entire body, even if in disagreement. 
 

Sec. 1-6. Enforcement/Sanctions 

 This Code of Conduct is meant to be self-enforcing.  City Commissioners should be familiar 
with its contents and support any training necessary to further its implementation. 

 If there is a complaint or question as to whether or not a member of the City Commission 
is in violation of this Code of Conduct, their actions should be referred to the Mayor, and it shall 
be the function of the City Commission to conduct a public hearing.  The hearing shall be 
moderated by the Chair of the Ethics Board presiding over the hearing and managing testimony, 
physical evidence, discussion and any public comment.   

The City Commission shall, within 14 days after any matter is brought to the attention of 
the Mayor, set a date certain for the public hearing.  The Chair of the Ethics Board, at least 14 
days before the hearing date, shall give notice of the hearing, and provide a concise statement 
of the alleged breach of the Code of Conduct to the accused Commissioner by certified mail, 
return receipt requested.  All hearings of the alleged violation shall be subject to the Open 
Meetings Act.  While the Chair of the Ethics Board will preside over the hearing to assure fairness 
and efficiency, the entire Commission shall vote with the majority present as the final decision 
makers of whether or not an alleged violation has occurred.  If a member of the City Commission 
is found to be in violation of this Code of Conduct, they may be reprimanded or formally censored 
by the City Commission.  The City Commission will also vote with the majority prevailing as to 
sanctions of the violator, which may include, but are not limited to, a formal written reprimand 

6A



 

 

 

 

 
8 

 

up to a request for removal of the City Commissioner by the Governor if the Commissioner’s 

conduct is so egregious that the majority of the Commissioners believe this to be necessary. 

 

Adopted by Resolution on ____________, 2023. 

 
O:\Birmingham\CODE OF CONDUCT\2023.02.03 RESOLUTION 2023 - (CLEAN) CODE OF CONDUCT.docx  

 

 

 

6A



MEMORANDUM 
Planning Division 

DATE: February 13, 2023  

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Nicholas Dupuis, Planning Director 

SUBJECT: Public Hearing for 300 S. Old Woodward – RH – Special Land Use Permit 
Amendment, Final Site Plan & Design Review (Request to Postpone) 

INTRODUCTION: 
The applicant has submitted a Special Land Use Permit Amendment, Final Site Plan & Design 
Review for a revised site plan and building design on a building currently under construction in 
Downtown Birmingham pursuant to Chapter 10, Section 10-84 of the Birmingham Code of 
Ordinances. The subject site is located on the west side of S. Old Woodward, between Brown and 
Daines.  

BACKGROUND: 
On July 14, 2021 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Board moved to recommend approval to the 
City Commission a Special Land Use, Final Site Plan and Design Review application for the original 
proposal, which was subsequently approved by the City Commission on August 9, 2021 (Agenda 
– Minutes).

Prior to the original site plan approval process, the applicant had also applied and was approved 
for a rezoning from D3 (Downtown Overlay) to D4 (Downtown Overlay). The Planning Board 
recommended approval to the City Commission on April 28, 2021 (Agenda – Minutes), and the 
City Commission formally approved the rezoning on July 12, 2021 (Agenda – Minutes). 

On December 14, 2022 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Board moved to recommend approval 
to the City Commission a Special Land Use Permit Amendment, Final Site Plan and Design Review 
application for a revised building design and minimal changes to the site. The approval conditions 
were as follows: 

1. The Planning Board approves the projection of the canopy into the right-of-way;
2. The applicant must still adhere to the principles accepted by the Planning Board in the

Community Impact Study review and provide ample space for the separation of recycling
in the trash area;

3. The Planning Board approves the use of arborvitae and masonry screen wall with metal
gates to screen the proposed electrical equipment;

7A

https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Planning%20Board/Packet/2021/PB%20Agenda%20FULL%20-%207-14-21.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Planning%20Board/Minutes/2021/7-14-21%20-%20Approved.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/City%20Commission/Basic%20Agendas/2021/8.9.21%20AGENDA%20AMENDED.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/City%20Commission/Minutes/2021/20210809%20Minutes.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Planning%20Board/Packet/2021/Full%20Agenda%20-%20April%2028,%202021.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Planning%20Board/Minutes/2021/4-28-21%20-%20Approved.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/City%20Commission/Full%20Agenda%20Packet/2021/20210712%20Agenda%20Packet%20Reduced.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/City%20Commission/Minutes/2021/20210712%20Minutes.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Agenda%20FULL%20-%2012-14-22.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Minutes%20(APPROVED-PROTECTED)%20-%2012-14-22.pdf


 
 
 
 
 

2 
 

4. The applicant must submit revised plans demonstrating 70% clear glazing on the 
storefront facades or obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals; 

5. The Planning Board approves the use of non-cutoff light fixtures; 
6. The applicant must submit detailed and dimensioned sign plans that meet the 

requirements of the Sign Ordinance, or obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning 
Appeals; and 

7. The applicant must comply with the requests of all City Departments. 
 
On January 10, 2023 (Agenda), the applicant was granted the four variances required to proceed 
with the design of the building as proposed. Three variances were for storefront glazing. Article 3, 
Section 3.04 (E)(4) of the Zoning Ordinance requires all buildings in the Downtown Overlay District 
to contain storefronts transparent areas equal to 70% of its portion of the facade between one 
and eight feet from the ground. The proposed RH design contains 62%, 60%, and 58% glazing 
on the Daines, S. Old Woodward, and Brown facades, respectively. The final variance was granted 
to permit RH to have building identification signage that is illuminated.  
 
A complete set of updated site/design plans that address all of the conditions of approval from the 
Planning Board and departmental comments will be provided to the City Commission at the public 
hearing.  
 
LEGAL REVIEW: 
The City Attorney has reviewed this request and has no objections as to form and content. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There are no fiscal impacts for this agenda item. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
As required for Special Land Use Permit and Final Site Plan Reviews, a legal ad was placed in a 
newspaper of local circulation to advertise the nature of the request in advance of the December 
14, 2022 Planning Board meeting, and notices were sent out to all property owners and tenants 
within 300 ft. of the property. In addition, a second round of notices was sent out to advertise the 
public hearing at the City Commission meeting on February 13, 2023. 
 
SUMMARY: 
On January 9, 2023, the City Commission moved to set a public hearing date of February 13, 2023 
to consider the Special Land Use Permit Amendment, Final Site Plan and Design Review application 
for 300 S. Old Woodward – RH. The Planning Division requests that the City Commission consider 
postponing the public hearing to February 27, 2023 per the request of the applicant.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Please see attached the following documents: 
 

• Special Land Use Permit Resolution 
• Postponement Request Letter from Saroki Architecture 
• Current Site/Design Plans 
• Planning Board Report 

 
 
 

7A

https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/JANUARY%202023%20BZA%20COMPLETE.pdf


 
 
 
 
 

3 
 

 
SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion to postpone the public hearing and consideration of the Special Land Use Permit 
Amendment, Final Site Plan and Design Review application for 300 S. Old Woodward – RH – to 
February 27, 2023. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7A



 
 
 
 
 

4 
 

RH 
300 S. Old Woodward 

Special Land Use Permit Amendment 2023 
 

WHEREAS, A Special Land Use Permit Amendment, Final Site Plan & Design Review 
application was filed in November 2022 for approval of a new 4-story commercial building with 
a revised design and minor site changes to a property that was approved for an Economic 
Development Liquor License to be used for alcoholic beverage sales for on premise consumption 
at 300 S. Old Woodward; 

 
WHEREAS, The land for which the Special Land Use Permit Amendment is sought is 

located on the west side of S. Old Woodward, between Brown and Daines; 
 

WHEREAS, The land is zoned B2 and D4, which permits alcoholic beverage sales for 
on premise consumption with a Special Land Use Permit; 

 
WHEREAS, Article 7, section 7.34 of Chapter 126, Zoning requires a Special Land Use 

Permit to be considered and acted upon by the Birmingham City Commission, after receiving 
recommendations on the site plan and design from the Planning Board for the proposed Special 
Land Use; 

 
WHEREAS, The Planning Board on April 28, 2021 accepted the Community Impact Study 

and approved the Preliminary Site Plan Review for a new 4-story commercial building; 
 
WHEREAS, The City Commission on July 12, 2021 approved a rezoning from D3 to D4 

conditional upon the building being done pursuant to the site plan, as voluntarily given by the 
applicant, pursuant to a letter dated and accepted July 12, 2021 by attorney Richard Rattner; 

 
WHEREAS, The City Commission on August 9, 2021 approved an application for a Special 

Land Use Permit Amendment, Final Site Plan and Design Review; 
 

WHEREAS, The Planning Board on December 14, 2022 reviewed the application for a Special 
Land Use Permit Amendment,  Final Site Plan and Design Review and recommended approval to 
the City Commission with the following conditions: 

 
1. The Planning Board approves the projection of the canopy into the right-of-way; 
2. The applicant must still adhere to the principles accepted by the Planning Board in 

the Community Impact Study review and provide ample space for the separation 
of recycling in the trash area; 

3. The Planning Board approves the use of arborvitae and masonry screen wall with 
metal gates to screen the proposed electrical equipment; 

4. The applicant must submit revised plans demonstrating 70% clear glazing on the 
storefront facades or obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals; 

5. The Planning Board approves the use of non-cutoff light fixtures; 
6. The applicant must submit detailed and dimensioned sign plans that meet the 

requirements of the Sign Ordinance, or obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning 
Appeals; and 

7. The applicant must comply with the requests of all City Departments. 
 

WHEREAS, The Board of Zoning Appeals on January 10, 2023 reviewed the plans for a 

7A



 
 
 
 
 

5 
 

revised building design and minor site changes and granted the following variances: 
 

1. Dimensional variance of 48 sq. ft. of clear glazing on the Daines storefront; 
2. Dimensional variance of 112 sq. ft. of clear glazing on the S. Old Woodward 

storefront; 
3. Dimensional variance of 76 sq. ft. of clear glazing on the Brown storefront; 
4. Dimensional variance of 66 sq. ft. of illuminated building identification signage. 

 
WHEREAS, The applicant has complied with the conditions of approval required by the 

Planning Board and all City Departments; 
 

WHEREAS, The Birmingham City Commission has conducted a public hearing on February 
27, 2023, and has reviewed RH’s Special Land Use Permit Amendment application and the 
standards for such review as set forth in Article 7, section 7.36 of Chapter 126, Zoning, of the City 
Code; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The Birmingham City Commission finds the 

standards imposed under the City Code have been met, subject to the conditions below, and that 
RH’s application for a Special Land Use Permit Amendment, Final Site Plan and Design Review at 
300 S. Old Woodward is hereby approved; 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Commission determines that to ensure 

continued compliance with Code standards and to protect public health, safety, and welfare, this 
Special Land Use Permit Amendment is granted subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. RH shall abide by all provisions of the Birmingham City Code; 
2. RH shall comply with the conditions of approval assigned by the Planning 

Board and City Commission; and 
3. The Special Land Use Permit may be canceled by the City Commission 

upon finding that the continued use is not in the public interest. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That failure to comply with any of the above conditions shall 

result in termination of the Special Land Use Permit. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Except as herein specifically provided, RH and its heirs, 

successors, and assigns shall be bound by all ordinances of the City of Birmingham in effect 
at the time of the issuance of this permit, and as they may be subsequently amended. Failure of 
RH to comply with all the ordinances of the City may result in the Commission revoking this 
Special Land Use Permit. 

 
BE FURTHER RESOLVED that RH is recommended for a new 4-story commercial building 

with a revised design and minor site changes with alcoholic beverage sales for on premise 
consumption, above all others, subject to final inspection. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7A



 
 
 
 
 

6 
 

I, Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk of the City of Birmingham, Michigan, do hereby certify that 
the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the resolution adopted by the Birmingham City 
Commission at its regular meeting held on February 27, 2023. 
 
 
 

 

Alexandria Bingham 
City Clerk  

 
 

7A



 

 

 
 
 
February 6, 2023 
 
 
 
Nicholas Dupuis 
City of Birmingham Planner 
151 Martin Street 
Birmingham, MI 48009 
 
 
Re: RH – Special Land Use Approval        
 
 
Hello Nick, 
 
RH has requested that the City Commission meeting for the revised RH, Special 
Land Use Approval be moved back 2 weeks, so they are on the February 27, 2023 
agenda (instead of the February 13th  meeting).  They are still making some 
adjustments to the 4th floor café layout, and they just want to finalize it before it 
is reviewed by the City Commission.  We trust this request is acceptable and we 
will be prepared to present the plan on February 27th.    
 
Thank you, Nick.  
 
 

 
Victor Saroki,  FAIA 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7A



7A



7A



7A



7A



7A



7A



7A



7A



7A



7A



7A



7A



57’

59’-6”

52’-9”

65’-6”
61’-10”

69’

35’

43’
47’

51’

70’

80’

7A



7A



7A



7A



7A



B  R  O  W  N    S  T  R  E  E  T

D  A  I  N  E  S    S  T  R  E  E  T

O  L  D    W
  O  O  D  W

  A  R  D    A  V  E  N  U  E
A

S S

SS

C

C

AC

C

B

S

D
E

G
J

S

S

S

J

J

J

S

S

E
D

G
J

G

J

J

J
D

i

i

i

H

H
J

D

E

D

J

E
J F

J

D
J

C

E

K

K

K

KK

L

L

N

M

L2 A

L2
B

L2
F

S

S

S

D

J

L2 K

S

VALET

O

L2L

RETAIL RETAIL

OFFICE

J

J

J

J

J

J

RETAIL

E

D

E

D
B

B

L2C

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

RH / Mixed-Use
300 S Old Woodward
Birmingham, MI 48009

L1
SITE LAYOUT-Ground Level

MICHAEL J. DUL

LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECTURE

& ASSOCIATES, INC

212 DAINES STREET

BIRMINGHAM

MICHIGAN 48009

P   248 644 3410

F   248 644 0819

TS

R

ETA

AL

ED

F

D

R

C
C

E
T

.
I

N

M
IG

IC H

A

T

CS

A

PEA

O

N

E
S

G
I

RE
T

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

781
NO.

MICHAEL J. DUL

RH DETROIT
300 S Old Woodward
Birmingham, MI 48009

Scale: 1/8"=1'-0"Plan
SITE LAYOUT-Ground Level

NORTHL1
A Know what's below.

before you dig.Call

R

11-18-2022 Final Site Plan Submittal

7A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESTCODE

AutoCAD SHX Text
<

AutoCAD SHX Text
<

AutoCAD SHX Text
<

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMIT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMIT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
x2

AutoCAD SHX Text
x4

AutoCAD SHX Text
x2

AutoCAD SHX Text
x2

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TRAFFIC POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIANT HEAT IN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIANT HEAT IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBSLAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBSLAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASEMENT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELOW (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETECTABLE WARNING PLATE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER CITY SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETECTABLE WARNING PLATE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER CITY SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING METER (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETECTABLE WARNING PLATES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER CITY SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
p.m.

AutoCAD SHX Text
p.m.

AutoCAD SHX Text
p.m.

AutoCAD SHX Text
p.m.

AutoCAD SHX Text
p.m.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(4) HAND RAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANITE STEP WITH INDICATION MARKERS AT NOSE. TRENCH DRAIN AT BOTTOM OF RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT POLE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER TO PETITION THIS LIGHT POLE BE REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING ENTRY CANOPY TO PROVIDE REQUIRED DOWN LIGHTING IN LIEU OF LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE PARKING METER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE PARKING METER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALET PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
x2

AutoCAD SHX Text
p.m.

AutoCAD SHX Text
p.m.

AutoCAD SHX Text
p.m.

AutoCAD SHX Text
p.m.

AutoCAD SHX Text
p.m.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" NDS CB-SEE CIVIL DWGS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIMARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESTCODE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESTCODE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESTCODE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESTCODE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INGRADE LIGHTS (TYP.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INGRADE LIGHTS (TYP.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
430 N. OLD WOODWARD  30 N. OLD WOODWARD  0 N. OLD WOODWARD   N. OLD WOODWARD  N. OLD WOODWARD  . OLD WOODWARD   OLD WOODWARD  OLD WOODWARD  LD WOODWARD  D WOODWARD   WOODWARD  WOODWARD  OODWARD  ODWARD  DWARD  WARD  ARD  RD  D  BIRMINGHAM, MI  IRMINGHAM, MI  RMINGHAM, MI  MINGHAM, MI  INGHAM, MI  NGHAM, MI  GHAM, MI  HAM, MI  AM, MI  M, MI  , MI   MI  MI  I  480098009009099

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Issued For:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project:

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.  248.258.5707 F.  248.258.5515248.258.5515

AutoCAD SHX Text
SarokiArchitecture.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet No.:



RH DETROIT
300 S Old Woodward
Birmingham, MI 48009

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

RH / Mixed-Use
300 S Old Woodward
Birmingham, MI 48009

L2
SITE DETAILS &

MICHAEL J. DUL

LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECTURE

& ASSOCIATES, INC

212 DAINES STREET

BIRMINGHAM

MICHIGAN 48009

P   248 644 3410

F   248 644 0819

TS

R

ETA

AL

ED

F

D

R

C
C

E
T

H
I

N

M
IG

IC H

A

T

CS

A

PEA

O

N

E
S

G
I

RE
T

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

781
NO.

MICHAEL J. DUL

SPECIFICATIONS
Know what's below.

before you dig.Call

R

MATERIAL SCHEDULE

MASONRY CONSTRUCTION:  

B

CONCRETE:

F

S

SITE AMENITIES: 

S

.

A

C

D

E

G

H

i

J

L

M

N

GENERAL NOTES
GENERAL CONDITIONS:

CONCRETE CONSTRUCTION:

MASONRY CONSTRUCTION:

Scale: 1"=1'-0"Section
PEDESTRIAN WALK/SLEEVE DETAIL

L2
A

Scale: 1"=1'-0"Section
BLUESTONE ENTRANCE DETAILS

L2
B

Scale: 1"=1'-0"Section
GRANITE CURB DETAIL

L2
C

Scale: 3"=1'-0"Section
CONTROL JOINT DETAIL

L2
D

Scale: 3"=1'-0"Section
EXPANSION JOINT DETAIL

L2
E

Scale: 1"=1'-0"Section
PLANTER CURB DETAIL

L2
F

CUSTOM BENCH LETTERING

DUMOR BENCH
Details No Scale

1
2
3

CITY STD. 63-947-32 W/0-3947-30-BT-1

Details No Scale

DUMOR TRASH RECPTACLE

CITY STD. 19-50-Q30 

L2
G

L2
H

Details No ScaleL2
i TRASH BONNET TOP

Details No ScaleL2
J

Scale: 1"=1'-0"Section
NORTH (BROWN ST.) PLAZA  DETAIL

L2
K

O

Scale: 3/4"=1'-0"Section
SOUTH (PURDY ST.) PLAZA  DETAIL

L2
L

11-18-2022 Final Site Plan Submittal

7A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W2.9xW2.9 6x6 W.W.M. 2" EMBEDMNENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEDIUM BROOM FINISH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 4" THICK REIN. CONCRETE FLATWORK

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 4" COMPACTED M.D.O.T. CLASS II SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
12V LIGHTING, BURY A MIN. 12" BELOW GRADE,

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" SCH. 40 PVC SLEEVE FOR IRRIGATION/

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTEND A MIN. 12" BEYOND PAVING EDGES

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAP ENDS, AND STAKE LOCATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAKE (BOTH ENDS) SLEEVE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED OR UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED TO 95%%% OF MAX. DRY WEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER ASTM D-1557

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 6" COMPACTED 21AA AGGREGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED TO 95%%% OF MAX. DRY WEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED OR UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER ASTM D-1557

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED TO 95%%% OF MAX. DRY WEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER ASTM D-1557

AutoCAD SHX Text
W2.9xW2.9 6x6 W.W.M. 2" EMBEDMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 4" THICK REIN. CONCRETE BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 1" LATEX MODIFIED MORTAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" THICK x 30" SQUARE COLD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPRING GRANITE-THERMAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH, COLOR: SIERRA WHITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REBAR CHAIRS TO SUSPEND MESH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR RADIANT HEAT (BY OTHERS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" DEEP PLANTING MIXTURE-

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLAT, 60 PSI MINIMUM, EXTRUDED POLYSTYRENE INSULATION WITH DRAINAGE CHANNELS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 1" LATEX MODIFIED MORTAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) CONT. NO. 4 REBAR-MIN. 2\" EMBEDMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" x 12" CONCRETE FLOATING FOOTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" THICK x 8" WIDE x 36" LONG

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLD SPRING GRANITE CURB-THERMAL FINISH,  

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIERRA WHITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONT. CONCRETE RETAINING EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" DEEP PLANTING MIXTURE-

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" DEEP SAWCUT SCORE JOINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHT. L1: CONSTRUCTION SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROL JOINTS SHALL BE SPACED AS SHOWN ON PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MACHINE CUT ALL JOINTS, HAND SAW MILL WILL NOT BE PERMITTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAWCUT CONTROL JOINTS AT 2" DEPTH EVERY 200 S.F. MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED OR UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED TO 95%%% OF MAX. DRY WEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER ASTM D-1557

AutoCAD SHX Text
W2.9xW2.9 6x6 W.W.M. 2" EMBEDMNENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPOSED AGGREGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 4" THICK REIN. CONCRETE FLATWORK

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 4" COMPACTED M.D.O.T. CLASS II SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPOSED AGGREGATE CURB-COMPLETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" HIGH x 6" WIDE x 18" DEEP REINFORCED

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH CONT. 1" x 1" PERIMETER REVEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) NO. 4 CONT. REBAR-MIN 2\" EMBEDMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" DEEP PLANTING MIXTURE-

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
\" PREMOULDED EXPANSION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOINT WITH SNAP CAP, CAULK

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 4" THICK REIN. CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLATWORK-MEDIUM BROOM FINISH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 6" COMPACTED 21AA AGGREGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED TO 95%%% OF MAX. DRY WEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED OR UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER ASTM D-1557

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED TO 95%%% OF MAX. DRY WEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER ASTM D-1557

AutoCAD SHX Text
W2.9xW2.9 6x6 W.W.M. 2" EMBEDMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 4" THICK REIN. CONCRETE BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 1" LATEX MODIFIED MORTAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" THICK x 30" SQUARE COLD SPRING

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANITE FLATWORK-THERMAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH, COLOR: SIERRA WHITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REBAR CHAIRS TO SUSPEND MESH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR RADIANT HEAT (BY OTHERS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CMU BLOCK-FILL CORES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOLID WITH CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" RIGID FOAM INSULATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" THICK x 18" WIDE x 30" LONG COLD SPRING

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANITE TREADS-THERMAL FINISH (INCL. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPOSED EDGES), COLOR: SIERRA WHITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INCLUDE (2) ANTI-SLIP GROOVES IN NOSE OF TREAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" THICK x 30" LONG x 3}" HIGH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLD SPRING GRANITE RISER-

AutoCAD SHX Text
THERMAL FINISH, COLOR: SIERRA WHITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACO KS-100 STAINLESS STEEL EDGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAIL TRENCH DRAIN-INCLUDE TYPE 447D 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LONGITUDINAL STAINLESS STEEL GRATE (ADA)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 6" THICK REIN. CONCRETE BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAULK JOINTS (2) BOTH SIDE OF DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAULKED EXPANSION JOINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
W2.9xW2.9 6x6 W.W.M. 2" EMBEDMNENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEDIUM BROOM FINISH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 4" THICK REIN. CONCRETE FLATWORK

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 4" COMPACTED M.D.O.T. CLASS II SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE TRENCH FOOTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 42" DEEP x 16[" WIDE REIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO. 4 VERTICAL REBAR (16" O.C.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(4) NO. 4 CONT. HORZ. REBAR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 2\" EMBEDMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: ENTIRE NORTH (BROWN ST.) PLAZA

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLATWORK AND STAIRCASE TREAD SHALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAVE RADIANT HEAT SYSTEM EMBEDDED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN CONCRETE-INCLUDE UNDER TRENCH DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFER TO CIVIL ENGINEERING DRAWING FOR  

AutoCAD SHX Text
INVERT ELEVATIONS AND TRENCH DRAIN PART #'s

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH (COLOR & SHEEN) TO MATCH WINDOWS/AWNINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORE INTO BLUESTONE-GROUT WITH NON-EXPANDING GROUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL |" THICK x 4" SQ. S.S. PLATES-ATTACH TO CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH GALV. LAG BOLTS AND LAG SHIELDS (MIN. 4 PER PLATE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1\" DIA. STEEL TUBULAR HANDRAIL (4 TOTAL)-POWDERCOAT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" WIDE X FULL DEPTH EXPANSION PAPER INSTALL 1/2" BELOW TOP OF CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" WIDE PREFABRICATED SNAP CAP REMOVE PRIOR TO APPLYING SEALANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILICONE SEALANT (GRAY) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAULK: DOW CORNING 790 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ABUTS A STRUCTURE, SPACED A MAX. 400 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPANSION JOINTS SHALL BE INSTALLED WHERE CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
W2.9xW2.9 6x6 W.W.M. 2" EMBEDMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 4" THICK REIN. CONCRETE BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 1" LATEX MODIFIED MORTAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" THICK x 30" SQUARE COLD

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANITE FLATWORK-THERMAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH, COLOR: SIERRA WHITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REBAR CHAIRS TO SUSPEND MESH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR RADIANT HEAT (BY OTHERS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPANSION JOINT-COMPLETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH SANDED CAULK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLAT, 60 PSI MINIMUM, EXTRUDED POLYSTYRENE INSULATION WITH DRAINAGE CHANNELS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 6" COMPACTED 21AA AGGREGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED TO 95%%% OF MAX. DRY WEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED OR UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER ASTM D-1557

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED TO 95%%% OF MAX. DRY WEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER ASTM D-1557

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CITY SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPANSION JOINT-COMPLETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH SANDED CAULK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF ASSEMBLY-SEE ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) 4" SCH. 40 P.V.C. SLEEVES

AutoCAD SHX Text
430 N. OLD WOODWARD  30 N. OLD WOODWARD  0 N. OLD WOODWARD   N. OLD WOODWARD  N. OLD WOODWARD  . OLD WOODWARD   OLD WOODWARD  OLD WOODWARD  LD WOODWARD  D WOODWARD   WOODWARD  WOODWARD  OODWARD  ODWARD  DWARD  WARD  ARD  RD  D  BIRMINGHAM, MI  IRMINGHAM, MI  RMINGHAM, MI  MINGHAM, MI  INGHAM, MI  NGHAM, MI  GHAM, MI  HAM, MI  AM, MI  M, MI  , MI   MI  MI  I  480098009009099

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Issued For:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project:

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.  248.258.5707 F.  248.258.5515248.258.5515

AutoCAD SHX Text
SarokiArchitecture.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet No.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL TAKE-OFFS AND NO ADJUSTMENTS WILL BE MADE TO THE CONTRACT PRICE BASED ON ACTUAL QUANTITIES USED (SUBJECT TO CHANGES APPROVED BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND UNIT PRICE SCHEDULE).

AutoCAD SHX Text
SYM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
QTY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ITEM/DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATTERN

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO BOTTOM OF EACH STONE,  3/8" WIDE GROUT JOINTS ACID WASH UPON COMPLETION.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
                                 ALL BASE CONCRETE FLATWORK SHALL BE MEDIUM BROOM FINISHED, MIN. 4,000 P.S.I.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
AFTER 28 DAYS, WITH 5-8%%% AIR ENTRANMENT, REINFORCED WITH W2.9 X W2.9 (6 X 6) W.W.M. ALL MASONRY FLATWORK AND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURBS SHALL BE SET ON A MIN. 1" LATEX MODIFIED MORTAR SETTING BED, APPLY LATICRETE 254 PLATINUM THIN-SET  

AutoCAD SHX Text
88 L.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" THICK x 8" WIDE x 36" LONG COLD SPRING GRANITE SOLID

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE CURB SET ON 1" MORTAR SETTING BED OVER MIN. 12" WIDE x 12" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RUNNING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIERRA WHITTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
88 L.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
              ALL FLATWORK SHALL BE A MIN. 4,000 P.S.I. AFTER 28 DAYS, WITH 5-8% AIR ENTRANMENT, REINFORCED WITH 6"x6" W2.9 X W2.9 W.W.F. INSTALLED ON COMPACTED SAND OR AGGREGATE (SEE DETAILS). POWERWASH AND SEAL ALL EXPOSED AGGREGATE WITH EUCLID CHEMICAL CO. SUPER DIAMOND CLEAR 350 SEALER. SAWCUT CONTROL JOINTS PER PLAN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
215 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE APPROACH: MIN. 8" THICK MDOT P1 REIN. CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLATWORK,  SAWCUT CONTROL JOINTS, MEDIUM BROOM FINISH, ON 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A MIN. 6" COMPACTED 21AA LIMESTONE AGGREGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
160 L.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" SCH. 40 P.V.C. SLEEVES (4)-BURY A MIN. 12", EXTEND A MIN. 12" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEYOND PAVING EDGES, CAP ENDS, STAKE LOCATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
                   INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
285 L.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" SCH. 40 P.V.C. SLEEVES (13)-BURY A MIN. 12", EXTEND A MIN. 12" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEYOND PAVING EDGES, CAP ENDS, STAKE LOCATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
7 EA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREETLIGHT STANDARD: HADCO S7002A: LUMINARIE W/PHOTCELL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HADCO SP7002: 8'-8" HIGH POLE W/OUTLETS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW INDUSTRIAL &

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEEP REIN. CONCRETE FLOATING FOOTING-COMPLETE WITH CONT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
910 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" THICK x 30" SQUARE COLD SPRING GRANITE FLATWORK

AutoCAD SHX Text
|" WD. GROUT JOINTS, SET ON 1" MORTAR SETTING BED OVER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STCKED

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIERRA WHITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
910 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 4" THICK REIN. CONCRETE BASE ON MIN. 6" COMPACTED 21AA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THERMAL FINISH

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMESTONE AGGREGATE.  INCLUDE 2" RIGID FOAM INSULATION AND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
REBAR CHAIRS TO SUSPEND W.W.M. & CONNECT RADIANT HEAT TUBES

AutoCAD SHX Text
THERMAL FINISH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE RETAINING EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
214 L.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
\" WIDE PREMOULDED EXPANSION JOINT COMPLETE WITH SNAP 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAP AND DOW CORNING 790 CAULK (SANDED TO MATCH MORTAR) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
4,653 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.O.W. WALKS & SITE WALKS: MIN. 4" THICK  REIN. CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLATWORK,  AVE. 30" SAWCUT CONTROL JOINTS, MEDIUM BROOM 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH, ON A MIN. 4" M.D.O.T. CLASS II SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,222 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.O.W. WALKS & SITE WALKS: MIN. 4" THICK  REIN. CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLATWORK,  SAWCUT CONTROL JOINTS PER PLAN, MEDIUM BROOM 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH, ON A MIN. 4" M.D.O.T. CLASS II SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,681 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 4" THICK REIN. EXPOSED AGGREGATE CONCRETE FLATWORK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CITY STANDARD SPECIFICATION)-SAWCUT CONTROL JOINTS PER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN ON MIN. 4" COMPACTED M.D.O.T. CLASS II SAND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
640 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 4" THICK REIN. EXPOSED AGGREGATE CONCRETE FLATWORK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CITY STANDARD SPECIFICATION)-AVE. 32" SQ. SAWCUT CONTROL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOINTS PER PLAN ON MIN. 4 "COMPACTED M.D.O.T. CLASS II SAND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
150 L.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" WIDE x 6" HIGH (1" REVEAL) x18" DEEP REIN. EXPOSED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGGREGATE CONCRETE CURB (CITY STANDARD SPECIFICATION)-

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAWCUT CONTROL JOINTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,826 L.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
\" WIDE PREMOULDED EXPANSION JOINT COMPLETE WITH SNAP 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAP AND DOW CORNING 790 CAULK  

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPLETE WITH MONARCH HANGING PLANTER (1 PER POLE)- 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INCLUDE CITY STANDARD MOUNTING BRACKET & IRRIGATION PIPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 EA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BIKE RACK STANDARD: CYCLESAFE MODEL U/2 SURFACE MOUNT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH S.S. HARDWARE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 EA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH STANDARD: DUMOR, INC. 19-50-Q30 WITH CUSTOM 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LETTERING-SURFACE MOUNT WITH S.S. HARDWARE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARINE COATING

AutoCAD SHX Text
#SW4072

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN W. HUNTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREEN DUPONT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BIRMINGHAM 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREEN (CUSTOM)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHROMAONE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 EA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRASH RECEPTACLE STANDARD: DUMOR, INC. 0-3947-30-01: STL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECEPTACLE BODY, 0-3947-30-BT-1: 30 GAl. BONNET TOP WITH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLD FLAT COVER, 49-32 32 PL LINER W/HANDLE, BLACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
BIRMINGHAM 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREEN (CUSTOM)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.)  CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS AND REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND GENERAL CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO SUBMITTING BID PROPOSAL OR BEGINNING ANY WORK.  2.)  EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE SHOWN OR STIPULATED, THIS CONTRACT SHALL INCLUDE THE DEMOLITION OF EVERY DESCRIPTION NECESSARY TO SUCCESSFULLY COMPLETE THE WORK UNDER THIS CONTRACT TO THE LINES AND GRADES SHOWN ON THESE PLANS WITHIN THE LIMIT OF WORK.  3.)  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL LEGALLY DISPOSE OF ALL ITEMS TO BE REMOVED THAT ARE NOT TURNED OVER TO THE OWNER OR STOCKPILED FOR REUSE.  4.)  THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DAMAGE INSIDE AND OUTSIDE LIMIT OF WORK DUE TO CONTRACT OPERATIONS.  5.)  DO NOT DISTURB EXISTING UTILITIES THAT SERVE AREAS SURROUNDING LIMIT OF WORK.  IF SUCH UTILITIES ARE ENCOUNTERED NOTIFY PROPER UTILITY COMPANY BEFORE PROCEEDING.  6.)  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT THE PROPER LOCAL AUTHORITIES TO CONFIRM THE LOCATION OF EXISTING UTILITIES BEFORE COMMENCING WORK.  ANY DAMAGE DUE TO FAILURE TO CONTACT  THE PROPER AUTHORITIES SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR.  7.)  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL THOROUGHLY REVIEW ALL THE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR  SPECIFIC COORDINATION REQUIREMENTS PRIOR TO COMMENCING CONSTRUCTION.  8.) CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE UNIT PRICING FOR ALL AREAS OF WORK.  9.) PLANS ARE NOT VALID WITH APPROVAL AND PERMIT BY THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR SECURING ALL REQUIRED PERMITS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SCHEDULE ALL REQUIRED INSPECTIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.) THE CONTRACTOR SHALL LAYOUT PROPOSED EXPANSION  FOR THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT'S OR CONSTRUCTION MANAGER'S APPROVAL PRIOR TO INSTALLATION. 2.) THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OR CONSTRUCTION MANAGER  SHALL APPROVE FINAL CONTRACTOR FORM WORK IN THE FIELD PRIOR TO POURING CONCRETE.  3.) ALL EXPANSION JOINTS SHALL BE PREMOULDED  " WIDE AND INCLUDE EXPANSION JOINT MATERIAL.  INCLUDE PREFABRICATED 12" WIDE AND INCLUDE EXPANSION JOINT MATERIAL.  INCLUDE PREFABRICATED SNAP CAP. PROVIDE EXPANSION JOINTS EVERY 400 S.F. MAX. 4.) EXPANSION JOINT MATERIAL:  RESILIENT, NON-EXTRUDING TYPE PREMOULDED BITUMINOUS IMPREGNATED FIBERBOARD.  5.) ALL EXPANSION JOINTS SHALL BE CAULKED WITH DOW CORNING 790 SILICONE SEALANT (COLOR: LIGHT GRAY).  CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE AND DISPOSE SNAP CAP PRIOR TO CAULKING AND PROTECT/BARRACADE ALL CAULK JOINTS FROM TRAFFIC DURING CURING TIME. 6.) MEDIUM BROOM FINISH ALL BROOM-FINSH CONCRETE-PULL BROOM ACROSS FRESHLY FLOATED CONCRETE TO PRODUCE MEDIUM TEXTURE IN STRAIGHT LINES PERPENDICULAR TO MAIN LINE OF TRAFFIC.  DO NOT DAMPEN BROOMS.  BR00MING DIRECTION SHOULD BE MAINTAINED IN THE SAME DIRECTION FOR EACH CONCRETE POUR.  7.) ALL CONTROL JOINTS SHALL BE MACHINE SAWCUT MIN. 1" DEEP, 2" DEEP EVERY 100 S.F. (NO HAND SAW PERMITTED).  CONTROL JOINT LAYOUT SHALL BE EQUAL FLAGS, DIVIDE LENGTH EQUALLY BETWEEN EXPANSION JOINTS-SEE DRAWINGS FOR LAYOUT. 8.) CONCRETE STRENGTH FOR ALL PROPOSED CONCRETE FLATWORK  SHALL BE MIN. 4,000 PSI AND MIN. 3,500 P.S.I. CONCRETE FOR ALL BROOM FINISH CONCRETE AT 28 DAYS,  WITH A +/-6% AIR ENTRANMENT MIX DESIGN SHALL NOT HAVE LESS THAN 6.25 SACKS OF CEMENT PER CUBIC YARD. 9.) ALL PROPOSED SLEEVES SHALL BE SCHEDULE 40 PVC, EXTEND A MIN. 12" BEYOND PROPOSED PAVING EDGES, BURY A MIN. 12" BELOW PROPOSED FINISH GRADE, CAP ENDS, AND STAKE LOCATIONS (BOTH ENDS).  CONTRACTOR SHALL SUPPLY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT WITH AN AS-BUILT DRAWING ILLUSTRATING LOCATION OF ALL SLEEVES. 10.) ALL CONCRETE FLATWORK SHALL BE REINFORCED AS SPECIFIED, MIN. 2" EMBEDMENT. 11.) THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL REQUIRED EARTHWORK AND EXCAVATIONS TO PERFORM SCHEDULED WORK.  ALL EXCAVATED MATERIALS SHALL BE GRADED IN PLACE (ON-SITE) IN PARK AS DIRECTED BY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT, INCLUDED IN THE SUBMITTED BID PROPOSAL. 12.) THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL ALL PROPOSED WORK ON COMPACTED OR UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE. 13.) THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FORM ALL PROPOSED CONCRETE BASE WORK AND FOOTINGS TO MINIMIZE OVERPOURS.  ALL FORMS SHALL BE REMOVED AND LEGALLY DISPOSED OFF-SITE. 14.) THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT AND COVER  ALL STORM CATCH BASINS WITH 8 OZ. NON-WOVEN GEOTEXTILE FILTER FABRIC .) THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT AND COVER  ALL STORM CATCH BASINS WITH 8 OZ. NON-WOVEN GEOTEXTILE FILTER FABRIC PRIOR TO WASHING EXPOSED AGGREGATE CONCRETE TO INSURE CEMENT CREAM AND SAND DO NOT ENTER BASINS. 15.) ALL EXPOSED AGGREGATE CONCRETE SHALL BE POWERWASHED AFTER INITIAL CURE TO REMOVE ANY 'HAZE' AND SEAL WITH EUCLID CHEMICAL CO. 'SUPER DIAMOND CLEAR 350' SEALER PER MANUFACTURERS SPECIFICATION.  CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT/BARRACADE ALL SEALED AREAS FROM PEDESTRIAN AND VEHICULAR TRAFFIC DURING CURE TIME. 16.) CONCRETE MIX DESIGNS  A.) BROOM FINISH CONCRETE: SAND: 2NS SAND, ASTM C-33 1,350 LBS COURSE AGGREGATE: 6AA LIMESTONE PRESQUE ISLE ASTM C-33 1,680 LBS CEMENT: TYPE 1, ASTM C150 588 LBS WATER: CITY TAP WATER 31.5 GALS. ADMIXTURE: ASTM C260, DAREX A.E.A. BY W.R. GRACE CO. 11.3OZ./CU. YD. B.) EXPOSED AGGREGATE CONCRETE: SAND: 2NS SAND, ASTM C-33 1,080 LBS COURSE AGGREGATE: 17A ASTM C-33 1,980 LBS CEMENT: TYPE 1, ASTM C150 588 LBS WATER: CITY TAP WATER 31.5 GALS. ADMIXTURE: ASTM C260, DAREX A.E.A. BY W.R. GRACE CO. 11.3OZ./CU. YD. *PEBBLE, WASHED, SUBMIT SAMPLE TO LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT FOR APPROVAL 17.) FOR ALL EXPOSED AGGREGATE CONCRETE SURFACE SHALL BE EXPOSED BY USE OF SURFACE RETARDANT 'PRECO EAC-S" OR APPROVED EQUAL. CONCRETE SHALL BE PLACED, LEVELED AND FLOATED IN A NORMAL FASHION (SEEDING WILL NOT BE PERMITTED). IMMEDIATELY AFTER THE SLAB HAS BEEN SCREENED AND DARBLED, THE AGGREGATE SHALL BE WASHED IN A UNIFORM MANNER UNTIL ALL AGGREGATE IS LEFT JUST ABOVE THE SURFACE, LEAVING NO HOLES OR OPENINGS IN THE SURFACE.  THE SURFACE SHALL THEN BE BRUSHED AND WASHED UNTIL ALL AGGREGATE IS EXPOSED AND FREE OF CEMENT FILM. AFTER INITIAL CURING APPLY SPECIFIED SEALER.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.) ALL PROPOSED AND FINISHED MASONRY ELEMENTS SHALL BE THOROUGHLY WASHED WITH AN ACID BASED CLEANER .) ALL PROPOSED AND FINISHED MASONRY ELEMENTS SHALL BE THOROUGHLY WASHED WITH AN ACID BASED CLEANER (SURE-CLEAN 600) PER MANUFACTURERS SPECIFICATIONS.  NO ACID BASED CHEMICALS SHOULD CONTACT INDIANA LIMESTONE. 2.) THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL REQUIRED EARTHWORK AND EXCAVATIONS TO PERFORM SCHEDULED WORK.  ALL EXCAVATED MATERIALS SHALL BE LEGALLY DISPOSED (OFF-SITE) INCLUDED IN THE SUBMITTED PROPOSAL & UNIT PRICES. 3.) THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL ALL PROPOSED WORK ON COMPACTED OR UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE. 4.) ALL GRANITE FLATWORK JOINTS SHALL BE ALIGNED (STACKRED BOND PATTERN). CONTRACTOR SHALL SQUARE EACH PIECE OF STONE PRIOR TO INSTALLATION TO MAINTAIN A CONSISTENT AND MAX. JOINT WIDTH OF |" WIDE. 5.) ALL PROPOSED STONE FLATWORK SHALL BE SET ON A MIN. 1" THICK LATEX MODIFIED MORTAR SETTING BED, APPLY 'LATICRETE 254 PLATINUM' THIN-SET TO THE BOTTOM OF EACH STONE AND TO THE CONCRETE BASE.   

AutoCAD SHX Text
0-3947-30-01: 30 GAL. STL. RECEPTACLE BODY

AutoCAD SHX Text
0-3947-30-BT-1: 30 GAL. BONNET TOP W/OLD FLAT COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
49-32 32 PL LINER W/HANDLE, BLACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.) ALL STEEL MEMBERS COATED WITH ZINC RICH EPOXY

AutoCAD SHX Text
   THEN FINISHED WITH POLYESTER POWDER COATING: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
   CUSTOM 'BIRMINGHAM GREEN'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.) \" x 3[" EXPANSION ANCHOR BOLTS PROVIDED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.) ALL STEEL MEMBERS COATED WITH ZINC RICH EPOXY THEN FINISHED WITH POLYESTER POWDER COATING: CUSTOM 'BIRMINGHAM GREEN'  2.) \" x 3[" EXPANSION ANCHOR BOLTS PROVIDED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
37 L.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" THICK x 18" WIDE x 30" LONG COLD SPRING GRANITE TREADS WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) ANTI-SLIP GROOVES x 3}" HIGH COLD SPRING GRANITE RISERS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STACKED

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIERRA WHITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON MIN. 1" MORTAR SETTING BED-ALIGN RISER/TREAD JOINTS (|" WD.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
THERMAL FINISH

AutoCAD SHX Text
INCL. EXPOSED EDGES



7A



7A



RH DETROIT
300 S Old Woodward
Birmingham, MI 48009

No ScaleSection
GROUNDCOVER/PERENNIAL PLANTING

SHRUB PLANTING
Section No Scale

No ScaleSection
DECIDUOUS TREE PLANTING

Section
HEDGE PLANTING

No Scale

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

RH / Mixed-Use
300 S Old Woodward
Birmingham, MI 48009

L5
LANDSCAPE DETAILS &

MICHAEL J. DUL

LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECTURE

& ASSOCIATES, INC

212 DAINES STREET

BIRMINGHAM

MICHIGAN 48009

P   248 644 3410

F   248 644 0819

TS

R

ETA

AL

ED

F

D

R

C
C

E
T

H
I

N

M
IG

IC H

A

T

CS

A

PEA

O

N

E
S

G
I

RE
T

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

781
NO.

MICHAEL J. DUL

SPECIFICATIONS

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

Root CommentsSizeCommon NameQty. Botanical Name
PLANT & MATERIAL SCHEDULE
Sym.

Shrubs 

Perennials/Groundcovers

Materials

Deciduous Trees

LANDSCAPE DEVELOPMENT NOTES

GROUND LEVEL-PHASE I

4TH LEVEL
Deciduous Trees (All Pleached Trees shall be contract grown William F Hammell Nurseries 610-942-8733. All Pleached Trees tagged by RH) 

Shrubs 

Materials

No ScalePlan
GROUNDCOVER/PERENNIAL PLANTING

Scale 1"=1'-0"Section
DECOMPOSED GRANITE DETAIL

Deciduous Trees
GROUND LEVEL-PHASE II

Shrubs 

Materials

Perennials/Groundcovers

A
L5

11-18-2022 Final Site Plan Submittal

7A

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 6" DEEP COMPACTED 21AA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECOMPOSED GRANITE-WASHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 2" DEEP COMPACTED |" MINUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMESTONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BIODEGRADABLE MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISPOSE OF ALL NON

AutoCAD SHX Text
(AS SPECIFIED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL FOR GROUND COVER BED

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. DEPTH OF 12" PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE PLANT LIST FOR SPACING (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING BED EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING MIX (AS SPECIFIED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK MULCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISPOSE OF ALL NON

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUND SAUCER 4" HIGH

AutoCAD SHX Text
BIODEGRADABLE MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR BROKEN BRANCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
THAN DIA. OF BALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" COMPACTED PLANT MIX

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAKE PITS 12" GREATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE TOP 1/3 OF BURLAP,

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROPE & WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS IT WAS GROWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY ALL TREES OVER 3-\" CALP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANT TREE AT THE SAME GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAKE ALL TREES UNDER 3-\" CALP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE CANOPY

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 PER TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 LAYERS 30 LBS. PER REAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAYS OR GUYS TO BE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ABOVE FIRST BRANCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#12 GALV. WIRE TWISTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISPOSE OF ALL NON- 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 PLY REINF. HOSE \" I.D. MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-\" WIDE KRAFT PAPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BIODEGRADABLE MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUND SAUCER 6" HIGH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" X 2" X 4' HARDWOOD STAKES

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" SHREDDED HARDWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEVER CUT CENTRAL LEADER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRUNE TO THIN & SHAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROPE & WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIA. OF BALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAKE PITS 24" GREATER THAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE TOP 1/3 OF BURLAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCARIFY 4" DEEP-RE-COMPACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING MIX (AS SPECIFIED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURNBUCKLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE ANCHOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARK MULCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIA. OF BALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" COMPACTED PLANT MIX

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTINUOS TRENCH OF PLANT MIXTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAKE PITS 12" GREATER THAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROPE & WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING MIX (AS SPECIFIED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE TOP 1/3 OF BURLAP,

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK MULCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUND SAUCER 4" HIGH

AutoCAD SHX Text
430 N. OLD WOODWARD  30 N. OLD WOODWARD  0 N. OLD WOODWARD   N. OLD WOODWARD  N. OLD WOODWARD  . OLD WOODWARD   OLD WOODWARD  OLD WOODWARD  LD WOODWARD  D WOODWARD   WOODWARD  WOODWARD  OODWARD  ODWARD  DWARD  WARD  ARD  RD  D  BIRMINGHAM, MI  IRMINGHAM, MI  RMINGHAM, MI  MINGHAM, MI  INGHAM, MI  NGHAM, MI  GHAM, MI  HAM, MI  AM, MI  M, MI  , MI   MI  MI  I  480098009009099

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Issued For:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project:

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.  248.258.5707 F.  248.258.5515248.258.5515

AutoCAD SHX Text
SarokiArchitecture.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet No.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
30 lf

AutoCAD SHX Text
RE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/16" x 4" J.D. Russell Steel Edging (BLACK)-install per manufacturer's specifications

AutoCAD SHX Text
20 cy

AutoCAD SHX Text
7 cy

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Shredded hardwood bark mulch (seasoned, dark brown), 3" deep in perennial and groundcover beds, 4" depth in shrub/tree beds. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Planting mix - 3 parts well drained screened imported topsoil, to 1 part clean sand, to 1 part Canadian sphagnum peat moss,

AutoCAD SHX Text
to 1 part natural compost (weed-free), and 10%%% poultry manure, install 12" deep in all planting beds

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.)  ALL EXISTING AND/OR PROPOSED SITE UTILITIES SHALL BE FIELD LOCATED, FLAGGED, AND VERIFIED  PRIOR TO ANY LANDSCAPE OR IRRIGATION CONSTRUCTION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.)  ALL SPECIFIED AND INSTALLED PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE IN FULL AND STRICT ACCORDANCE WITH AMERICAN NURSERYMAN STANDARDS (LATEST EDITION) AND BE:  A.)  NURSERY GROWN.  B.)  STATE DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE INSPECTED AND APPROVED.  C.)  NO. 1 GRADE WITH STRAIGHT, UNSCARRED TRUNKS & WELL-DEVELOPED UNIFORM CROWNS ON TREES.  D.)  WARRANTED FOR A MIN. 1 YEAR FROM DATE OF ACCEPTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.)  SPECIFIED PLANTING SOIL MIXTURE FOR ALL SPECIFIED BEDS & PLANTS SHALL BE THREE (3) PARTS IMPORTED  WELL-DRAINED, SCREENED ORGANIC TOPSOIL, TO ONE (1) PART IMPORTED CLEAN SAND, TO ONE (1)  PART CANADIAN SPHAGNUM PEAT MOSS, TO ONE (1) PART NATURAL COMPOST (WEED-FREE)-COMPLETE  WITH 10% NATURAL POULTRY MANURE.  INSTALL 12" MINIMUM DEPTH IN ALL PERENNIAL, GROUNDCOVER,  ANNUAL, AND SHRUB BEDS.  ALL BEDS MUST BE EXCAVATED, REMOVE AND DISPOSE (OFF-SITE) EXISTING EARTH/SOIL TO ACCEPT PROPOSED PLANT MIXTURE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.)  PROPOSED SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK MULCH SHALL BE SEASONED FOR A MINIMUM 6 MONTHS,  DARK BROWN IN COLOR, AND INSTALLED 4" DEEP UNDER ALL PROPOSED TREES (INCLUDED IN UNIT COST), 4" DEEP IN ALL SHRUB AND TREE BEDS, AND 3" DEEP IN ALL PERENNIAL AND GROUNDCOVER BEDS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.) ALL PROPOSED LAWN AND LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL BE WATERED BY AN AUTOMATICALLY OPERATED SPRINKLER IRRIGATION SYSTEM, SEE IRRIGATION PLAN(S).

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.)  ALL PROPOSED "SPECIMEN" PLANT MATERIAL MUST BE APPROVED BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT  PRIOR TO INSTALLATION AND/OR DELIVERY TO THE SITE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.)  THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL KEEP THE STREET AND DRIVE CLEAN AND FREE OF DIRT AND  DEBRIS AT ALL TIMES, AND SHALL THOROUGHLY SWEEP AND/OR WASH THE DRIVE AT THE END OF EACH  WORK DAY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.) THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL STAKE THE LOCATION OF ALL PROPOSED TREES FOR THE  LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT TO APPROVE PRIOR TO PLANTING.  THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO   SET ON-SITE ALL SHRUBS, PERENNIALS, ORNAMENTAL GRASSES, VINES, AND GROUNDCOVERS AS PER PLAN  FOR THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT TO APPROVE PRIOR TO PLANTING.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.) ALL DEAD AND UNACCEPTABLE PLANT MATERIALS SHALL BE REPLACED BY THE LANDSCAPE  CONTRACTOR DURING THE WARRANTY PERIOD.  THE WARRANTY PERIOD SHALL BE ONE (1) YEAR FROM THE ACCEPTANCE OF INSTALLATION ISSUED BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT. 10.) PROPOSED SOD LAWN AREAS: FINE GRADE EXISTING TOPSOIL, REMOVE AND DISPOSE (OFF-SITE) EXISTING ROOTS, ROCKS, AND DEBRIS, INCLUDE IMPORTING A MIN. 3" (AVE.) IMPORTED SCREENED TOPSOIL TO FINE GRADE ALL AREAS FERTILIZE-MIN. 1 APPLICATION: STARTER FERTILIZER (13-26-12) WITH 50% SLOW RELEASE NITROGEN AT INITIAL INSTALLATION OF SOD RATE OF 5 LBS. PER 1,000 S.F. OR 218 LBS. PER ACRE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHED SPECIMENS-Full heads

AutoCAD SHX Text
Frontier Hybrid Elm

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ulmus carpinifolia x parvifolia 'Frontier'

AutoCAD SHX Text
UF

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
B&B

AutoCAD SHX Text
3\-4" cal.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Can

AutoCAD SHX Text
Space 15" o.c.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 gal.

AutoCAD SHX Text
All Gold Japanese Forest Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
Hakonecholoa macra 'All Gold'

AutoCAD SHX Text
HMA

AutoCAD SHX Text
B&B

AutoCAD SHX Text
Space 15" o.c., maintain as clipped mass

AutoCAD SHX Text
18-24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Green Velvet Boxwood

AutoCAD SHX Text
267

AutoCAD SHX Text
Buxus x microphylla 'Green Velvet'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BGV

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
20 sf

AutoCAD SHX Text
DG

AutoCAD SHX Text
|" minus Decomposed Granite-2" compacted depth and washed on a min. 6" deep 21AA Limestone aggregate on 4 oz. non-woven filter fabric

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL TAKE-OFFS AND NO ADJUSTMENTS WILL BE MADE TO THE CONTRACT PRICE BASED ON ACTUAL QUANTITIES USED (SUBJECT TO CHANGES APPROVED BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND UNIT PRICE SCHEDULE).

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHED SPECIMENS-Single stem

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLEACHED Littleleaf Linden

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tilia cordata-PLEACHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
B&B

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-4" cal.

AutoCAD SHX Text
B&B

AutoCAD SHX Text
Cubed at 18" x 20" plants-space 18" o.c.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18-24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Green Velvet Boxwood

AutoCAD SHX Text
160

AutoCAD SHX Text
Buxus x microphylla 'Green Velvet'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BGV

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
27 cy

AutoCAD SHX Text
5 cy

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
Shredded hardwood bark mulch (seasoned, dark brown), 3" deep in perennial and groundcover beds, 4" depth in shrub/tree beds. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Planter mix - PRO-MIX 'BRK' Planter Soil Mix-install full depth in all planters (ave. 26" deep). 9.67 bags (2.8 c.f.) per c.y. (262 bags required) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Include 4 o.z. non-woven filter fabric soil separator-wrap sides of planter and irrigation sleeves, 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Include min. 3" deep 6A Limestone drainage aggregate at base 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5 cy

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHED SPECIMENS-Single stem

AutoCAD SHX Text
Frans Fontaine Hornbeam

AutoCAD SHX Text
Carpinus betulus 'Frans Fontaine'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
B&B

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-3\" cal.

AutoCAD SHX Text
B&B

AutoCAD SHX Text
Space 18" o.c., clip into hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text
30-36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Hatfield or Moon Yew

AutoCAD SHX Text
108

AutoCAD SHX Text
Taxus x media 'Hatfield' or 'Moon'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
378 lf

AutoCAD SHX Text
RE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/16" x 4" J.D. Russell Steel Edging (BLACK)-install per manufacturer's specifications

AutoCAD SHX Text
33 cy

AutoCAD SHX Text
11 cy

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Shredded hardwood bark mulch (seasoned, dark brown), 3" deep in perennial and groundcover beds, 4" depth in shrub/tree beds. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Planting mix - 3 parts well drained screened imported topsoil, to 1 part clean sand, to 1 part Canadian sphagnum peat moss,

AutoCAD SHX Text
to 1 part natural compost (weed-free), and 10%%% poultry manure, install 12" deep in all planting beds

AutoCAD SHX Text
472 sf

AutoCAD SHX Text
DG

AutoCAD SHX Text
|" minus Decomposed Granite-2" compacted depth and washed on a min. 6" deep 21AA Limestone aggregate on 4 oz. non-woven filter fabric

AutoCAD SHX Text
Can

AutoCAD SHX Text
Space 12" o.c., acidify soil

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 gal.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Green Carpet Pachysandra

AutoCAD SHX Text
845

AutoCAD SHX Text
Pachysandra termanlis 'Green Carpet'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PTG

AutoCAD SHX Text
Consistent60" branch height, 24" wd. x  

AutoCAD SHX Text
48" lg. x 78" high canopies, 

AutoCAD SHX Text
east to west and 20" north to south

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
Space 48" o.c.

AutoCAD SHX Text
B&B

AutoCAD SHX Text
Space 18" o.c., clip into hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text
6-7' ht.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Emerald Green Arborvitae 

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
Thuja occidentalis 'Emerald'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHED SPECIMENS-Full heads

AutoCAD SHX Text
Green Vase Japanese Zelkovia

AutoCAD SHX Text
Zelkovia serrata 'Green Vase'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZSG

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
B&B

AutoCAD SHX Text
3\-4" cal.



E. BROWN ST.

DAINES ST.

E. BROWN ST.
( 60' R.O.W. )

DAINES ST.
( 40' R.O.W. )

S. O
LD

 W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
 AVE.

( 100' R
.O

.W
. )

BENCHMARK

BENCHMARK

BENCHMARK

BENCHMARK

4
5 7

10
8

9

96
6

7

8

6

NF

N

Site

Location  Map

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

N
F

N

M. Carnaghi

K. Navaroli

LEGEND

TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY NOTES

MISS DIG / UTILITY DISCLAIMER NOTE

CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY

LEGAL DESCRIPTION - PARCELS I & II
(PER TITLE COMMITMENT)

FLOOD HAZARD NOTE ALTA SURVEY NOTES SURVEY DATA

DTE DISCLAIMER NOTE

DATUM NOTE

BASIS OF BEARING NOTE

ANN STREET SKETCH

N
F

N

LEGAL DESCRIPTION - PARCEL 2
(PER TITLE COMMITMENT)

LEGAL DESCRIPTION - PARCEL 3
(PER TITLE COMMITMENT)

TITLE REPORT NOTES - PARCELS I & II

TITLE REPORT NOTES - PARCEL 2

TITLE REPORT NOTES - PARCEL 3

ALTA/NSPS Land Title /
Topographic Survey

SP-1

SCALE:

Part of the NE 1/4
of Section 36
T.2N., R.10E.,
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Saroki Architecture
430 N. Old Woodward Ave.
Birmingham, MI 48009

Contact: Victor Saroki
Phone: 248.258.5707

Restoration Hardware
Birmingham, MI

SEAL

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE      ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

M106
NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

November 18, 2022

11-18-2022   final site plan submittal

7A



E. BROWN ST.
( 60' R.O.W. )

DAINES ST.
( 40' R.O.W. )

S. O
LD

 W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
 AVE.

( 100' R
.O

.W
. )

4
5

10

96

4

4

4

4

PROPOSED MIXED-
USE DEVELOPMENT

±14,335 S.F. FOOTPRINT
F.F. 769.65

PARKING GARAGE F.F. 756.65

PAVING LEGEND

LEGEND

Engineering Site Plan

SCALE:

Part of the NE 1/4
of Section 36
T.2N., R.10E.,
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Saroki Architecture
430 N. Old Woodward Ave.
Birmingham, MI 48009

Contact: Victor Saroki
Phone: 248.258.5707

Restoration Hardware
Birmingham, MI

SEAL

November 18, 2022

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE      ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

M106
NFE JOB NO.

11-18-2022   final site plan submittal

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

SP-2

NF

N

Site

Location  Map

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

A. Eizember

A. Eizember

P. Williams

COVID-19 PANDEMIC CONDITION

N
F

N

CONCRETE CURB DETAIL 'A' CONCRETE CURB DETAIL 'B'

ASPHALT PAVEMENT SECTIONCONCRETE PAVEMENT SECTION CONCRETE SIDEWALK SECTION

GENERAL PAVING NOTES

7A



KEYED  NOTES:
1. ROUTE REFRIGERANT PIPING DOWN TROUGH ROOF.

2. INSTALL EXHAUST FAN A MINIMUM OF 10'-0" AWAY FROM ANY
HVAC UNITS' OUTDOOR AIR INTAKE OPENING.

3. KITCHEN REFRIGERATION SYSTEM CONDENSING UNIT. UNIT
PROVIDED BY KITCHEN EQUIPMENT CONTRACTOR AND
INSTALLED BY THE MECHANICAL CONTRACTOR. MOUNT ON
PATE EQUIPMENT RAILS A MINIMUM OF 12" ABOVE THE ROOF
LEVEL.

#

MAU-1

RTU-1

RTU-2

ERV-1

ERV-2

EF-1 2

O
.A. IN

TAKE

3

1

UNIT REQUIRED SERVICE
CLEARANCE AREA (TYP.)

HP-7

1HP-5

HP-3B

1

KEF-3

O
.A

. I
N

TA
KE

O
.A

. I
N

TA
KE

O
.A. IN

TAKE

O
.A

. I
N

TA
KE

HP-8 HP-2 HP-4 HP-1HP-9

KEF-4

HP-3A HP-6

KEF-2 KEF-1

2222

430 N. OLD WOODWARD

BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Date: Issued For:

Project:

P.  248.258.5707

F.  248.258.5515

SarokiArchitecture.com

Sheet No.:Sheet No.:

MEEC JOB #

THIS DRAWING IS DIAGRAMMATIC AND SHOULD BE USED TO
DETERMINE THE DESIGN INTENT. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD
VE RI FY  A LL WO R K  A N D  SH A LL  N OT IF Y  T HE  A R CH I TEC T
IMMEDIATELY OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN THE DOCUMENTS
BEFORE PROCEEDING. FAILURE TO DO SO  WILL RESULT IN THE
CONTRACTOR TAKING FULL RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY FOR
SAID DISCREPANCIES. NOTICE: THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN
ARE THE PROPERTY OF  MECHANICAL ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING
CONSULTANTS, PC AND  NO ALTERATIONS AND/OR TRANSFERS OF
WORK ARE PERMITTED  UNLESS WRITTEN APPROVAL IS GRANTED
BY MECHANICAL  ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, PC.

21-0146

RH Architecture & Design
15 Koch Road

Corte Madera, California 94925

1

M115

7A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
RH / Mixed-Use 300 S Old Woodward  Birmingham, MI 48009

AutoCAD SHX Text
RH DETROIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
300 S OLD WOODWARD BIRMINGHAM, MI 48009

AutoCAD SHX Text
03-28-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
Core&Shell Building Permit

AutoCAD SHX Text
05-02-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bid / Construction

AutoCAD SHX Text
11-18-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
Final Site Plan Submittal

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8"= 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uRoof - Mechanical HVAC Plan  

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
M115 ROOF - MECHANICAL HVAC PLAN



'FX1' 'FX1' 'FX1' 'FX1'
'FX1' 'FX1'

'FX1' 'FX1' 'FX1' 'FX1'
'FX1'

'FX1'

'FX1'

'FX1'

'FX1'

'FX1'

'FX1''FX1''FX1''FX1'

'FX1''FX1'

'FX1''FX1''FX1''FX1'

'FX1'

'FX1'

'FX1'

'FX1'

'FX1'

'FX1'

'FX2' 'FX2' 'FX2' 'FX2' 'FX2' 'FX2' 'FX2' 'FX2' 'FX2' 'FX2' 'FX2' 'FX2'

'FX2'

'FX2'

'FX2'

'FX2'

'FX2' 'FX2''FX2' 'FX2''FX2' 'FX2''FX2' 'FX2'

'FX2'

'FX2'

'FX2'

'FX2'

'FX2'

'FX2'

'FX2' 'FX2'
'FX2' 'FX2'

'FX2' 'FX2'

'FX2' 'FX2'

GENERAL NOTES:
1. THE INTENSITY OF LIGHT ON THE SITE DOES NOT

EXCEED ONE AND ONE HALF (1.5) MAINTAINED
FOOT-CANDLES AT ANY PROPERTY LINE FOR ANY
NON-RESIDENTIAL ZONED PROPERTY. THE LIGHT
INTENSITY IS MEASURED AT 6FT ABOVE THE GROUND
LEVEL ON A VERTICAL PLANE, NOTED ALONG THE
BOLD DASHED LINE.

2. THE INTENSITY OF LIGHT ON A SITE WHICH PROVIDES
A FRONT SETBACK OF LESS THAN 5FT SHALL BE
MEASURED FROM 5FT BEYOND THE FRONT
PROPERTY LINE, NOTED ALONG THE BOLD DASHED
LINE.

3. THE PROPOSED FX1 FIXTURES HAVE BEEN
CALCULATED AT A DIMMED LUMEN INTENSITY OF 50%
WITH A LIGHT LOSS FACTOR OF 0.85.

4. THE PROPOSED FX2 FIXTURE INTENT IS TO PROVIDE
A DECORATIVE GLOW EFFECT AROUND THE
WINDOWS WITH NO LUMEN OUTPUT EXTENDING
BEYOND THE WINDOWS AND THEREFORE DO NOT
PROVIDE A PHOTOMETRIC CONTRIBUTION TO THE
PROPERTY LINE.

430 N. OLD WOODWARD

BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Date: Issued For:

Project:

P.  248.258.5707

F.  248.258.5515

SarokiArchitecture.com

Sheet No.:Sheet No.:

MEEC JOB #

THIS DRAWING IS DIAGRAMMATIC AND SHOULD BE USED TO
DETERMINE THE DESIGN INTENT. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD
VE RI FY  A LL WO R K  A N D  SH A LL  N OT IF Y  T HE  A R CH I TEC T
IMMEDIATELY OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN THE DOCUMENTS
BEFORE PROCEEDING. FAILURE TO DO SO  WILL RESULT IN THE
CONTRACTOR TAKING FULL RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY FOR
SAID DISCREPANCIES. NOTICE: THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN
ARE THE PROPERTY OF  MECHANICAL ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING
CONSULTANTS, PC AND  NO ALTERATIONS AND/OR TRANSFERS OF
WORK ARE PERMITTED  UNLESS WRITTEN APPROVAL IS GRANTED
BY MECHANICAL  ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, PC.

21-0146

RH Architecture & Design
15 Koch Road

Corte Madera, California 94925

7A

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP 30 (R) 1ST TO 2ND FL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP 30 (R) 1ST TO 2ND FL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DN

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP 30 (R) 1ST TO 2ND FL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DN 23 (R) 1ST  

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP 30 (R) 1ST TO 2ND FL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP 9 (R) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP 14 (R) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN TO ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8"= 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uExteriors - Electrical Site Lighting Photometric Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESLP111

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESLP111 ELECTRICAL SITE LIGHTING  PHOTOMETRIC PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
RH / Mixed-Use 300 S Old Woodward  Birmingham, MI 48009

AutoCAD SHX Text
RH DETROIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
300 S OLD WOODWARD BIRMINGHAM, MI 48009

AutoCAD SHX Text
11-18-2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
Final Site Plan Submittal

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UFIXTURE TYPE 'FX1' CUTSHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESLP114

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UFIXTURE TYPE 'FX2' CUTSHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESLP114



HOSPITALITY 
BREAKROOM

HOSPITALITY 
LEADER

LINEN

ELECTRICAL ROOMBEVERAGE

H
O

SP
IT

AL
IT

Y 
LO

C
KE

R
S

HOSPITALITY 
RESTROOMTOILET

TOILET
TOILET

TOILET

KITCHEN

CAFE

J.C.

TERRACE TERRACE

STAIR B STAIR A --

-

'FX3'

(8) 'FX4'

'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3'

'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3'

'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3'

'FX3'

'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3'
'FX3'

'FX3'
'FX3'

'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3'

'FX3'

'FX3'

'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3'

'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3'

'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3'

'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3'

'FX3'
'FX3' 'FX3'

'FX3'

'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3'

'FX3'
'FX3' 'FX3'

'FX3'

'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3'

'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3'

'FX3'
'FX3' 'FX3'

'FX3'
(8) 'FX4'

(8) 'FX4'(8) 'FX4'

(8) 'FX4' (8) 'FX4'

(8) 'FX4' (8) 'FX4'

'FX3'

(8) 'FX4'

'FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3'

'FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3'

'FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3'

'FX3'

'FX3''FX3''FX3'
'FX3'

'FX3'
'FX3'

'FX3''FX3''FX3'

'FX3'

'FX3'

'FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3'

'FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3'

'FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3'

'FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3'

'FX3'
'FX3''FX3'

'FX3'

'FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3'

'FX3'
'FX3''FX3'

'FX3'

'FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3'

'FX3''FX3''FX3''FX3'

'FX3'
'FX3''FX3'

'FX3'
(8) 'FX4'

(8) 'FX4' (8) 'FX4'

(8) 'FX4'(8) 'FX4'

(8) 'FX4'(8) 'FX4'

'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3' 'FX3'

GENERAL NOTES:

1. THE PROPOSED PHOTOMETRICS ARE BASED ON
LIGHT FIXTURE FX3 TO BE MOUNTED AT THE
UNDERSIDE OF THE PROPOSED PERGOLA AIMING
TOWARDS THE GROUND AND FX4, TREE LIGHTING,
THAT IS TO BE STAKE MOUNTED WITH GLARE
SHIELD AT EACH PLANTER. THESE FIXTURES DOES
NOT EXPEL UNDUE AMBIENT LIGHT INTO THE
NIGHTTIME ENVIRONMENT.

2. THE AVERAGE FOOTCANDLE, AT 0 FEET, FOR THE
EXTERIOR TERRACE IS 20.1FC. THE MAXIMUM
FOOTCANDLE IS 41.7FC.

3. THE PROPOSED FX3 FIXTURES HAVE BEEN
CALCULATED AT A DIMMED LUMEN INTENSITY OF
80% WITH A LIGHT LOSS FACTOR OF 0.9.

4. THE PROPOSED FX4 FIXTURES HAVE BEEN
CALCULATED AT A DIMMED LUMEN INTENSITY OF
80% WITH A LIGHT LOSS FACTOR OF 0.9.

430 N. OLD WOODWARD

BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Date: Issued For:

Project:

P.  248.258.5707

F.  248.258.5515

SarokiArchitecture.com

Sheet No.:Sheet No.:

MEEC JOB #

THIS DRAWING IS DIAGRAMMATIC AND SHOULD BE USED TO
DETERMINE THE DESIGN INTENT. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD
VE RI FY  A LL WO R K  A N D  SH A LL  N OT IF Y  T HE  A R CH I TEC T
IMMEDIATELY OF ANY DISCREPANCIES IN THE DOCUMENTS
BEFORE PROCEEDING. FAILURE TO DO SO  WILL RESULT IN THE
CONTRACTOR TAKING FULL RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY FOR
SAID DISCREPANCIES. NOTICE: THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN
ARE THE PROPERTY OF  MECHANICAL ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING
CONSULTANTS, PC AND  NO ALTERATIONS AND/OR TRANSFERS OF
WORK ARE PERMITTED  UNLESS WRITTEN APPROVAL IS GRANTED
BY MECHANICAL  ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, PC.

21-0146

RH Architecture & Design
15 Koch Road

Corte Madera, California 94925

7A

AutoCAD SHX Text
DN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DN 30 (R) 4TH TO 3RD FL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOST STAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DN 30 (R) 4TH TO 3RD FL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DN 30 (R) 4TH TO 3RD FL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUNTAIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUNTAIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL. 9'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
54'-0" X 36'-9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL. 9'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
23'-4" X 14'-10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL. 9'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
13'-5" X 9'-2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL. 9'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'-2" X 4'-10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL. 9'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'-8" X 8'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL. 9'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11'-0" X 8'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL. 9'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'-0" X 7'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
85'-9" X 41'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
37'-6" X 47'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
37'-6" X 47'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(188 SEATS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UStair - A

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UStair - B

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UElev. 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
36.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
38.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
38.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
36.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
36.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
39.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
41.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
39.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
34.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
34.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
36.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
37.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
36.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
37.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
39.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
37.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
36.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
38.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
38.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
34.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
36.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
38.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
36.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
37.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
38.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
41.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
39.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
38.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
41.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
39.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
37.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
36.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
34.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
38.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
38.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
36.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
36.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
39.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
41.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
39.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
37.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
36.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8"= 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uExteriors - Electrical 4th Level Lighting Photometric Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESLP114

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESLP114 ELECTRICAL EXTERIOR 4TH LEVEL PHOTOMETRIC PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
RH / Mixed-Use 300 S Old Woodward  Birmingham, MI 48009

AutoCAD SHX Text
RH DETROIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
300 S OLD WOODWARD BIRMINGHAM, MI 48009

AutoCAD SHX Text
11-18-2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
Final Site Plan Submittal

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UFIXTURE TYPE 'FX3' CUTSHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESLP114

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UFIXTURE TYPE 'FX4' CUTSHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESLP114



 

 
MEMORANDUM 
Planning Division 
 

 
DATE:  December 14, 2022  
 
TO:  Planning Board Members 
 
FROM: Nicholas Dupuis, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT:  300 S. Old Woodward – Revised Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan & Design 

Review 
 
 
The applicant has submitted an application for Revised Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan 
and Design Review for the construction of a new 4-story commercial building in the B2 (General 
Business) and D4 (Downtown Overlay) zoning districts. The proposed development is located On 
S. Old Woodward between Brown and Daines. The subject site is currently under construction, 
which was paused to accommodate the change in design that will be presented herein. The new, 
revised development would introduce a new 4-story commercial building oriented towards Old. 
Woodward, internal parking, and landscaping improvements to the site. 
 
As for prior approvals, on July 14, 2021 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Board moved to 
recommend approval to the City Commission a Special Land Use, Final Site Plan and Design 
Review application for the original proposal, which was subsequently approved by the City 
Commission on August 9, 2021 (Agenda – Minutes). 
 
Prior to the site plan approval process, the applicant had also applied and was approved for a 
rezoning from D3 (Downtown Overlay) to D4 (Downtown Overlay). The Planning Board 
recommended approval to the City Commission on April 28, 2021 (Agenda – Minutes), and the 
City Commission formally approved the rezoning on July 12, 2021 (Agenda – Minutes). 
Importantly, the motion from the City Commission was as follows: 
 

“To approve the rezoning of the new parcel encompassing 300 – 394 S. Old Woodward 
and portions of 294 E. Brown from B-2 (General Business) and D-3 (Downtown Overlay) 
to B-2 (General Business) and D-4 (Downtown Overlay) conditional upon the building 
being done pursuant to the site plan, as voluntarily given by the applicant, pursuant to a 
letter dated and accepted July 12, 2021 by attorney Richard Rattner.” 
 

The Planning Division is reviewing the motion with the City Attorney to determine the next steps 
in regards to the rezoning and its approval, and will report the determination to the Planning 
Board. 
 

7A

https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Planning%20Board/Packet/2021/PB%20Agenda%20FULL%20-%207-14-21.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Planning%20Board/Minutes/2021/7-14-21%20-%20Approved.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/City%20Commission/Basic%20Agendas/2021/8.9.21%20AGENDA%20AMENDED.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/City%20Commission/Minutes/2021/20210809%20Minutes.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Planning%20Board/Packet/2021/Full%20Agenda%20-%20April%2028,%202021.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Planning%20Board/Minutes/2021/4-28-21%20-%20Approved.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/City%20Commission/Full%20Agenda%20Packet/2021/20210712%20Agenda%20Packet%20Reduced.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/City%20Commission/Minutes/2021/20210712%20Minutes.pdf


 
 
 
 
 
Overall, the plans submitted for the proposed Revised Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan 
and Design Review application demonstrate minor changes to the site. In general, the site 
circulation, bulk, area and height considerations, and parking is not proposed to change. The bulk 
of the changes are in the layout of the floor plans and the exterior of the building 
(materials/design). In the forthcoming report, the Planning Division will provide general 
summaries for those items that are not proposed to change, and will follow those summaries with 
“(No changes proposed)” for emphasis. For all new elements, the Planning Division has 
provided a full review. 
 
1.0 Land Use & Zoning 

 
1.1 Existing Land Use – The existing land use on the site was commercial. The site 

is currently under construction, which has been paused to accommodate a 
redesign of the building. 
 

1.2 Zoning – The subject site is zoned B2 (General Business) and D4 (Downtown 
Overlay). 

 
1.3 Summary of Adjacent Land Use & Zoning – The following chart summarizes 

existing land use and zoning classifications of the adjacent and/or nearby 
properties: 

 
 North South East West 

Existing 
Land Use Mixed-Use Mixed-Use Commercial Commercial 

Existing 
Zoning 
District 

B4 B2B B3 B2 

Overlay 
Zoning 
District 

D4 D2 D3 & D5 D3 

 
 

2.0 Setback & Height Requirements 
 
The attached zoning compliance summary analysis provides the required and proposed 
bulk, area, and placement regulations for the proposed project. The applicant appears to 
meet the bulk, area and placement requirements of the B2 and D4 zones. (No changes 
proposed) 
 
In addition to the general placement and height standards, the applicant is also subject 
to the encroachment into right-of-way standards outlined in Article 4, Section 4.74 
(D)(4)(c)(i), which states that removable architectural elements such as awnings, 
canopies, marquees may be approved by the Planning Board to project into the right of 
way provided that they are constructed to support applicable loads without any ground 
mounted supports on public property. Encroachments with less than 15 ft. of clearance 
above the sidewalk shall not extend into or occupy more than two-thirds of the width of 
the sidewalk or 5 ft., whichever is less, and must not interfere with any existing or planned 

7A



 
 
 
 
 

streetscape elements or infrastructure. The applicant is proposing a canopy at the 
entrance along S. Old Woodward which projects 4 ft. 10.5 in. into the right-of-way, and 
measures 13 ft. 8 in. above grade. The proposed meets the requirements of Article 4, 
Section 4.74 and may be approved by the Planning Board. 

 
3.0 Screening & Landscaping 

 
3.1 Dumpster Screening – Although the placement of the trash area has changed with 

the reconfiguration of the floor layout, the trash receptacles are within the building 
envelope and are fully screened by the building façade. The applicant had 
previously proposed a trash area on the first floor, but has revised the plans to 
include a larger trash area in the lower level. The applicant must still adhere 
to the principles accepted by the Planning Board in the Community 
Impact Study review and provide ample space for the separation of 
recycling in this area. 
 

3.2 Parking Lot Screening – The entirety of the parking proposed on site will be in the 
lower level, thus fully screened by the building. (No changes proposed) 

 
3.3 Mechanical Equipment Screening – There are several mechanical units proposed 

on the roof of the development, which will be screened by a 6 ft. brick screen wall. 
The proposed units are located in enclosures that flank the greenhouse roof, as 
was approved in the previous design. The RTU’s proposed consist of exhaust fans, 
heat pumps, make up air, and other units that all measure within the extent of the 
6 ft. screen wall. 

 
In addition to the units on the rooftop, there are three pieces of ground-mounted 
electrical equipment proposed at the northwest corner of the site. The pieces of 
equipment are labeled as DTE transformers and a DTE primary switch box. One 
smaller transformer and the primary switch box are proposed to be screened by 6 
ft. arborvitae, while the larger transformer is proposed to be screened by a 5 ft. 2 
in. capped masonry screen wall with metal gates. Article 4, Section 4.54 of the 
Zoning Ordinance requires ground-mounted mechanical or electrical equipment to 
be screened by a masonry screen wall with wood gates. The screen wall shall 
match the material of the principal building. 
 
However, the same section states that flexibility in the materials, size, height and 
placement of walls is permitted in order to allow architectural harmony and usable 
open space and to accomplish a unified design. The Planning Board should 
discuss the proposed arborvitae screening and metal gate and 
determine if the materials provide an appropriate screen wall. 

 
3.4 Landscaping – The proposed landscaping plan shows landscaping in the same 

general areas as was approved in 2021. However, the planting materials and 
quantities have changed. The following plantings are proposed: 

 
 
 

 

7A



 
 
 
 
 

Planting Type Location 
Green Vase Japanese Zelkovia Southeast corner, near egress stairs 
Green Velvet Boxwood North side of building, southeast planting area 
Franz Fontaine Hornbeam West side along pedestrian passage 
Hatfield or Moon Yew West side along pedestrian passage 
Emerald Green Arborvitae Northwest corner adjacent to ground units 
Green Carpet Pachysandra Planter boxes along pedestrian passage 
Pleached Little Leaf Linden 4th floor planters 
Green Velvet Boxwood 4th floor planters 

 
Although the applicant is proposing the above plantings, the Zoning Ordinance 
does not require the proposed planting materials on the site. It is worth noting 
that the proposed plantings do not appear to contain many native species, nor is 
there much in terms of variety (colors or species). The proposed plantings will 
provide some benefits, but do not offer much for pollinators, storm water 
retention, or aesthetics.  

 
3.5 Streetscape Elements – The applicant is proposing to build the streetscape as 

agreed to in the streetscape agreement approved by the City Commission on April 
25, 2022 (Agenda – Minutes). The streetscape consists of 6 street trees, planter 
boxes, bike racks, and street lights. 

 
4.0 Parking, Loading & Circulation 

 
4.1 Parking – The subject site is located within the former Parking Assessment District, 

thus no parking is required for the commercial use proposed. The lower level plan 
demonstrates a proposed 26 off-street parking spaces, including 2 accessible 
spaces, which is an increase from the 24 that were approved in 2021. 
 

4.2 Loading – The applicant is proposing two loading zones as required for commercial 
uses in between 20,001and 50,000 sq. ft. The loading spaces measure the 
minimum 40 x 12 x 14, and are located along the entry ramp to the lower level 
parking facility. (No changes proposed) 

 
4.3 Vehicle Circulation & Access – The primary entrance for vehicles remains on the 

southwest corner of the property along Daines. Access will be provided through 
an overhead garage door, and will be used by valet and public alike. (No changes 
proposed) 

 
4.4 Pedestrian Circulation & Access – Pedestrian circulation and access will remain on 

all four sides of the building with entry doors centered on each façade. In addition, 
the pedestrian passage behind the building is maintained. (No changes 
proposed) 

 
It is worth noting that the area on the south side of the building that was formerly 
a pedestrian plaza with seating and other amenities has been changed to an 
exterior staircase to accommodate an additional means of egress for the lower 
level parking facility. This does not dramatically change the pedestrian circulation 

7A

https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/City%20Commission/Full%20Agenda%20Packet/2022/20220425%20CC%20Agenda%20Packet%20Reduced.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/City%20Commission/Minutes/2022/20220425%20City%20Commission%20Minutes%20SIGNED.pdf


 
 
 
 
 

on the site however, as the previous form of egress from the lower level was also 
stairs, which were located inside of the building. 

 
5.0 Lighting 

 
The applicant is proposing to install several in-ground LED fixtures around the entire 
building that are intended to wash the brick with soft lighting to accentuate the buildings 
vertical elements. These LED strips were approved to be placed in the public right-of-way 
along S. Old Woodward through the same streetscape agreement noted above.  Because 
these fixtures are not cutoff, the Planning Board would need to grant an exception to 
Article 4, Section 4.21 (D) based on any of the following criteria: 
 

a. The distribution of upward light is controlled by means of refractors or shielding 
to the effect that it be used solely for the purpose of decorative enhancement of 
the luminaire itself and does not expel undue ambient light into the nighttime 
environment. 

b. The luminaire is neither obtrusive nor distracting, nor will it create a traffic hazard 
or otherwise adversely impact public safety, with appropriate methods used to 
eliminate undesirable glare and/or reflections. 

c. The luminaire is consistent with the intent of the Master Plan, Urban Design 
Plan(s), Triangle district plan, Rail District plan and/or Downtown Birmingham 
2016 Report, as applicable. 

d. The scale, color, design or material of the luminaire will enhance the site on which 
it is located, as well as be compatible with the surrounding buildings or 
neighborhood. 

e. Lighting designed for architectural enhancement of building features (i.e. 
architectural enhancement lighting). Appropriate methods shall be used to 
minimize reflection and glare. 

f. The site lighting meets all requirements set forth in this ordinance including, but 
not limited to, light trespass and nuisance violations. 

 
In addition to the in-ground LED fixtures, the applicant is proposing LED strip lighting 
located within a channel system around the windows to provide accent lighting along the 
edges of the window openings. The location of these LED strips in channels at the sides 
of the windows appears to render them fully cutoff. 
 
On the 4th floor, the applicant is proposing a significant number (hundreds) of small LED 
spotlights that are placed in the planting beds and the perimeter of the outdoor seating 
areas on the 4th floor. It is somewhat unclear as to where these fixtures will be placed (on 
the pergola, on the ground, a combination of both?). These fixtures are also not 
considered cutoff, and the Planning Board would have to grant exceptions to the same 
zoning ordinance regulation as quoted above. Although the lights are small, and are 
beneath a louvered pergola structure, the Planning Board may wish to consider 
requiring the applicant to reduce the sheer number of fixtures proposed to 
promote the purpose and intent of the Lighting Standards and to promote a 
dark sky approach to lighting. 
 

7A



 
 
 
 
 

A photometric plan was submitted for the site that demonstrates a light intensity that does 
not exceed 1.5 maintained foot candles at the property line, or 5 ft. beyond the front 
façade, meeting the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 

6.0 Departmental Reports 
 
6.1 Engineering Department – Please see the attached Engineering Department 

Comments dated December 6, 2022. 
 

6.2 Department of Public Services – The Department of Public Services has no 
concerns at this time. 

 
6.3 Fire Department – Please see the attached Fire Department comments. 

 
6.4 Police Department – The Police Department has no concerns at this time. 

 
6.5 Building Department – Please see the attached Building Department comments 

dated December 6, 2022. 
 

6.6 Parking Manager – The Parking Manager has no concerns at this time. 
 

7.0 Design Review 
 
As noted above, the majority of the changes proposed to the building are in regards to 
the exterior and its material composition. The former building was approved with a palate 
that consisted of grey architectural brick, modeled stucco, dark window frames and clear 
glass. This building met all of the architectural requirements outlined in Article 3, Section 
3.04 of the Zoning Ordinance including all of the glazing requirements for each floor. The 
new proposal is similar in that the bulk of the building will be comprised of a tan 
architectural brick and clear glazing. There are additional elements proposed as well 
including steel canopies and a metal pergola system on the 4th floor. 
 
In terms of the architectural standards noted above, the applicant still meets all of the 
requirements with the exception of first floor glazing. As noted in this section, ground floor 
facades in between 1 ft. and 8 ft. must be comprised of a minimum of 70% clear glazing. 
Due to the redesigned facades and the focus on symmetry, the first floor glazing was 
calculated to be 62% on the south (Daines) façade, 60% on the east (S. Old Woodward) 
façade, and 58% on the north (Brown) façade. It is worth nothing that the west façade 
along the pedestrian passage is also proposed with a significant amount of glazing, but is 
not required to be 70%. In addition, the applicant has not submitted specification sheets 
demonstrating the Visual Light Transmittance (VLT) or reflectance figures to ensure the 
glass meets the City’s definition of Clear Glazing. Thus, the applicant must submit 
revised plans demonstrating 70% clear glazing on the storefront facades or 
obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals. 
 
In regards to the rooftop restaurant, the seating located under the pergola would be 
considered outdoor dining and is subject to the Outdoor Dining Standards outlined in 
Article 4, Section 4.44 of the Zoning Ordinance. Because the outdoor dining is located on 

7A



 
 
 
 
 

private property on the 4th floor, only the following standards apply to the proposed 
outdoor dining facility: 
 

1. Outdoor dining areas shall provide and service refuse containers within the outdoor 
dining area and maintain the area in good order. 

2. All outdoor activity must cease at the close of business. 
3. All tables and chairs provided in the outdoor dining area shall be constructed 

primarily of metal, wood, or material of comparable quality. 
 
The site plans indicate trash receptacles on both sides of the outdoor dining facility, and 
the applicant has submitted  examples of the furniture RH utilizes in their restaurants, 
which is constructed of a high quality material that may be accepted by the Planning 
Board. 
 
Finally, the applicant is proposing several signs as a part of the redesigned building. A 
total of 4 signs are proposed, one on each façade of the building. The signs are centered 
on each façade and read “RH”, one of which is illuminated. There are no dimensions or 
details provided for the proposed signs. In addition, the location of these signs would 
render them Building Identification signs. Article 1, Section 1.05 of the Sign Ordinance 
permits non-illuminated signs identifying the entire structure by a building name (Building 
Identification Signs) to be placed above the first floor. Although the principal building 
frontage is not labeled on the plans, it is apparent that the building has a large available 
combined sign area to work with. In summation, the applicant must submit detailed 
and dimensioned sign plans that meet the requirements of the Sign Ordinance, 
or obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals. 
 

8.0 Required Attachments 
 
 Submitted Not Submitted Not Required 
Existing Conditions Plan ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Detailed and Scaled Site Plan ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Certified Land Survey ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Interior Floor Plans ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Landscape Plan ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Photometric Plan ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Colored Elevations ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Material Specification Sheets ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Material Samples ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Site & Aerial Photographs ☒ ☐ ☐ 

 
9.0 Approval Criteria 

 
In accordance with Article 7, section 7.27 of the Zoning Ordinance, the proposed plans 
for development must meet the following conditions 
 

7A



 
 
 
 
 

1. The location, size and height of the building, walls and fences shall be such that 
there is adequate landscaped open space so as to provide light, air and access to 
the persons occupying the structure. 

2. The location, size and height of the building, walls and fences shall be such that 
there will be no interference with adequate light, air and access to adjacent lands 
and buildings. 

3. The location, size and height of the building, walls and fences shall be such that 
they will not hinder the reasonable development of adjoining property and not 
diminish the value thereof. 

4. The site plan, and its relation to streets, driveways and sidewalks, shall be such as 
to not interfere with or be hazardous to vehicular and pedestrian traffic. 

5. The proposed development will be compatible with other uses and buildings in the 
neighborhood and will not be contrary to the spirit and purpose of this chapter. 

6. The location, shape and size of required landscaped open space is such as to 
provide adequate open space for the benefit of the inhabitants of the building and 
the surrounding neighborhood. 

 
In addition, Article 7, Section 7.36 of the Zoning Ordinance estates that the City 
Commission shall not approve of any requests for a special land use permit unless it 
determines that the following standards are met: 
 

1. The use is consistent with and will promote the intent and purpose of this Zoning 
Ordinance. 

2. The use will be compatible with adjacent uses of land, the natural environment, 
and the capabilities of public services and facilities affected by the land use. 

3. The use is consistent with the public health, safety and welfare of the city. 
4. The use is in compliance with all other requirements of this Zoning Ordinance. 
5. The use will not be injurious to the surrounding neighborhood. 
6. The use is in compliance with state and federal statutes. 

 
10.0 Recommendation 

 
Based on a review of the site plans submitted and the requirements outlined in Article 7, 
Sections 7.27 and 7.36 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Planning Division recommends that 
the Planning Board APPROVE the Revised Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan and 
Design Review for 300 S. Old Woodward – RH –  with the following conditions: 
 

1. The Planning Board approves the projection of the canopy into the right-of-way; 
2. The applicant must still adhere to the principles accepted by the Planning Board 

in the Community Impact Study review and provide ample space for the 
separation of recycling in this area; 

3. The Planning Board approves the use of arborvitae and masonry screen wall with 
metal gates to screen the proposed electrical equipment; 

4. The applicant must submit revised plans demonstrating 70% clear glazing on the 
storefront facades or obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals; 

5. The applicant must submit detailed and dimensioned sign plans that meet the 
requirements of the Sign Ordinance, or obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning 
Appeals; and 

6. The applicant must comply with the requests of all City Departments. 

7A



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
11.0 Sample Motion Language (Special Land Use Permit) 
 

Motion to recommend to the City Commission APPROVAL of the Special Land Use Permit 
for 300 S. Old Woodward – RH – with the following conditions: 
 

1. The Planning Board approves the projection of the canopy into the right-of-way; 
2. The applicant must still adhere to the principles accepted by the Planning Board 

in the Community Impact Study review and provide ample space for the 
separation of recycling in this area; 

3. The Planning Board approves the use of arborvitae and masonry screen wall with 
metal gates to screen the proposed electrical equipment; 

4. The applicant must submit revised plans demonstrating 70% clear glazing on the 
storefront facades or obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals; 

5. The applicant must submit detailed and dimensioned sign plans that meet the 
requirements of the Sign Ordinance, or obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning 
Appeals; and 

6. The applicant must comply with the requests of all City Departments. 
 

OR 
 

Motion to POSTPONE the Special Land Use Permit for 300 S. Old Woodward – RH – 
pending receipt of the following: 
 

1. ______________________________________________________________ 
2. ______________________________________________________________ 
3. ______________________________________________________________ 

 
OR 

 
Motion to recommend to the City Commission DENIAL of the Special Land Use Permit for 
300 S. Old Woodward – RH – for the following reasons: 
 

1. ______________________________________________________________ 
2. ______________________________________________________________ 
3. ______________________________________________________________ 

 
12.0 Sample Motion Language (Final Site Plan & Design Review ) 
 

Motion to recommend to the City Commission APPROVAL of the Final Site Plan and 
Design Review for 300 S. Old Woodward – RH – with the following conditions: 
 

1. The Planning Board approves the projection of the canopy into the right-of-way; 
2. The applicant must still adhere to the principles accepted by the Planning Board 

in the Community Impact Study review and provide ample space for the 
separation of recycling in this area; 

7A



 
 
 
 
 

3. The Planning Board approves the use of arborvitae and masonry screen wall with 
metal gates to screen the proposed electrical equipment; 

4. The applicant must submit revised plans demonstrating 70% clear glazing on the 
storefront facades or obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals; 

5. The applicant must submit detailed and dimensioned sign plans that meet the 
requirements of the Sign Ordinance, or obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning 
Appeals; and 

6. The applicant must comply with the requests of all City Departments. 
 

OR 
 

Motion to POSTPONE the Final Site Plan and Design Review for 300 S. Old Woodward – 
RH – pending receipt of the following: 
 

1. ______________________________________________________________ 
2. ______________________________________________________________ 
3. ______________________________________________________________ 

 
OR 

 
Motion to recommend to the City Commission DENIAL of the Final Site Plan and Design 
Review for 300 S. Old Woodward – RH – for the following reasons: 
 

1. ______________________________________________________________ 
2. ______________________________________________________________ 
3. ______________________________________________________________ 

 

7A



Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 

Zoning Compliance Summary Sheet 
 Revised Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan & Design Review 

300 S. Old Woodward - RH 
 

 
Existing Site: Vacant site under construction  

Zoning: B2 (General Business) and D4 (Downtown Overlay) 
Land Use: Commercial 

 
Existing Land Use and Zoning of Adjacent Properties: 
 

 North South East West 
Existing 
Land Use Mixed-Use Mixed-Use Commercial Commercial 

Existing 
Zoning 
District 

B4 B2B B3 B2 

Overlay 
Zoning 
District 

D4 D2 D3 & D5 D3 

 
 

Land Area:   Existing: 0.46 ac. 
Proposed: 0.46 ac. 

Dwelling Units: Existing: 0 units 
Proposed: 
 

0 units 

Minimum Lot Area/Unit: Required: 1,000 sq ft (single story hotel or motel) 
500 sq ft (two/three-story hotel or motel) 
1,280 sq ft (multiple-family) 

Proposed: N/A  

Min. Floor Area /Unit: Required: 300 sq ft (single story hotel or motel) 
600 sq ft (efficiency and one bedroom) 
800 sq ft (two or more bedroom) 

Proposed: N/A 
 
Max. Total Floor Area: 

 
Required: 

 
N/A 

Proposed: N/A 

Min. Open Space: Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A 

Max. Lot Coverage: Required: N/A 

7A



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 

Proposed: N/A 

Front Setback: Required: 0 ft. 
Proposed: 0 ft. 

Side Setbacks Required: N/A 
Proposed:  

Rear Setback: Required: 10 ft. 
Proposed: 10 ft. 

Min. Front+Rear Setback Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A 

 
Max. Bldg. Height: Permitted: 70 ft., 4 stories (based on rezoning requirements) 

Proposed: 69 ft., 4 stories 

Min. Eave Height: Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A 

Floor-Celing Height: Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A 

Front Entry: Required: On frontage line 
Proposed: On frontage line 

Absence of Bldg. Façade: Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A 

Opening Width: Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A 

Parking: Required: N/A 
Proposed: 26 spaces 

Min. Parking Space Size: Required: 180 sq. ft. 
Proposed: 180 sq. ft. 

Parking in Frontage: Required: Not permitted 
Proposed: None proposed 

 
Loading Area: 

 
Required: 

 
2 spaces, 40 x 12 x 14 

Proposed: 2 spaces, 4- x 12 x 14 
 

7A



Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 

Screening:   
  

Parking: Required: 32 in. capped masonry 
Proposed: Fully screened by building façade 

Loading: Required: 6 ft. minimum 
Proposed: Screened by building 

Rooftop Mechanical: Required: Obscured from public view 
Proposed: 6 ft. brick screen wall 

Elect. Transformer: Required: Masonry screen wall with wood gates 
Proposed: Masonry and arborvitae 

Dumpster: Required: 6 ft. masonry screen wall 
Proposed: Within building envelope 

 

7A



MEMORANDUM 
Planning Division 

DATE: February 13, 2023  

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Nicholas Dupuis, Planning Director 

SUBJECT: Public Hearing to amend Article 4, Section 4.44, Article 3, Section 3.04, Article 3, 
Section 3.16, and Article 9, Section 9.02 to provide clear and enforceable outdoor 
dining standards 

INTRODUCTION: 
As a result of the temporary COVD-19 outdoor dining expansion resolution and continuing issues 
with outdoor dining patios encroaching onto required clear paths, and adding unapproved 
equipment/fixtures, heaters, and structures, the City Commission directed a review of outdoor 
dining requirements to evaluate potential changes that may clarify and/or enhance the outdoor 
dining environment within the City. At this time, the Planning Board has drafted revised 
regulations that are consistent, enforceable, and offer more clarity to outdoor dining 
establishments. 

BACKGROUND: 
On December 14, 2023 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Board held a public hearing to review 
the proposed ordinance amendments and moved to recommend approval to the City Commission 
amendments to Article 4, Section 4.44, Article 3, Section 3.04, Article 3, Section 3.16, and Article 
9, Section 9.02 to provide clear and enforceable outdoor dining standards. 

A complete background of the outdoor dining ordinance study including dates, summaries, and 
links to previous agendas can be found in the attached Planning Board report. 

Two items of note were discussed heavily at the Planning Board. One such item was the 
placement of outdoor dining facilities and whether or not an operator would be permitted to have 
outdoor dining on the sidewalk and the furnishing zone, or whether only one placement would 
be permitted. Ultimately, the Planning Board settled on language that permits outdoor dining on 
a sidewalk or furnishing zone, and both in limited exceptions made by the Planning Board where 
the streetscape conditions demonstrate sufficient space to permit adequate pedestrian passage. 

Secondly, the Planning Board moved the proposed language forward without a sunset or 
amortization clause.  

7B

https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Agenda%20FULL%20-%2012-14-22.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Minutes%20(APPROVED-PROTECTED)%20-%2012-14-22.pdf


 
 
 
 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  
The City Attorney has reviewed the documentation as to form and substance and has no 
objections. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT:  
There are no direct fiscal impacts for this agenda item. However, the proposed ordinance 
language has the potential to affect rental income through the leasing of public space for outdoor 
dining facilities. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
As required for proposed Zoning Ordinance amendments, a legal ad was placed in a newspaper 
of local circulation to advertise the public hearing at the City Commission meeting on February 
13, 2023. 
 
SUMMARY: 
The Planning Division requests that the City Commission consider ordinance amendments to 
Article 4, Section 4.44, Article 3, Section 3.04, Article 3, Section 3.16, and Article 9, Section 9.02 
to provide clear and enforceable outdoor dining standards. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Please see the following attached documents: 
 

• Proposed Ordinance Language  
• Final Planning Board Report 

 
SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion adopting an ordinance to amend Article 4, Section 4.44, Article 3, Section 3.04, 
Article 3, Section 3.16, and Article 9, Section 9.02 to provide clear and enforceable outdoor dining 
standards. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7B



 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _________ 
 

THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ORDAINS: 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM: 
 
TO AMEND ARTICLE 4, SECTION 4.44, OUTDOOR DINING STANDARDS, TO SUPPORT PUBLIC 
HEALTH, ACTIVATE PUBLIC SPACE, FOSTER ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, SAFEGUARD THE USE 
OF PUBLIC PROPERTY, AND PROVIDE FLEXIBILITY FOR CURRENT TRENDS AND FUTURE 
DEMANDS FOR OUTDOOR DINING. 
 
 
Article 4, Section 4.44 – Outdoor Dining Standards 
 
This Outdoor Dining Standards section applies to the following districts: 
 

 
 
The following outdoor dining standards apply: 
 

A. Outdoor Dining: Outdoor dining is permitted immediately next to the principal use, subject 
to Site Plan Review, and the following conditions: 
 

1. Outdoor dining areas shall provide and service refuse containers within the outdoor 
dining area and maintain the area in good order. 

2. All outdoor activity must cease at the close of business or as noted in subsection 
3 below. 

3. When an outdoor dining area is immediately adjacent to any single-family or 
multiple-family residential district, all outdoor activity must cease at the close of 
business or 10:00 p.m., whichever is earlier. 

4. Outdoor dining may be permitted on the sidewalk throughout the year with a valid 
Outdoor Dining License. 

5. All tables and chairs provided in the outdoor dining area shall be constructed 
primarily of metal, wood, or material of comparable quality. 

6. Table umbrellas shall be considered under Site Plan Review and shall not impede 
sight lines into a retail establishment, pedestrian flow in the outdoor dining area, 
or pedestrian or vehicular traffic flow outside the outdoor dining area. 

7. For outdoor dining located in the public right-of-way: 
 

7B

http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=649


 
 
 
 
 

a. All such uses shall be subject to a license from the city, upon forms 
provided by the Community Development Department, contingent on 
compliance with all city codes, including any conditions required by the 
Planning Board in conjunction with Site Plan approval. 

b. In order to safeguard the flow of pedestrians on the public sidewalk, such 
uses shall maintain an unobstructed sidewalk width as required by the 
Planning Board, but in no case less than 5 feet. 

c. Outdoor dining is permitted to extend in the right-of-way in front of 
neighboring properties, with the written permission of the property 
owner(s) and with Planning Board approval, if such property is vacant or 
the first floor storefront(s) is/are vacant. Outdoor dining areas may extend 
up to 50% of the width of the neighboring lot(s) storefront(s), or up to 
50% of the lot(s) frontage, if such lot is vacant. 

d. City Commission approval is also required for outdoor dining extensions 
onto neighboring property if the establishment making such a request holds 
a bistro license. 

e. An elevated, ADA compliant platform may be erected on the street in front 
of an eating establishment to create an outdoor dining area only if the 
Engineering Department determines there is sufficient space available for 
this purpose given parking and traffic conditions. 

f. No such facility shall erect or install permanent fixtures in the public right-
of-way. 
 

8. Outdoor dining is permitted in a B1 District at a rate of 4 seats for every 12 linear 
feet of store frontage, with no more than 12 seats total per building; no elevated 
enclosed platforms on the street are permitted in a B1 District. 

 
The following outdoor dining standards apply: 
 

A. Purpose and Intent: The purpose of this section is to provide harmonious 
outdoor dining design in order to support public health, activate public space, 
foster economic development, safeguard the use of public property, and 
provide flexibility for current trends and future demands for outdoor dining. 
 

B. Outdoor Dining – General: Outdoor dining is permitted immediately adjacent 
to and abutting the principal use, subject to review by the Planning Board, or 
by the Planning Division at the discretion of the Planning Board, and the 
conditions below. For the purposes of this section, outdoor dining facility shall 
include outdoor dining patios and/or outdoor dining platforms. 

 

7B

http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=475


 
 
 
 
 

1. All outdoor activity including cleaning, maintenance and closing 
procedures must cease at the close of business or as noted in subsection 
2. 

2. When an outdoor dining facility is immediately adjacent to and abutting 
any single-family or multiple-family zoned residential district, all 
outdoor activity must cease at the close of business or 10:00 p.m., 
whichever is earlier. 

3. Reviews of outdoor dining facilities shall include, but are not limited to, 
the following elements: tables, chairs, umbrellas, portable heating 
elements, barriers, service stations, landscaping/plantings, awnings, 
canopies, lighting, host/hostess stands, entertainment, valet 
operations, and any other adjacent neighboring outdoor dining facilities. 

4. Outdoor dining facilities may be permitted to extend in front of 
neighboring properties or tenant spaces with the written permission of 
the property owners(s) affected and with Planning Board approval. 
Written permission must be renewed annually and submitted with the 
Outdoor Dining Permit application(s) for each outdoor dining facility 
affected.  

5. Outdoor dining facilities may be permitted on public property only with 
a valid annual Outdoor Dining License, provided that the following 
conditions are met: 
 

i. Approval of an Outdoor Dining License shall be contingent upon 
compliance with all current city codes and ordinances, including 
any conditions required by the City or the Planning Board in 
conjunction with Site Plan approval. 

ii. Operators of outdoor dining facilities shall be responsible for 
snow and ice removal, and shall remove snow and ice in a manner 
consistent with the regulations of the Department of Public 
Services.  

iii. All outdoor dining facility elements such as railings, planters, 
tables, chairs, heaters, umbrellas, and the like must be stored 
indoors each night between January 1 and March 31 to allow for 
complete snow and ice removal. 

iv. Outdoor dining patios located in an alley or passage that has 
vehicular traffic are only permitted April 1 through December 31. 

v. An ADA compliant platform may be erected in the on-street 
parking space(s) immediately in front of a food or drink 
establishment to create an outdoor dining facility from April 1 
through December 31, subject to an additional review by the 
Advisory Parking Committee. 
 

7B



 
 
 
 
 

6. All outdoor facilities shall be designed to meet the requirements of this 
section, as well as all applicable building and fire codes. 
 

C. Outdoor Dining – Design: All outdoor dining facilities are subject to the 
following design standards: 
 

1. All outdoor dining elements, fixtures and furnishings must be 
constructed of high quality and durable materials that are compatible 
with the establishment and the environment in which the outdoor dining 
facility is located. 

2. Outdoor dining facilities shall provide and service refuse containers 
within the outdoor dining facility and maintain the area in good order. 
Public trash receptacles are not permitted to be utilized by outdoor 
dining facilities. 

3. Outdoor dining facilities shall not contain enclosures as defined in Article 
9, Section 9.02 of the Zoning Ordinance. 

4. In order to safeguard the flow of pedestrians on the public sidewalk, 
such uses shall maintain an unobstructed sidewalk width as required by 
the Planning Board, but in no case less than 5 ft.  

5. Placement of outdoor dining patios shall be limited to either the area 
immediately adjacent to the building in which an establishment resides, 
or in the furnishing zone, but not both. Limited exceptions to the 
placement of outdoor dining patios as noted in this subsection may be 
made by the Planning Board where the streetscape conditions 
demonstrate sufficient space to permit adequate pedestrian passage, 
and as permitted in Article 4, Section 4.44(B)(4). 

6. Outdoor dining platforms within the adjacent street or parking space(s) 
shall be designed to be flush with the curb, and may not extend beyond 
the curb into the furnishing zone except to accommodate accessibility 
requirements. 

7. No such establishment shall erect or install permanent fixtures in the 
public right-of-way. 

8. Overhead weather protection such as umbrellas, awnings or canopies 
are subject to the following conditions:  
 

i. Overhead weather protection shall not impede sight lines into a 
retail establishment, obstruct pedestrian flow within the outdoor 
dining facility, obstruct pedestrian or vehicular traffic flow 
outside the outdoor dining facility, or contain signage or 
advertising. 

7B



 
 
 
 
 

ii. Overhead weather protection on outdoor dining platforms must 
measure a minimum of 8 ft. from the finished floor of an outdoor 
dining platform, and shall not exceed 10 ft. in overall height; 
 

9. Barriers defining outdoor dining facilities shall be constructed of quality 
and durable materials, and shall be maintained and placed in a 
consistent and organized fashion. Barriers may not exceed 42 inches in 
height measured from grade or the finished floor of an outdoor dining 
platform. 

10. Windbreaks are permitted within outdoor dining facilities and shall be 
affixed to, or integrally designed within a barrier. The total combined 
height of a barrier and windbreak shall not exceed 42 inches as 
measured from grade or the finished floor of an outdoor dining platform. 
Windbreaks must be constructed of a clear, rigid and durable material 
such as Plexiglas, glass or acrylic. Eisenglass and other vinyl-based 
materials are prohibited. 

11. Portable heating elements must be maintained and kept in an orderly 
fashion and in accordance with all applicable fire codes. Propane or 
other fuels may not be stored on public property, and are subject to the 
Storage and Display Standards outlined in Article 4, Section 4.67 of the 
Zoning Ordinance. 

12. All service functions and ancillary elements including, but not limited to, 
trash receptacles, service stations or host/hostess stands must be 
located within the approved outdoor dining facility, contained, and kept 
in a neat and orderly fashion. Service stations and host/hostess stands 
may not exceed 4 feet in height. The storage of dirty dishware is 
prohibited.  
 

D. Nonconforming Outdoor Dining Facilities: Any outdoor dining facility existing 
at the time of the enactment of this ordinance, or any amendments thereto, 
that does not conform to the requirements of the district in which it is located 
may be continued or maintained subject to the following provisions, provided 
the facilities remain in compliance with the approved site plan and maintain a 
valid annual Outdoor Dining License: 
 

1. If a nonconforming outdoor dining facility is destroyed, it shall be 
repaired, reconstructed or replaced, in conformity with all the provisions 
of the current applicable codes and ordinances, and any remnants of the 
former outdoor dining facility shall be removed from the property. 

2. At the time that a non-conforming outdoor dining facility is replaced, 
renovated, or otherwise changed, the facility must be brought into 
compliance with the requirements of the current applicable codes and 

7B



 
 
 
 
 

ordinances. Routine maintenance, including changing chairs and tables, 
umbrellas, waste receptacles, or other non-integral features is 
permitted for all existing outdoor dining facilities. 

 
 

ORDAINED this ______ day of _________, 2023 to become effective 7 days after publication. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Therese Longe, Mayor 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Alex Bingham, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7B



 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _________ 
 

THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ORDAINS: 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM: 
 
TO AMEND ARTICLE 3, SECTION 3.04 (C), SPECIFIC STANDARDS, TO REDUCE REDUNDANCY 
AND PROVIDE CONSISTENT OUTDOOR DINING REGULATIONS. 
 
 
Article 3, Section 3.04 – Specific Standards (Downtown Overlay District) 
 

C. Building Use: Buildings shall accommodate the following range of uses for the various 
designations on the Regulating Plan of the Downtown Birmingham Overlay District: 
 

1. … 
2. … 
3. … 
4. … 
5. … 
6. … 
7. … 
8. … 
9. … 
10. Bistros are permitted with a valid Special Land Use Permit with the following 

conditions: 
a. No direct connect additional bar permit is allowed and the maximum 

seating at a bar cannot exceed 10 seats; 
b. Alcohol is served only to seated patrons, except those standing in a 

defined bar area; 
c. No dance area is provided; 
d. Only low key entertainment is permitted; 
e. Bistros must have tables located in within the storefront space lining any 

street, or pedestrian passage; 
f. All outdoor dining facilities are subject to the requirements 

located in Article 4, Section 4.44 of this Ordinance; 
g. A minimum of 70% glazing must be provided along building facades facing 

a street or pedestrian passage between 1 foot and 8 feet in height;  
h. All bistro owners must execute a contract with the City outlining the details 

of the operation of the bistro; and 

7B



 
 
 
 
 

i. Outdoor dining must be provided, weather permitting, along an adjacent 
street or passage during the months of May through October each year. 
Outdoor dining is not permitted past 12:00 a.m. If there is not sufficient 
space to permit such dining on the street or passage adjacent to 
the bistro, alternative outdoor dining facility placement may be 
considered by the Planning Board. an elevated, ADA compliant, 
defined platform must be erected on the street adjacent to the bistro to 
create an outdoor dining area if the Engineering Department determines 
there is sufficient space available for this purpose given parking and traffic 
conditions. 

j. Enclosures facilitating year round dining outdoors are not permitted. 
k. Railings, planters or similar barriers defining outdoor dining platforms may 

not exceed 42’’ in height. 
l. Outdoor rooftop dining is permitted with the conditions that surrounding 

properties are not impacted in a negative manner and adequate street level 
dining is provided as determined by the Planning Board and City 
Commission. Rooftop dining seats will count towards the total number of 
permissible outdoor dining seats. 

 
ORDAINED this ______ day of _________, 2023 to become effective 7 days after publication. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Therese Longe, Mayor 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Alex Bingham, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

7B



 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _________ 
 

THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ORDAINS: 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM: 
 
TO AMEND ARTICLE 3, SECTION 3.16, SPECIFIC STANDARDS, TO REDUCE REDUNDANCY AND 
PROVIDE CONSISTENT OUTDOOR DINING REGULATIONS, AND TO PERMIT OUTDOOR DINING 
IN ALL VIAS. 
 
 
Article 3, Section 3.16 – Specific Standards (Via Activation Overlay District) 
 

A. Permitted and Prohibited Uses: To enhance the amenity and character of vias, and to 
enhance visual interest and encourage surveillance of urban spaces, active uses should 
be provided at the ground floor level along the majority of the edges of buildings located 
adjacent to vias. While buildings should accommodate these uses, care must be taken to 
avoid conflict with pedestrian movement in the via. To specifically encourage the 
activation of vias, the following uses are permitted within Active, Connecting, and 
Destination Vias: 
 

1. Retail sales and display; 
2. Public plazas and informal gathering spaces; 
3. Outdoor Dining; 
4. Art display; and 
5. Community Gardens. 

 
In addition, the following uses are use is also permitted within Connecting and Destination 
Vias: 
 

1. Outdoor dining; and 
2. Special Events. 

 
The following are specifically prohibited in all vias: 
 

1. Automatic food and drink vending machines outdoors; 
2. Drive-in facilities or any commercial use that encourages patrons to remain in their 

automobiles while receiving goods or services; 
3. Unscreened trash receptacles; and 
4. Unscreened outdoor storage. 

7B



 
 
 
 
 

B. … 
C. … 

 
ORDAINED this ______ day of _________, 2023 to become effective 7 days after publication. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Therese Longe, Mayor 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Alex Bingham, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

7B



 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _________ 
 

THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ORDAINS: 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM: 
 
TO AMEND ARTICLE 9, SECTION 9.02, DEFINITIONS, TO ADD DEFINITIONS FOR ENCOSURE, 
OUTDOOR DINING PATIO, AND PERMANENT FIXTURE. 
 
 
Article 9, Section 9.02 – Definitions 
 
Enclosure (outdoor dining): A vertical wall, panel, or other material that extends 
above 42 in. in height which provides extended relief from weather and impedes 
physical and/or visual access to the outdoor dining space. For the purposes of this 
definition, enclosure does not include exterior building walls. 
 
Furnishing Zone: The area between the sidewalk and the curb where streetscape 
amenities such as planter boxes, streetlights, and tree wells are typically located.  
 
Outdoor Café: An outdoor area accessory to an existing restaurant operation designated for 
consumption of food prepared within the restaurant and subject to the provisions of this 
ordinance. 
 
Outdoor Dining Patio: A defined outdoor area accessory to an existing food and drink 
establishment designated for consumption of food and/or drink prepared within the 
establishment and subject to the provisions of this ordinance. 
 
Outdoor Dining Platform: A defined outdoor area accessory to an existing food and 
drink establishment designated for consumption of food and/or drink prepared within 
the establishment that is located in a parking space and/or street and subject to the 
provisions of this ordinance. 
 
Permanent Fixture (outdoor dining): Any element within an outdoor dining patio 
containing a foundation or other rigid attachment that prevents removal or that which 
requires extensive modifications to the public right-of-way. 
 
Windbreaks: Temporary, seasonal elements in an outdoor dining facility provided to 
reduce the effect of harsh weather conditions for seated patrons. 
 

7B



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ORDAINED this ______ day of _________, 2023 to become effective 7 days after publication. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Therese Longe, Mayor 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Alex Bingham, City Clerk 
 
 
 

7B



 

 
MEMORANDUM 
Planning Division 
 

 
DATE:  December 14, 2022  
 
TO:  Planning Board Members 
 
FROM: Nicholas Dupuis, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Outdoor Dining Ordinance – Public Hearing #2 
 
 
On December 7, 2020 (Agenda – Minutes), the City Commission discussed amending the Zoning 
Ordinance to consider allowing the enclosure of outdoor dining areas during the winter months. 
The City Commission asked the Planning Board to consider this issue, and any regulations they 
may recommend should outdoor dining enclosures be permitted. 
 
On June 21, 2021 (Agenda – Minutes), the City Commission and Planning Board met at a joint 
meeting to further discuss outdoor dining, and to get a clear direction as to what elements of 
outdoor dining should be addressed. In general, the City Commission and Planning Board 
discussed several topics spanning from enclosures to private vs. public space, but ultimately asked 
the Planning Board to take a comprehensive look at the entire outdoor dining ordinance. 
 
On June 23, 2021 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Board discussed outdoor dining in further 
detail based on the joint meeting two days prior. The Planning Board settled on a list of goals 
that they would like to focus on in the ordinance review process, which includes the following: 
 

• Incentivize outdoor off-season dining; 
• Review the placement of decks and enclosures; 
• Ensure that additional outdoor off-season dining does not become an extension of the 

indoor space; 
• Solicit feedback from restauranteurs of all types in the City; 
• Seek possible ideas from local, national and international examples; 
• Review the current ordinance for issues; 
• Review tickets that were given out to temporary outdoor dining operations; 
• Review photos of the variety of temporary outdoor dining structures that were used 

around the City; 

7B

https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/City%20Commission/Full%20Agenda%20Packet/2020/12072020%20Agenda%20Packet.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/City%20Commission/Minutes/2020/20201207%20Minutes.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/City%20Commission/Full%20Agenda%20Packet/2021/20210621%20JOINT%20PB%20AGENDA%20PACKET.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/City%20Commission/Minutes/2021/2021-06-21%20CC-PB%20joint%20workshop%20minutes.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Planning%20Board/Packet/2021/June%2023,%202021%20-%20Planning%20Agenda%20Full.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Planning%20Board/Minutes/2021/6-23-21%20-%20Approved.pdf


 
 
 
 
 

2 
 

• Explore options for maintaining permanent aspects of outdoor dining structures even if 
the parts of the structures come down in different seasons; 

• Discuss potential differences in policy for outdoor dining on public versus private property; 
• Solicit feedback from Public Services and the BSD; 
• Review agreements from temporary outdoor dining to see if any of the temporary policies 

might be worth integrating; 
• Consider aspects like sidewalk widths and snow clearing in writing the policy; 
• Maintain the current seating allowances for differently-sized establishments and maintain 

the differences for establishments holding different kinds of licenses for alcoholic beverage 
service; and, 

• Recommend a permanent solution so that restauranteurs do not have to continue to adapt 
to changing policies. 

 
Study Session #1 Summary 
On July 14, 2021 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Board reviewed a high-level report on outdoor 
dining to guide future discussion. The topics included observations as to what constitutes “good” 
outdoor dining with national and local examples, as well as a local ordinance review for outdoor 
dining. The Planning Board discussed next steps and emphasized the need to (1) hear from 
different City Departments (code issues, retail neighbor conflicts, streetscape), (2) review 
available codes and ordinances from other areas of the country (enclosures, public vs. private, 
year-round), and (3) analyze information from national downtown associations or other related 
organizations (trends, social districts, success stories). 
 
Study Session #2 Summary 
On August 11, 2021 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Board reviewed another high-level report 
in which the Planning Division presented various departmental comments on outdoor dining, a 
national outdoor dining ordinance review, conversations with local cities, and a study of national 
organization input and trends. The Planning Division also provided some public feedback from 
Engage Birmingham, which surveyed the public for their opinion of the COVID-19 temporary 
outdoor dining expansions, which were overwhelmingly positive. Moving forward, the Planning 
Board expressed interest in getting into more detail on seasonal/year round dining and its effect 
on street activation, public versus public space, the potential for regulating different 
restaurants/licenses differently, and defining and establishing a purpose of outdoor dining in the 
City. 
 
Study Session #3 Summary 
On September 9, 2021 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Board discussed a report which 
contained comments from the Advisory Parking Committee, common issues with outdoor dining 
patios, information on the temporary COVID-19 patios, and also discussed the purpose of outdoor 
dining. In addition, the Planning Board was able to review an example of how the outdoor dining 
ordinance could look based on comments up to that point.  Ultimately, the conversation started 
to get more granular with specific ordinance-related ideas ranging from an official stance on 

7B

https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Planning%20Board/Packet/2021/PB%20Agenda%20FULL%20-%207-14-21.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Planning%20Board/Minutes/2021/7-14-21%20-%20Approved.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Planning%20Board/Packet/2021/PB%20FULL%20-%20August%2011,%202021.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/8-11-21%20pb%20approved.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/September%209th,%202021%20Full%20Agenda%20-%20Reduced.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Minutes%20(APPROVED)%20-%209-9-21.pdf


 
 
 
 
 

3 
 

enclosures to material guidelines to patio placement. There were several other requests for 
information including a review of Michigan Liquor Control Commission guidelines for outdoor 
dining, a review of the concept of windbreak versus wall, and the possibility of regulating outdoor 
dining by zones.  
 
Study Session #4 Summary 
On September 23, 2021 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Board discussed the MLCC rules for 
outdoor dining patios, the concept of a windbreak and whether or not they should be permitted, 
and also explored the different zoning districts in which outdoor dining is permitted. These topics 
led to more conversation about how overhead weather protection will interact with said overhead 
coverings, and what typed of overhead protection the Planning Board should permit. The Planning 
Board expressed an interest in taking a deeper dive into overhead weather protection and 
reviewing different options. 
 
Study Session #5 Summary 
On October 27, 2021 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Board focused much their conversation 
on overhead weather protection and which types may be considered within the new ordinance 
language, and what different issues might arise with the different styles. In addition, the 
Birmingham Fire Chief Paul Wells gave a brief overview of the fire code as it relates to overhead 
weather protection, and offered some guidance to the Planning Board regarding fire suppression 
and other aspects of outdoor dining. In addition to overhead weather protection, the Planning 
Board provided some clear direction on the subjects of windbreaks, year-round dining, and the 
role of outdoor dining decks. 
 
Study Session #6 Summary 
On December 8, 2021 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Board reviewed comments regarding 
outdoor dining from the Birmingham Shopping District (BSD). In addition to the BSD comments, 
the Planning Board also reviewed some updated comments from the Fire Department based on 
their additional research into the Fire Code. To round out the meeting, the Planning Board outlined 
several items that they feel need further discussion/decision moving forward: 
 

• Whether establishments with liquor licenses and establishments without liquor licenses 
should be handled differently; 

• Whether there should be on-season and off-season dates for outdoor dining, and what 
should happen to furniture and other equipment on public property if there are different 
‘seasons’; 

• Whether establishments should be permitted outdoor dining on both a sidewalk and a 
deck if requested, and if not, what the City wants to incentivize instead; 

• What types of coverings and equipment should be allowed, and how specific the standards 
should be in terms of material, location, and other considerations; 

• Whether outdoor dining should be permitted to extend beyond the storefront of an 
establishment, and if so, what the limitations should be; 

7B

https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Agenda%20FULL%20-%209-23-21.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Minutes%20(APPROVED)%20-%209-23-21.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Agenda%20FULL%20-%2010-27-21.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Minutes%20(APPROVED)%20-%2010-27-21.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Agenda%20FULL%20-%2012-8-21.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Minutes%20(APPROVED)%20-%2012-8-21.pdf


 
 
 
 
 

4 
 

• Whether outdoor dining decks should be limited to a certain number per block; and, 
• Whether outdoor dining in public space and outdoor dining in private space should be 

regulated differently. 
 
Study Session #7 Summary 
On January 12, 2022 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Board discussed the several questions 
posed in the previous study session and came to a conclusion on most of them. In general, the 
Planning Board decided on a short extension to the regular outdoor dining season, treating all 
outdoor dining establishments alike, enhanced material and appearance standards, and allowing 
expansion of patios with neighbor consent. During this study session, the Planning Board also 
reviewed seating data for the different outdoor dining establishments, and was provided a map 
of all outdoor dining in the City, which is heavily concentrated downtown. Ultimately, the Planning 
Board asked Staff to take their comments and work them into a new revised set of ordinance 
amendments to review on February 9, 2022. 
 
Study Session #8 Summary 
On February 9, 2022 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Board worked on fine-tuning a set of 
ordinance amendments to try to finalize a few of their discussion points, and make sure the intent 
of the original direction of the City Commission was met. The Planning Board made several 
revision requests that were aimed at clarifying different aspects of the proposed ordinance, but 
especially relating to the barriers and enclosure regulations. In addition, the Planning Board made 
some requests to review various site plans from approved outdoor dining patios in the City to 
help guide the final discussions on the placement of patios, and other design limitations. 
 
Study Session #9 Summary 
On March 9, 2022 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Board took another long look at the proposed 
ordinance language and offered several minor changes to the text in an attempt to offer further 
clarity and consistency throughout the ordinance. In addition, the Planning Board discussed the 
remaining issues that were in need of direction. In short, the Planning Board decided that they 
did not wish to restrict outdoor dining patios to one contiguous patio, but did express interest in 
restricting platform dining to the street with no impingement on the furniture zone. Additionally, 
the majority of the Planning Board did not feel as though fixed awnings were appropriate over 
outdoor dining platforms, and sought additional language to restrict overhead weather protection 
to umbrellas on platforms. Finally, the Planning Board did not feel as though the numbers of 
platforms per block should be restricted.  
 
Public Hearing #1 Summary 
On March 9, 2022, the Planning Board moved to set a public hearing date of April 13, 2022 for a 
final review and recommendation to be forwarded to the City Commission. Due to a noticing 
issue, the Planning Board reset the public hearing to May 11, 2022 (Agenda – Minutes). At the 
public hearing, the Planning Division provided finalized ordinance language based on Planning 
Board comments, but also re-circulated the language to each department, as well as the City 

7B

https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Agenda%20FULL%20-%201-12-22.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Minutes%20(APPROVED)%20-%201-12-22.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Planning%20Board%20Agenda%20FULL%20-%202-9-22.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Minutes%20(APPROVED-PROTECTED)%20-%202-9-22.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Agenda%20FULL%20-%203-9-22.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Minutes%20(APPROVED-PROTECTED)%20-%203-9-22.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Agenda%20FULL%20-%205-11-22.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Minutes%20(APPROVED-PROTECTED)%20-%205-11-22.pdf


 
 
 
 
 

5 
 

Attorney to ensure that the language addressed their concerns, and would provide consistent and 
enforceable regulation. Ultimately, a motion to recommend approval to the City Commission failed 
3-4. The driving factors behind the failed vote were concerns over the impact of the amended 
ordinance language on existing establishments, and some lingering design questions 
 
Joint Meeting Summary 
On June 20, 2022 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Board and City Commission held a joint 
meeting to discuss a few remaining policy considerations related to the overall outdoor dining 
study, as well as give the Commission a progress report. Three main questions were posed to the 
group: 
 

1. Does the Commission wish to engage in any additional public input on the outdoor dining 
ordinance? 

2. Does the Commission wish to consider a cap on the number of outdoor dining platforms 
permitted in the public rights-of-way by block, by area, or overall? 

3. Should the Planning Board require additional documents and plans regarding the 
integration of valet operations and outdoor dining? 
 

During the meeting, there was consensus that the City should use its constant contact email 
service to help inform the public of the upcoming outdoor dining study session. In addition, the 
group was in agreement that a non-conformity or sunset provision would be appropriate based 
on the nature of some of the larger changes proposed. Finally, it was unanimously accepted that 
a valet operations plan be included wherever outdoor dining facilities and valet operations coexist. 
 
Study Session #10 Summary 
On July 13, 2022 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Board discussed at length the final major 
design considerations that were unresolved, which included outdoor dining facilities in the 
furnishing zone, overhead weather protection, and windbreaks. 
 
Study Session #11 Summary 
On August 10, 2022 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning reviewed revised ordinance language to 
reflect an adjustment to outdoor dining facility placement, the allowance of canopies and awnings 
on platforms, and other minor improvements.  
 
Study Session #12 Summary 
On September 14, 2022 (Agenda – Minutes), the Planning Division provided the minor revisions 
requested from the Planning Board from the previous meeting. The Planning Board discussed 
each section and provided staff with comments and requests for minor changes. At that time, the 
Planning Board indicated that the nonconforming section of the ordinance is the final hurdle, and 
provided commentary on what type of language best suited the outdoor dining ordinance based 
on the number of outdoor dining facilities and the time horizon for changes.  
 

7B

https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/City%20Commission/Full%20Agenda%20Packet/2022/20220620%20Joint%20PB%20CC%20Packet.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/City%20Commission/Minutes/2022/20220620%20Joint%20City%20Commission%20Planning%20Board%20regular%20meeting%20minutes%20SIGNED.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Agenda%2007.13.22%20-%20FULL.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Minutes%20(APPROVED-PROTECTED)%20-%207-13-22.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Agenda%20AMENDED%20FULL%20-%208-10-22.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Minutes%20(APPROVED-PROTECTED)%20-%208-10-22.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Agenda%20FULL%20-%209-14-22.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Minutes%20(APPROVED-PROTECTED)%20-%209-14-22.pdf


 
 
 
 
 

6 
 

Study Session #13 Summary 
On November 9, 2022 (Agenda) the Planning Board reviewed a document that contained all of 
the requested changes from the Planning Board, which was also reviewed by the City Attorney. 
The Planning Board fielded a large amount of public comment regarding the proposed “sunset” 
language in the nonconformity section, which the Planning board agreed to remove for the public 
hearing.  
 
Public Hearing #2 
The Planning Division has provided final ordinance language that considered the feedback 
received from the Planning Board at the last study session, as well as sample motion language 
below. 
 
Sample Motion Language: 
Motion to recommend to the City Commission APPROVAL of the amendments to Article 4, Section 
4.44, Article 3, Section 3.04, Article 3, Section 3.16, and Article 9, Section 9.02 to provide more 
clear and enforceable outdoor dining ordinances. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

7B

https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Agenda%20FULL%20-%2011-9-22.pdf


 
 
 
 
 

7 
 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _________ 
 

THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ORDAINS: 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM: 
 
TO AMEND ARTICLE 4, SECTION 4.44, OUTDOOR DINING STANDARDS, TO SUPPORT PUBLIC 
HEALTH, ACTIVATE PUBLIC SPACE, FOSTER ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, SAFEGUARD THE USE 
OF PUBLIC PROPERTY, AND PROVIDE FLEXIBILITY FOR CURRENT TRENDS AND FUTURE 
DEMANDS FOR OUTDOOR DINING. 
 
 
Article 4, Section 4.44 – Outdoor Dining Standards 
 
This Outdoor Dining Standards section applies to the following districts: 
 

 
 
The following outdoor dining standards apply: 
 

A. Outdoor Dining: Outdoor dining is permitted immediately next to the principal use, subject 
to Site Plan Review, and the following conditions: 
 

1. Outdoor dining areas shall provide and service refuse containers within the outdoor 
dining area and maintain the area in good order. 

2. All outdoor activity must cease at the close of business or as noted in subsection 
3 below. 

3. When an outdoor dining area is immediately adjacent to any single-family or 
multiple-family residential district, all outdoor activity must cease at the close of 
business or 10:00 p.m., whichever is earlier. 

4. Outdoor dining may be permitted on the sidewalk throughout the year with a valid 
Outdoor Dining License. 

5. All tables and chairs provided in the outdoor dining area shall be constructed 
primarily of metal, wood, or material of comparable quality. 

6. Table umbrellas shall be considered under Site Plan Review and shall not impede 
sight lines into a retail establishment, pedestrian flow in the outdoor dining area, 
or pedestrian or vehicular traffic flow outside the outdoor dining area. 

7. For outdoor dining located in the public right-of-way: 
 

7B

http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=649


 
 
 
 
 

8 
 

a. All such uses shall be subject to a license from the city, upon forms 
provided by the Community Development Department, contingent on 
compliance with all city codes, including any conditions required by the 
Planning Board in conjunction with Site Plan approval. 

b. In order to safeguard the flow of pedestrians on the public sidewalk, such 
uses shall maintain an unobstructed sidewalk width as required by the 
Planning Board, but in no case less than 5 feet. 

c. Outdoor dining is permitted to extend in the right-of-way in front of 
neighboring properties, with the written permission of the property 
owner(s) and with Planning Board approval, if such property is vacant or 
the first floor storefront(s) is/are vacant. Outdoor dining areas may extend 
up to 50% of the width of the neighboring lot(s) storefront(s), or up to 
50% of the lot(s) frontage, if such lot is vacant. 

d. City Commission approval is also required for outdoor dining extensions 
onto neighboring property if the establishment making such a request holds 
a bistro license. 

e. An elevated, ADA compliant platform may be erected on the street in front 
of an eating establishment to create an outdoor dining area only if the 
Engineering Department determines there is sufficient space available for 
this purpose given parking and traffic conditions. 

f. No such facility shall erect or install permanent fixtures in the public right-
of-way. 
 

8. Outdoor dining is permitted in a B1 District at a rate of 4 seats for every 12 linear 
feet of store frontage, with no more than 12 seats total per building; no elevated 
enclosed platforms on the street are permitted in a B1 District. 

 
The following outdoor dining standards apply: 
 

A. Purpose and Intent: The purpose of this section is to provide harmonious outdoor dining 
design in order to support public health, activate public space, foster economic 
development, safeguard the use of public property, and provide flexibility for current 
trends and future demands for outdoor dining. 
 

B. Outdoor Dining – General: Outdoor dining is permitted immediately adjacent to and 
abutting the principal use, subject to review by the Planning Board, or by the Planning 
Division at the discretion of the Planning Board, and the conditions below. For the 
purposes of this section, outdoor dining facility shall mean patios and/or platforms. 

 
1. All outdoor activity including cleaning, maintenance and closing procedures must 

cease at the close of business or as noted in subsection 2. 

7B

http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=475


 
 
 
 
 

9 
 

2. When an outdoor dining facility is immediately adjacent to and abutting any single-
family or multiple-family zoned residential district, all outdoor activity must cease 
at the close of business or 10:00 p.m., whichever is earlier. 

3. Reviews of outdoor dining facilities shall include, but are not limited to, the 
following elements: tables, chairs, umbrellas, portable heating elements, barriers, 
service stations, landscaping/plantings, awnings, canopies, lighting, host/hostess 
stands, entertainment, valet operations, and any other adjacent neighboring 
outdoor dining facilities. 

4. Outdoor dining facilities may be permitted to extend in front of neighboring 
properties or tenant spaces with the written permission of the property owners(s) 
affected and with Planning Board approval. Written permission must be renewed 
annually and submitted with the Outdoor Dining Permit application(s) for each 
outdoor dining facility affected.  

5. Outdoor dining facilities may be permitted on public property only with a valid 
annual Outdoor Dining License, provided that the following conditions are met: 
 

i. Approval of an Outdoor Dining License shall be contingent upon compliance 
with all current city codes and ordinances, including any conditions required 
by the City or the Planning Board in conjunction with Site Plan approval. 

ii. Operators of outdoor dining facilities shall be responsible for snow and ice 
removal, and shall remove snow and ice in a manner consistent with the 
regulations of the Department of Public Services.  

iii. All outdoor dining facility elements such as railings, planters, tables, chairs, 
heaters, umbrellas, and the like must be stored indoors each night between 
January 1 and March 31 to allow for complete snow and ice removal. 

iv. Outdoor dining patios located in an alley or passage that has vehicular 
traffic are only permitted April 1 through December 31. 

v. An ADA compliant platform may be erected in the on-street parking 
space(s) immediately in front of a food or drink establishment to create an 
outdoor dining facility from April 1 through December 31, subject to an 
additional review by the Advisory Parking Committee. 
 

6. All outdoor facilities shall be designed to meet the requirements of this section, 
as well as all applicable building and fire codes. 
 

C. Outdoor Dining – Design: All outdoor dining facilities are subject to the following design 
standards: 
 

1. All outdoor dining elements, fixtures and furnishings must be constructed of high 
quality and durable materials that are compatible with the establishment and the 
environment in which the outdoor dining facility is located. 

7B



 
 
 
 
 

10 
 

2. Outdoor dining facilities shall provide and service refuse containers within the 
outdoor dining facility and maintain the area in good order. Public trash receptacles 
are not permitted to be utilized by outdoor dining facilities. 

3. Outdoor dining facilities shall not contain enclosures as defined in Article 9, Section 
9.02 of the Zoning Ordinance. 

4. In order to safeguard the flow of pedestrians on the public sidewalk, such uses 
shall maintain an unobstructed sidewalk width as required by the Planning Board, 
but in no case less than 5 ft.  

5. Placement of outdoor dining patios shall be limited to either the area immediately 
adjacent to the building in which an establishment resides, or in the furnishing 
zone, but not both. Limited exceptions to the placement of outdoor dining patios 
as noted in this subsection may be made by the Planning Board where the 
streetscape conditions demonstrate sufficient space to permit adequate pedestrian 
passage, and as permitted in Article 4, Section 4.44(B)(4). 

6. Outdoor dining platforms within the adjacent street or parking space(s) shall be 
designed to be flush with the curb, and may not extend beyond the curb into the 
furnishing zone except to accommodate accessibility requirements. 

7. No such establishment shall erect or install permanent fixtures in the public right-
of-way. 

8. Overhead weather protection such as umbrellas, awnings or canopies are subject 
to the following conditions:  
 

i. Overhead weather protection shall not impede sight lines into a retail 
establishment, obstruct pedestrian flow within the outdoor dining facility, 
obstruct pedestrian or vehicular traffic flow outside the outdoor dining 
facility, or contain signage or advertising. 

ii. Overhead weather protection on outdoor dining platforms must measure a 
minimum of 8 ft. from the finished floor of an outdoor dining platform, and 
shall not exceed 10 ft. in overall height; 
 

9. Barriers defining outdoor dining facilities shall be constructed of a quality and 
durable material, and shall be maintained and placed in a consistent and organized 
fashion. Barriers may not exceed 42 inches in height measured from grade or the 
finished floor of an outdoor dining platform. 

10. Windbreaks are permitted within outdoor dining facilities and shall be affixed to, 
or integrally designed within a barrier. The total combined height of a barrier and 
windbreak shall not exceed 42 inches as measured from grade or the finished floor 
of an outdoor dining platform. Windbreaks must be constructed of a clear, rigid 
and durable material such as Plexiglas, glass or acrylic. Eisenglass and other vinyl-
based materials are prohibited. 

11. Portable heating elements must be maintained and kept in an orderly fashion and 
in accordance with all applicable fire codes. Propane or other fuels may not be 

7B



 
 
 
 
 

11 
 

stored on public property, and are subject to the Storage and Display Standards 
outlined in Article 4, Section 4.67 of the Zoning Ordinance. 

12. All service functions and ancillary elements including, but not limited to, trash 
receptacles, service stations or host/hostess stands must be located within the 
approved outdoor dining facility, contained, and kept in a neat and orderly fashion. 
Service stations and host/hostess stands may not exceed 4 feet in height. The 
storage of dirty dishware is prohibited.  
 

D. Nonconforming Outdoor Dining Facilities: Any outdoor dining facility existing at the time 
of the enactment of this ordinance, or any amendments thereto, that does not conform 
to the requirements of the district in which it is located may be continued or maintained 
subject to the following provisions, provided the facilities remain in compliance with the 
approved site plan and maintain a valid annual Outdoor Dining License: 
 

1. If a nonconforming outdoor dining facility is destroyed, it shall be repaired, 
reconstructed or replaced, in conformity with all the provisions of the current 
applicable codes and ordinances, and any remnants of the former outdoor dining 
facility shall be removed from the property. 

2. At the time that a non-conforming outdoor dining facility is replaced, moved, 
renovated, or otherwise changed, the facility must be brought into compliance 
with the requirements of the current applicable codes and ordinances. Routine 
maintenance, including changing chairs and tables, umbrellas, waste receptacles, 
or other non-integral features is permitted for all existing outdoor dining facilities. 

 
 

ORDAINED this ______ day of _________, 2023 to become effective 7 days after publication. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Therese Longe, Mayor 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Alex Bingham, City Clerk 

 
 
 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

7B



 
 
 
 
 

12 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _________ 
 

THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ORDAINS: 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM: 
 
TO AMEND ARTICLE 3, SECTION 3.04 (C), SPECIFIC STANDARDS, TO REDUCE REDUNANCY AND 
PROVIDE CONSISTENT OUTDOOR DINING REGULATIONS. 
 
 
Article 3, Section 3.04 – Specific Standards (Downtown Overlay District) 
 

C. Building Use: Buildings shall accommodate the following range of uses for the various 
designations on the Regulating Plan of the Downtown Birmingham Overlay District: 
 

1. … 
2. … 
3. … 
4. … 
5. … 
6. … 
7. … 
8. … 
9. … 
10. Bistros are permitted with a valid Special Land Use Permit with the following 

conditions: 
a. No direct connect additional bar permit is allowed and the maximum 

seating at a bar cannot exceed 10 seats; 
b. Alcohol is served only to seated patrons, except those standing in a 

defined bar area; 
c. No dance area is provided; 
d. Only low key entertainment is permitted; 
e. Bistros must have tables located in the storefront space lining any street, 

or pedestrian passage. If the storefront area is not feasible for 
outdoor dining, alternative outdoor dining facility placement may 
be considered by the Planning Board; 

f. All outdoor dining facilities are subject to the requirements 
located in Article 4, Section 4.44 of this Ordinance; 

g. A minimum of 70% glazing must be provided along building facades facing 
a street or pedestrian passage between 1 foot and 8 feet in height; and 

h. All bistro owners must execute a contract with the City outlining the details 
of the operation of the bistro.; and 

7B



 
 
 
 
 

13 
 

i. Outdoor dining must be provided, weather permitting, along an adjacent 
street or passage during the months of May through October each year. 
Outdoor dining is not permitted past 12:00 a.m. If there is not sufficient 
space to permit such dining on the sidewalk adjacent to the bistro, an 
elevated, ADA compliant, defined platform must be erected on the street 
adjacent to the bistro to create an outdoor dining area if the Engineering 
Department determines there is sufficient space available for this purpose 
given parking and traffic conditions. 

j. Enclosures facilitating year round dining outdoors are not permitted. 
k. Railings, planters or similar barriers defining outdoor dining platforms may 

not exceed 42’’ in height. 
l. Outdoor rooftop dining is permitted with the conditions that surrounding 

properties are not impacted in a negative manner and adequate street level 
dining is provided as determined by the Planning Board and City 
Commission. Rooftop dining seats will count towards the total number of 
permissible outdoor dining seats. 

 
ORDAINED this ______ day of _________, 2023 to become effective 7 days after publication. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Therese Longe, Mayor 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Alex Bingham, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

7B



 
 
 
 
 

14 
 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _________ 
 

THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ORDAINS: 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM: 
 
TO AMEND ARTICLE 3, SECTION 3.16, SPECIFIC STANDARDS, TO REDUCE REDUNANCY AND 
PROVIDE CONSISTENT OUTDOOR DINING REGULATIONS, AND TO PERMIT OUTDOOR DINING 
IN ACTIVE VIAS. 
 
 
Article 3, Section 3.16 – Specific Standards (Via Activation Overlay District 
 

A. Permitted and Prohibited Uses: To enhance the amenity and character of vias, and to 
enhance visual interest and encourage surveillance of urban spaces, active uses should 
be provided at the ground floor level along the majority of the edges of buildings located 
adjacent to vias. While buildings should accommodate these uses, care must be taken to 
avoid conflict with pedestrian movement in the via. To specifically encourage the 
activation of vias, the following uses are permitted within Active, Connecting, and 
Destination Vias: 
 

1. Retail sales and display; 
2. Public plazas and informal gathering spaces; 
3. Outdoor Dining; 
4. Art display; and 
5. Community Gardens. 

 
In addition, the following uses are use is also permitted within Connecting and Destination 
Vias: 
 

1. Outdoor dining; and 
2. Special Events. 

 
The following are specifically prohibited in all vias: 
 

1. Automatic food and drink vending machines outdoors; 
2. Drive-in facilities or any commercial use that encourages patrons to remain in their 

automobiles while receiving goods or services; 
3. Unscreened trash receptacles; and 
4. Unscreened outdoor storage. 

7B



 
 
 
 
 

15 
 

B. … 
C. … 

 
ORDAINED this ______ day of _________, 2023 to become effective 7 days after publication. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Therese Longe, Mayor 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Alex Bingham, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

7B



 
 
 
 
 

16 
 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _________ 
 

THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ORDAINS: 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM: 
 
TO AMEND ARTICLE 9, SECTION 9.02, DEFINITIONS, TO ADD DEFINITIONS FOR ENCOSURE, 
OUTDOOR DINING PATIO, AND PERMANENT FIXTURE. 
 
 
Article 9, Section 9.02 – Definitions 
 
Enclosure (outdoor dining): A vertical wall, panel, or other material that extends above 60 in. 
in height which provides extended relief from weather and impedes physical and/or visual access 
to the outdoor dining space. For the purposes of this definition, enclosure does not include 
exterior building walls. 
 
Furnishing Zone: The area between the sidewalk and the curb where streetscape amenities 
such as planter boxes, streetlights, and tree wells are typically located.  
 
Outdoor Café: An outdoor area accessory to an existing restaurant operation designated for 
consumption of food prepared within the restaurant and subject to the provisions of this 
ordinance. 
 
Outdoor Dining Patio: A defined outdoor area accessory to an existing food and drink 
establishment designated for consumption of food and/or drink prepared within the establishment 
and subject to the provisions of this ordinance. 
 
Outdoor Dining Platform: A defined outdoor area accessory to an existing food and drink 
establishment designated for consumption of food and/or drink prepared within the establishment 
that is located in a parking space and/or street and subject to the provisions of this ordinance. 
 
Permanent Fixture (outdoor dining): Any element within an outdoor dining patio containing 
a foundation or other rigid attachment that prevents removal or that which requires extensive 
modifications to the public right-of-way. 
 
Windbreaks: Temporary, seasonal elements in an outdoor dining facility provided to reduce the 
effect of harsh weather conditions for seated patrons. 
 
 

7B



 
 
 
 
 

17 
 

 
 
 
ORDAINED this ______ day of _________, 2023 to become effective 7 days after publication. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Therese Longe, Mayor 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Alex Bingham, City Clerk 
 
 

7B



7E



7E



7E



NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO 
ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW COMMITTEE 

At the meeting of Monday, May 13, 2023, the Birmingham City Commission intends to appoint 
to the Architectural Review Committee one regular member to serve a three-year term to 
expire April 11, 2026, and one regular member to serve the remainder of a three-year term to 
expire April 11, 2025.  Members of this Committee will be appointed by the Commission. The 
Committee shall consist of three Michigan licensed architects who reside in the City of 
Birmingham.   

The purpose of this committee is to review certain public improvement projects initiated by 
the City and referred to the committee by the City Manager or his/her designee.  The 
Committee is expected to offer opinions as to what physical alterations or enhancements could 
be made to these projects in order to improve the aesthetic quality of the project and the 
City’s overall physical environment. 

Interested citizens may submit an application available at the City Clerk’s Office or online at 
www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities. Applications must be submitted to the City Clerk's 
office on or before noon on Wednesday, March 8, 2023.  These applications will appear in the 
public agenda for the regular meeting at which time the City Commission will discuss 
recommendations, and may make nominations and vote on the appointments. 

All members of boards and commission are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham Code Chapter 
2, Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement. 

Criteria/Qualifications of Open Position Date 
Applications Due 
(by noon) 

Date of 
Interview 

Michigan Licensed Architect & 
Resident of the City of Birmingham 

3/8/2023 3/13/2023

10A1



NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO 
PLANNING BOARD 

At the regular meeting of Monday, March 27, 2023, the Birmingham City Commission intends to appoint 
three regular members to serve a three-year term to expire March 28, 2026. Members must consist of an 
architect duly registered in this state, a building owner in the Central Business or Shain Park Historic District, 
and the remaining members shall represent, insofar as possible, different occupations and professions such 
as, but not limited to, the legal profession, the financial or real estate professions, and the planning or 
design professions.  Members must be residents of the City of Birmingham. 

Interested citizens may submit an application available at the City Clerk’s office or online at 
www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunites.  Applications must be submitted to the City Clerk's office on or 
before noon on Wednesday, March 22, 2023.  These applications will appear in the public agenda for the 
regular meeting at which time the City Commission will discuss recommendations, and may make 
nominations and vote on the appointments. 

PLANNING BOARD DUTIES
The Planning Board consists of seven regular and two alternate members who serve three-year terms 
without compensation.  The board meets at 7:30 P.M. on the second and fourth Wednesdays of each 
month to hear design reviews, zoning ordinance text amendments and any other matters which bear 
relation to the physical development or growth of the city. 

Specifically, the duties of the Planning Board are as follows: 
1. Long range planning
2. Zoning ordinance amendments
3. Recommend action to the city commission regarding special land use permits.
4. Site plan/design review for non-historic properties
5. Joint site plan/design review for non-residential historic properties
6. Rezoning requests.
7. Soil filling permit requests
8. Requests for opening, closing or altering a street or alley

NOTE: All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 2, 
Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.  

Criteria/Qualifications of Open Position Date 
Applications Due 
(by noon) 

Date of 
Interview 

Building owner in central business or Shain Park 
Historic district. 
Attorney. 
Other members shall represent, insofar as 
possible, different occupations and professions 
such as, but not limited to, the legal profession, 
the financial or real estate professions, and the 
planning or design professions.   
Resident of the City of Birmingham. 

3/22/2023 3/27/2023

10A2



NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO THE 
ADVISORY PARKING COMMITTEE 

At the regular meeting of Monday, March 27, 2023, the Birmingham City Commission intends to appoint 
one regular member to the Advisory Parking Committee to serve the remainder of a three year term 
expiring September 4, 2023 as a large retail owner.  

Interested citizens may submit an application available at the City Clerk’s Office or online at 
www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities. Applications must be submitted to the City Clerk’s Office on or 
before noon on Wednesday, March 22, 2023. These documents will appear in the public agenda for the 
regular meeting at which time the City Commission will discuss recommendations, and may make 
nominations and voter on appointments. 

Committee Duties 
The Advisory Parking Committee shall provide guidance to the City Commission in the management of 
Birmingham's Auto Parking System.  The Committee shall recognize parking requirements of the Central 
Business District (CBD) and fairly assess the costs to users.  It will provide for attractive, maintained and 
safe facilities. 

NOTE: All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 2, Article IX, Ethics 
and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   

Criteria/Qualifications of Open Position Date 
Applications Due 
(by noon) 

Date of 
Interview 

The majority of the members shall be residents. 

• One regular member who is a restaurant
owner to serve the remainder of a 3 year
term to expire on 9/4/2023

 03/22/2023 03/27/2023 

10A3

http://www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities


NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO THE 
MARTHA BALDWIN PARK BOARD 

At the regular meeting of Monday, March 27, 2023 the Birmingham City Commission intends 
to appoint one regular member to the Martha Baldwin Park Board to serve the remainder of 
a three year term expiring May 1, 2024. Member must be electors of the City of Birmingham. 

Interested citizens may submit an application available at the city clerk’s office or online at 
www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities. Applications must be submitted to the city clerk's 
office on or before noon on Wednesday, March 22, 2023.  These documents will appear in the 
public agenda for the regular meeting at which time the City Commission will discuss 
recommendations, and may make nominations and vote on appointments.  

All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 
2, Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   

Criteria/Qualifications of Open Position Date 
Applications Due 
(by noon) 

Date of 
Interview 

Members must be electors in the City of 
Birmingham.  

03/22/2023 03/27/2023 

10A4

http://www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities


NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO 
AD HOC ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 

At the regular meeting of Monday, March 27, 2023, the Birmingham City Commission intends 
to appoint to the Ad Hoc Environmental Sustainability Committee (ESC) nine regular members 
for an 18-month term to expire September 27, 2024.  

Interested citizens may submit an application available at the City Clerk’s office or online at 
www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunites.  Applications must be submitted to the City Clerk's 
office on or before noon on Wednesday, March 22, 2023.  These applications will appear in 
the public agenda for the regular meeting at which time the City Commission will discuss 
recommendations, and may make nominations and vote on the appointments. 

The ESC consists of nine regular members appointed by the City Commission. A majority of 
the members shall have a clearly demonstrated knowledge of environmental sustainability. 
When available, preferred qualifications/areas of professional expertise include: energy, 
equity, civil/construction engineering, water quality, environmental 
engineering/consulting/law, recycling and solid waste. Staff from the Manager’s Office, 
Department of Public Services, Engineering and Planning Departments will serve as ex-officio 
members of the committee. 

The function of the Ad Hoc Environmental Sustainability Committee (ESC) is to jumpstart 
sustainability planning in the City of Birmingham by helping to formulate the City’s goals and 
objectives as it relates to a sustainability and climate action plan. The work of the ESC will 
include a greenhouse gas emissions inventory to set a baseline and develop greenhouse gas 
emission reduction targets for 2030 and 2050, as well as to oversee the creation of a 
sustainability and climate action plan. 

NOTE: All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 2, 
Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   

Criteria/Qualifications of Open Position Date 
Applications Due 
(by noon) 

Date of 
Interview 

Preferred qualifications/areas of professional 
expertise include: energy, equity, 
civil/construction engineering, water quality, 
environmental engineering/consulting/law, 
recycling and solid waste 

3/22/2023 3/27/2023

10A5 



MEMORANDUM 
City Manager’s Office 

DATE:  February 8, 2023 

TO:  Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Jana L. Ecker, Assistant City Manager 

SUBJECT:  Ongoing Communication with MDOT 

In 2022, the City Commission completed a strategic planning process and identified its priorities 
for strategic goals as community and sustainability. 

The first strategic goal adopted was to create an engaged and connected community, and the 
first priority outlined was to work to bridge the divide that Woodward Avenue creates in the city, 
and transform the Woodward environment.  The recommended action associated with this goal 
was to create a coalition with Woodward corridor communities, seek partnerships with community 
groups and elected officials, and advocate the Michigan Department of Transportation (“MDOT”) 
for a transformational road diet.  

In furtherance of this strategic goal, I am pleased to advise that a coalition of community leaders 
from Detroit, Highland Park, Ferndale, Pleasant Ridge, Huntington Woods, Royal Oak, Berkley, 
Birmingham, Bloomfield Hills and Pontiac has been established and meeting regularly to discuss 
our collective goals for the Woodward corridor.  In addition, representatives from both SEMCOG 
and Oakland County have also attended to support the Woodward communities.  The coalition 
swiftly agreed that the first step in improving the Woodward corridor was to engage with MDOT 
officials. 

On January 27, 2023, the Woodward coalition invited the newly appointed Interim Director of 
MDOT, Brad Wieferich, Gorette Yung, Metro Region Engineer (who oversees the entire Metro 
Detroit region for MDOT) and Lori Swanson, Manager (who oversees the Oakland County TSC) 
to meet with us in Pleasant Ridge.  Attendees included myself, and the following officials: 

 Melanie Piana, Mayor of Ferndale
 Joseph Gacioch, Ferndale
 Matthew Baumgarten, Berkley City

Manager
 Jim Bruekman, Pleasant Ridge City

Manager
 Bret Scott, Mayor of Pleasant Ridge

 Sam Krassenstein, Detroit
 Brett Rasegan, Oakland County
 David Woodward, Oakland County

Commissioner
 Michele Fedorowicz, SEMCOG
 Kevin Vettraino, SEMCOG

10E1



 
 
 
 
 

2 
 

The purpose of the meeting was to share our concerns and ideas on how the Woodward 
communities can collaborate with MDOT to implement both short term and long term changes to 
transform the corridor.  
 
Specifically, coalition members conducted a PowerPoint presentation (attached) to convey the 
following: 
  

 Woodward is a key corridor for Metro Detroit, and it segments several historic downtowns, 
acting as “Main Street” in numerous communities 

 There is a sense of urgency to transform Woodward, not just to plan, but to implement 
changes 

 Many plans have been completed for Woodward by cities both independently and working 
together for the corridor as a whole (non-MDOT plans) 

 Prior plans for complete streets and other local plans done by others are not considered 
by MDOT in their planning process, and this should change 

 Woodward communities want to work together on a corridor plan, but want it to move 
faster, include prior plan concepts, and be action-oriented 

 Woodward communities would like any plan to use best practices in multi-modal 
transportation and urban planning, and to consider a complete road diet analysis for the 
entire corridor understanding that Woodward is a main street, not a highway 

 Woodward communities request that MDOT shift transportation analysis away from 
current vehicle centric, vehicle level of service analysis to a comprehensive multi-modal 
analysis for Woodward Avenue and other road projects in urban areas 

 MDOT consider incorporating the new SEMCOG multi-modal analysis tool into 
transportation planning process for Woodward 

 MDOT honor user prioritization for multi-modal modes if desired by each community 
 Use an equitable and inclusive process for a Woodward corridor study 
 Consider sustainability and environmental goals in transportation planning (such as State 

carbon neutral goals) 
 Woodward communities would like to collaborate with MDOT to prepare a corridor plan 

for Woodward that is innovative and can be used as a model for future urban corridor 
studies 

 
The Woodward coalition intends to continue collaborating with MDOT on the next steps towards 
incorporating multi-modal performance measures into transportation planning, preparing a scope 
of work for a Woodward corridor study that will address the vision and needs of the Woodward 
communities and that will lay out a plan for transforming the entire Woodward corridor.   
 
The next meeting of the coalition is expected to be held in early March. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10E1



WOODWARD AVENUE COMMUNITIES FOR 

A Sa fe r, Mu lt i-Mo d a l
Clim a t e -Re s ilie n t  Fu t u re
P r e s e n t a t io n  fo r  MDO T Dir e c t o r : J a n u a r y 2 7 , 2 0 2 3

10E1



Woodward P r o g r e s s

1

P a s t  P la n n in g  Effo r t s

2

Co m m u n it y Re q u e s t s

4 O n g o in g  Ch a lle n g e s

3

Dis c u s s io n

5

AGENDA In t r o d u c t io n s

6

10E1



W o o d w a rd  Co m m u n it ie s  Ha ve  a  
Se n s e  o f Urg e n cy

MDOT Ne e d s  a  Sh ift  in  P la n n in g  
P h ilo s o p h y fo r  Mu lt i-Mo d a l 

Co rr id o rs
Sa fe t y  Fo c u s  & Sh ift  To w a r d  Bik in g , W a lk in g , a n d  Tr a n s it

Ec o n o m ic  Co m p e t it ive n e s s
Eq u it a b le  a n d  In c lu s ive

S t a t e  Ca r b o n  Ne u t r a l Go a ls

Detroit, Highland Park, Ferndale, Pleasant Ridge, Huntington Woods, Royal Oak, Berkley, 
Bir m in g h a m , B lo o m fie ld  H il ls , P o n t ia c 10E1



CO MMUNITY VIS IO N P RO GRES S

PONTIAC LOOP 
One Way Loop Revmoval

WOODWARD MOVES
Lane Reduction & Safety 

Improvements

BIRMINGHAM 
CROSSWALK

Pedestrian Safety & Road 
Diet Check List

Detroit, Highland Park, Ferndale Pleasant Ridge, Huntington Woods, Royal Oak, Berkley, 
Birmingham, Bloomfield Hills, Pontiac 10E1



CO MMUNITY VIS IO N P RO GRES S

DETROIT TRANSIT 
O N LY LA N E S

Transit Frequency & Service 
Improvements

MDOT CORRIDOR 
PLAN

Long -Term Reconstruction 
Goals

Detroit, Highland Park, Ferndale, Pleasant Ridge, Huntington Woods, Royal Oak, Berkley, 
Birmingham, Bloomfield Hills, Pontiac 10E1



W h e r e  W e  Ar e  No w

MDOT Level of Service favors 
c a r sp e e d s  o ve r w a lk in g , b ik in g , 

a n d  t ra n s it .

Cu rre n t  c o m m u n it y vis io n s  

c o n flic t s  w it h  MD O T P ra c t ic e

W h e r e  W e  W a n t  t o  Be

Ba la n c e d  p la n n in g  fo r a ll m o d e s  o f 

t ra n sp o rt a t io n

Ac t io n -O rie n t e d

Co m m u n it y p a rt n e rs  w it h  MD O T10E1



Alo n g  t h e  W o o d w a r d  
Co r r id o r

500,000 P o p u l a t i o n

2 0 0 ,0 0 0  H o u s i n g  U n i t s

3 0 0 ,0 0 0  J o b s

3 5 ,0 0 0    B u s i n e s s e s

5 % S t a t e ’s  P o p .

10E1



P a s t  P la n n in g  
Effo rt s

Detroit, Highland Park, Ferndale, Pleasant Ridge, Huntington Woods, Royal Oak, Berkley, 
Bir m in g h a m , B lo o m fie ld  H il ls , P o n t ia c 10E1



P a s t  P la n n in g  Effo rt s

Detroit, Highland Park, Ferndale, Pleasant Ridge, Huntington Woods, Royal Oak, Berkley, 
Bir m in g h a m , B lo o m fie ld  H il ls , P o n t ia c 10E1



SEMCOG Mu lt i-
Mo d a l To o l

Detroit, Highland Park, Ferndale, Pleasant Ridge, Huntington Woods, Royal Oak, Berkley, 
Bir m in g h a m , B lo o m fie ld  H il ls , P o n t ia c 10E1



SEMCOG Mu lt i-Mo d a l To o l

Detroit, Highland Park, Ferndale, Pleasant Ridge, Huntington Woods, Royal Oak, Berkley, 
Bir m in g h a m , B lo o m fie ld  H il ls , P o n t ia c

CURRENT P RACTICE SHARED P RACTICE

10E1



O NGO ING CHALLENGES

COMMUNITY PLANS NOT 
A C C E P TE D

City mobility plans, safety studies, visions 
omitted from MDOT current resurfacing 

projects, or long -term planning

MAJOR MDOT DISCONNECT

MDOT POLICIES ARE LIMITED IN 
IMPLEMENTATION BECAUSE OF LEVEL 

OF SERVICE MEASUREMENT TOOLS

TRAFFIC FORECASTS

Vehicle throughput and congestion 
mitigation still drive the need and design

NONMOTORIZED 
PERFORMANCE

Lack of integrated non -motorized 
performance measures

10E1



De s ig n  St u d y  Th a t  Cre a t e s  Be s t  
P ra c t ice  fo r  Urb a n  Co rr id o rs

A Ne w  P r o c e s s  fo r  MDOT t o  Co lla b o r a t e  o n  Ur b a n  Co r r id o r s

ACTION
O R IE N TE D

The plan must 
produce short -

term project 
actions for 

implementation 
that builds toward 
higher -level vision

STUDY 
TIMEFRAME

Reduce study 
from 18 months 

to 12

PILOT 
RESEARCH

Testing Level of 
Service paired 

with multi -modal 
modeling.
Bring in a 

national group

RFP Plan
Scope

Complete Road 
Diet Checklist for 

each city to 
truncate process 

and pilot 
alternatives 

Detroit, Highland Park, Ferndale, Pleasant Ridge, Huntington Woods, Royal Oak, Berkley, 
Birmingham, Bloomfield Hills, Pontiac 10E1



FRESH, NEW  AP P ROACH
MAKE SEAMLESS CONNECTIONS  & INCREASE COLLABORATION

H O N O R  U S E R  P R IO R ITIZ A TIO N

Many cross -platform and intermodal challenges must align better now
Cities desire safety fixes now, not in 3 -5 years.

Establish prioritization of nonmotorized users upfront in the study
Align MDOT measurement practices with MDOT policy

Detroit, Highland Park, Ferndale, Pleasant Ridge, Huntington Woods, Royal Oak, Berkley, 
Birmingham, Bloomfield Hills, Pontiac

CLASS OF ACTION NEPA CHECKLIST
Corridor study includes all positions to complete NEPA categories
Identify where we have exposure

10E1



TURNING THE TIDE ON TRANSPORTATION GHGs

"P ARTNER W ITH LO CAL CO MMUNITIES  TO  DEVELO P  AND 

DEMO NS TRATE EFFECTIVE, EQ UITABLE, AND S CALABLE LO CAL O R 

REGIO NAL LAND-US E AND P LANNING S O LUTIO NS  TO  INCREAS E 

CO NVENIENCE AND REDUCE EMIS S IO NS  BY MAKING IT P O S S IBLE 

FO R P EO P LE TO  TAKE FEW ER O R S HO RTER TRIP S  P RO VIDE BES T 

P RACTICES , DATA, TO O LS , AND TECHNICAL AS S IS TANCE O N 

S YS TEM-LEVEL DES IGN S O LUTIO NS  TO  INCREAS E CO NVENIENCE 

AND REDUCE EMIS S IO NS "

U S  N A TIO N A L B LU E P R IN T F O R  

TR A N S P O R TA TIO N  D E C A R B O N IZ A TIO N

D e t r o it , H ig h la n d  P a r k , Fe r n d a le , P le a s a n t  R id g e , H u n t in g t o n  W o o d s , R o ya l  O a k , Be r k le y , 

B ir m in g h a m , B lo o m fie ld  H il ls , P o n t ia c 10E1



W o o d w a rd  
Mo ve s  
Eve ryb o d y
Ou r  Sh a r e d  Fu t u r e

Thank You

Detroit, Highland Park, Ferndale, Pleasant Ridge, Huntington Woods, Royal Oak, Berkley, 
Birmingham, Bloomfield Hills, Pontiac 10E1



Birmingham Shopping District 
151 Martin Street 

Birmingham, MI 48009 
248-530-1200

ALLINBirmingham.com 

MEMORANDUM

DATE: February 8, 2023 
TO: City Manager Thomas Markus and Birmingham City Commission 
FROM: Cristina Sheppard-Decius, CMSM, BSD Executive Director 
SUBJECT: BSD 2022 Year in Review 

The Birmingham Shopping District recently published and distributed its 2022 Year in Review to 
all property and business owners within the BSD. The Year in Review highlights the successes, 
services, programs and new businesses this past year.  

With a 96% retail occupancy and the addition of 17 new businesses, the BSD is economically 
strong and continues to grow. Over 7 million visitors came to Downtown Birmingham this past 
year based upon mobile data provided by Oakland County with an average two-hour stay, which 
is an increase from the previous year and trending to grow as society moves back to normalcy 
post-pandemic.  

There are many great facts and key indicators that show the work of the BSD and City to 
maintain a vibrant downtown is working. These key indicators will be used as a benchmark for 
year over year comparisons moving forward. Attached you will find a copy for your reference.  

10E2



10E2



10E2



Facility Assessment Committee Meeting #3
February 6, 2023

1INFORMATION ONLY



Agenda

• Follow-up from Meeting #2
• Recap of BPS Early Childhood Center Program
• Recap of Lincoln Street Alternative Program
• Recap of Birmingham NEXT Program

• Review of BPS Special Education Programs

• Breakout Sessions
• Short Term Considerations
• Mid-Term Considerations
• Long Term Considerations

• Next Steps / Meeting Dates

• Questions/Answers
2INFORMATION ONLY



BPS Special Education 
Programs

3INFORMATION ONLY



Follow-up from
January 24, 2023 Meeting

4INFORMATION ONLY



BPS Early Childhood Center 
Programs

5INFORMATION ONLY



BPS Early Childhood Center Program

 BPS ECC provides programs for approximately 120 kids (between Ages 3-4)

 (2) Center Based Programs
 Midvale: 8 classrooms
 Wee Care (Groves HS): 3 classrooms (also offer daycare for +6 weeks old)

 (8) Other Program locations
 Elementary level locations ranging from 1-2 classrooms per building
 Great Start Readiness Program (GSRP) located at Bingham Farms

 Revenue per “student” ranges from $140,000 to $160,000 per year

 Considerations
 +200 kids are the “waitlist”
 Announcement of “Pre-K for all”
 Capacity at the existing elementary and middle schools
 Expansion of spaces at existing center-based programs (Midvale/Groves)

6INFORMATION ONLY



7

Midvale

(ECC program shaded in blue)

INFORMATION ONLY



8

Wee Care (at Groves HS)

INFORMATION ONLY



BPS Lincoln Street 
Alternative Program

9INFORMATION ONLY



BPS Lincoln Street Alternative Program

 BPS Lincoln Street Alternative provides programs for approximately 60 students

 Located in the “garden” level of Seaholm HS
 Utilizes 10 classroom areas
 Staffed by (4) teachers, (2) paraprofessionals, and (1) principal
 Allows students to participate in other education activities (electives)

 Considerations
 Maintain current location or review other options

 Groves, Middle Schools, Elementary Schools
 New Construction

 Renaming of School
 Opportunities for “new” look
 Opportunities for CTE/Art/STEAM programs

10INFORMATION ONLY



11

Lincoln Street Alternative (at Seaholm HS)

INFORMATION ONLY



Birmingham NEXT Program

12INFORMATION ONLY



Birmingham NEXT Program

 Birmingham NEXT provides programs for 50+ population

 Funded by (4) municipalities and serves residents from;
 Birmingham, Beverly Hills, Bingham Farms, and Franklin

 2,200 members
 1,500 weekly visits
 Located in a portion of Midvale
 Allows BPS students to participate in activities

 Considerations
 Maintain current location or review other options

 Other BPS facilities
 Other facilities (municipalities, non-profits, etc.)

 Review funding sources (grants, sponsorships, etc.)
 Review operational expenses (rent, staff, utilities/maintenance)

13INFORMATION ONLY



14

Birmingham NEXT

(NEXT program shaded in blue)

INFORMATION ONLY



Next Steps / Meeting Dates
 Activities and “findings” for next meeting from the following;

• Early Childhood Care – current and future considerations

• Lincoln Street Alternative – current and future considerations

• Birmingham NEXT – current and future considerations

• Other Programs (Special Education, other K-12 programs, etc.)

 Key Meeting Dates – all meetings are at the EAC and start at 6:00 p.m.

• February 27 – Formalize considerations for Facility Assessment Planning

• March 14 – Board Update/Feedback

• March 27 – Refine consideration for Facility Assessment Planning

• April 3 – Finalize considerations for BoE review

15INFORMATION ONLY



Questions….

16INFORMATION ONLY



Alex Bingham <abingham@bhamgov.org>

Fwd: Update - Facility Assessment Committee Meeting includes Presentation from
Jan. 24
1 message

Tom Markus <tmarkus@bhamgov.org> Thu, Jan 26, 2023 at 3:46 PM
To: Alex Bingham <abingham@bhamgov.org>

PLease add to info only for next agenda

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Joan Crampton <JCrampton@birmingham.k12.mi.us>
Date: Thu, Jan 26, 2023 at 2:41 PM
Subject: Update - Facility Assessment Committee Meeting includes Presentation from Jan. 24
To: Joan Crampton <JCrampton@birmingham.k12.mi.us>

One more note,

Attached is the information that was shared with the committee at the Tuesday, January 24th meeting.

Joan

From: Joan Crampton
Sent: Thursday, January 26, 2023 1:57 PM
To: Joan Crampton <JCrampton@birmingham.k12.mi.us>
Subject: Update - Facility Assessment Committee Meeting

Hello,

A new date has been selected to replace the March 27th meeting.  A calendar invitation was sent this morning from our
office for Tuesday, March 14 at the BPS Education and Administration Center, 6-8 p.m.  Please let me know if you have
any questions.

Kindest regards,

Joan Crampton

Executive Assistant to the Superintendent,

Board of Education & Scholar

jcrampton@birmingham.k12.mi.us

248.203.3004 / Fax 248.203.3009

INFORMATION ONLY

mailto:JCrampton@birmingham.k12.mi.us
mailto:JCrampton@birmingham.k12.mi.us
mailto:JCrampton@birmingham.k12.mi.us
mailto:jcrampton@birmingham.k12.mi.us


 

Kindness is the greatest wisdom  ~ Author unknown

 

 

 

 

 

From: Joan Crampton <JCrampton@birmingham.k12.mi.us>
Sent: Monday, January 9, 2023 12:57 PM
To: Joan Crampton <JCrampton@birmingham.k12.mi.us>
Subject: Facility Assessment Committee Meeting

 

Good afternoon,

Our first meeting will be Tuesday, January 10 from 6-8 p.m. at the Birmingham Public Schools Education and
Administration Center.  Note the schedule below for all upcoming meetings, and that the March 27 meeting will be
rescheduled due to the fact the district will be on spring recess.  Dr. Roberson’s attached letter shares an overview of the
study.  Other committee members will include students, staff, and community members. 

 

The list of meeting dates are below:

·         January 10

·         January 24

·         February 6

·         February 27

·         March 6

·         March 27 will be rescheduled to March 14 (Tuesday)

·         April 3

 

A light meal will be available to enjoy during the meeting.  Please let me know if you have any questions.

 

Kindest regards,

 

Joan Crampton

Executive Assistant to the Superintendent,

INFORMATION ONLY

mailto:JCrampton@birmingham.k12.mi.us
mailto:JCrampton@birmingham.k12.mi.us


Board of Education & Scholar

jcrampton@birmingham.k12.mi.us

248.203.3004 / Fax 248.203.3009

 

Kindness is the greatest wisdom  ~ Author unknown

 

 

2 attachments

Facility Study Letter.pdf
166K

BPS Facility Assessment Committee Meeting 01-24-2023.pdf
978K

INFORMATION ONLY

mailto:jcrampton@birmingham.k12.mi.us
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=122eed7f76&view=att&th=185efd4e5741ed3d&attid=0.1&disp=attd&realattid=185efd44d6541cfc9de2&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=122eed7f76&view=att&th=185efd4e5741ed3d&attid=0.2&disp=attd&realattid=185efd44d65b583d8c63&safe=1&zw


In partnership with parents and the community, Birmingham Public Schools will provide educational excellence that 
empowers students to cultivate their individual brilliance and positively impact their world. 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

December 15, 2022 
 

 

Dear Birmingham Public Schools' Community, 
 
As Birmingham Public Schools (BPS) reviews its current and future educational and financial 
goals, the District will be undertaking a Facility Utilization Study. 
 
This study will include the establishment of an (advisory/steering) committee to which you or 
your representative is being personally invited. This committee will assist in creating a long-
range plan for facility usage in the District, focusing on providing various educational options for 
students.  
 
The outcomes of the process related to the work of this committee will be focused on the 
following programs: 
 

 Expanding Early Childcare/Learning 
 Location for Lincoln Street Alternative program 
 Potential space to house a county-wide program 
 Maximization of district infrastructure 
 Possible location for Birmingham NEXT – Senior Center 

 
The committee will meet once or twice a month beginning on January 10, 2022, and will meet 
approximately eight to ten times over the next six months. The result of this work will be a report 
with recommendations and options for the Board of Education to consider for facility usage in a 
district-wide comprehensive approach.  
 
Before the meeting, I welcome any comments or questions you may have. On behalf of BPS, I 
appreciate your support and look forward to working with each of you. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 

 
Dr. Embekka Roberson 
Superintendent  
eroberson@birmingham.k12.mi.us  
 

 
 

Dr. Embekka Roberson 
Superintendent 

31301 Evergreen Road, Beverly Hills MI, 48025 
Office: (248) 203-3004 Fax: (248) 203-3009 
 

INFORMATION ONLY

mailto:eroberson@birmingham.k12.mi.us


Facility Assessment Committee Meeting #2
January 24, 2023

1INFORMATION ONLY



Agenda

• Follow-up from Meeting #1
• Updated Facility Utilization and Capacity based on 2022 Enrollment
• Capital Funding Considerations

• BPS Early Childhood Center Programs

• BPS Lincoln Street Alternative Program 

• Birmingham NEXT Program

• Next Steps / Meeting Dates

• Questions/Answers

2INFORMATION ONLY



Follow-up from
January 10, 2023 Meeting

3INFORMATION ONLY



Facility Utilization and Capacity

 Review of School Enrollment Capacities:
 Per Classroom by Grade Level – review two densities

 State qualification standard recommendation (85% utilization)
 BPS educational approach (22 pupils at ES, 24 at MS, 26 at HS)

 Enrollment Capacities do NOT include:
 Gym and Multipurpose Room
 Art Room 
 Music Room
 Computer Lab / STEM Lab
 Special Ed., Preschool, and other dedicated special purpose classrooms

4INFORMATION ONLY



Follow-up from January 10, 2023 Meeting

5

BIRMINGHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS - FACILITY SUMMARY TABLE BUILDING CAPACITY
(TARGET CLASS SIZE)

Facility Name Acres Building 
Type

General 
Education 

Classrooms
(A)

Dedicated 
"Classrooms" 
(Art, Music, 

Comp.)                    
(B)

Special 
Education 
/Support 

Rooms (Full-
sized 

Classrooms 
used for: 

ECSE, ASD, 
Literacy, Etc.)                   

(C)

Vacant/Non-
Programmed 
Classrooms

(D)

Total: All 
Classrooms 
(A+B+C+D)

Total Classrooms
(General Ed. + 

Non-Programmed 
Classrooms) 
(A+D = E)

(E)

Student 
Enrollment 

(FTE)
(as of Fall 

2022)
(F)

Building Capacity 
[(Colm. A)*Class 

Size]
(Target)

(G)

Excess Capacity 
(Target)

(G-F)
(H)

Utilization % 
(Target = F/G)

(I)

SCHOOLS:
22 Pupils at K-5
24 Pupils at 6-8     

26 Pupils at 9-12

ELEMENTARY: 89.85 173 21 13 0 207 173 2,864 3,806 942 75%

Beverly Elementary 11.46 K-5 18 2 2 0 18 18 284 396 112 72%

Bingham Farms 
Elementary 9.6 K-5 19 3 1 0 19 19 328 418 90 78%

Greenfield Elementary 10.67 K-5 17 3 2 0 17 17 262 374 112 70%

Harlan Elementary 9.74 K-5 22 2 2 0 22 22 373 484 111 77%

Pembroke Elementary 11.16 K-5 20 2 1 0 20 20 295 440 145 67%

Pierce Elementary 11.73 K-5 26 2 2 0 26 26 477 572 95 83%

Quarton Elementary 6.43 K-5 23 3 1 0 23 23 332 506 174 66%

West Maple Elementary 19.06 K-5 28 4 2 0 28 28 513 616 103 83%

 Facility Utilization and Capacity Analysis

INFORMATION ONLY



Follow-up from January 10, 2023 Meeting

6

BIRMINGHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS - FACILITY SUMMARY TABLE BUILDING CAPACITY
(TARGET CLASS SIZE)

Facility Name Acres Building Type
General 

Education 
Classrooms

(A)

Dedicated 
"Classrooms" 
(Art, Music, 

Comp.)                    
(B)

Special 
Education 
/Support 

Rooms (Full-
sized 

Classrooms 
used for: 

ECSE, ASD, 
Literacy, Etc.)                   

(C)

Vacant/Non-
Programmed 
Classrooms

(D)

Total: All 
Classrooms 
(A+B+C+D)

Total Classrooms
(General Ed. + 

Non-Programmed 
Classrooms) 
(A+D = E)

(E)

Student 
Enrollment 

(FTE)
(as of Fall 

2022)
(F)

Building Capacity 
[(Colm. A)*Class 

Size]
(Target)

(G)

Excess Capacity 
(Target)

(G-F)
(H)

Utilization % 
(Target = F/G)

(I)

SCHOOLS:
22 Pupils at K-5
24 Pupils at 6-8     

26 Pupils at 9-12

MIDDLE: 66.77 95 17 6 0 95 95 1,918 2,280 362 85%

Birmingham Covington 20.86 3-8 32 7 3 0 32 32 637 768 131 83%

Berkshire Middle 23.59 6-8 29 4 1 0 29 29 654 696 42 94%

Derby Middle 22.32 6-8 34 6 2 0 34 34 627 816 189 77%

HIGH: 90.51 120 18 6 0 138 120 2,548 3,120 572 82%

Groves High 48.67 9-12 61 10 4 0 71 61 1,216 1,586 370 77%

Seaholm High 41.84 9-12 59 8 2 0 67 59 1,332 1,534 202 87%

Annex Building

OTHER: 11.31 4 0 0 0 4 4 63 63 0 100%

Midvale ECSE 4.5 PK 4 0 0 0 4 4 63 63 0 100%

Facilities 0.96 Support

Transportation 5.85 Support

EAC Support

SUBTOTAL: 258.44 392 56 25 0 444 392 7,393 9,269 1,876 80%

BPS TOTAL: 258.44 392 56 25 0 444 392 7,393 9,269 1,876 73%

 Facility Utilization and Capacity Analysis

INFORMATION ONLY



Follow-up from January 10, 2023 Meeting

7

 Capital Funding Considerations

 Voted School Bond Issue
 Voters must authorize the school district to issue a not-to-exceed dollar 

amount of bonds to pay for improvements identified in the ballot proposal.

 School district levies on taxable property whatever mills are necessary to pay 
the annual principal and interest payments. Debt service is paid by the debt 
levy, not the General Fund.

 Sinking Fund

 Voters must authorize the school district to levy approved millage

 Maximum millage is 3 mills for a maximum of 10 years
 For sinking funds voted in 2017 or later, permitted uses may include 

instructional technology and security equipment

 Interest free funding
 Sinking fund millage subject to Headlee Rollback if the annual growth for 

existing property is greater than the lesser of 5% or the current rate of 
inflation

INFORMATION ONLY



Follow-up from January 10, 2023 Meeting

8

 Capital Funding Considerations

INFORMATION ONLY



BPS Early Childhood Center 
Programs

9INFORMATION ONLY



BPS Lincoln Street 
Alternative Program

10INFORMATION ONLY



Birmingham NEXT Program

11INFORMATION ONLY



Next Steps / Meeting Dates
 Activities and “homework” for next meeting from the following;

• Early Childhood Care – current and future considerations
• Lincoln Street Alternative – current and future considerations
• Birmingham NEXT – current and future considerations
• Other Programs 

 Key Meeting Dates – all meetings are at the EAC and start at 6:00 p.m.
• January 10
• January 24
• February 6
• February 27
• March 14 (tentative)
• March 27
• April 3

12INFORMATION ONLY



Questions….

13INFORMATION ONLY



2/6/23, 3:58 PM City of Birmingham MI Mail - Fwd: RELEASE: Gov. Whitmer Signs Executive Order to Build and Refurbish More Affordable Housin…

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=122eed7f76&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f%3A1757115368817934280&simpl=msg-f%3A17571153688… 1/2

Alex Bingham <abingham@bhamgov.org>

Fwd: RELEASE: Gov. Whitmer Signs Executive Order to Build and Refurbish More
Affordable Housing Faster
Tom Markus <tmarkus@bhamgov.org> Mon, Feb 6, 2023 at 3:36 PM
To: Alex Bingham <abingham@bhamgov.org>

Pending please 

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Michigan Executive Office of the Governor <mieog@govsubscriptions.michigan.gov>
Date: Mon, Feb 6, 2023 at 3:20 PM
Subject: RELEASE: Gov. Whitmer Signs Executive Order to Build and Refurbish More Affordable Housing Faster
To: <tmarkus@bhamgov.org>

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE    
February 6, 2023    
Contact: Press@michigan.gov  

Gov. Whitmer Signs Execu�ve Order to Build and Refurbish More Affordable Housing
Faster 

Reorganiza�on shi�s administra�on of cri�cal housing grant to state housing agency, spurs growth, helps achieve
goals of the Michigan Statewide Housing Plan 

GRAND RAPIDS, Mich. – Today, at the Grand Rapids Economic Club, Governor Gretchen Whitmer signed an execu� ve
order to put the Michigan State Housing Development Authority (MSHDA) in charge of more housing resources. This
change will allow more flexible funding to promote housing innova� on and ensure the state can get funds out the
door more quickly to build more housing faster.   

“We need to build more housing in Michigan as efficiently and effec� vely as possible,” said Governor Whitmer.
“Today, I am proud to sign an execu� ve order to bring more housing resources under the authority of our state’s
housing and development authority. Ge� ng this done will help us move faster on housing projects so we can help
more Michiganders have a safe, affordable place to call home.” 

Housing Execu�ve Order 
Governor Whitmer’s execu� ve order reorganizes the way the State of Michigan funds and builds housing. It shi. s
administra�on of the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) from the Michigan Strategic Fund to MSHDA. This
change will make sure the state’s housing agency oversees important issues related to housing, allow more flexible
funding to promote housing innova�on, and help get dollars out the door faster, kickstar�ng projects and moving
dirt. 

INFORMATION ONLY

mailto:mieog@govsubscriptions.michigan.gov
mailto:tmarkus@bhamgov.org
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDAsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzAyMDYuNzExMDA4MzEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL3d3dy5taWNoaWdhbi5nb3Yvd2hpdG1lciJ9.yYCtsuIaTOPMo7dCd51kM6__cLSM-Rlb-PdRQ7URr18/s/2585083408/br/154067843329-l
mailto:Press@michigan.gov


2/6/23, 3:58 PM City of Birmingham MI Mail - Fwd: RELEASE: Gov. Whitmer Signs Executive Order to Build and Refurbish More Affordable Housin…

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=122eed7f76&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f%3A1757115368817934280&simpl=msg-f%3A17571153688… 2/2

This email was sent to tmarkus@bhamgov.org using GovDelivery Communications Cloud on behalf of: Michigan Executive Office
of the Governor · 111 S. Capitol Ave · Lansing, Michigan 48901

To view the execu�ve order, click here. 
 
Supplemental 
On January 31, Governor Whitmer signed a $1 billion supplemental, which included cri�cal investments in housing
and community development. 

$150 million into the Housing and Community Development Fund, which can be used to leverage a further $380
million in private funding to build or rehab 2,000 units, house 6,000 people, and create 1,600 jobs.  
$100 million in Revitaliza�on and Placemaking Grants, or R-A-P grants. These grants make towns more vibrant,
conver�ng underu�lized property—like old factories or schools—into housing, small businesses, or community
spaces. 
$50 million in the Missing Middle program, which specifically builds housing for middle-class families. There are
also some key changes to the program to expand eligibility, increase the kinds of developers the state can use,
and cut construc�on costs and �me.  

 
Michigan Housing Stats 

50% of renters and 25% of homeowners spend more than 30% of their paycheck just to keep a roof over their
heads.  
The state’s housing stock is old: 47% was built before 1970. 
Median income in the state can afford a home priced around $175,000, but new homes cost $307,000 on
average. 
Millennials with college debt need 12 years to save enough to buy a house. 

 
Michigan’s Statewide Housing Plan 
Last September, Governor Whitmer and MSHDA released the state’s first-ever Statewide Housing Plan. It proposed
specific goals to meet the state’s housing challenges: 

Build or rehabilitate 75,000 housing units. 
Stabilize housing for 100,000 families. 
Weatherize and improve energy efficiency for 15,000 homes. 
Make homelessness rare, brief, and nonrecurring. 

 
###

STAY CONNECTED:

 

Subscriber Services::
Manage Preferences  |  Unsubscribe  |
  Help

                               

INFORMATION ONLY

mailto:tmarkus@bhamgov.org
https://www.google.com/maps/search/111+S.+Capitol+Ave+%C2%B7+Lansing,+Michigan+48901?entry=gmail&source=g
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMTIsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzAyMDYuNzExMDA4MzEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL3N1YnNjcmliZXJoZWxwLmdyYW5pY3VzLmNvbS8ifQ.2jOEYVYYCVIwaMkHl14SrLOQsP_3Pv8Hk9ml6Uixmmg/s/2585083408/br/154067843329-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDEsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzAyMDYuNzExMDA4MzEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL2NvbnRlbnQuZ292ZGVsaXZlcnkuY29tL2F0dGFjaG1lbnRzL01JRU9HLzIwMjMvMDIvMDYvZmlsZV9hdHRhY2htZW50cy8yNDAxNjg5L0V4ZWN1dGl2ZSUyME9yZGVyJTIwMjAyMy0xLnBkZiJ9.DWiHObxlnWSRPeoWmzycRWCjydU0p6lJgETGHTWcASo/s/2585083408/br/154067843329-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDIsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzAyMDYuNzExMDA4MzEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL3d3dy5taWNoaWdhbmJ1c2luZXNzLm9yZy9wcmVzcy1yZWxlYXNlcy8yMDIzLzAxL3doaXRtZXItc2lnbnMtc3VwcGxlbWVudGFsLWJpbGwvIn0.7NQrREp3v3-sHaNEvb9UQhGyINgzhEguWpsK6p6uNgk/s/2585083408/br/154067843329-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDMsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzAyMDYuNzExMDA4MzEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL3d3dy5mYWNlYm9vay5jb20vR3JldGNoZW5XaGl0bWVyLyJ9.t3fs7BcQ155IaKXZ1JW4pwBBRvxSep4EBq6ymgJ9dpI/s/2585083408/br/154067843329-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDQsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzAyMDYuNzExMDA4MzEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL3R3aXR0ZXIuY29tL2dvdndoaXRtZXIifQ.GeMOeDMQ9lhaKKy82tL3qGN1vTeEASEKoa6OqPmCEdg/s/2585083408/br/154067843329-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDYsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzAyMDYuNzExMDA4MzEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL3B1YmxpYy5nb3ZkZWxpdmVyeS5jb20vYWNjb3VudHMvTUlFT0cvc3Vic2NyaWJlci9uZXcifQ.NbfENKQy0rpxOe3FsscjK_keeJgmePU7WruW3Bch_44/s/2585083408/br/154067843329-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDgsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzAyMDYuNzExMDA4MzEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwOi8vcHVibGljLmdvdmRlbGl2ZXJ5LmNvbS9hY2NvdW50cy9NSUVPRy9zdWJzY3JpYmVyL25ldz9wcmVmZXJlbmNlcz10cnVlIn0.3gO0dEiyPnFJv2_xIBCbJi_6SjSLRjMtKl6DuDgFJaQ/s/2585083408/br/154067843329-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDksInF1ZXJ5X3BhcmFtcyI6WyJ2ZXJpZmljYXRpb24iLCJkZXN0aW5hdGlvbiJdLCJ1cmkiOiJicDI6Y2xpY2siLCJidWxsZXRpbl9pZCI6IjIwMjMwMjA2LjcxMTAwODMxIiwidXJsIjoiaHR0cHM6Ly9wdWJsaWMuZ292ZGVsaXZlcnkuY29tL2FjY291bnRzL01JRU9HL3N1YnNjcmliZXIvb25lX2NsaWNrX3Vuc3Vic2NyaWJlIn0.qMpFjGXvGiq-PxWim5Y1JHnDwkiD_ZJhl7Qnzmf8rwM/s/2585083408/br/154067843329-l?verification=5.6252b2efa2fd72f86d5056e9435e63dd&destination=tmarkus%40bhamgov.org
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMTAsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzAyMDYuNzExMDA4MzEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL3N1YnNjcmliZXJoZWxwLmdyYW5pY3VzLmNvbS9zLyJ9.EcnDyXkvKQtb5cCIog6fYsL3r9pSLJSZv92fbXA2lW8/s/2585083408/br/154067843329-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMTEsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzAyMDYuNzExMDA4MzEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL2NvbnRlbnQuZ292ZGVsaXZlcnkuY29tL2FjY291bnRzL01JRU9HL2J1bGxldGlucy8zNDczOGI0P3JlcWZyb209c2hhcmUifQ.oaT_iOMqffgG4AonCWaJ66q6A-LRWK5Zkp-oVfzpLDs/s/2585083408/br/154067843329-l


1/23/23, 3:25 PM Biden Revives Rule to Combat Housing Discrimination - Bloomberg

https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2023-01-19/biden-revives-rule-to-combat-housing-discrimination 1/5

CityLab
Housing

Biden Revives Housing Rule That Trump
Derided as ‘Abolishing the Suburbs’
A civil rights-era fair housing policy is back, with new tweaks aimed at making it easier to snuff out
segregation.

A two-story house in the Roland Park/Guilford neighborhood of Baltimore, Maryland, in 1910. The streetcar suburb was one of the first planned communities in the US and
is considered an early example of the enforcement of racial segregation through the use of restricted covenants.  Source: JHU Sheridan Libraries/Gado/Archive
Photos/Getty Images

By Kriston Capps
January 19, 2023 at 5:30 AM EST

The Biden administration is restoring a rule that will require cities, counties and states that receive federal housing funds to examine patterns of
residential segregation within their borders and take steps to uproot them, a mandate that was first established by civil rights–era legislation but has
proved almost impossible to enact.

President Donald Trump ripped up the previous standard, known as the Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing rule, which he condemned as a federal
push to “abolish the suburbs” in the run-up to the presidential election in 2020. Soon after taking office, President Joe Biden pledged to reverse Trump’s
decisions on AFFH and once again take steps toward an elusive goal of erasing color lines in American neighborhoods.

More from INFORMATION ONLY

https://www.bloomberg.com/citylab?source=eyebrow
https://www.bloomberg.com/authors/AUc4dL0HxnA/kriston-capps
https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2020-07-23/what-trump-s-campaign-against-abolish-the-suburbs-was-actually-about
https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2021-04-13/biden-to-restore-two-obama-era-fair-housing-rules?sref=QFCZ3YPm
https://www.bloomberg.com/citylab?re_source=postr_index
https://www.bloomberg.com/citylab?re_source=postr_index


1/23/23, 3:25 PM Biden Revives Rule to Combat Housing Discrimination - Bloomberg

https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2023-01-19/biden-revives-rule-to-combat-housing-discrimination 2/5

Bloomberg
Citylab

In (and Above) Beverly Hills, Police Are Watching

NYC, Goldman Sachs Launch Effort to Give Struggling Small Businesses a Lift

France, Germany Plan High-Speed Paris-Berlin Train Service

Social Media Buzz: Lunar New Year, Nikki Haley, Djokovic, Abbott

The new Biden rule resembles the AFFH guidance set forth by the US Department of Housing and Urban Development in 2015, but officials say this new
version establishes a more streamlined process for identifying civil rights concerns and reporting progress toward desegregation under the rubric of
“equity plans.” Officials say this framework will be easier for localities of different sizes to follow, and harder for them to ignore.

Communities that fail to comply with the new fair housing rule could lose access to billions of dollars of federal funding.

“We are done with communities that do not serve people,” Housing Secretary Marcia L. Fudge said at a press conference on Wednesday. “We are going to
hold responsible those that we give resources to. We no longer as a federal government can continue to fail the very people we need to help.”

For some 55 years, the Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing mandate has served up a dilemma: How can federal officials enforce an obligation for local
leaders to proactively and voluntarily undo segregation? From the very beginning the measure was controversial: George Romney, who served as housing
secretary after the Fair Housing Act was passed, ordered HUD to reject applications for federal funding from jurisdictions that promoted segregation, but
he was reeled in by President Richard Nixon.

In subsequent decades, standards for enforcing this mandate fell so low that a trope emerged in the 1990s: If a municipality encouraged schoolchildren to
draw posters about fair housing, that was good enough to check off the box.

A rule promulgated under the Obama administration in 2015 delivered formal guidance for how localities could comply with the federal mandate, along
with the message that they needed to start taking it seriously. This AFFH rule required cities, counties, states and public housing agencies to draw up
detailed fair housing assessments; HUD also launched a tool designed to help small communities in particular fill out the report. Some jurisdictions
complained that the process was too burdensome, and that it asked for a perspective that no single agency was able to provide.

Ben Carson, on the other hand, compared the federal fair housing mandate to “social engineering.” Even as hundreds of these assessments were
underway, Trump’s housing secretary first postponed the deadline for communities to comply in 2018, and then scrapped the assessment tool a few
months later. While Carson promised to introduce a new rule that would require local governments to lift exclusionary zoning codes that prevent
development, Trump publicly intervened, canceling the rule altogether (and without following administrative procedure) in an effort to win over voters
beholden to a “suburban lifestyle dream.”

Biden’s proposed rule — which will be published imminently in the Federal Register and subject to public comment — will swap out fair housing
assessments for equity plans. Local and county governments, state governments and public housing agencies will need to produce equity plans every
five years, with larger governments on the hook first. Instead of requiring detailed responses to questionnaires, housing officials said, the questions will
be built into the rule itself, and local jurisdictions will have greater latitude in how they frame their response.

“There are far fewer questions being asked of program participants in this particular proposal than previously,” said Demetria McCain, principal deputy
assistant secretary for fair housing and equal opportunity at HUD. “What are the fair housing issues, and what are you going to do about them?”

In another deviation from the Obama-era rule, Biden officials plan to publish the equity plans themselves and make them available for comment, an effort
to provide transparency and distribute accountability to the communities themselves — communities, after all, that are much more knowledgable about
their own goals and shortcomings than officials in Washington.

Cities are changing fast. Keep up with the CityLab Daily newsletter.Cities are changing fast. Keep up with the CityLab Daily
newsletter.Cities are changing fast. Keep up with the CityLab Daily newsletter.
The best way to follow issues you care aboutThe best way to follow issues you care aboutThe best way to follow issues you care about

By submitting my information, I agree to the Privacy Policy and Terms of Service and to receive offers and promotions from Bloomberg.

Please enter a valid email address

Enter your email

INFORMATION ONLY

https://www.bloomberg.com/citylab?re_source=postr_index
https://www.bloomberg.com/citylab?re_source=postr_index
https://www.bloomberg.com/news/features/2023-01-19/in-beverly-hills-police-surveillance-technology-takes-off?re_source=postr_story_0
https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2023-01-23/nyc-goldman-sachs-launch-loan-program-to-give-small-businesses-a-lift?re_source=postr_story_1
https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2023-01-22/france-germany-plan-high-speed-train-between-paris-and-berlin?re_source=postr_story_2
https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2023-01-21/social-media-buzz-lunar-new-year-nikki-haley-djokovic-abbott?re_source=postr_story_3
https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2017-02-03/affirmatively-furthering-fair-housing-faces-its-fate?sref=QFCZ3YPm
https://www.washingtontimes.com/news/2015/jul/23/ben-carson-obamas-housing-rules-try-to-accomplish-/
https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2018-01-05/trump-s-hud-delays-affirmatively-furthering-fair-housing?srnd=storythread-QHKWIBDWX2PX01&sref=QFCZ3YPm
https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2018-06-21/hud-signals-plan-to-reverse-course-on-racial-discrimination?sref=QFCZ3YPm
https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2018-08-14/is-hud-secretary-ben-carson-targeting-zoning-or-fair-housing?sref=QFCZ3YPm
https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2020-07-30/-the-suburbs-are-not-what-trump-thinks-they-are?srnd=storythread-QHKWIBDWX2PX01&sref=QFCZ3YPm
https://www.bloomberg.com/notices/privacy/
https://www.bloomberg.com/notices/tos/?in_source=hp-nav


1/23/23, 3:25 PM Biden Revives Rule to Combat Housing Discrimination - Bloomberg

https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2023-01-19/biden-revives-rule-to-combat-housing-discrimination 3/5

Such transparency raises the specter of procedural compromise or political backlash, however, since efforts to dial back US segregation of housing and
schools are often met with fierce resistance. The same local community participation that Biden administration officials tout as a feature of the new
process for designing equity plans can also be a bug, since affluent and white homeowners disproportionately drive neighborhood participation in local
government.

Then there’s the challenge of compelling jurisdictions that do not want to take steps to desegregate their neighborhoods — a challenge that local and state
governments are struggling to meet. Stripping federal funds from jurisdictions will be a high bar, according to officials.

“If they are not in compliance, we have the tools to make sure that they either use them properly, or they’re going to have to answer to what we want to
do going forward,” Fudge says.

Terms of Service Do Not Sell or Share My Personal Information  Trademarks Privacy Policy
©2023 Bloomberg L.P. All Rights Reserved

Careers Made in NYC Advertise Ad Choices  Help

INFORMATION ONLY

https://www.bloomberg.com/tos
https://www.bloomberg.com/trademarks
https://www.bloomberg.com/privacy
https://www.bloomberg.com/careers/?utm_source=dotcom&utm_medium=footer
https://nytech.org/made
https://www.bloombergmedia.com/contact
https://www.bloomberg.com/privacy#advertisements
https://www.bloomberg.com/help


INFORMATION ONLY



INFORMATION ONLY



INFORMATION ONLY


	20230213 BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION AGENDA
	3A 20230213 CABLECASTING NOTICE OF INTENTION - APPT PACKET
	Sec._30_226.___Creation_and_membership_of_CABLE board..pdf
	Sec. 30-226. Creation and membership of board.


	3B 20230213 Board of Zoning Appeals NOTICE OF INTENTION - APPT Packet
	2021 BZA ATTENDANCE RECORD.pdf
	2021

	2023 BZA ATTENDANCE RECORD THRU JANUARY.pdf
	20223

	2022 BZA ATTENDANCE RECORD.pdf
	2022


	5A 20220213 REVISED - 1_9_23 Minutes DRAFT
	5B 20230213 - 20230121 LRP Minutes DRAFT
	5C 20230213 1_23_23 Minutes DRAFT
	5D 01252023 warrant list 02132023
	5E 02012023 warrant list 02132023
	5F 02082023 warrant list 02132023
	5G 20230213_CC_Water_Tanks_Rehabilitation_Award_Memo_w_attachments
	5H 20230213 Set PH - 34350 Woodward Ave - Fred Lavery Porsche - SLUP, FSP & DR - FULL - 02.07.23 - FINAL
	20230213 Set PH - 34350 Woodward Ave - Fred Lavery Porsche - SLUP, FSP & DR Memo - 02.06.23
	20230213 Set PH - 34350 Woodward Ave - Fred Lavery Porsche - SLUP, FSP & DR - Attachments - 02.06.23
	1 - 34350 Woodward  - FSP Memo - 01.20.23  - New Format
	2 - 35350 - ZONING SUMMARY - 01.20.23
	3 - Dept Comments combined
	3 - 34350 Woodward- FSP - Fire Dept
	5 - BUILDING FSP REVIEW COMMENTS

	4 - 000P1 LAVERY PORSCHE _ FINAL SITE PLAN REVIEW SUBMISSION 1.25.2023


	5I 20231302 Trailer Attenuator
	Truck & Trailer Specialties, Attenuator Purchase Report Draft 2.pdf
	Signed Birmingham Scorpion Attenuator MiDeal Quote 011823 (2).pdf

	5J 20230213 SE Birmingham Movie Nights
	MEMORANDUM Movie Nights
	Application Day on the Town
	approval page
	DEPARTMENT


	5K 20230213 Advisory Park Board Resignation - Kalczynski
	1. 2023 Kalczynski, Steven Comm. Memo - RESIGNATION - Copy
	3. Resignation

	5L 20230213 Matha Baldwin Park Board Resignation
	1. Rock, Patrick Commission Memo - RESIGNATION - pdf 1
	3. martha baldwin

	6A 2023.02.13 Memo Re Code of Conduct and Resolution
	2023.02.13 Memo re Code of Conduct.pdf
	2023.02.03 RESOLUTION 2023 - (clean) CODE OF CONDUCT

	7A 20230213 PH - 300 S. Old Woodward - RH - SLUP, FSP & DR FULL - 2-13-23 - FINAL
	20230213 PH - 300 S. Old Woodward - RH - SLUP, FSP & DR MEMO - 2-13-23
	RH-City Commission Meeting
	20230213 PH - 300 S. Old Woodward - RH - SLUP, FSP & DR FULL - 2-13-23
	20230109 SET PH - 300 S. Old Woodward - RH - SLUP, FSP & DR FULL - 1-9-23
	20230109 SET PH - 300 S. Old Woodward - RH - SLUP, FSP & DR FULL - 1-9-23
	20230109 SET PH - 300 S. Old Woodward - RH - SLUP, FSP & DR FULL - 1-9-23
	2218_RH_Detroit_Final Site Plan Approval (1)
	M115 - ROOF - MECHANICAL HVAC PLAN.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	M115


	M106_SITE_2022-11-18.pdf
	M106_SITE-SP-1_Alta-Topo
	M106_SITE-SP-2_Site Plan

	RH Detroit Landscape COMBINED (11-18-2022).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	L1-Site Layout Plan-Ground Level

	RH Detroit-L2-Site Details & Specifications (11-18-2022).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	L2-Site Details & Specifications


	RH Detroit-L5-Landscape Details & Specifications (11-18-2022).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	L5-Landscape Details & Specifications



	ESLP111 - ELECTRICAL SITE LIGHTING PLAN PHOTOMETRICS-ESLP111.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	ESLP111


	ESLP114 - ELECTRICAL EXTERIOR 4TH LEVEL LIGHTING PLAN PHOTOMETRICS-ESLP114.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	ESLP114


	2218_RH_Detroit-Combined.pdf
	2218_RH_Detroit-A100
	2218_RH_Detroit-A210
	2218_RH_Detroit-A310
	RH Detroit-Opt A- FP01 A510 (1)


	300 S. Old Woodward - RH - SLUP, FSP & DR  REPORT - 12-14-22
	300 S. Old Woodward - RH - ZONING SUMMARY - 12-14-22





	7B 20230213 PH - Outdoor Dining FULL - 2-13-23 - FINAL
	20230213 PH - Outdoor Dining MEMO - 1-13-23
	ORDINANCE NO. _________
	THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ORDAINS:
	AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM:
	ORDINANCE NO. _________
	THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ORDAINS:
	AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM:
	ORDINANCE NO. _________
	THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ORDAINS:
	AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM:
	ORDINANCE NO. _________
	THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ORDAINS:
	AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM:

	20230213 PH - Outdoor Dining FULL - 2-13-23
	J1 - Outdoor Dining Ordinance - Public Hearing #2 FULL - 12-14-22
	ORDINANCE NO. _________
	THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ORDAINS:
	AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM:
	ORDINANCE NO. _________
	THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ORDAINS:
	AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM:
	ORDINANCE NO. _________
	THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ORDAINS:
	AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM:
	ORDINANCE NO. _________
	THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ORDAINS:
	AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM:



	7E 20230213 Request for Closed Session
	10A1 20230213 ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW COMMITTEE NOTICE OF INTENTION - PRE APPT
	10A2 20230216 PLANNING BOARD NOTICE OF INTENTION - PRE-APPT
	10A3 20230213 ADVISORY PARKING NOTICE OF INTENTION - PRE-APPT
	10A4 20230213 Matha Baldwin Park Board Notice of Intention
	2. 20230327, NOTICE  OF INTENT PRE-APPOINT - 2pdf

	10A5 20230213 SUSTAINABILITY BOARD NOTICE OF INTENTION - PRE-APPT
	10E1 20230213 MDOT Advocacy Staff Report - 2-8-23 - FINAL
	20230213 Staff Report - Woodward MDOT Dir Presentation - 1-27-23.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16


	10E2 BSD 2022 Year in Review_commission report
	BSD 2022 Year in Review_cover memo
	Year in Review 2022

	Z 20220213 IO BPS Facility Assessment Committee Meeting 02-06-2023 v2
	Z 20220213 IO City of Birmingham MI Mail - Fwd_ Update - Facility Assessment Committee Meeting includes Presentation from Jan. 24
	Z 20230213 - IO - City of Birmingham MI Mail - Fwd_ RELEASE_ Gov. Whitmer Signs Executive Order to Build and Refurbish More Affordable Housing Faster
	Z 20230213 INFO ONLY - Biden Revives Rule to Combat Housing Discrimination - Bloomberg
	Z 20230213 IO - Consumers Energy gas recovery plan hearing
	Z INFO ONLY - CH Wine Dinner



